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Directors’approval

Statement of directors’responsibilities inrelation to financial statements

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the auditors’ responsibility statement set out on page 18 is made to distinguish,
for the benefit of shareholders, the respective responsibilities of the Board of directors(the Board) and of the auditors in relation to the consolidated
and separate financial statements of Absa Bank Limited and its subsidiaries (the Bank).

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the financial statements that fairly present the state of the
affairs of the Bank and Absa Bank Limited standalone (the Company) at the end of the reporting period and the net income and cash flows for the
reporting period, and other information containedin this report.

Toenablethe Board to meet these responsibilities:

e  Alldirectors and senior management develop an environmentwhereby all directorsand employees endeavour to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuringthe Bank’s business is conducted in a manner that, in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach and in line with
the King !V code of conduct report.

e TheBoard sets standards and management implements systems of internal control and accounting as well as information systems aimed at
providingreasonable assurance that both on-and off-statements of financial position are safeguarded and therisk of error, fraud or loss is
reduced in a cost-effective manner. These controls, contained in established policies and procedures, include the proper delegation of all
responsibilities and authorities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties.

e  TheBoard and management identify all key areas of risk across the Bank and endeavour to mitigate or minimise these risks by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems, and discipline are applied and managed within predetermined proceduresand constraints.

e  The Bank’s internal audit and compliance functions, which operate unimpeded and independently from operational management and have
unrestricted access tothe Group Audit and Compliance Committee (GACC), appraise, evaluate and, when necessary, recommend improvements
to the systems of internal control, accountingand compliance practices, based on plans that, combined with the efforts of the Group’s risk
functions, take cognisance of the relative degrees of risk of each function or aspectof the business.

e  TheGACC together with the external and internal auditors, play an integral role in mattersrelating to financial and internal control, accounting
policies, reportingand disclosure. The GACC s satisfied that the external auditors are independent.

e The Board approves the Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERMF) through recommendation by the Group Capital Management
Committee (GRCMCQ).

e  TheBoard, through the GACC which is assigned by the GRCMCin respect of risk matters, reviewed the compliance practices and procedures to
enable the Board to discharge their regulatory responsibilities, by overseeing the plan and progress management makes in improving
complianceinrespectof KnowYour Customer, Anti-Money Launderingand Sanctionsrequirements;and by consideringthattheBank’s systems
and processes appropriately reflect the current legal and regulatory environment, refer to note 43.

. The Bank consistently adoptsappropriate and recognised accounting policies and these are supported by reasonable and prudentjudgements
and estimates on a consistent basis.

Based on the above, and tothe best of their knowledge and belief, the Board is satisfied that no material breakdown in the operation of the systems
of internal control and procedures has occurredduring the current reporting period.

The financial statements of the Bank and the Company have been prepared inaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, the Banks Act,
JSE Listings Requirements and the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) financial reporting guides as issued by the Accounting
Practices Committee and comply with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and all applicable legislation.

Thedirectors continuously assess the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Bank’s going concern assessment outlines relevant going
concern indicators based on amongst other factors the following:

. Forecasts underpinned by the Bank's strategy;
e  TheBank's operatingenvironment;
. Probability assessments based on the Bank’s performance, liquidity, credit ratings, market performance and governance and control.

Based on the assessment process outlined above, the directors have noreason to believe that the Bank and the Company will not be going concerns
in the next reporting period. These financial statements have been prepared on this basis.

Itis theresponsibility of the independent external auditor toreport on the financial statements. Their report to the shareholders of the Bank and
the Company is set out on page 19 of this report.

Thedirectors’ report on pages 7 to 10 and the annual financial statements of the Bank and the Company were approved by the Board and are signed
on their behalf by:

DocuSigned by:

DocuSigned by:
@@)@ 3/12/2023 | 12:30 PDT lvie Karbunbad 3/12/2023 | 21:21 SAST
MS Moloko A Rautenbach
Group Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Johannesburg

12 March 2023
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Chief Executive Officer and Financial Director Responsibility Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Thedirectors, whose names are stated below, hereby confirm that:

()
(b)
()

The annual financial statements, set out on pages 20 to 260, fairly present in all material respects the consolidated and separate financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of Absa Bank Limited in terms of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);
to the best of our knowledge and belief, no facts have been omitted or untrue statements made that would make the annual financial
statements false or misleading.

Internal financial controls have been put in place to ensure that material information relating to Absa Bank Limited and its consolidated
subsidiaries have been providedto effectively prepare the financial statements contained herein.

The internal financial controls are adequate and effective and can be relied upon in compiling the annual financial statements, having
fulfilled our role and function as executive directorswith primary responsibility for implementation and execution of controls.

Where we are not satisfied, we have disclosed to the Audit and Compliance Committee and the auditors any deficiencies in design and
operational effectiveness of the internal financial controls, and have taken steps to remedy the deficiencies; and

(f) Weare not aware of any fraud involvingdirectors.
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
lvie Rautunbade 3/12/2023 | 21:21 SAST Qmsow Bhvivan. 3/12/2023 | 20:59 SAST
A Rautenbach J P Quinn
Chief Executive Officer Financial Director
Johannesburg

12 March 2023
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Group Audit and Compliance Committee report

Introduction

The Group Audit and Compliance Committee (Committee) is pleased topresent its report for the 2022 financial year. The report has been prepared
based on the requirements of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008 (as amended) (the Companies Act), the Banks Act of 1990 (Banks Act), the King IV
Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2016 (King IV), the JSE Limited (JSE) Listings Requirements and other applicable regulatory
requirements.

This report sets out the Committee’s roles and responsibilities and provides details on how it accomplished the various statutory obligations as well
as Key Audit Matters (KAMs) considered during the reporting period.

Objective

The Committee’s main objectiveis to assist the Board in fulfillingits oversight responsibilities. In achieving these responsibilities, the Committee
did an evaluation of the adequacy and efficiency of accounting policies, internal financial controls, regulatory compliance and financial and corporate
reporting processes and governance. Further details on the functions of the Committee are outlined in its mandate, whichis reviewed and updated
on an annual basis.

Composition and governance

The Committee only comprises of independent non-executive directors whose appointment is approved annually by the shareholdersat the Annual
General Meeting (AGM). The members have a breadth of banking, financial, risk and governance expertise as well as commercial acumen needed for
the Committee to fulfil its responsibilities. The continuing independence and effectiveness of the Committee and its individual members are
assessed by the Board. Further information on the membership and composition of the Committee, is set out in its mandate.

During the 2022 financial year seven formal Committee meetings were held, that coincided with key reportingand regulatory timelines to ensure
theappropriate review and approval of financial resultsbefore release to the market and regulators. This includes the Committee’s annual meeting
with the South African Reserve Bank’s Prudential Authority.

The composition of the Committee and the attendance of scheduled meetings by its members for the 2022 financial year are as follows:

Member Meeting attendance”
Tasneem Abdool-Samad (Chairman) 7/7
Alex Darko 717
Daisy Naidoo 717
René van Wyk 717
Swithin Munyantwali 717

*Inaddition to the scheduled meetings above, Committee member alsoattended certain ad-hoc meetings throughout the year.

The Committee keeps the Board informed and advises on matters concerning the Bank's financial reporting requirements to ensure that the Board
is able to exercise oversight of the work carried out by Finance, Risk, Compliance, Internal Audit and the external auditors. The Chairman held regular
meetings with management (including from Finance), the Chief Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) and external
auditors to discuss specificissues arisingduring the year. The CIA, Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) and the external auditors have direct access to
the Committee, including closed sessions, without management being present, on any matter that they regard as relevant to the fulfilment of the
Committee’s responsibilities. The Committee Secretary regularly met with the Chairman to ensure the Committee fulfilled its governance
responsibilities, and to considerinput from stakeholders when finalising meeting agendas, tracking progress on actionsand Committee priorities.

Key focus areas
In line with the overall objective of the Committee, the Committee considered the following matters, amongst others, during the year under review:
Control environment and management control approach

The Committee continued to monitor the Bank’s Control Environment (CE) and Management Control Approach (MCA) to ensure that itis robust,
resilient and agile torespond appropriately toany challenges that may arise in the Bank’s operating environment. The Committee is satisfied that
Bank’s CE and MCA supports its business and operating environment.

The Committee continued to oversee the Bank’s migration of its consolidation and reporting system. Management, the CIA and the external auditors
will continue to keep the Committee updated on developments in this area, with particular focus on the key controls, to ensure that data are
accurately managed through appropriate reconciliations and validations. Having considered all relevant information the Committee is satisfied that
the financial andinternal controls of the Bank are adequate and that no material breakdowns occurred that resulted in material loss to the Bank.

Combined Assurance

The Committee aims to ensure that a combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated approach toassurance activities. In line with
this objective, the Bank promotes the embedment of a consistent and comprehensive Combined Assurance approach thatoptimises effort, reduces
duplication, and drives effective assurance of high-risk areas through the aggregated efforts of assurance providers. The Committee ensures that
the Bank’s combined assurance model adequately addresses the Bank's risks and material matters.

The Committee reviewed the Combined Assurance approach adopted by the Combined Assurance Steering Committee annually, to ensure it
addresses the Internal Financial Controls related attestation and assurance requirements outlined by the various regulators. The Committee also
reviewed the control functions’assessmentasrequired by theBanks Act Regulation 40(4),the Chief Executive Officer/Financial Director attestations

Absa Bank Limited
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Group Audit and Compliance Committee report

as required by the JSE Listings requirements, Internal Audit's Statement on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, and Internal Audits
Statement on Governance Risk Management and Control.

In addition to thisthe Committee also considered the coverage of the Bank’s critical risks per Business Unit and Function as presented in the Annual
Combined Assurance plan acrossthe three LoDs and is satisfied that the Combined Assurance Plan for 2022 adequately addressed critical risks. The
Committee also monitored the remediation of overdue issues raised by Second and Third LoDs on a quarterly basis.

Technology, Cyber and Information security

Technology, Cyber and Information Security risks have continued toincrease across global industries throughout 2022 as was anticipated in last
year's report. During the year the Committee continued to receive reports on the risks and related controls in respectof operational, fraud, cyber
security, IT systems and controls impacting financial reporting. It has also considered, in conjunction with the Information Technology Committee
(ITC) updates on key internal and external audit findings in relation tothe IT control environment including the progress made in strengthening the
logical access management controls.

External auditors

In line with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) requirements on Mandatory Audit Firm Rotation (MAFR) and following a
comprehensive tender processin 2021, PwCreplaced EY as one of the Bank’s joint statutory auditors with effect from the 2022 financial year. PwC
becameindependent on 18 October 2021 and was formally appointed as jointauditors with KPMG at the AGM on 3 June 2022. During the year, the
Committee, through regular feedback and enhanced monitoring was comfortable that PwC's transition was managed effectively as the joint
statutory auditor.

The Committee is responsible for assessing the effectiveness, objectivity and independence of the Bank’s auditors. This responsibility was
discharged by the Committee duringthe year at both formal meetings and private meetings with both audit firms and through discussions with
Bank executives. The Committee also ensured that the appointment and the independence of the external auditors were in compliance with the
Companies Act, JSE Listings Requirements, and all other regulatory and legal requirements. This included receiving submissions from the external
auditors, as part of the suitability assessments of the firmsand the designated audit partners. As part of thisprocess, the Committee continued to
assess potential regulatory and reputational matters impacting the firms. The terms of the audit engagement letter and associated fees were
approved by the Committee on behalf of the Board.

With regards tothe 2022 audit period, the Committee considered the external audit plan toaddress significant focus areas. These areas received
similar focus from the Committee with particular emphasis placed on the external auditors’ findings in thisregard. The Committee also discussed
external audit feedback on the Bank’s critical accounting estimates and judgements, as well as the involvement of specialists from the audit firms
on more complex matters, such as expected credit loss (ECL), valuation of complex financial instruments, and the assessment of IT access controls.

The Bank has an established non-audit services policy to safeguard the independence and objectivity of the Bank’s external auditorsand to specify
the approval process for the engagement of the Bank’s external auditors to provide non-audit services. The key principle of the policy is that the
Bank’s external auditors may only be engaged to provide services in cases where the provision of those services do not impairauditor independence
and objectivity. All non-audit services were approved by the Committee duringthe current financial year in accordance with the Board-approved
policy on non-audit services performed by the external auditor. The Committee is satisfied that the non-audit services fees for the year ended 31
December 2022 were permissible and within the thresholds stipulated in the policy.

The Committee considered if any reportable irregularities were identified and reported by the external auditor in terms of the Auditing Profession
Act, No. 26 of 2005, and determined thatthere were no such reportable irregularities.

Internal Audit

The Bank’s Internal Audit (IA) function forms an integral part of the Bank’s control framework and is a key componentinsupporting the Committee’s
work. The GACC monitors the performance of the function throughout the year, with respect to scoping, performing, and reporting the outcomes of
its work both to management and the Committee. The Committee held regular meetings with the CIA and members of the senior management team
toensure thattheCommittee isaware of the current programmeof work and anyemergingissues.ThelA function exhibitshigh levels of professional
objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and communicating information, as well as high levels of professional ethics inthe conduct of its work.

The Committee reviewed and approved the annual internal audit charterand audit plan. In addition, the Committee also evaluated the independence,
effectiveness and performance of the internal audit department and compliance with its charter.

The Bank’s external auditors conducted an assessment of the internal audit function against International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 610 and
confirmed that the work performed by internal audit was suitable for the purposes of external audit reliance. The International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditingand the Bank’s approved Audit Charter requires the internal audit function tobe reviewed at least once
every five years by a qualified, independentassessor or assessment team from outside the Bank. This review was last performed in 2018 with the
overall assessment concludingthat the activities of the internal audit function “Generally Conforms” to the Institute of Internal Auditors’ (I1A)
standards. Therating of “generally conforms” isthe highest attainable in terms of compliance tothe IlA standards. The next independent review is
scheduled for 2023 and planning for this has already commenced.

Absa Bank Limited
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Significant matters

The Committee has considered the appropriateness of the key audit matters reported in the external audit opinion and considered the significant
accountingjudgements and estimates relating to the annual financial statementsas follows:

Significant matter How the Committee addressed the matter

The measurement of ECL involves significant judgements, particularly under current economic conditions.
Expected credit losseson loans and | Despitea generalrecovery ineconomicconditionsin 2022, thereremainsan elevated degree of uncertainty
advances to customers over ECL estimation under current conditions, due to macroeconomic, political, global, regional and
domestic uncertainties. As part of its monitoring, the Committee considered several reports from
management in respect of the various aspects of the ECL model and in particular, the key judgements and
assumptions used in the calculation of ECL's.

Having considered and scrutinised the reports, the Committee agreed with management’s and other
assurance providers conclusion that the impairmentprovision recognised at year end was appropriate. The
Committee received appropriate input on the refreshed macroeconomic scenarios and the judgement
exercised by management in determining post-model adjustments. The Committee is satisfied that
adequate governance and controls over the ECL model arein place and effective.

Valuation of complex financial [ Due to the ongoing volatile market conditions in 2022, management continuously assessed its
instruments assumptions in valuing the Bank's investment portfolio. As losses were incurred management considered
whether fair value adjustments were required under the fair value framework. Management’s analysis
provided evidence to support the introduction of these adjustmentsin line with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

The Committee considered the key valuation metrics and judgements used in the determination of the fair
value of financial instruments. The Committee considered the valuation control framework, valuation
metrics, significant year-end judgements and emerging valuation matters and agrees with the judgements
applied by management.

Financial, legal, compliance and regulatory reporting requirements

The Committee received regular reports from the compliance function and reviewed the adequacy of the scope and the effectiveness of the
regulatory compliance processes applied. This included the evaluation of the quality of regulatory reporting, the regulatory compliance universe the
scope and the integrity of the regulatory compliance process, the adequacy of internal regulatory compliance systems and processes, and the
consideration and remediation of any findings of the internal and external auditors.

The Committee received assurance that the Bank will continue the protection and responsible use of its customer and employee data, including
those held by suppliers and other third parties.

During the reporting period, the Committee also considered the overall status on compliance in the Bank against policy, regulations or otherwise,
and any significantbreakdowns. This extended to financial crime and market conduct, in conjunction with the Group Social, Sustainability and Ethics
Committee. The Committee also monitored the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank Compliance function, specifically focusing on further
investment in compliance technology and data, the continued upskilling of the Compliance team, and the function’s assuringand evidencing of the
Bank’s regulatory compliance. Additionally, the Committee oversaw the Banks Act regulatory audit process.

Annual financial statements and integrated reporting process
The Committee is responsible for reviewing all formal announcements relating to the Bank’s performance. As part of its review the Committee:

e  Evaluated management’s application of critical accounting policies and material areas in which significantaccounting judgements were applied.

. Focused on compliance with disclosure requirements to ensure these were consistent, appropriate, and acceptable under the relevant financial
and governance reporting requirements.

e  Recommended to the Board that the financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and that there were no material
uncertainties that would impact the going concern statement which require disclosure. The Committee notes that forecast capital ratios
remained above minimum mandatory requirements and within the Board's target ranges.

e Met with senior management to gain assurance that the processes underlying the compilation of the annual financial statements were
appropriate.

. Conducted a review of the annual financial statementsand, where necessary, requested amendments.

. Reviewed relevant publications such as the JSE proactive monitoring papersissued and, where necessary approved the enhanced disclosures
recommended.

. Confirmed that management had reported on and evidenced the basis on which representations to the external auditors were made.

e  Obtained input and assurance from the external auditors and considered the level of and conclusion on the summary of audit differences.

. Reviewed and discussed the integrated report process, and governance and financial information proposed tobeincluded in the integrated
reportafterconsideringrecommendations fromtheSocial,Sustainabilityand EthicsCommittee, the Group Remuneration Committee, the Group
Risk and Capital Management Committee and the Directors’ Affairs Committee.

e  The Committee reviewed the IFRS Interpretation Committee’s (“IFRS IC") agenda decision published on ‘Demand Deposits with Restrictions on Use
arising from a Contract with a Third Party (IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows) — Agenda Paper 3" in April 2022 and has communicated a change in
accounting policy (refer note 1.19.1) to the JSE, which is required inaccordance with paragraph 3.14 of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Absa Bank Limited
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The Committee concluded that the processes underlying the preparation of the annual financial statementsand the financial information included
in the Integrated report for the financial yearended 31 December 2022 were appropriate in ensuring that those statements were fair, balanced, and
understandable, and recommended these reports to the Board for approval. The Board subsequentlyapproved the annual financial statements.

Internal Financial Control Attestation

Absa continues to maintain a strong control environment and has implemented adequate and effective internal financial controls to confirm the
integrity and reliability of the financial statements. In terms of paragraph 3.84(k) of the JSE Listings requirements, the Chief Executive Officer and
the Financial Director have made positive statementsunder their names and signatures inthe annual report.

Theidentified deficiencies in design and operating effectiveness of internal financial controlsidentified via the Bank’s three LoDs was reported to
the Committee duringthe year. The Committee considered the identified deficiencies as well as the appropriateness of management’s response
including remediation, reliance on compensating controls and additional review procedures. The Committee noted the significant assurance process
to support the Chief Executive Officer and Financial Director attestations.

Looking ahead
Therole of the Committee will focus on:

. ECL and fair value of complex financial instruments judgments and estimation due to macroeconomic, political, global, regional and domestic
uncertainties

e Theprogress made by management on the initiatives recommended by the three LoDs and the various commitments given to regulators on
issues that they have raised.

e  Thereviewof the Bank’s regulatory reporting processes, which remains an area of focus for the industryas a whole.

e  TheBank’s migration of its consolidation and reporting system.

. Keep abreast of any amendments to the JSE Listings Requirements and managements response in respect of future changes to IFRS, legislation
and other regulations impacting disclosure requirements.

e  Theimplications of Environmental, socialand governance (ESG) risk in measuring the sustainabilityand societal impact of an investment in a
Company or business together with ESG accountingdisclosures and assurance processes and ensuring that the Bank meets the minimum ESG
disclosure requirements released by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) or other regulatory bodies.

. In conjunction with the Risk and Compliance Management Committee, ongoing monitoring of sovereign risk on subsidiaries in different
jurisdictionsand any resultant impact on financial reporting.
. In conjunction with the ITC, continued monitoring of logical access controls to combat identified and potential Technology and Cyber risks

facingthe Bankand industry.
Conclusion

The Committee is satisfied that it has complied with all statutory obligations and duties giventoit by the Board under its terms of reference
including executingits responsibilities in compliance with paragraph 3.84(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements.

The Committee is satisfied that the financial and internal controls are adequate and that no material breakdowns occurred resulting in material loss
to the Bank.

The Committee reviewed the Bank and separate Company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and recommended them to
the Board for approval. The Board subsequently approved the annual financial statements.

On behalf of the GACC

DocuSigned by:

Tasneom b dool-Samad 3/12/2023 | 21:25 SAST

8DCDIEAB5471429.

Tasneem Abdool-Samad
Chairman of the GACC

Johannesburg
12 March 2023
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General information and nature of activities

Absa Bank Limited (the Company) is incorporated and domiciledin South Africa and provides retail, business, corporate, investment banking, and
wealth management products and services. The Company and its subsidiaries (the Bank) operate primarily in South Africa and employ 25 719
people. The address of the registered office of the Bank is 7th Floor, Absa Towers West, 15 Troye Street, Johannesburg, 2001. The Company has
preference shares listed on the JSE Limited.

The Bankis a subsidiary of Absa Group Limited.

The Bankis one of South Africa’s largest financial services organisations, serving retail, business and corporate customers and clients in South
Africa. The Bank also provides products and services to selected markets in Nigeria and Namibia.

The Bankinteracts with its customers and clients through a combination of physical and electronicchannels, offeringa comprehensive range of
bankingservices (from basic productsand services for the low-income personal market, to customised solutions for the commercial and corporate
markets), financial services and wealth management products and services.

The consolidated and separate financial statements were approved for issue by the Board Finance Committee, a committee of the Absa Group
Limited Board, on 12 March 2023.

The financial statements present the financial positions, results of operations and cash flows for the Bank and the Company for the reporting
period ended 31 December 2022.

Absa Group Audit and Compliance Committee Report
Refer to page 3 - 6.

Bankresults

Main business and operations

The Bank recorded an increase of 9% in headline earnings toR11 650m (2021:R 10 726m) for the reporting period. Headline earnings per share
(HEPS) and fully diluted HEPS increased by 9% to 2 598,7 cents (2021:2 392,6 cents). Refer to note 32 for the headline earnings note.

Certain segmental comparative information containedin this set of financial statements hasbeen restated due to business portfolio changes.
Refer to note 1.19 of the accounting policies and note 39.1 for further details.

Headline earnings was derived from the following activities:

Bank

Restated
2021*

Rm

Product Solutions 1960 2521
Relationship Banking 4046 3722
Everyday Banking 3948 4050
Corporate and Investment Bank (CIB) 4211 4080
Head office, Treasury and other operations (1891) (3018)
Barclays PLC separation (624) (629)
11650 10726

Headline earnings (refer to note 32)

Current reporting period appointments and

Name Position as director resignations

M S Moloko? Independent non-executive director, Chairman Appointed 1 April 2022

W E Lucas-Bull? Independent non-executive director, Chairman Retired 31 March 2022

T Abdool-Samad Independent non-executive director

N S Mjoli-Mncube Independent non-executive director

A Rautenbach? Chief Executive Appointed 29 March 2022

J P Quinn3 Financial Director Appointed 29 March 2022

P E Modise Interim Financial Director Assumed position of Group Chief Strategy and
Sustainability Officer 1 July 2022

R Van Wyk Independent non-executive director

A B Darko Independent non-executive director

R A Keanly Independent non-executive director

F Okomo-Okello Independent non-executive director

1These numbers have been restated, refer to notes 1.19.
2Sello Moloko commenced the role as Group Chairman with effect from 1 April 2022, following the retirement of Wendy Lucas-Bull.
3Arrie Rautenbach was appointed as Chief Executive of Absa Group effective 29 March 2022 whilst Jason Quinn resumed his position as Financial Director.

Absa Bank Limited
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Re-election of retiring directors

In line with international best practice, the Company has a requirement in terms of which all directors on the Board for longer than nine years are
subject toannual re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting (AGM).

In terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI), one-third of the directors are required to retire at each AGM and may offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’interestsin Absa Bank Limited preferenceshares

As at thereporting date, nodirector held any preference shares in the Company.

Directors’ and officers’ personal financial interestsin contracts

Transactions with directors are entered intoin the normal course of business under terms that are no more favourable than those arranged with
third parties.

Executive directors are entitled toshare awards (Absa Group ordinaryshares), the details of which areincluded in note 56.

No other contracts were entered intoin which directors and officers of the Bank had a personal financial interest and which significantly affected
the business of the Bank. The directors had nointerestin any third party or company responsible for managingany of the business activities of the
Bank.

Directors’and prescribed officers’ emoluments

The emoluments and services of executive directors are determined by the Absa Group Limited Remuneration Committee (Remco) as disclosed in
note 56.

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Theinterests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out in note 38 tothe consolidated financial statements.

Acquisitions and disposals during the current reporting period
Refer to note 47 for additional information on the acquisitions and disposals of businessesand other significant assets.

Acquisitions and disposals during the prior reporting periods

The Bank disposed of Card Issuingand Personal loan books on 30 June 2021. The bank received a cash consideration of R94m on disposal. The Bank
disposed of the Integrated Processing Solution investment on 30 September 2021. The Bank received a cash consideration of R12m on disposal.

Dividends

e 0On12March 2023, a final dividend of 3 509.58904 cents per preference share was approved. The dividend was announced on
13 March 2023 toordinary shareholdersregisteredon 21 April 2023. Thisdividend is payable on 24 April 2023.

e  0On12March2023,afinaldividend of 669.2 cents per ordinary share was approved. Thedividend was announced on 13 March 2023
to ordinary shareholders registered on 21 April 2023. This dividend is payable on 24 April 2023.

e  0On15August 2022,an interimdividend of 2 883.42466 cents per preference share was approved. The dividend was announced on
15 August 2022 to preference shareholders registered on 16 September2022. The dividend was payable on 19 September 2022.

e  0On15August 2022,an interimdividend of 1003.8 cents per ordinary share was approved. The dividend was announced on
15 August 2022 toordinary shareholders registered on 16 September2022. The dividend was payable on 19 September 2022.

e  Refer to Note 35 for the Common Equity Tier 1 distribution.

Special resolutions
The following special resolutions were passed by the Bank’s ordinary shareholders at the AGM held on 03 June 2022, inaccordance withthe

Companies Act:

o Special resolution number 1 - Remuneration of non-executive directors
Resolved to approve the proposed remuneration to be payable to non-executive directors for their services as directors of the Company for the
period 1June2022 toand including thelast day of the month preceding the date of the next AGM thereafter.

o Special resolution number 2 - General authority to repurchase the company’s securities
Resolved that the Company or any subsidiary of the Company may, subject to the Company’s MO, section 48 of the Companies Act, the JSE
Listings Requirements and any other stock exchange upon which the securities in the capital of the Company may be quoted or listed from time to
time, repurchase ordinary shares issued by the Company, provided that this authority shall be valid only until the date of the next AGM of the
Company or for 15 months from the date of the resolution, whichever is the earlier, and may be varied by aspecial resolution at any general
meeting of the Company atany time prior to the AGM.
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o Special resolution number 3 - Financial assistance to a related orinter-related company/corporation
Resolved to enable the Company, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, for a
period of two years from the date of this resolution, to providedirect or indirect financial assistance as regulated by section 45 of
the Companies Act to a related or inter-related company/corporation and/or to a member of a related or inter-related
company/corporation.

Company Secretary

N R Drutman is the Company Secretary. Her contact detailsare as follows:
7th Floor, Absa Towers West

15 Troye Street

Johannesburg, 2001

Telephone: (+27 11) 350 5347

E-mail: groupsec@absa.africa

Auditors

KPMG Inc. and PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. were appointed as joint auditors of the Bank for the 2022 reporting period, effective 1 January 2022.
John Bennett and Heather Berrange are the designated audit partners.

Authorised and issued share capital
Authorised

The authorised ordinary share capital of the Company of R322 500 000 (2021:R322 500 000)consists of:
o 320000000 (2021:320 000 000) ordinary sharesof R1.00 each;

o 250000000 (2021:250 000 000) ‘A’ ordinary shares of R0.01 each.
The authorised preference share capital of the Company of R300 000 (2021:R300 000) consists of:
o 30000000 (2021:30 000 000)non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each.

Issued
No additional ‘A’ ordinary shares were issued inthe current reporting period (2021: 16 983 265).
The total issued ordinary share capital at the reporting date, consists of:
o 302609369 (2021:302 609369)ordinary shares of R1.00 each;
o 145691959 (2021:145 691 959) ‘A’ ordinary shares of R0.01 each.
The total issued preference share capital at the reporting date, consists of:

o 4944839 (2021:4 944 839) non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each.

Absa Bank Limited
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2022 2021
Number Number Number Number
shareholde:; digiaiEE Shareholdergj of shares/
note holders notes note holders notes % held
Non-public shareholders
Ordinary shares 302 609 369 100.0 302 609 369 100.0
Absa Group Limited 302 609 369 100.0 302 609 369 100.0|
'A' Ordinary shares 145691 959 100.0 145691 959 100.0
Absa Group Limited 145691 959 100.0 145691 959 100.0|
Public shareholders
Preference shares 5478 4944 839 100.0 5393 4944 839 100.0
Standard Chartered Bank 17 206 433 4.2 20 264 458 53
Standard Bank 338 834894 16.9 346 892 699 18.1
Nedbank Investor Services 1166 1474735 29.8 1173 1485518 30.0
Other preference shareholders 3957 2428777 49.1 3854 2302164 46.6

Additional Tier 1 capital

The Additional Tier1 capital notes represent perpetual, subordinated instruments redeemable in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited (the issuer)
subject toregulatory approval. These instruments include a write-off provision which isrequired under Basel Ill. This provision istriggered by the
Prudential Authority and shall be instituted at the earlier of (i) a decision that a write-off, without which the Issuer would become non-viable, is
necessary; or (ii) a decision to make a public sector injection of capital, or equivalent support, without which the Issuer would have become non-viable.
In addition, the Additional Tier 1 notes do not have a contractual obligation to pay interest. Accordingly, the instruments are classified as equity
instruments. The total number of issued notes at the end of the reporting period was 7 503 000 000(2021: 7 004 000 000).

Absa Bank Limited
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Company Secretary’s certificate to the shareholders of Absa Bank Limited

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, | certify that, in respect of the reporting period ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has lodged with the Commissioner of the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission, all returns and notices prescribed by the Act and that
all such returns and notices are true, correct and up todate.

DocuSigned by:
Madine Drudman. 3/12/2023 | 20:54 SAST

3E634BBCDF914DB.

N R Drutman

Company Secretary

Johannesburg

12 March 2023
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Independentauditors’reportto the shareholder of Absa Bank Limited

To the Shareholder of Absa Bank Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
Our opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Absa Bank Limited (the Group and Company), set out on pages 20 to 260
which comprise:

e theconsolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

e theconsolidated and company statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e theconsolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e theconsolidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended;

e theaccountingpolicies,and

e thenotes totheconsolidated and company financial statements excluding the sections marked as “unaudited” in notes 42,and52.62 to

the consolidated financial statements and note 37 to the company financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial
position of Absa Bank Limited as at31 December 2022, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IFRS Standards) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statementsin South Africa. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to
performingaudits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the correspondingsections of the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Absa Bank Limited
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Level

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Absa Bank Limited
(consolidated and
separate)

Expected credit losses (ECL) on loans and advances to customers

Thedisclosure associated with ECL on loans and advances to customers is set out in the consolidated and separate
financial statements inthe following accounting policies and notes:

Note 1.2.1 — Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances

Note 1.7.4 — Expected credit losses on financial assets
Note 7 — Loans and advances
Note 52.2 - Credit risk

Note 52.3 - Macro-overlays, payment relief and sensitivity analysis

Note 27 (Separates)- Credit impairment charges

The Group and Company’s loans and advances to
customers and the related ECL is material to the
consolidated and separate financial statements.

We identified the audit of ECL on loans and advances
to customers to be a matter of most significance to
the current year audit due tothe following:

1. Thereisahigh degree of estimation uncertainty
and significant judgements and assumptions in
estimating modelled ECL on loans and advances to
customers;

2. Economic scenario forecasts, incorporating
Forward-Looking Information (FLI) which are used
to estimate the ECL on loans and advances to
customers require estimation and incorporation of
multiple forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and weightings into the ECL calculation.
Any impacts not captured by the statistical model
are accounted for via further management
adjustments, some of which are judgemental in
nature. Such adjustments are also posted where
current and forward-looking risks are not fully
reflected in the historic data used to calibrate
models;

3. Stage 3 impairments of loans and advances to
customers requires significant management
judgement in estimating future recoveries; and

4. Thecreditrisk disclosures incorporate multiple
data inputs and management judgement
impacting the completeness andaccuracy of the
disclosures.

In calculating the ECL, the key areas of significant
management judgement and estimation included:

Making use of our internal actuarial, quantitative and
economics expertise, our audit procedures addressed the
key areas of significant judgement and estimation in
determiningthe ECL on loans and advances to customers,
as set out below. In addition, we tested controls and
performed substantive procedures over the model data
inputs.

Absa Bank Limited
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Independentauditors’reportto the shareholder of Absa Bank Limited

Level

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Modelled ECL impairment losses

e Asignificant portion of ECLis calculated on
amodelled basis which incorporates
observable data, assumptions and
estimations. The development and
execution of these models requires
significant management judgement,
includingestimation of the probability of
default (PD); exposure at default (EAD) and
loss given default (LGD) model parameters.

e Significantincreasein credit risk (SICR) is
assessed based on the current risk of
default of an account relative toits risk of
default at origination. This incorporates
judgement and estimation by management.

e Thedetermination of the write-off point
and application of the curerules are based
on management's judgement.

The credit impairment models are subject to formal
model governance and approval.

Modelled ECL impairment losses

e Weassessed the controls over changes and
approval of ECL models.

e  Wereperformed and/or benchmarked the model
calculations for material portfolios basedon the
assumptions as per the model documentation,
independently reperformed the PD, EAD and L GD
parameters, to test the accuracy, a ssumptions
and appropriateness of the judgement applied
in the ECL calculations.

e Weassessed theappropriatenesso ftheSICR
methodologies and model calibrations and
tested the resultant stage allocations and
application of cure rules for a @ample of
portfolios and individual e xposures. For retail,
we also ested the p erformance of the SICR
approach by c onsideringh istoric volumes of
accounts movingintoa rrearsandthe
forward-looking view of default risk.

e  Wetested the completeness and accuracy of
data inputs intot he models by tracinga sample
of datanputs back toi nformation sourced by
management from internal systems and
external data providers.

e  Through discussions with management and
inspection of relevant documentation, we
obtained an nderstandingof the
methodologies and assumptions used by
management in the various ECL models and how
these were calibrated to use historical
information toe stimate future cash flows.

e  For allmpacted portfolios, we considered
historical post write-off recoveries to evaluate
the reasonableness of management’s current
ECL assessment and t o determine whether the
current write-off pointisstillt he point at
which there was noreasonable expectation of
significant further recovery against the
requirements of IFRS 9 Financial hstruments (IFRS
9).

e  We further evaluated whether post write-off
recoveries have been excluded from the LGD
calculation and therefore do n ot impact on the
ECL.

Absa Bank Limited
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Level

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Estimation and incorporation of multiple
forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
weightings into the ECL calculation

e  Themacroeconomic scenarioforecasts are
developed internally and require
management judgement. Given the
uncertain macroeconomic environment,
both locally and internationally, thereis
complexity in incorporating these scenario
forecasts, FLIs and probability weightings
intothe estimation of ECL.

e  Management adjustments tothe modelled
ECL output were used within the portfolios
to address specific risks which were not
catered for in the FLIs incorporated into
models.

e  Determiningthe key macroeconomic drivers
of creditriskincluding the relative
importance/weighting of each identified
factor incorporates judgement and
estimation by management.

Estimation and incorporation of multiple forward-
looking macroeconomic scenarios and weightings
into the ECL calculation

e Wetested controls over the approval of
macroeconomic forecasts and variables used
within the models by the appropriate
governance structures. With assistance from
our internal economics experts, we assessed
the appropriateness of the macroeconomic
scenarioforecasts and probability weightings
by benchmarking these against external
evidence and economic data.

e  Wetested the performance and sensitivity of
the forward-looking models in order to
evaluate whether the chosen macroeconomic
variables and model structure provides a
reasonable representation of the impact of
macroeconomic changes on the ECL, SICR and
baseline information built into the forward-
looking economic model.

e Weassessed thereasonableness of how
management considered the uncertain
macroeconomic environment on the ECL model
through independent ECL quantification and
sensitivity analysis.

e Wetested the governance process over
management adjustments; assessed
management’s rationale for the adjustments;
and the appropriateness of the assumptions
and data used in the determination of the
management adjustments. We further
evaluated whether these were reflective of
current market volatility, idiosyncraticrisks or
emerging trends.

Absa Bank Limited
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Level

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

3. Stage 3 ECL impairments assessed on an 3. Stage 3 ECLimpairments assessed on an individual
individual basis basis
e Asignificant portion of loans and advances e  Wetested management’s processes and key

to customers are assessed for recoverability
on an individual basis, primarily in the
Relationship Bankingand Corporate and
Investment Banking portfolios. Significant

judgements, estimates and assumptions are .

applied by management to:

(e)

Determine if theloans and
advances are credit impaired;
Evaluate the valuation and
recoverability of collateral;
Determining the expected value
to berealised from collateral
(includingthe timing of such
realisations) and other collection
efforts; and

Estimate the timingof the future
cash flows.

e  Stage 3 ECL on corporate exposureis
calculated on a client specific basis and
occurs outside of the portfolio models
referred toabove.

controls over judgements used to determine
whether specific exposures are credit impaired,
including the completenessand reasonability
of these assessments.

Our procedures focused on assessing the
reasonability of the estimate of the recoverable
amount and timing of expected future cash
flows used in measuring ECL. We have
performed the following for a sample of stage

3 exposures:

o  Where collateral had a material
impact on the ECL calculation, we
tested the Group and Company'’s
legal right to the collateral by
inspectinglegal agreements and
bond registration information, as
well as assessing the reasonability of
the valuation of the collateral by
evaluating key assumptions against
available market and internal
information.

o Where future cash flows are
estimated based on the loan
counterparty’s enterprise value, we
have tested these valuations with
reference toavailable market
information and counterparty
specific information.

4. Disclosures related to credit risk

Credit risk disclosures are significant as they rely on

material data inputs and explain management
judgement, estimates and assumptions used in
determiningthe ECL.

4. Disclosures related to credit risk

We tested the design and implementationand
operating effectiveness of controls over the
credit risk financial r eporting p rocess over note
52.2 presented in the consolidated financial
statements.

We evaluated whether the credit risk
disclosures are consistent with the ECL
information tested which included the ECL data,
models, estimates and macroeconomic
forecasts.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
the financial statements ina ccordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9.

Absa Bank Limited
(consolidated and
separate)

Absa Bank Limited

Valuation of complex financial instruments

The disclosure associated with the valuation of complex financialinstruments is set out in the consolidated

financial statements in the followingaccounting policies and notes:

- Note 1.2.3 - Fair value measurement
- Note 50 (consolidated)- Fair value disclosures
- Note 41 (Separate) - Fair value disclosures
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Level Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, on a sample basis, the
following, which were performed with the assistance of
our internal valuation experts:

Valuation of complex financial instruments

Complex financialinstruments include unlisted equity
investments (level 3), loans and advances at fair value
(level 3) and derivative financial instruments (level 2
and 3),includingrelevant valuation adjustments.

We haveidentified the valuation of complex financial
instruments as a key audit matter which required
significant auditeffort and the support of our internal
valuation experts as it requires significant
management judgement relatingtothe application of
sophisticated valuation methodologies and models,
key assumptions and key inputs to estimate the
valuation of the respective financial instruments,
includingthe related fair value disclosures.

Significant judgement isrequired concerning
unobservable inputs, for which there are no quoted
market prices, and inputs are alsoilliquid and volatile
in nature. These judgements relate tothe credit
spreads and risk adjusted yields curves used in
simulating counterparty valuation adjustments and
funding spreads used to simulate funding valuation
adjustments. These inputs depend on various sources
of external and internal data and the use of
sophisticated modelling techniques.

As a result of the above, the disclosures relating to the
valuation of these complex financial instruments are
alsosignificant.

e Weobtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and implementation, andt ested the
operating effectiveness of key controls
identified inthe valuation p rocess, such as
model governance andyv alidation, oversight of
valuation inputs and assumptions applied
throughout the independent price verification
process and market risk monitoring.

e  Wetested thelT general controls, including
change management controls, and application
controls relatingtothelT systems that
support the valuation of complex instruments.

e Weassessed theappropriatenessof valuation
methodologies and the reasonableness of a
sample of valuation models by:

o  Testingthe consistency of the key
assumptions and methodologies
utilised tothe prior year and
assessed thereasoningfor any
significant changes from the p rior
year.

o  Reperforming the valuation of
complex financial instruments using
independent models.

e  For a ample of key unobservable valuation
inputs, we used aur internal valuation experts to
assess the reasonability of the valuation inputs
toindependent market data. In caseswhere
independent market data was not available, we
used data to evaluatet he reasonableness of
inputs and assumptionsused.

e  For a ample of unlisted equity instruments, we
engaged aur internal valuation experts to
perform independent calculations and assessed
them against key management assumptions
and judgements used.

e  Where management used external independent
appraisers tovalue unobservableinputs in the
unlisted equity portfolios, for a sample we
evaluated their competence, independence and
experience with reference to their qualifications
and industry experience.

e  Weindependently recalculated the valuations of
unlisted equities utilising the inputs and
assumptions referred toabove, in accordance
with the valuation approach, and c ompared our
results with that of management.

e Weassessed theappropriatenessof the level
3 fair value disclosures with reference tothe
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
by consideringthejudgement in the key
valuation inputs and assumptions.

Absa Bank Limited
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document titled “Absa Bank
Limited Annual consolidated and separate financial statements for the reporting period ended 31 December 2022” which includes the Company
Secretary's certificate to the shareholder of Absa Bank Limited, the Group Audit and Compliance Committee report and the Directors’ report as
required by the Companies Act of South Africa. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon (but includes the sections marked as “unaudited” in notes 42 and 52.6.2 to the consolidated financial statements and note 37
to the company financial statements).

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with
IFRS Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate theappropriatenessof accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
thedirectors.

e Concludeon the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accountingand, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to therelated disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and /or Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner thatachieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timingof the audit and significant audit findings,
includingany significantdeficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and
separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should notbe
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communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing sowould reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
and KPMG Inc. have been the joint auditors of Absa Bank Limited for one year.

Prior tothe commencement of the joint audit relationship with PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc, KPMG Inc. was the jointauditor with Ernst & Young Inc.
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2021.

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
E’ricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. omG I
3ABCYACODI5SB4A9 OF5D83E6F37A4C0.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 3/12/2023 | 21:52 SAST KPMG Inc. 3/12/2023 | 12:54 PDT
Director:John Bennett Director: Heather Berrange
Registered Auditor Registered Auditor
4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City 85 Empire Road
Jukskei View Parktown
12 March 2023 12 March 2023

Note: The examination of controls over the maintenance and integrity of the Absa Group Limited’s website is beyondthe scope of the audit of the consolidated and

separate financial statements. Accordingly, we accept no responsibility for the process over the electronic distribution of the consolidated and separate financial
statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December

Bank
Restated
31 December 1 January
2021 2021
Rm Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 2 37344 33751 33812
Investment securities 3 128439 116 265 99 489
Trading portfolio assets® 4 156 071 141976 168 380
Hedging portfolio assets* 4 4972 3696 7473
Other assets 5 17 263 16737 14819
Current tax assets 45 66 274
Non-current assets held for sale 6 90 57 136
Loans and advances 7 1032520 932775 877 275
Loans to Group Companies 8 73203 76733 56 145
Investments in associates and joint ventures 9 1725 1593 1601
Property and equipment 10 11686 12382 13923
Goodwill and intangible assets 11 11255 10406 9626
Deferred tax assets 12 4739 3261 2030
Total assets® 1479352 1349698 1284983
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities® 13 91397 68103 105822
Hedgingportfolioliabilities® 13 2237 2910 5013
Other liabilities 14 23993 35834 22475
Provisions 15 4051 3947 2855
Current tax liabilities 381 102 3
Deposits 16 1015623 974121 890920
Debt securities in issue* 17 203 275 127 271 142 867
Loans from Group Companies 9152 9214 -
Borrowed funds 18 26 282 26 459 20621
Deferred tax liabilities 12 23 19 8
Total liabilities* 1376414 1247980 1190584
Equity
Capital and reserves
Attributable toequity holders:
Ordinary share capital 19 304 304 304
Ordinary share premium 19 36879 36879 36879
Preference share capital 19 1 1 1
Preference share premium 19 4643 4643 4643
Additional Tier 1 capital 19 7503 7004 7004
Retained earnings 20 52633 48841 38507
Other reserves 20 975 4047 7058
102938 101719 94 396
Non-controllinginterest - ordinary shares - - 3
Total equity 102 938 101719 94 399
Total liabilities and equity’ 1479352 1349699 1284983

1These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19
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Consolidated statement of comprehensiveincome
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Note Rm

Net interest income 42 387 38301
Interest and similar income 21 89169 72144
Effective interest income 87 254 70492
Other interest income 1915 1652
Interest expense and similarcharges 22 (46 782) (33843)
Non-interest income 21687 20191
Net fee and commission income 19332 18073
Fee and commission income 23 21350 19777
Fee and commission expense 23 (2018) (1704)
Gains and losses from bankingand tradingactivities 24 1586 1722
Gains and losses from investment activities 25 3 1
Other operatingincome 26 766 395
Total Income 64074 58492
Credit impairment charges 27 (8 687) (6 395)
Operating income before operating expenses 55387 52097
Operating expenses 28 (37 122) (35232)
Other expenses (1916) (1461)
Other impairments 29 (591) (326)
Indirect taxation 30 (1 325) (1135)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 9 132 132
Operating profit beforeincome tax 16481 15536
Taxation expense 31 (4 292) (4139)
Profit for the reporting period 12189 11397

Profit attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders 11314 10573
Non-controllinginterest- ordinary shares - (3)
Preference equity holders 266 242
Additional Tier 1 capital 609 585
12189 11397

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share (cents) 41 2523.8 23585
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 41 2523.8 23585
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Consolidated statement of comprehensiveincome
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Rm
Profit for thereporting period 12189 11397
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (152) 54
Movement on equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) (1) 10
Fair value (losses)/gains (1) 13
Deferred tax 0 (3)
Movement of liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) due to changes in own
creditrisk B (26)
Fair value losses (202) (36)
Deferred tax 51 10
Movement in retirement benefit fund assetsand liabilities 0 70
(Decrease)/increase in retirement benefit surplus 34 (36) 98
Deferred tax 12 36 (28)
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (3567) (3406)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 2 (2)
Differences in translation of foreign operations 2 (2)
Movement in cash flow hedgingreserve (4477) (4051)
Fair value losses (3439) (1463)
Amount removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profitor loss 48.6.2 (2718) (4163)
Deferred tax 1680 1575
Movement in fair value of debt instruments measured at FVOCI 908 647
Fair value gains 1291 1015
Release to profit or loss 24 (7) (120)
Deferred tax 12 (376) (248)
Total comprehensive income for the reporting period 8470 8 045
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders 7595 7221
Non-controllinginterest- ordinary shares - (3)
Preference equity holders 266 242
Additional Tier 1 capital 609 585
8470 8045
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Number of Preference Preference Additional

ordinary Share Share share share Tier 1

shares! capital premium capital premium capital

‘000 Rm Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 448301 304 36879 1 4643 7004
Total comprehensive income - - - - 266 609
Profit for the period - - - - 266 609
Other comprehensive income = = = = = =
Dividends paid duringthe reporting period = = = = (266) =

Distributions paidduringthe reporting period - - - - - (609)
Issuance of Additional Tier1 capital® - - - - - 499
Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of _ _ _ _ _ _

equity-settled share-based payment schemes

Movement in share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Transfer from share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Value of employee services = = - - - -
Deferred tax = - - - - =
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures = = = = = =
Balance at the end of the reporting period 448 301 304 36 879 1 4643 7503

Note 19 19 19 19 19 19
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2022

Fair value
through
other Total Non-
compre- Foreign Share- Associates equity controlling
hensive Cashflow currency based andjoint attributabl interest -
Retained Total other income hedging translation Capital payment ventures eto equity ordinary
earnings reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve holders shares
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
48 841 4047 (866) 1264 (1) 1422 614 1614 101719 - 101719
11162 (3567) 908 (4477) 2 = R o 8470 o 8470
11314 - - - - - - - 12189 - 12189
(152) (3567) 908 (4477) 2 - = = (3719) = (3719)
(6 500) = = = = = = = (6 766) - (6 766)
- - = = = - - - (609) = (609)
= = = = = = = = 499 = 499
(738) - = = = = - - (738) = (738)
- 362 - - - - 362 - 362 - 362
- (318) - - - - (318) - (318) - (318)
= 554 = = = = 554 = 554 i 554
= 126 = = = = 126 = 126 = 126
(132) 132 = = = = = 132 = = =
52633 975 42 (3213) 1 1422 976 1746 102938 - 102938
20 20 20 20 20 20

All movements are reflected net of taxation.
1This includes ordinary shares and ‘A’ ordinary shares.

2Movement in Additional Tier 1 Capital includes an issuance of R1 999m and an expiry of R1 500m.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Number of Preference Preference Additional
ordinary Share Share share share Tierl
shares! capital premium capital premium capital
‘000 Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 448301 304 36879 1 4643 7004
Total comprehensive income - - - - 242 585
Profit for the period - - - - 242 585
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Dividends paid during the reporting period - - - - (242) -
Distributions paidduring the reporting period - - - - - (585)
Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of ) ) ) ) ) )
equity-settled share-based payment schemes
Movement in share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Transfer from share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Value of employee services - - - - - -
Deferred tax - - - - - -
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures - - - - - -
Disposal of associates and joint ventures? _ _ _ _ _ _
Balance at the end of thereporting period 448 301 304 36879 1 4643 7 004
Note 19 19 19 19 19 19
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Fair value
through
other Non-
compre- Foreign Share- Associates Total equity controlling
hensive  Cashflow  currency based and joint attributable interest -
Retained Total other income hedging translation Capital payment ventures  to equity ordinary Total
earnings reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve holders shares equity
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
38507 7058 (1513) 5315 1 1422 336 1497 94 396 3 94399
10627 (3 406) 647 (4051) (2) - - - 8048 (3) 8045
10573 - - - - - i - 11400 (3 11397
54 (3406) 647 (4 051) (2) - - - (3352) - (3352)
- - - - - - - - (242) - (242)
- - - - - - - - (585) - (585)
(176) - - - - - - - (176) - (176)
- 278 - - - - 278 - 278 - 278
- (253) - - - - (253) - (253) - (253)
- 461 - - - - 461 - 461 3 461
- 70 - - - - 70 - 70 - 70
(132) 132 - - - - - 132 - - -
15 (15) - - - - - (15) - - -
48 841 4047 (866) 1264 (1) 1422 614 1614 101719 - 101719
20 20 20 20 20 20

All movements are reflected net of taxation.

1This includes ordinary shares and ‘A’ ordinary shares.
20n 30 September 2021, the board of directors disposed of Integrated Processing Solutions.
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Consolidated statementofcash flows
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
Restated

2021
Note Rm

Cashflow from operatingactivities

Profit before tax 16481 15536
Adjustment of non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 28 4924 5140
Other impairments 29 591 326
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures (132) (132)
Other non-cash items included in profit and before tax (22) (535)
Dividends received from investing activities (58) (32)
Cash flow from operatingactivities before changes inoperating assetsand liabilities 21784 20303
Net (increase)/decrease intradingand hedging portfolio assets” (19 849) 26130
Net increasein loans and advances® (95 907) (58 348)
Net increase in investmentsecurities (11 240) (16 099)
Net decrease/(increase) inother assets™” 1057 (24 381)
Net increase/(decrease) intradingand hedging portfolio liabilities 22620 (39822)
Net increasein deposits 41501 83201
Net increasein other liabilities?@ 64 065 9722
Income taxes paid (3967) (3717)
Net cash generated from/(utilised in) operating activities” 20064 (3011)
Cashflow from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets held for sale 6 54 112
Purchase of property and equipment 10 (1612) (886)
Proceeds from disposal of properties and equipment 64 170
Purchase of intangible assets 11 (3 246) (2 644)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets - 20
Dividends received from investing activities 31 152
Proceeds from disposal of investment inassociate - 12
Net cash utilised in investing activities (4 709) (3064)
Cashflow from financing activities
Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of equity-settled share-based payment (1069) (176)
Issue of Additional Tier 1 capital 1999 -
Expiry of Additional Tier 1 capital (1500) -
Proceeds from borrowed funds 1916 6866
Repayment of borrowed funds (2204) (2381)
Repayment of IFRS 16 lease liability (984) (984)
Distribution to Tier 1 capital holders (609) (585)
Dividends paid (6 766) (242)
Net cash (utilised in)/generated from financing activities (9217) 2498
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents®? 6138 (3577)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period® 30325 33902
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period"? 45 36463 30325

As part of operatingactivities, interest income amountingtoR90 973m (2021:R71 289m); and interest expense amounting to R45 620m
(2021:R32 539m) were received and paidin cash respectively.

1These numbers have been restated, refer to 1.19
2Net increase in other liabilities includes debt securities inissue and provisions.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |27



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

1. Summary of significantaccounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policiesapplied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies comply
with IFRS, interpretationsissued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS-IC), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting
Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements
and therequirements of the Companies Act.

1.1.1 Standards, amendments to standards and circulars adopted for the first time in the current reporting period

1111 AmendmenttolAS 16 Property, Plantand Equipment for proceeds received beforeintended use

The amendment to IAS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant & equipment any proceeds received from
sellingitems produced while the entity ispreparing the asset for its intended use. It further clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is
functioning properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of the asset is not

relevant tothis assessment.

1.1.1.2 AmendmenttolAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfillinga Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
acontract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relatedirectly tofulfilling contracts.

1.1.1.3 Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations regarding the definition of a business

The Amendments to IFRS 3 intends toreplace a reference toa previous version of the IASB’s Conceptual Framework (the 1989 Framework)
with areferencetothe current version issued in March 2018 (the Conceptual Framework).

1.1.1.4 Amendments resulting from annual improvements 2018-2020 Cycle for the following standards

The following changes are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing
whether toderecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lenderon the other’s behalf.

The above Amendments were effective in the current financial year but had noimpacton the annual consolidated and separate financial statements
of the Bank.

1.1.2 Basis of presentation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements are set out as follows. These
policies have been consistently applied, except for accounting policyamendments as explained further in note 1.20. The consolidated and separate
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified toinclude the fair valuation of investment property and
particular financial instruments to the extent required or permitted under IFRS as set out in the relevant accountingpolicies. They are stated in
Rand, which is the functional currency of the Company and presentation currency of the Group and rounded to the nearest million (Rm) unless
otherwise indicated.

1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements
1.2.1 Approachto creditriskand impairment of loans and advances

The Bank has established a framework, and related processes, which govern its approach to credit risk management and any resultant impairment
of financial assets. Where models are used in quantifying the impairments, the governance process is focused around the Absa Bank Limited Models
Committee (MC) (a board committee) and Business Unit level model approval forums whose remit includes:

o oversight of the development, implementation and evaluation of risk and impairmentmodels;

o oversight of theinception and periodicindependentmodel validations (the frequency of the periodic validation being dependent on model
type, materiality and model risk rating);

o theapproval of new models, changes to existing models or continued use of models, in line with the Group Model Risk Policy and
supporting Standards; and

o approval of overlays to mitigate model deficiencies (post-model adjustments).

Retail impairment allowances are subject to quarterly impairment adequacy reviews and approval by the Retail Impairment Adequacy Forum.
Wholesale impairment allowances are subject to monthly impairment adequacy reviews and approval by the Wholesale Impairment Governance
Forum.

The consideration of creditriskis a fundamental process for the Group as it ultimately determines the impairment losses recognised from an
accounting perspective. This section describes the processes and assumptions applied in estimating impairment under IFRS 9.
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Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
1.21 Approachto creditriskandimpairment of loans and advances

1.2.1.1 Approach to credit modelling/internal ratings

The key objective of credit risk measurement is to produce the most accurate possible quantitative assessment of credit risk to which the Bank is
exposed. Integral tothis is the calculation of parameters which are used for credit risk management purposes and in the calculation of regulatory
capital, economic capital and the determination of impairment interms of IFRS.

The key credit parameters used in thisprocess are:

e  probability of default (PD): the likelihood of a customer defaultingon its obligations within the appropriate outcome period;

. exposure at default (EAD): an estimate of the level of credit exposure should the customer default during the appropriate outcome period; and

e loss given default (LGD): an estimate of the percentage of EAD that will not be recovered on a particular credit facilityshould the customer
default during the outcome period. LGD recognises credit risk mitigation, such as collateral or credit derivatives, unless this mitigation has
been recognised at fair value.

Whilst thereis acloseinteraction and clear overlaps between the regulatory expected loss methodology and the accounting credit models, there
are key departures which impact how the key risk parameters are modelled and applied. These are discussed furtherin sections1.2.1.4 and 1.2.15.
Internal and vendor-supplied credit models are used to estimate the key credit parameters of PD, LGD and EAD. The Bank uses different modeling
methodologies, ranging from pure statistical modelsand cash flows models to expert-based models, takinginto account quantitative and qualitative
risk drivers.PD, LGD and EAD estimates can be calculated torepresent different views of the credit cycle, whichare used in different applications.

For example, PD estimates can be calculated on a through-the-cycle (TTC) basis, reflecting the predicted default frequency in anaverage 12-month
period across the credit cycle, or on a point-in-time (PIT) basis, reflecting the predicted default frequency in the next 12 months for a particular
period in the credit cycle. EAD and LGD estimates can be calculated as downturn measures, reflecting behaviour observed under stressed economic
conditions, or as business-as-usual measures, reflecting behaviour under normal conditions.

These parameters are used for the following credit risk management purposes:

. Creditapproval:PD modelsare usedinthe approval processin both Retail and Wholesaleportfolios.In high-volumeRetail portfolios,application
and behaviour scorecardsare frequently used as decision-making tools. In Wholesale and certain Retail portfolios, PD models are used to direct
applications toan appropriate credit sanctioning level.

. Risk-reward and pricing: PD, EAD and LGD metrics are used to assess the profitability of deals and portfolios and toallow for risk-adjusted
pricingand strategy decisions.

. Risk appetite: Regulatory capital, economic capital and earnings volatility measures are used in the Bank’s risk appetite framework.

. Economic capital calculations: Credit economic capital calculationsuse PD, LGD and EAD inputs.

e  Riskprofilereporting: Credit risk reports for senior management make use of model outputs to describe the Bank’s creditrisk profile.

1.2.1.2 Validation of models

Models undergo independent validation when new models have been developed (initial validation) and on a periodic basis (ongoing validation).
Models are approved by the respective Chief Risk Officers supported by the Business Unit level model approval forums. Where a model is expected
to have a material impact on the financial results, this is approved by the Group’s Models Committee (MC).

The Bank uses two types of PDs, namely:

e  TheThrough-the-Cycle Probability of Default (TTC) PD, which reflects the Bank’s assessment of the borrower’s long-run average propensity
to default in the next year; and

e  ThePoint-in-Time Probability of Default (PIT) PD, which is calculated factoring the current economic, industry and borrower circumstances.

Both typesof PDsare used extensivelyintheBank’s decision-makingprocesses.For communicationand comparison purposes,theBank’s 21 default
grades (DGs), were mapped to external agency rating equivalents as well as the South African Reserve Bank’s (SARB) 26 grade PD scale used for
regulatory reporting purposes.

DG grading represents a TTC view of the distribution of the book at a specific pointin time. The indicative mapping of the DG buckets to the
equivalent international rating agency and regulatory PD bandsare described below:

. DG 1 - 9: assets fallingwithin these DG buckets are regarded as ‘investment grade’ and, when converted to a rating agency equivalent,
correspond toa BBB- ratingor better.

. DG 10 - 19: financial assets in these grades typically require more detailed management attention where clear evidence of financial
deterioration or weakness exists. Although credit protection may exist, assetsin this category are considered to have greater credit risk. These
assets contain some credit deficiencies. When converted toa ratingagency equivalent, these ratings correspond to a BB+ to B- rating.

. DG 20 - 21:the PD of financial assets inthese grades have deteriorated tosuch an extent that they are included for regular review. Assets so
classified must have well defined weaknesses thatexacerbate the PD. These ratings correspond toa CCC/Crating.

. Default: assets classified as in default are characterised by the distinct possibility that the borrower will default, and should the collateral
pledged be insufficient to cover the asset, the Bank will sustain some loss when default occurs.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |29



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2  Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
1.2.1 Approachto creditriskandimpairment ofloans and advances (continued)

1.2.1.3 Default grades

The Bank uses two types of PDs, namely:

e  TheThrough-the-Cycle Probability of Default (TTCPD), which reflects the Bank’s assessment of the borrower’s long-run average propensity
to default in the next year; and

e  ThePointin Time Probability of Default (PIT PD), which is calculated factoring the current economic, industry and borrower circumstances.

1.2.1.4 Approach toimpairment of credit exposures

Theaccounting policy for the impairment of financial assets held at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income applied by the
Bankis described inNote 1.7.4.

The measurement of ECL involves a significant level of complexity and judgement, including estimation of probabilities of default, LGD, a range of
unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives, and estimation of EAD and assessing significant increasesin credit risk.

Thepurposeof estimatingECL isneither toestimate aworst-case scenarionorto estimatethe best-casescenario.Theestimatereflectsan unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes. In some cases, relatively simple modelling is
considered tobe sufficient, without the need to consider the outcome under different scenarios. For example, the average credit losses of a large
group of financial instruments with shared risk characteristics may be a reasonable estimate of the probability-weighted amount. In other situations,
theidentification of scenarios that specify the amount and timing of the cash flows for particular outcomes and the estimated probability of those
outcomes will be needed.

Under IFRS 9, the Bank recognises ECL based on a stage allocation methodology, with such categorisation informingthe level of provisioning
required. The ECL allowance calculated on stage 1 assets reflects the lifetime losses associated with events of default that are expected to occur
within 12 months of the reporting date (12 month ECL). Assets classified within stage 2 and stage 3 carry an ECL allowance calculated based on the
lifetime losses associated with defaults that are expected to occur over the lifetime of the exposure (lifetime ECL). The assessment of whether an
exposure should be transferred from stage 1 to stage 2, is based on whether there has been a significantdeterioration in credit risk. This is a relative
measure, where the credit risk at the reporting date is compared to therisk that existed upon initial recognition of the instrument. Exposures are
classified within stage 3 if they are credit impaired. Refer to 1.2.1.5 for further detail on the significant increase of creditrisk.

For IFRS 9 purposes, two distinct PD estimates are required:
. 12 month PD: the likelihood of accounts entering defaultwithin 12 months of the reporting date.
. Lifetime PD: the likelihood of accounts entering default during the remaininglife of the asset.

For the purposes of credit modellingunder IFRS 9, the PD is calculated on a PIT basis and reflectsthe likelihood of default assessed on the prevailing
economic conditions at the reporting date, adjusted to take intoaccount estimates of future economic conditions that are likely toimpact the risk
of default.PIT PDs do not equate to a long run average. This is a key distinction between the IFRS 9 ECL models and the Bank’s Basel Il models.
Under Basel I, the PDis the average of default within the next 12 months, calculated based on the long-run historical average over the full economic
cycle (thatis, TTQ).

IFRS 9 provides that financial asset should be written off, and accordingly derecognised, when the Bank believes there to be no reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Bank has well-governed internal policies, which define how an individual account should be assessed for write-off, and
which ensure that post write-off recoveries remain insignificant over the long run. Further, the policies are recalibrated over time, as and when
actual recovery experience changes. Whilst the Bank’s write-off policy determines the point of derecognition at an individual account level, it also
impacts the level of recoveries modelled on a collective basis for the purposes of determining LGDs to be applied at a portfolio level. Under IFRS 9,
the Bank applies the write-off assumptions consistently at both an individual account level and on a collective modelling basis. This means that the
Bank’s LGD model includes only the present value of forecast recoveries on a pool of loans up until the designated point of write-off. Recoveries
which are therefore forecast to be received post the point of write-off are excluded from the LGD model. Recoveries of amounts previously written
off are recognised as an ECL gain within credit impairment charges in the statement of comprehensive income as and when the cashis received.

In calculating LGD, losses are discounted to the reporting date using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof. For debt instruments, such as loans and advances, the discount rate applied is the EIR calculated on origination or acquisition
date.

The EAD model estimates the exposure that an account is likely to have at any point of defaultin future. This incorporates both the amortising
profile of a term loan, as well as behavioural patterns such as the propensity of the client todraw down on unutilised facilities in the lead up toa
default event.

Expert credit judgement may, in certain instances be applied to account for situations where known or expected risk factors have not been
considered in the ECL assessment or modelling process, or where uncertain future events have not been incorporated into the modelled approach.
Adjustments are intended to be short term measures and will not be used toincorporate any continuous risk factors. The Bank has a robust policy
framework which is applied inthe estimation and approval of management adjustments.
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Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
121 Approachto creditriskand impairment of loans and advances (continued)

1.2.1.4 Approach to impairment of credit exposures (continued)

Retail portfolio
Ratings assigned across each Retail portfolio are based on automated application and behavioural scoring systems. The underlying rating is
calculatedatpointofapplicationand updated monthly thereafter. Theratingisusedindecisions concerningunderwritingand account management,
and is used to calculate regulatory capital, economic capital and IFRS 9 ECL. The methodology and data employed in the risk estimation and the
rating processes can be summarised as follows:
. Internal risk estimates of PD, EAD and LGD are based on historical experience and are reliant on historical data.
. PDs are assigned at account level, and consist of three elements namely:
e aterm structure, capturingtypical default behaviour by the months since observation;
e  abehavioural model which incorporates client level risk characteristics; and
e amacroeconomic model that incorporates forward looking macroeconomic scenarios.
. EADs are assigned at an account level and are based on the EAD pool to which the account has been assigned. EAD estimates incorporate all
relevant data and information including account balances as well as utilised and unutilised limits, if present.
. LGDs are assigned at account level and are based on the LGD pool to which the account has been assigned. Relevant historical data used in LGD
estimates include observed exposure at the point of default, recovery strategies, re-defaults, cure and write-off rates. The models make use
of risk drivers such as loan-to-value (LTV) and attributes that describe the underlying asset.

Wholesale portfolio

The Wholesale rating process relies both on internally developed PD, EAD and LGD rating models and vendor provided solutions. The Wholesale
rating process relies on quantitative and qualitative assessments that could be manual or automated. Wholesale PDs and LGDs are modelled using
the parameters from regulatory models as starting point. Parameters are adjusted for differences between requirements underBasel Illand IFRS9.

. PDratings are assigned on a customer level. Information used in the calculation of customer PD ratings includes financial statements, projected
cash flows, equity price information, behavioural information as well as quality assessments on strength of support. In converting Basel Il|
compliant PDs to PDs appropriate for the purposes of IFRS 9, the main adjustments effected comprise:

. a macroeconomic adjustment that changes the paradigm from a long-run average default rate to a PD that reflects the prevailing
macroeconomic conditions, thereby adjusting the PD from a seven year historical average toa PD reflective of the macro economic
environment at the reporting date; and

e  anadjustment to the regulatory PDto convertitfroma PD over 12 months, to a PD over the lifetime of an exposure, to be able to
assess significant increasesin credit risk and estimate lifetime provisions for stage 2.

. LGD estimates depend on the key drivers of recovery such as collateral value, seniority and costs involved as part of the recovery process. LGD
models are based on internal and external loss data and the judgement of credit experts. The main adjustments to LGD comprise a
macroeconomic adjustment that changes the long-run LGD to reflect a given macroeconomic scenarioas well as the exclusion of forecast
recoveries expected beyond the point of write-off. Lifetime projections of LGD take intoaccount the expected balance outstandingon a loan
at the time of default, as well as the value of associated collateral at thatpoint in time.

. EAD models aim to replicate the expected utilisation of a customer’s facility should a default occur. EADs are assigned for each facility using
models incorporatinginternal and external default data as well as the experience of credit experts in relation to particular products or customer
groups.

1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement withregards toIFRS 9

Definition of a significant increase in credit risk:

The Bank uses various quantitative, qualitative and backstop measures as indicators of a significant increase in credit risk. The thresholds applied
for each portfolio are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure they remain appropriate. Where evidence of a significant increase in credit risk is not yet
available at an individual instrument level, instruments that share similar risk characteristics are assessed on a collective basis.

Key drivers of asignificant increase in credit risk include:

. Where the weighted average probability of default (PD) for an individual exposure or group of exposures as at the reporting date evidences a
material deterioration in credit quality, relative to that determined on initial recognition. The Bank considers the impact of changesin the
quality of credit enhancements (e.g. guarantees) it holds on the borrower’s probability of default if a shareholder or parent has provided a
guarantee, and has an incentive and the financial ability to prevent default by capital or cashinfusion;

e  Adverse changesin payment status, and where accounts are more than 30 days in arrears at reporting date. In certain portfolios a more
conservative arrears rule is applied where this is found to be indicative of increased credit risk (e.g. 1 day in arrears);

e  Accountsin the Retail portfolio which meet the portfolio’s impairment high risk criteria; and

e  TheBank’s watch list framework applied to the Wholesale portfolio, which is used toidentify customers facing financial difficulties or where
there are grounds for concern regarding their financial health.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2  Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
12.1 Approachto creditriskandimpairmentofloans and advances (continued)

1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement withregards toIFRS 9 (continued)

Definition of credit impaired:

Assets classified within stage 3 are considered to be credit impaired, which, as discussed in1.2.1. applies when an exposure is in default Important
to the Bank's definition of default, is the treatment of exposures which are classified as within forbearance. Forbearanceis a concession granted to
a counterparty for reasons of financial difficulty thatwould not otherwise be considered by the Bank. The definition of forbearanceis not limited
to measures that give rise toan economic loss (that is, a reduction in the counterparty’s financial obligation).

Wholesale, Retail and assets are classified as defaulted when:
e TheBankconsiders that the obligoris unlikely to pay its credit obligations without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realising security.
Elements to be taken as indications of unlikeliness to pay include the following:
o TheBank consents toa distressed restructuring / forbearance of the credit obligation where this is likely toresult in a diminished
financial obligation caused bythe material forgiveness of principal, interest or fees;
The customer is under debt review, business rescue or similar protection;
o  Adviceisreceived of customer insolvency or death; or
o  Theobligoris 90 days or more past due on any credit obligation to the Bank.

In addition, within the Retail portfolios, the Group requires an exposure to reflect a non-credit impaired status after 12 months of being placed into
creditimpaired, before being considered to have cured from Stage 3. This probation period applies toall exposures, including those that have been
classified as credit impaired for reasons other than forbearance with a diminished financial obligation and debt review (e.g. owing to the fact that
they become more than 90 days due). For certain exposures in the business banking environment, an exposure is considered cured after a 6 month
probation period.

For wholesale exposures, an exposure is considered cured from stage 3 based on the facts and circumstances of the specific exposure; but not
earlier than 6 months after default.

Determination of the lifetime of a credit exposure:

The determination of initial recognition and asset duration (lifetime) are critical judgements in determining quantum of lifetime losses that apply.
The date of initial recognition reflects the date that a transaction (or account) was first recognised on the statement of financial position. The PD
recorded at this time provides the baseline used for subsequent determination of a significant increase in credit risk.

When determiningthe period over which the entity is expected to be exposed to credit risk for off-statement of financial position exposures, but
for which the ECL would not be mitigated by the entity’s normal credit risk management actions, the Bank considers factors such as historical
information and experience about:

e theperiod over which the entity was exposed to credit risk on similar financial instruments;

e thelength of time for related defaults to occur on similar financial instruments following a significant increase in credit risk; and

e thecreditrisk management actions that an entity expects to take once the credit risk on the financialinstrument has increased, such as the
reduction or removal of undrawn limits.

For asset duration, the approaches which are applied (in line with IFRS9 requirements) are:

e Term lending: the contractual maturity date, reduced for behavioural trends where appropriate (such as, expected settlement and
amortisation); and

e  Revolvingfacilities: for Retail portfolios, asset duration isbased on behavioural life. For Wholesale portfolios, a sufficiently long period to cover
expected lifeis modelled and an attrition rate isapplied to cater for early settlement.

Incorporation of forward-looking information into the IFRS 9 modelling:
ECL estimation must reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted estimate of future losses. This is determined by evaluatinga range of possible
macroeconomic outcomes.

Several factors are considered in developing macroeconomic scenarios, including economic growth or contraction, geopolitical uncertainty, expected
inflation, sector-specificimpacts, business confidence, property prices, household spending, exchange rate fluctuations, unemployment rates, key
monetary and fiscal responsesinitiated by governments and regulatory authorities.

Despite the current market conditions being marked by global shocks and high uncertainty, the Bank has maintained its probability-weightings of
40%, 30%, and 30% for the baseline, upside, and downside scenarios respectively. However, toaddress the unprecedented environment, the ranges
between the baseline, mild upside, and downside macroeconomic scenarios have been significantly widened compared to the figures presentedas
at 31 December 2021.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2  Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
12.1 Approachto creditriskandimpairmentofloans and advances (continued)

1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement withregards toIFRS 9 (continued)

The following table shows the key forecast assumptions used for South Africa to calculate the Bank’s credit impairment charge for the reporting
period ended 31 December 2022:

Baseline Mild upside Mild downside

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 | 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Real GDP (%) 1.6 11 18 19 2.0 19 1.6 24 2.5 2.6 0.9 -1.1 0.6 0.8 0.9
CPI (%) 6.8 53 4.5 4.5 4.6 6.7 4.1 4.1 4.0 4.3 7.0 7.8 54 5.1 5.5
Average reporate (%)| 5.3 7.3 6.8 6.8 6.8 5.2 6.3 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.3 9.0 8.5 8.1 8.0

The following table shows the key forecast assumptions used for South Africa to calculate the Bank’s impairment charge for the reporting period
ended 31 December 2021:

Baseline Mild upside Mild downside

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 | 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 | 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Real GDP (%) 5.2 17 2.0 2.0 2.0 55 2.2 2.5 2.3 2.3 4.9 0.8 11 1.0 1.0
CPI (%) 4.4 44 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.4 4.6 4.5 5.2 5.2 53 53
Average repo rate (%) 35 3.9 4.7 6.1 6.5 3.5 4.3 5.2 6.4 7.3 35 4.1 5.9 7.0 7.8

Baseline scenarios as at 31 December 2022

South Africa

The global, regional, and domestic economic outlook remains unusually uncertain. Although COVID-19 is no longer an immediate threat to the
economy, risks from geopolitical uncertainty, particularly those surrounding the Russia/Ukraine conflict, and those arising from heightened tension
between some Western countries and China, have risen. Both the duration and intensity of these risks are currently difficult to predict.

These risks have already had an impacton oil, food, and other supply chains,and their ongoing impactis difficult to predict. Global financial
conditions have tightened and are expected totighten further in early 2023. The tightening delivered so far has placed pressure on many emerging
assets, and uncertainty over the path of global policy in 2023 iscontinuing to cause fluctuations in global asset markets more broadly.

In addition to these global shocks, the South African economy faces several uncertainties specificto the country. The most significant of these is
electricity load shedding as Eskom's operational difficulties deepened significantly into late 2022.

At the time of the forecast, Absa's expectation was for the South African economy to have expanded by 1.6% in 2022, which isslightly weaker than
the previous forecast. Absa expects economic growth to slip to 1.1% in 2023 due to severe short-term electricity constraints. Thereis a slow
improvement toward GDP growth of 2.0% by 2026, with an expectation thatload shedding will gradually dissipate.

For the household sector, employment recovered more quickly in 2022 than previously feared, resultingin a similar outperformance in househdd
incomes. Absa expects employment and household income growth to moderate significantly in 2023 and beyond, in line with the very subdued GDP
outlook.

Consumer price inflation rose more quickly thanexpected during 2022, largely due to sharply higher food and fuel prices. Inflation breached the 6%
upper-target of the central bank early in 2022, and at the time of the forecast, Absa projected inflation to average 6.8% year-on-year in 2022 and
to average 5.3% in 2023 before returning to the middle of the 3-6% target from 2025.

The South African Reserve Bank responded to higher South African inflation and to tighter global financial conditionswith 350bps ininterestrate
increases from November 2021 through November 2022, which is a significantly faster pace of increase than previously expected. At the time of
the forecast, Absa expects the reporate to peak at 7.5% in early 2023 before declining marginally into late 2023.

House price growth is expected toremain positive in nominal price terms but negative in CPl-adjusted terms throughout the forecast horizon.

South Africa's public finances have been on an improving path, following the immediate COVID-19-related shock, with the fiscal deficit shrinking as
a proportion of GDP due to better-than-expected revenue collection and restrained expenditure growth. The Bank believes that South Africas
sovereign credit rating has stabilised,but notes the downside risks to this view emanating from the electricity crisis and the poor financial
performance of several large state-owned enterprises.

In February 2023, the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) announced that it had added South Africa, along with several other countries, toits 'grey
list'. This development was taken intoaccount in our baseline scenario,and Absa’s viewis that the grey listingis unlikely to have any significant
immediate impact on the Bank.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2  Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

1.2.2 Capitalisation, amortisation andimpairment of internally generated intangible assets, and impairment of
goodwill

Capitalisation

The determination of which expenditures can be capitalised inthe developmentphase may involve judgement, as it may be necessary to determine
whether an inefficiency has been identified, as the cost thereof may not be capitalised. Management considers scope changes, complexity of the
project, as well as the effect of any delays in the delivery of a project, in order to ascertain the appropriatenessof capitalisation of development
costs. This includes the determination as to whether, and by how much, cost incurred on a projectis considered inefficient and needs to be expensed
rather than capitalised.

Amortisation

For intangible assets with a finite useful life, the depreciable amount of the asset is required tobe allocated on a systematic basis over its useful
life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use, i.e.when itis in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.

Management applies judgement in determiningwhen the intangible asset is consideredtobein the location and condition necessary for it tobe
capable of operatingin the manner intended by management. Amortisation of an asset commences once the asset group as a whole is ready to
commence operations, and determination of this stage in the project delivery involves management judgement.

Impairment
The recoverable amount for intangible assets and goodwill is determined to be the higher of the asset'’s fair value less costs tosell and its value in
use of the cash generating unit towhich it belongs.

The value in use calculation incorporates a number of variables which are determined and/or validated through the exercise of management
judgement. Theseinclude, inter alia, an estimate of the amount and timing of future cash flows that the entity expects to derive, the time value of
money represented by an appropriate discount rate, as well as other factors that market participants would reflect in pricing the future cash flows
that the entity expects toderive. The long-term growth rate assumptions used in the impairment calculations are based on our estimates of long
term GDP, takingintoaccount inflation, and were revised.

The Bank uses approved projected cash flow forecasts for a period of 3 - 5 years, with a terminal value thereafter. The long-term growth rate
assumptions used in the impairment calculations was 6% as at 31 December 2021 and 6% as at 31 December 2022. The discount rates used have
been adjusted from 14% as at 31 December 2021 to 14.5% as at 31 December 2022. A sensitivity analysiswas performed on the assumptions and
even if the estimated discount rate and/or growth rate was changed by 100and 200 basis points respectively, no additional impairmentloss would
be recognised.

Note 11 includes details of the amount recognised by the Bank as goodwill and intangible assets.

1.2.3 Fairvalue measurements

The fair valueis the price that would be received tosell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Fair values should be first calculated with reference to observable inputs where these are available in the market. Only
where these are unavailable should fair value techniques be applied which employ less observable inputs. Unobservable inputs may only be used
where observableinputsorlessobservableinputsareunavailable.IFRS 13 Fair ValueMeasurement (IFRS 13) does not mandatetheuse of a particular
valuation technique but rather sets out a principle requiringan entity to determine a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances
for which sufficient data is available and for which the use of relevant observable inputs can be maximized. Where management is required to place
greater reliance on unobservable inputs, the fair values may be more sensitive toassumption changes and differentvaluation methodologies that
may be applied. For this reason, thereis a direct correlation between the extent of disclosures required by IFRS 13 and the degree to which data
applied in the valuation is unobservable.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2  Processof determination,and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
1.2.3 Fairvalue measurements(continued)

Valuation inputs

IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify fair values according toa hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable market inputs. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs.In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised within differentlevels of the fair value
hierarchy.In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input which is considered to be significant to the entire measurement. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are specifically defined as follows:
o  Quoted market prices - Level 1
Fair values are classified as Level 1 if they have been determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. The quoted prices are required to represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to provide
pricinginformation on an ongoingbasis.
o  Valuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2
Inputs classified as Level 2 are observable for the asset or liability, eitherdirectly (i.e.as prices), or indirectly (i.e.derived from prices), but do
not constitute quoted prices that areincluded within Level 1. A valuation input is considered observableif it can be directly observed from
transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external evidence demonstrating an executable exit price.
o  Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs - Level 3
Fair values are classified as Level 3 if their determination incorporates significant inputs that are not based on observable market data (thatis,
they are unobservable inputs). Unobservable input levels are generally determined based on observable inputs of a similar nature, historical
observations as well through employing other analytical techniques.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

The Bank has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fairvalues. The framework includes a Traded Risk and Valuation
Committee and an Independent Valuation Control team (IVC), which isindependentfrom the front office. The Traded Risk and Valuation Committee,
which comprises representatives from senior management, will formally approve valuation policies and any changes to valuation methodologies.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the GACC. The Traded Risk and Valuation Committee is responsible for overseeingthe valuation contral
process and will therefore consider the appropriateness of valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurement.
ThelVCindependentlyverifies theresults of tradingand investment operationsand all significant fair value measurements.They source independent
data from independent external parties, as well as internal risk areas when performingindependent price verification for all financial instruments
held at fair value. They also assess and document the inputs obtained from independent external sources to measure the fair value which supports
conclusions that valuations are performed inaccordance with IFRS and internal valuation policies.

Commodities
The determination of the fair value of commodities uses external data, which includes quoted prices on an active market.

Judgemental inputs on valuation of principal instruments
The following summary sets out the principalinstruments whose valuation may involve judgemental inputs:

o  Debtsecurities and treasury and other eligible bills
These instruments are valued based on quoted market prices from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group or pricingservice, where
available.Where unavailable, fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices for similarinstruments or, in the case of certain
instruments, valuation techniques using inputs derived from observable market data, and, where relevant, assumptions in respect of
unobservableinputs.

o  Equityinstruments

Equity instruments are valued based on quoted market prices from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group or pricing service, where available.
Where unavailable, fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices for similarinstruments or by using valuation techniques wsing
inputs derived from observable market data, and, where relevant, assumptions in respect of unobservable inputs. Also included in equity
instruments are non-public investments, which include investments in venture capital organisations. The fair value of these investments is
determined usingappropriate valuation methodologies which, dependingon the nature of the investment, may include discounted cash flow
analysis, enterprise value comparisons with similar companiesand price to earnings comparisons. The relevant methodology for each investment
is applied consistently over time.

o  Derivatives
Derivative contracts can be exchange-traded or traded Over The Counter (OTC).OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option
contracts related to interest rates, bonds, foreign currencies, credit spreads, equity prices and commodity prices or indices on these
instruments. Rair values of derivatives are obtained from quoted market prices, dealer price quotations, discounted cash flow and pricing
models.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2

Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

1.2.3 Fairvalue measurements(continued)

Judgemental inputs on valuation of principal instruments (continued)

Loans and advances

The fair value of loans and advances is determined by discounting contractual cash flows. Discount factors are determined using the relevant
forward base rates (as at valuation date) plus the originally priced spread. Where a significant change in credit risk has occurred, an updated
spread is used toreflect valuation date pricing. Behavioural cash flow profiles, instead of contractual cash flow profiles, are used to determine
expected cash flows where contractual cash flow profiles would provide an inaccurate fair value.

Deposits, debt securities in issue and borrowed funds

Deposits, debt securities in issue and borrowed funds are valued using discounted cash flow models, applyingrates currently offered for
issuances with similar characteristics. Where these instrumentsinclude embedded derivatives, the embedded derivative component is valued
using the methodology for derivatives.

The fair value of amortised cost deposits repayable on demand is considered tobe equal to their carryingvalue. For other financial liabilities at
amortised cost, the disclosed fair value approximates the carrying value because the instruments are short-term in nature or have interest rates
that reprice frequently.

Fair value adjustments
The main valuation adjustments required toarrive at a fair value are described as follows:

e}

Bid-offer valuation adjustments

For assets and liabilities where the Bank is not a market maker, mid prices are adjusted to bid and offer prices respectively unlessthe relevant
mid prices are reflective of the appropriate exit price as a practical expedient given the nature of the underlying instruments. Bid-offer
adjustments reflect expected close out strategy and, for derivatives, the fact that they are managed on a portfolio basis. The methodology for
determiningthebid-offeradjustmentforaderivativeportfoliowill generallyinvolvenettingbetween longand short positionsand thebucketing
of risk by strike and term in accordance with the hedging strategy. Bid-offer levels are derived from market sources, such as broker data. For
those assets and liabilities where the Bank is a market maker and has the ability totransact at, or better than, mid-price (whichis the case for
certain equity, bond and vanilla derivative markets), the mid-price is used.

Uncollateralised derivative adjustments

A fair value adjustment is incorporated into uncollateralised derivative valuations to reflect the impact on fair value of counterparty credit risk,
as well as the cost of fundingacross all asset classes.

Model valuation adjustments

Valuation models are reviewed under the Bank’s model governance framework. This process identifies the assumptions used and any model
limitations (for example, if the model does not incorporate volatility skew). Where necessary, fair value adjustmentswill be applied to take these
factors intoaccount. Model valuation adjustments are dependent on the size of portfolio, complexity of the model, whether the model is market
standard and towhat extent it incorporatesall known risk factors. All models and model valuation adjustments are subject to review at |east
annually.
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1.2
1.2.3

Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
Fair value measurements (continued)

Measurement of assets and liabilities at Level 2
The followingtable presents information about the valuation techniques and significant observable inputs used in measuring assets
and liabilities categorised as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy:

Category of asset/liability

Valuation techniques applied

Significant observableinputs

Cash, cash balances and balances with
central banks

Tradingand hedging portfolio assets and
liabilities

Debt instruments

Derivative assets

Discounted cash flow models

Discounted cash flow models

Underlying price of market traded
instruments and/or interestrates

Underlying price of market instruments
and/or interest rates

Commodity derivatives

Credit derivatives

Equity derivatives

Foreign exchange derivatives

Interest rate derivatives

Discounted cash flow techniques, option
pricing models such as the Black Scholes
model, futures pricing models and/or
Exchange Traded Fund (ETF) models

Discounted cash flow techniques and/or
option pricing models, such as the Black
Scholes model

Discounted cash flow models, option
pricing models and/or futures pricing
models

Discounted cash flow techniques and/or
option pricing models, such as the Black
Scholes model

Discounted cash flow and/or option pricing
models

Spot price of physical or futures, market
interest rates and/or volatilities

Interest rate, recovery rate, credit spread
and/or quantoratio

Spot share prices, market interest rates,
volatility and/or dividend stream

Interest rate curves,repurchase
agreements, money market curves and/or
volatilites.

Interest rate curves, repurchase agreement
curves, money market curves and/or
volatility

Money market assets

Discounted cash flow models

Money market curves and/or interest rates

Loans and advances

Discounted cash flow models

Interest rates and/or money market curves

Investment securities

Listed equities: market bid price

Underlying price of market traded
instruments and/or interestrate curves

Deposits

Discounted cash flow models

Interest rates and/or money market curves

Debt securities in issue and other liabilities

Discounted cash flow models

Underlying price of market traded
instruments and/or interestrate curves

Absa Bank Limited

Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |37




DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2
123

For assets or liabilities held at amortised cost and disclosed in Levels 2 or 3 of the fairvalue hierarchy, the discounted cash flow valuation technique
is applied.Interest ratesand money market curves are considered unobservable inputs for items which mature after five years. Where instruments

Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
Fair value measurements (continued)

Measurement of assets and liabilities at Level 3

The followingtable presents information about the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in measuring assets

and liabilities categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy:

Category of
asset/liability

Valuation techniques
applied

Significant unobservable

inputs

2022

2021

Range of unobservableinputs applied

Loans and advances

Discounted cash flow
and/or dividend yield
models

Credit spreads

0.035%t0 3.21%

14%to3.7%

Investment securities

Discounted cash flow
models, third-party
valuations, earnings
multiples and/or income

capitalisation valuations

Risk adjusted yield
curves, future earnings,
marketability discounts
and/or comparator
multiples

Discount rate of 8.5%

Discount rate 8.5%

Trading and hedging portfolio assets and liabilities

Discounted cash flow

Debt instruments models Credit spreads 0.305%to 4.020% 0.04% t04.55%
Derivative assets
Discounted cash flow 0.1%to 24.22%, 0.035% t04.502%
. R and/or credit default Credit spreads, recovery 15%to 82.3%, 15%t093.2%,
Credit derivatives !
swap (hazard rate) rates and/or quantoratio 49% to 100% 54% t0100%

Equity derivatives

Foreign exchange
derivatives

Interest rate derivatives

models

Discounted cash flow,
option pricingand/or

futures pricing models
Discounted cash flow

and/or option pricing

models

Discounted cash flow
and/or option pricing
models

Volatility and/or dividend

streams (greater than 3
years)

African basis curves
(greater than 1 year)

Real yield curves (greater

than 1 year), repurchase
agreement curves
(greater than 1 year),
fundingspreads

16.4%to 38.9%

5.03%to 40%

0.05%t0 9.395%

17.77% t0 68.49%

0.88% to20%

0.052% to7.3%

Deposits

Discounted cash flow
models

Absa Group Limited’s

funding spreads (greater

than 5 years)

1.150%to 1.575%

1.15%to1.6%

Debt securities in issue

Discounted cash flow
models

Fundingcurves (greater
than 5 years)

1.150%to 1.575%

115%to1.6%

mature in less than five years, these inputs may be considered to be observable, depending on other facts and circumstances.

For debt securities in issue held at amortised cost, a further significant input would be the underlying price of the market traded instrument, refer

to note 50.7.

The sensitivity of a fair value measurement is correlated with the extent of reliance whichisrequired to be placed on unobservable inputs. Significant

changes tothe unobservable inputs in isolation will have either a positive or negative impact on fairvalues.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

1.2.4 Consolidation of structured or sponsored entities

The Bank consolidates entities over which it has control. Thisisconsidered to be the case when the Bank is exposed, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability toaffect those returns through its power over theinvestee. In some cases,
judgement has been applied in determining first, whether an entity meets the definition of a structured or sponsored entity, and secondly,
whether the Bank controls such entity. The key judgements are set out as follows:

Definition of astructured entity (SE)

SEs are entities that have been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity,
such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. These SEs are consolidated when they are controlled by the Bank. Judgement is required in assessing whether an entity is an
SE, as well as in determining whether the Bank controls the SE. Refer to note 1.3.3 where the factors considered when assessing whether
an SE isto be consolidated are outlined.

Assessment of agent versus principal

Actingas an agent, the Bankis primarily engaged toact on behalf and for the benefit of other parties. When assessing whether the Bank is acting
as a principalor as an agent for an investee the judgement is made based on the following factors:

. scope of our decision-makingauthority over the investee;

. any rights held by other parties such as kick out rights;

. exposure tovariability from returns of an interest more than 20%; and

e  theremuneration towhich the Bankis entitled.

Assessment of sponsored entities

In addition to the unconsolidated SEs in which the Bank has an interest, it also sponsors some unconsolidated SEs in which it has no interest,
generally tofacilitate client transactions. For the purposes of these disclosures, the Bank sponsors an entity when:

. itis the majority user of the entity;

its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products issued by the entity;

it provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity’s performances; or

it led the formation of the entity.

Refer tonotes 39 and 44.

1.2.5 Post-retirementbenefits

The valuations of and contributions towards the defined benefit pension plan is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuations
involve making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases.

Due tothelong-term nature of this plan, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Exposure to actuarial risks

The defined benefit fund exposes the Bank to the risk that the benefits promised in the various funds cost more than the accumulated assets set
aside to meet such benefits, and ultimately will require additional funding from the Bank.

This risk can be categorised intoa number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The actuarial funding valuations make assumptions about the returns that may be available on invested assets. If the return on pension plan assets
is below this rate, it may lead to a strain on the fund, which over time, may result in a pension plan deficit. Typically the funds have a relatively
balanced investmentin equity securities, debt securities, cash and real estate to mitigate any concentration risk. Due to the long-term nature of the
pension plan liabilities, the boards of the pension funds considerit appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in
equitysecuritiesandinreal estatetoimprovethereturn generated by thefund.Thismay inturnresultinimproved discretionarybenefitstomembers
or reduced costs for the sponsoring entity.

Inflation/pension increase risk

Benefits in these plans are to some extent tied toinflation, soincreased inflation levels represent a risk that could increase the costs

of payingthe funds’ promised benefits. However, the risk is mitigated by ceilings on mandatory benefitincreases in most cases and subject to
affordability in cases where the mandatory ceiling does not apply.

Longevity risk
If pensioners live longer than expected then that will, all else equal, increase the funds' liabilities as benefits are paid for a longer term.

Salary risk

An increasein the salary of the plan participants willincrease the plan’s liability. Thisrisk has been limited with the closure of the defined benefit
plans and introduction of the defined contribution element. There are now a limited number of active defined benefit members.

Although the Absa Pension Fund has in its entirety been disclosed as a defined benefit plan, the defined contribution portion thereof does not retain
salary risk.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.2  Processof determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
1.2.5 Post-retirementbenefits (continued)

Measurement risk
The IAS 19 Employee Benefits (IAS 19) liabilities are determined using various assumptions about future experience.

One of the most important assumptions is the discount rate derived from prevailing bond yields where these are available (where these are not
available, the inflation rate plus a reasonable risk-free real return is used as a proxy). A decrease in the discount rate will, with all else equal, increase
the plan liability; this may be partially offset by an increase in the value of assets, to the extent thatthe funds’investments are matched against its
liabilities. Other important assumptions are the inflation assumption, pension increase assumption and the longevity assumption and changes in
those could affect the measured value of liabilities significantly. Changes in other assumptions used could also affect the measured liabilities.

Regulatory risk
Thefunds’benefitsaregoverned by therules of those funds,operatingwithin theregulatory framework within South Africa.In particular,regulations
introducingissues like minimum benefits or minimum pension increases may result in higher benefitsto members and a higher associated cost.

Refer tonote 37 for the specific assumptions used and carrying amounts of post-retirement benefits.

1.2.6 Provisions

In terms of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent  Assets (IAS 37), a provision is recognised when the Bank has a present obligation as aresult of apast
event and it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Further, areliable estimate of theamount of the obligation is required
to be made. Various judgements and assumptions are therefore required inorder to determine if a provision isrequired to be recognised, andfurther, the carrying amount
thereof. With regards to the assessment of matters of a significant nature, including potential litigation and claims, management relies on theadvice of the Bank's legal
counsel.

Refer to note 15 for details of provisions recognised and refer to note 44 for details of contingencies disclosed.

1.2.7 Income taxes

TheBankissubjecttoincome taxesin numerous jurisdictionsandthecalculation of theBank’s tax chargeand provisions forincometaxes necessarily
involves a degree of estimation and judgement. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax treatment is uncertain or
in respect of which the relevant taxauthorities may indicate disagreement with the Bank’s treatment and accordingly the final tax charge cannct be
determined until resolution has beenreached with the relevant tax authority.

TheBank periodically evaluates positions takenin taxreturnswith respecttosituationsinwhichapplicabletaxregulationissubjecttointerpretation.
It establishes tax liabilities, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The carryingamount of any
resultingliabilities will be sensitive to the manner in which tax mattersare expected to be resolved, and the stage of negotiations or discussion with
therelevant tax authorities. There may be significant uncertainty around the final outcome of tax proceedings, whichin many instances, will only be
concluded afteranumber of years.Management estimatesare informed byanumber of factorsincluding,interalia,theprogress madein discussions
or negotiations with the tax authorities, the advice of expert legal counsel, precedent set by the outcome of any previous claims, as well as the
nature of therelevant tax environment.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities inthe reporting period in which such determination ismade. These risks are managed in accordance
with the Bank’s Tax Risk Framework.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable thatfuture taxable income will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced tothe extent thatitis nolonger probable thatthe related
tax benefit will be realised. Management’s judgement surroundingthe probability and sufficiency of future taxable profits, future reversals of
existingtaxabledifferencesand ongoingdevelopmentswill determinetherecognition of deferred tax. Themostsignificant managementassumption
in determining the deferred tax asset tobe recognised is the forecasts used to support the probability assessment that sufficient taxable profits
will be generated by the entities inthe Bank in order to utilise the deferred tax assets inthe medium term.

1.2.8 Share-basedpayments

Theinitial fair value of awards is determined at grant date and is measured after takingintoaccount all terms and conditions of the share incentive
scheme, excluding non-market vesting conditions. In the case of certain schemes, options are granted to employees with a zero-strike price. In this
case the Bank may consider the share price on the grant date tobe the best indication of the grant date fair value. Where management determines
this valuation approach to be less appropriate, based on the specific terms and conditions, then a Black Scholes option pricing model is applied.
Significant inputs into this pricing model include the risk-free discount rate, share price volatility, as well as an expectation of future dividends.

The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date will reflect the extent to which the vesting period has expired as well as the Bank’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. A key assumption applied is staff turnover and expected forfeitures.

Management calibrates this assumption based on historical data.

In the case of cash-settled share-based payment schemes, where fair valueis required to be determined at each reporting date, a consistent fair
value methodology is applied. The fair value of the awards at each reporting date willimpactthe expense recognised over each reporting period.

Note 46 includes details of the Bank’s share awards. Refer to note 14 for the carryingamount of liabilities arising from cash-settled arrangements.
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1.2  Processof determination,and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

129 Offsettingfinancialassetsand financial liabilities

The Bank offsets certain financial assets and liabilities, when it has a legal right to offset and there is an intention to settle these financial
instruments on a net basis. When determining whether it is appropriate to offset financial assets and liabilities, the followingjudgement is applied:

e Indeterminingwhether the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset financial assets and financial liabilities, the Bank considers the
terms of the contractual arrangement as well as the applicable common law principles. The application of these common law principles is
sometimes subject toa significant degree of interpretation. In these instances, management will seek the advice of legal counsel.

e  Management carefully considers past practice in determining whether there is an intention to settle a financial asset and a financial liability
on anet basis.For example, customer accounts could be offsetbefore the customer enters into a process of liquidation or customer accounts
could be offset when the customer exceeds the limitof the facility granted. Management also evaluates whether the customer’s accounts
are managed on a net basis which would support the view that thereis an intention to settle on a net basis.

The above are considered to ensure the Bank’s financial assetsand liabilities are presented accurately in accordance with the characteristics of the
items in question as resources or obligations of the entity. Refer to note 40.
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1.3 Consolidated financial statements of the Bank
1.3.1 Subsidiaries

The Bank controls and hence consolidatesan entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns fromits involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Power exists where the Bank has existingrights that give it the current
ability todirect the relevant activities of the investee (i.e. the activities that most significantly affectthe entity’s returns). These requirements apply
to all entities, including voting right entities (also commonly known as an operatingentities) and structured entities.

Only substantive rights, and not protective rights, are considered when assessing power. For rights to be substantive, the party must have the
practical ability to exercise those rights, and such rights must not be protective in nature. Protective rights are designed at inception to protect the
interests of the holder against future risks without giving that party participative power over the entity,and hence that party cannot at inception
have power or prevent another party from having power over the entity.

The Bank does consolidate a number of investees in which it holds lessthan a majority of the voting rights, owing to the fact that votingrights are
not thedominant factor in determining who controls the entity. These consolidated investees are typically structured entities. Factors that have
been considered by the Bank in reaching this decision are as follows:

e  Thecommercial rationale for the incdusion of the structured entity within the given transaction structure;

. Risks towhich the entity was designed to be exposed;

. Risks the entity was designed to pass on to the parties involved with the entity; and

. Whether the Bank is exposed to some or all of those risks.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Bank. They are deconsolidated from the date that contrad
ceases.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls aninvestee if facts and circumstancesindicate that there are changes to one or more of the elements
of control included above.

Intragroup transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation and consistent accounting policies are used throughout the Bank for the
purposes of the consolidation.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions if they occur after control has already been obtained and
they donot resultin loss of control.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost lessimpairment in the separate financial statements of the investor.

1.3.2 Investmentsinassociates and jointventures

Associates are entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over its operating and financial policies. Generally, the Bank hods
more than 20%, but less than 50%, of the votingrights in associates. A joint arrangement is a contractual agreement between two or more parties
to undertake an economic activity thatis under joint control. Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the joint venturers that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the entity.

The Bank’s investments in associates and joint ventures are initially recorded at cost and increased (or decreased) each reporting period by the
Bank's share of the post-acquisition profit (or loss) and reduced by dividends received. In some cases, investments in these entities may be heldat
fair value through profit or loss, for example, those held by private equity businesses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for at cost less impairment in the separate financial statements of the investor. The
cost of these investments are assessed for impairment when there are indicators that an impairment may have occurred. Where an indicator of
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the investment is calculated and an impairment lossis recognised to the extent that the recoverable
amount of theinvestment is less than its cost.

1.3.3 Structuredentities

An interestin a structured entity isany form of investment or arrangement which creates variabilityin returnsarising from the performance of the
structured entity for the Bank. Such interests include but are not limited to holdings of debt or equity securities, derivatives that transfer financial
risks tothe Bank, and in some cases financial guarantees and investment management fee agreements. At market, plain-vanilla interest rate swaps
and derivatives that are determined tointroduce risk toa structured entity are not considered tobe an interest in an entity.

Dependingon the Bank’s power over the activities of the entity and its exposure toand ability toinfluence its returns from it, it may consolidate the
entity. Tothe extent that the Bank has an interest in a structured entity that it does not consolidate, it provides the disclosures as required by IFRS
12 Disclosures of interests in other entities (IFRS 12).

1.3.4 Common control

Common control transactionsareconsideredas transactions between entities under common control.Thatistosay, theBank controlsthetransferee
and the transferor both before and afterthe business combination. Common control transactions may therefore include the following:

e  Transferringbusinesses, including net assets, from one Group entity toanother.

e  Transferringinvestmentsin subsidiaries from one Group entity toanother.

e  Transferringassets and liabilities from one Group entity to another.

e  Combinations of the above.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.3 Consolidated financial statements of the Bank (continued)

13.4 Common control (continued)

Common control transactions are scoped out of the requirements of IFRS 3 Business Combinations (IFRS 3). The Bank has therefore made a policy
election to apply the predecessor accounting methodology when accounting for common control transactions. The assets and liabilities of the
combiningentities are not adjusted to fair value (as would be required under IFRS 3) but are reflected at their carrying amounts previously included
in the consolidated financial statements at the date of the transaction. The acquiring entity accounts for any difference between the consideration
paid/transferred and the net asset value acquired as an adjustment to equity. No goodwill will be recognised as a result of the common contrd
transaction.

The comparative statement of financial positionand statement of comprehensive income are restated as if the entities had always been combined,
regardless of the date of the transaction.

1.4 Segmentreporting

The Bank’s segmental reportingis inaccordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments (IFRS 8). Operating segments are reported ina manner consistent with
theinternal reporting provided to the Executive Committee, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments and has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included
in determining business segment performance. The Bank announced a refinement to its operating model, which was effective from 1 July 2022. This
change s partof the Bank’s journey to enhance market competitiveness with due consideration to its transformation imperative. In essence, the Bank will
move from two commercial businesses, Corporate and Investment Bank (CIB) and Retail and Business Banking (RBB), to four business units (Everyday
Banking, Relationship Banking, Product Solutionsand CIB).

1.5 Foreigncurrencies

151 Foreigncurrency translations

The Bank has foreign operations that are based outside of South Africa, and in accordance with the requirements of IAS 21 The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates (IAS 21), have a functional currency that isdifferentfrom the Bank's presentation currency (that is, the Rand). A foreign
operation is a subsidiary, associate, joint venture, or branch whose activities are based in a country or currency other than that of the reporting
entity. In accordance with IAS 21, the functional currency isthe currency of the primary economic environment inwhichan entity operates.

Prior to consolidation (or equity accounting) the assetsand liabilities of non-Rand operations are translated at the closing rate and items of income,
expenseand OCl are translated intoRand at the rate on the date of the transactions. Exchange differencesarisingon the translation of foreign
operations are included inthe foreign currency translation reserve. The amount recognised insuch reserve istransferred to profit or loss when the
Bank loses control, joint control or significant influence over the foreign operation or upon partial disposal of the operation.

1.5.2 Foreigncurrency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded initially at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. The application of average exchange
rates are permitted if they provide a reasonable approximation of the actual exchange rate (for example, in the case of foreign denominated
interest income).

At each subsequent reporting date:

e  foreign currency monetary amounts are reported using the closing rate;

. non-monetary items carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

. non-monetary items carried at fair value are reported at the rate that existed when the fair values were determined.

1.5.3 Translation of foreign currencies

Ininstances where the Bank would be unable to repatriate funds from foreign subsidiaries at official published rates, it translates balances based
on the spot rate at year end that the Group is able toaccess, should it wish torepatriate the funds at that date. For more detail, refer to Note
52.6.4.

1.6 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per shareis based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent and the number of basic
weighted average number of ordinary shares excluding treasury shares held in employee benefit trusts or held for trading. When calculating the
diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares inissueis adjusted for the effectsof all dilutive potential ordinary shares held.
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1.7  Financialinstruments

1.7.1 Initial recognition

The Bank recognises financial assets and liabilitieswhen it becomes a party to the terms of the contract. For regular way transactions, this is on
trade date. All financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus/minus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profitor loss, where transaction costs are expensed upfront.

1.7.2 Dayone profits orlosses

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is information to the contrary. The best evidence of an
instrument’s fair value on initial recognition is typically the transaction price. However, if fair value can be evidenced by comparison with other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument, or is based on a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observable
markets then the instrument isrecognised at the fair value derived from such observable market data. Any difference between the transaction price
and a market observable fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For valuations that have made use of significantunobservable inputs, the difference between the model valuation and the initial transaction price
(“Day One profit”) is recognised in profit or loss either on a straight-line basis over the term of the transaction, or over the reporting period until all
model inputs will become observable where appropriate, or released in full when previously unobservable inputs become observable.

1.7.3 Classificationand measurement of financial instruments

On initial recognition, the Bank classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
e Amortised cost;

. Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

. Fair value through profit or loss

The classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on:
e  Thebusiness model within which the financial assetsare managed; and
e  Thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the asset (that is, whether the cash flows represent “solely payments of principal and interest”).

Business model assessment

The business model reflects how the Bank manages the financial assetsin order to generate cash flows and returns. The Bank makes an assessment
of the objective of a business model in whicha financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and information is provided to management. The factors considered in determining the business model include (i) how the financial assets’
performance is evaluated and reported to management, (ii) how the risks within the portfolioare assessed and managed and (iii) the frequency,
volume, timing of past sales, sales expectations in future periods, and the reasons for such sales.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

Inmaking theassessmentof whetherthecontractual cash flows haveSPPIcharacteristics,theBankconsiders whetherthecash flows areconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement. That is, the contractual cash flows recovered must represent solely the payment of principal and interest. Principal
is the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. Interest typically includes only consideration for the time value of money and credit risk
but may also include consideration for other basic lendingrisks and costs, such as liquidity risk and administrative costs, together with a profit
margin. Where the contractual terms include exposure to risk or volatility that is inconsistent with a basic lendingarrangement, the cash flows
would not be considered tobe SPPIl and the assets would be mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss, as described below. In
making the assessment, the Bank considers, inter alia, contingentevents that would change the amount and timing of cash flows, prepayment and
extension terms, leverage features, terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements),
and features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. tenor mismatch). Contractual cash flows are assessed against the SPPI test
in the currency in whichthe financial asset is denominated.

1.7.3.1 Debt Instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as loans and government
and corporate bonds. The Bank classifies its debtinstruments into one of the following three categories:

e  Amortised cost - Financial assets are classified within this measurement category if they are held within a portfolio whose primary objective
is the collection of contractual cash flows, where the contractual cash flows on the instrument are SPPI, and that are not designated at fair
value through profit or loss. These financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost where interest is recognised as “Effective
interest” within “Interest and similar income” using the EIR method. The carryingamount is adjusted by the cumulative ECL recognised.

. Fair value through other comprehensiveincome - Thisclassification applies to financial assets which meet the SPPItest, and are held within
a portfoliowhose objectives include both the collection of contractual cash flows and the selling of financial assets. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair valuewith movements in the fairvaluerecognised in other comprehensiveincome, with theexception of interest
income, ECL and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised within profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to “Gains and losses from banking and
tradingactivities” in profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assetsis included as “Effective interest” within “Interest and similar
income” using the EIR method.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
1.7.3.1 Debt Instruments (continued)

. Fair value through profit or loss - Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss. Gains and losses on these instruments are recognised in “Gainsand losses
from bankingand tradingactivities” in profit or loss. The Bank may alsoirrevocably designate financial assets that would otherwise meet the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as at fair value through profit or loss, if
doingso would eliminate or significantly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. These will be subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss with gainsand losses recognised as “Gains and losses from banking and trading activities” or “Gains and losses
frominvestment activities” in profit or loss.

1.7.3.2 Equity instruments

IFRS 9 provides that at initial recognition, an irrevocable election may be made to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
instrument in other comprehensive income, provided that the instrumentis neither held for trading nor constitutes contingent consideration
recognised in a business combination. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends, when representinga return on investment, continue to be recognised in profit or loss when the Bank’s right to receive payment is
established. All equity instruments for which the designation at fair value through other comprehensive income has not been applied are required
to be recognised at fair value through profit or loss. Gains and losses on equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as
“Gains and losses from banking and trading activities” in profit or loss.

1.7.3.3 Financial Liabilities

A financial liability may be designated at fair value through profitor loss if (i) measuring the instrument at fair value eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognisingthe gains and
losses on them on different bases; or (ii) if the instrument belongs toa group of financial assets or financial liabilities that are managed on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy. The fair value designation is voluntary but may only be
applied at initial recognition and once applied cannot be reversed. Own credit gains or losses arising from the valuation of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other comprehensive income, unless doing so would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. In this case, own credit gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive
income are not subsequently recognised in profit or loss.

Where a financial liability has not been classified as held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss, it is held at amortised cost.
That s, the initial fair value (which is normally the amount borrowed) is adjusted for premiums, discounts, repayments and the amortisation of
coupon, fees and expenses to represent the EIR of the liability. Interest expense is recognised as “Interest expense and similar charges.” Terms
included in a financial liability contract(the host) which, had it been a standalone contract, would have met the definition of a derivative and where
the economic characteristics and risksare not closely related to the economic characteristicsand risks of the host, are either separated from the
host and accounted for in the same way as a derivative, or the entire contract is designated at fair value through profit or loss.

1.7.3.4 Derivatives

Derivative instruments are contracts whose value is derived from one or more underlyingfinancial instrumentsor indices definedin the contract
They include swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of these instruments and primarily affect the Bank’s net interest
income, net tradingincome, and derivative assets and liabilities. Notional amounts of the contracts are not recorded on the statement of financial
position. Derivatives are subsequently measured at fair value through profitor loss, with changes in their fair values recognised as “Gains and losses
from bankingand tradingactivities” in profit or loss, except for changes in the fair value of derivatives used to economically hedge the Bank's
interest rate risk which are recognised as “Other interest income”, or “interest expense and similar charges” in profit or loss.

1.7.4 Expectedcreditlosses onfinancial assets

The Bank recognises ECL based on unbiased forward-lookinginformation. ECL is recognised on all financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease
receivables, debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
not measured at fair value.

The Bank uses a mixed approach toimpairment where parameters are modelled at an individual financial instrument level or on a portfolio basis. A
collective approach will only be carried out when financial instruments share similar risk characteristics, which could include factors such as
instrument type, collateral type, industry, geography or credit risk ratings, Credit losses are the present value of the difference between:

. all contractual cash flows that are due toan entity in accordance with the contractand
e allthecash flows that the entity expects toreceive.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
1.74 Expectedcreditlosses onfinancial assets(continued)

Three-stage approach to ECL

IFRS 9 requires entities to recognise ECL based on a stage allocation methodology, with such categorisation informingthe level of provisioning
required. The ECL allowance calculated on stage 1 assets reflects the lifetime losses associated with events of default that are expected to occur
within 12 months of the reporting date (hereafter referred toas 12-month ECL). Assets classified within stage 2 and stage 3 carry an ECL allowance
calculated based on the lifetime losses associated with defaults that are expected to occur over the lifetime of the exposure (hereafter referred to
as lifetime ECL). In determining the forecastcredit losses over the duration of an exposure, recoveries expected to be received post the designated
point of write-off are excluded. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Interest is calculated on stage 1 and stage 2 assets based on the gross carryingamount of the asset, whilst interest income on stage 3 assets is
calculated based on the net carryingvalue (that is, net of the allowance for impairment losses) remaining contractual interest on stage 3 assets is
recognised as part of the impairment allowance raised against these assets.

The stage allocation is required to be performed as follows:

. Stage 1: This stage comprises exposures which are performingin line with the Bank'’s credit expectations as at the date of origination. That is
to say, the credit exposures which are assigned to stage 1 have not experienced a significant increase in creditrisk since the date of initial
recognition.Financial assetsthatarenotpurchased ororiginated with acreditimpairedstatusarerequired tobeclassified oninitial recognition
within stage 1. Exposures which were previously classified withinstage 2 or stage 3, may also cure backto stage 1in linewith the Bank’s
credit risk management cure criteria. Whilst the standard does permit an accounting policy election to classify low credit risk assets within
stage 1, such election has not been made by the Bank.

. Stage 2: Exposures are required to be classified within stage 2 when a significantincrease in credit risk is observed, although the exposure is
not yet credit impaired. The assessment of whether an exposure should be transferred from stage 1 tostage 2, is a relative measure, where
thecreditrisk at thereporting date is compared tothe risk that existed at initial recognition. The factorswhich trigger a reclassification from
stage 1 to stage 2 have been defined so as to meet the specific requirements of IFRS 9, and in order to align with the Bank’s credit risk
management practices. These factorshave been set out in section 1.2.1.5. Stage 2 assets are considered to be cured (i.e. reclassified back into
stage 1), when thereis no longer evidence of a significantincreasein creditrisk,and in accordance with the Bank’s credit risk management
cure criteria. The definition of high riskis, from a credit management perspective, central to controlling the flow of exposures back to stage 1
and gives effect toany cure periods deemed necessary.

. Stage 3: Credit exposures are classified within stage 3 when they are credit impaired. An instrument is credit impaired when there is objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date. Purchased or originated credit impaired lending facilities are classified on origination within
stage 3. Defaulted assets are considered tobe cured once the original event triggering default no longer applies, and the defined probation
period (thatis, the required consecutive months of performance) have been met. In the Retail portfolio, the cure definition appliedis quite
stringent, and assets will typically only cure from stage 3 to stage 2, but won’t move directly from stage 3 tostage 1.In the Wholesale portfdio
assets can move from stage 3 directly tostage 1.

Expected credit loss calculation

The measurement of ECL reflects:

. an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluatinga range of possible outcomes;

e  thetimevalue of money (represented by the EIR); and

. reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As noted ECL comprises the unbiased probability weighted credit losses determined by evaluatinga range of possible outcomes and considering
future economic conditions. ECL is calculated (for both 12 months ECL and lifetime ECL) as a function of the exposure at default (EAD); PD and loss
given default (LGD). These terms are interpreted as follows per the requirements of IFRS 9:

e  EAD isthe estimated amount at risk in the event of a default (before any recoveries) including behavioural expectation of limit usage by
customers in the various stages of credit risk.

. PD is the probability of default at a particular point in time, which may be calculated, based on the defaults that are possible within the next
12 months; or over the remaininglife; depending on the stage allocation of the exposure.

. LGD is calculated based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expected to be received up until the
designated point of write-off. These forecast losses are discounted to the reporting date based on the EIR. The expectation of cash flows take
intoaccount cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other creditenhancements thatare integral to the contractual terms. The estimate
reflects the amount and timing of cash flows expected from the enforcement of collateral less the costs of obtainingand selling the collateral.
The collection of any cash flows expected beyond the contractual maturity of the contractisalsoincuded.

Lifetime of financial instruments

For exposures in stage 2 and stage 3, the maximum lifetime over which ECL is measured, is the maximum contractual period over which the Bank is
exposed to credit risk. The Bank estimates cash flows by consideringall contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options)through the expected life of that financialinstrument. In rare cases when itis not possible toreliably estimate
the expected life of a financial instrument, the Bank uses the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Lifetime of financial instruments (continued)

Certain credit exposures include both a drawn and an undrawn componentand the Bank’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancelthe
undrawn commitment does not limit the exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period. In this case, ECL is measured over the period
that the Bank is exposed to creditrisk, even if that period extends beyond the maximum contractual period. Within the Bank, this applies to
overdrafts, credit cards and other revolving products. These contracts are cancellable at very short notice and they have no fixed term but credit
may continue to be extended for a longer period and may only be withdrawn after the credit risk of the borrower increases, which could be too late
toprevent losses. For these types of products the expected life isbased on the behavioural life, i.e. the period over which there isexposure to credit
risk which is not expected to be mitigated by creditactions(e.g.limit decreases) even though the contract permits immediate limitdecrease.

Forward looking information

Forward-looking information is factored intothe measurement of ECL through the use of multiple expected macro-economic scenarios that are
either reflected in estimates of PD and LGD for material portfolios; or adjusted through expert credit judgement where the effects could not be
statistically modelled.

Write -off

The gross carryingamount of a financial asset shallbe directly reduced (that is, written off)) when the entity has no reasonable expectations of
recoveringitin its entirety, or a portion thereof. The correspondingimpairmentallowance is also reduced. This reduction occurs when the asset is
astage 3 financial asset. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event for accounting purposes. Dependingon the nature of the account, balances
are written off when:

e  Therehas been less than one qualifying payment received withinthe last 12 months; or

. Itis nolonger economically viable to keep the debt on the statement of financial position

A qualifying payment, for use in the write-off assessment, is defined as the minimum monthly contractual payment due.

Indicators which suggest that an account is not economically viable to retain on the statement of financial position are as follows (but do not

represent an exhaustive list):

e Theexposureisunsecured i.e.thereis notangible security the Bank can claim against(excluding suretyships);

. The debt has prescribed;

e  Theexposure would attract reputational risk should the Bank pursue further legal action due to the valuation / exposure ratio, for example
where the exposure is low and the valuation is very high in relation to the low exposure

e  Wherethecost torecoveris high inrelation to the valuation of the asset, for example legal, realisation and safe-guarding costs as well as rates
and taxes.

Under IFRS 9, the Bank applies the write-off assumptions consistently at both an individual account level and on a collective modelling basis. This
means that the Bank’s LGD model includes only the present value of forecast recoveries on a pool of loans up until the designated point of write-
off. Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised as an ECL gain included in the credit impairment charges line in the statement of
comprehensive income as and when the cash is received.

1.7.5 Derecognition of financial assetsand financial liabilities

1.7.5.1 Derecognition of financial assets

In the course of its normal bankingactivities, the Bank makes transfers of financial assets, either legally (where legal rightsto the cash flows from
the asset are passed to the counterparty) or beneficially (where the Bank retains the rights to the cash flows but assumes a responsibility to transfer
them to the counterparty). Dependingon the nature of the transaction, this may result in derecognition of the assets in their entirety, partial
derecognition or noderecognition of the assets subject to the transfer.

Full derecognition occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been discharged, cancelled or have expired, or the Bank transfers
both its contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial assets (or retains the contractual rightsto receive the cash flows, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows toanother party without material delay or reinvestment) and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership,includingcredit risk, prepaymentrisk and interest rate risk. When an asset is transferred, in some circumstances, the Bank may retain
aninterestin it (continuinginvolvement) requiring the Bank torepurchase it in certain circumstances for other than its fair value on that date.

1.7.5.2  Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability isderecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liabilityis
replaced by another from the same party on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified (taking into
account both quantitative and qualitative factors), such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference inthe respective carryingamounts is recognisedin profit or loss.

Where the terms of an existingliability are not substantially modified, the liability is not derecognised. Costs incurred on such transactions are
treated as an adjustment to the carryingamount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
1.7.6  Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities

1.7.6.1 Modification of financial assets
Modifications tofinancial assetsare assessed as follows:

A loan modification is a permanent change to one or more of the terms of theloan. Enforcing or adopting terms that were present in

theoriginal terms of the facility is not a modification. The treatment of a renegotiation or modification of the contractual cash flows of

afinancial asset depend on whether the modification isdone for commercial reasons or because of financial difficulty of the borrower.

e  Contractual modifications on commercial terms are treated as a new transaction resultingin derecognition of the original financial
asset, only to the extent that the modification issubstantial, and the recognition of a “new” financial asset. Any difference between
the carryingamount of the derecognised asset and the fair value of the new asset is recognised in profit or loss.

e  When the Bank modifies the contractual conditions due to financial difficulties of the borrower, the asset is not derecognised
unless the terms of the contract are substantively changed (such as the inclusion of an equity participation or a substantial change
in counterparty). If the asset is not substantially modified, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculatedto
be thepresentvalueof the modified cash flowsdiscounted attheoriginal EIRand theresultingmodification gain/lossis recognised
in profit or loss as part of the total impairment loss. Modification gains or losses typically occur on stage 2 and 3 assets.

1.7.6.2 Modification of financial liabilities

Where an existing financial liability isreplaced by another from the same party on substantiallydifferent terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified (taking into account both quantitative and qualitative factors), such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carryingamounts is recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the terms of an existingliability are not substantially modified, the liability is not derecognised. Costs incurred on such transactions are
treated as an adjustment to the carryingamount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

1.7.7 Offsetting of financial assetsand financial liabilities

In accordance with IAS32, the Bank reports financial assetsand financial liabilities on a net basis on the statement of financial position onlyif there
is alegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and thereis intention tosettle on a net basis, or torealise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

1.7.8 Hedgeaccounting
The Bank applies IAS 39 hedge accountingto represent, to the maximum possible extent permitted under accounting standards, the economic

effects of its interest and currency risk management strategies. Derivatives are used to hedge interest rate, exchange rate, commodity, and equity
exposures as well as exposures to certain indices such as commodity, equity and retail price indices related to non-trading positions.

Where derivatives are held for risk management purposes, and when transactions meet the required criteria for documentation and hedge
effectiveness, the Bank applies fair value hedge accountingand cash flow hedge accountingas appropriate to therisks beinghedged. The Bank
assesses on an ongoing basis whether the hedge has been highly effective. A hedge is regarded as highly effective onlywhen offsetting changes in
fair value or cash flows attributable tothe hedged risk during the period are within a range of between 80% and 125%.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge, is sold, terminated, exercised or where the forecast
transaction is nolonger highly probable to occur. The same applies if the hedged item is sold or repaid. Instruments that have been designated as
hedginginstruments are reported in a separate line on the statements of financial position at eachreporting date.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedginginstrument must be expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows attributable tothe hedged risk duringthe period for whichthe hedge is designated. Prospective testingis based on the estimation of certain
parameters to assess whether the hedging relationship will be effective or not. The estimation of these parameters is performed using best practice
statistical forecastingand simulation methodologies based on current and historical market data. Resultant simulated hedgingrelationshipsare
assessed by calculating a statistically based hedge effectivenesstest criterion.

Fair value hedge accounting
Changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify and are designated as fairvalue hedges are recorded in profit or loss, together with changes in the

fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable tothe hedged risk. The fair value changes adjust the carryingvalue of the hedged
asset or liability held at amortised cost.

If hedge relationships nolonger meet the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accountingis discontinued. For fair value hedges of interest rate risk,
thefairvalue adjustmentto thehedgeditem isamortised to profitorlossover the period tomaturity of thepreviously designated hedgerelationship
usingthe effective interest method. If the hedged itemis sold or repaid, the unamortised fair value adjustment is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedge accounting

For qualifying cash flow hedges, the fair value gain or loss on the hedginginstrument associated with the effective portion of the cash flow hedge
is recognised initially in other comprehensive income and alsodisclosed inthe cashflow hedging reserve within equity, and thenrecycled to profit
or loss in the reporting periods when the hedged item will affect profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised in profit or loss immediately. When a hedginginstrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existingin equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the hedged item is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recognised in equity is
immediately transferred to profit or loss.

1.7.9 Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that represent a residual interestin the Bank’s net assets. The key feature which distinguishes an equity
instrument from a financial liability iswhether there isa contractual obligation of the issuer to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder
of theinstrument.

1.7.10 Compound financial instruments

The Bank applies IAS 32 to determine whether fundingis either a financial liability (debt) or equity.

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities if the contractual arrangement results in the Bank havinga present
obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, or a variable number of equity shares, tothe holder of the instrument, if this is not the
case, theinstrument is generally an equity instrument. Where issued financial instruments contain both liability and equity components, these are
accounted for separately. The fair value of the debt is estimated first, and the balance of the proceeds is included within equity.

1.7.11 Subordinateddebt

The majority of subordinated debt is measured at amortised cost using the EIR method exceptwhere hedge accountingis applied as per 1.7.8.

1.7.12 Repurchase andreverse repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements (and stock borrowing or similar transactions) are a form of secured lendingwhereby the Bank provides aloan or
cash collateral in exchange for the transfer of collateral, generally in the form of marketable securities subject to an agreement to transfer the
securities back at a fixed pricein the future. Repurchase agreements are where the Bank obtains such loans or cash collateral, in exchange for the
transfer of collateral.

The Bank purchases securities (under a reverse repurchase agreement) or borrows securities subject toa commitment toresell or return them. The
securities are not included on the statement of financial position as the Bank does not acquire the risks and rewards of ownership. Consideration
paid (or cash collateral provided) is accounted for as a loan asset. The Bank may also sell securities (under a repurchase agreement) or lend securities
subject to a commitment to repurchase or redeem them. The securities are retained on the statement of financial position since the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Consideration received (or cash collateral provided) is accounted for as a financial liability.

1.7.13 Loancommitments
The Bank enters into commitmentstolendtoits customers subject to certain conditions. Such loan commitments are made either for a fixed periaod,
or are cancellable by the Bank subject to notice conditions.

Under IFRS 9, loan commitments are measured with referenceto the quantum of ECL required to be recognised. In the case of undrawn loan
commitments, the inherent creditriskis managed and monitored by the Bank together with the drawn component as a single exposure. The EAD
on the entire facility is therefore used to calculate the cumulative ECL. As a result, the total ECL is recognised in the ECL allowance in respectof the
financial asset unless the total allowance exceedsthe gross carrying amount of the financial asset. If thisis the case, the excess ECL is recognised
as a provision on the face of the statement of financial position.

1.7.14 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contractsthat require the issuer to make specified payments toreimburse the holder for aloss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of the debt instrument. Financial guarantees are initially
recognised at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Otherthan where the fair value option is applied subsequent toinitial recognition,
the Bank’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial measurement, less amortisation calculated torecognise in
profit or loss any fee income earned over the reporting period, and the amount of the loss allowance expected from the guarantee at the reporting
date. Any increasein theliability relating to guarantees is recognised in profit or loss. For financial guarantee contracts the cash shortfalls are
future payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the entity would expect to receive from the holder,
the debtor or any other party.
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1.8  Share capital

1.8.1 Ordinarysharecapital

Proceeds received upon the issuance of shares are included in equity, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Dividends and other
distributions made to equity holdersare recognised as a reduction in equity when they are appropriately authorised and are nolonger at the
discretion of the entity.

1.8.2 Preferenceshare capital
Preference share capital is classified as equity ifit is non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the entity’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividendsthereon are recognised as distributionswithin equity.

Preference share capitalis classified as a liability ifit is redeemable on a specific future date or at the option of the shareholders, or if dividend
payments are not discretionary. Dividends which are therefore paid on these instrumentsare included inthe cashflows applied in determining the
EIR of the instrument. The accrual of dividends ispresented as an interest expense in profitor loss.

1.9 Revenuerecognition

19.1 Netinterestincome

Interest revenue which iscalculated using the effective interestrate method is separately presented on the face of the statementof comprehensive
income. Effective interest is calculated on loans and advances and debt instruments which are classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Further, an effective interest expense s calculated on financial liabilities held at amortised cost. Application of the
EIRmethodology resultsintherecognition of interest, togetherwith directand incremental feesand costs,on atimeportion basisoverthe expected
lives of the assets and liabilities. The expected life of an instrumentor a portfolio of instruments may be modelled as being shorter than the
contractual tenor where historical experience suggests that customer prepayment behaviour impacts the forecasted cash flow profile.

Commitment fees are typically received by the Bank in return for loan commitments issued. For loan commitments where drawdown is probable,
the fee will be recognised as deferred income on balance sheet and subsequently recognised as an adjustment to EIR on the loan upon drawdown.
The remaining portion will continue to be deferred until further loan drawdown takes place or else be recognised as fee income when the loan
commitment expires without being drawn. To the extent that the drawdown of the loan commitment is not probable,the commitment fee is
regarded as compensation for the provision of a service and is amortised to profit or loss as fee income over the loan commitment period.
Commitment fees charged based on unutilised or undrawn amounts is accrued as fee income based on the actual undrawn amount.

The Bankalso presents as part of net interest income, other interest income and other interest charges, which are not calculated on the effective
interest method.

Impactof IFRS9 ECL oninterestrecognition

IFRS 9 requires interest income to be calculated on stage 1 or stage 2 financial assets by multiplying the EIR by the gross carrying amount of such
assets. Dissimilar tostage 1 and stage 2 assets, IFRS 9 requiresinterest income on stage 3 financial assets to be calculated based on the netcarrying
value of the exposure, that is, the gross carrying value less the ECL allowance. In order to practically give effect to this requirement, the Bank first
suspends the recognition of contractual interest, and second, multiplies the net carrying value by the EIR. Unrecognised interest (which is referred
to as interest in suspense (IIS) is the difference between the interest calculated on the gross carryingamount of the financial asset (that is, the
interest charged), and the net interest amount, calculated based on the net carryingamount of the financial asset. In some instances, an entity may
recover cash flows which arein excess of the cumulativeinterest previously recognised overthelifeof theinstrument.ThellSrecoveredis presented
as a gain within ECL.

19.2 Nettradingincome

In accordance with IFRS 9 trading positions are measured at fairvalue, with fair value gains and losses being recognised within profit or loss as
part of ‘gains and losses from bankingand trading activities'. Interest and dividends which are received or paid as a consequence of issuing or
holdinginstruments that are managed as partof the Bank’s tradingactivities are presented together with the fair value gains and losses on such
instruments. Fair value gains or losses may be caused by movements in interest and exchange rates, equity prices and other market variables.

Gains and losses on derivativeslinked toinvestment contracts are recognisedin ‘gains and losses from investment activities’.

19.3 Netfeeand commissionincome
Net fee and commission income is calculated by subtracting fee and commission charges from fee and commission income. Fee and commission

income relates torevenue earned for the renderingof services andis recognised net of any trade discounts, volume rebates and amounts received
on behalf of third parties, such as sales taxes, goods and service taxes and value added taxes.

In assessingwhether the Bank is actingas a principal or agent to the transaction, consideration is given to the rights held by other parties against
the Bank and the Bank’s exposure to risks and rewards. Evidence that suggests that the Group is acting as an agent include:

Minimal legal obligations owingtothe buyer and seller;

No liability for the non-performance of obligationsby its clients and/or the market counterparties under the transactions executed.
Theimmediate and entire transfer of any risks and rewardstothe other party with noresidual exposure retained;

No exposure to client or market counterparty credit risk arising from amounts receivable;

The nature and amount of remuneration received.
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1.9.3 Netfeeand commissionincome (continued)

When the Group is actingas an agent, amounts collected on behalf of the principal are not income. Only the net commission retained by the Group
is,in this case, recognised as income.

Fees and commission income earned in respect of services rendered are recognised on an accrual basis when the service is rendered, which is
either over the period over which the performance obligation isdischarged; or at a pointin time, should the performance obligation be discharged

ata pointin time. For example, fees earned on the execution of a significant act are recognised when the significant act has been completed.

Fee and commission expenses are expenses which are direct and incremental to the generation of fee and commission income.
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1.10 Commodities

The Bank may actively buy and sell metals, for both physical and financial settlement. Positionsare principally acquired or incurred for the purpose
of sellingorrepurchasingintheneartermand forshortterm profittaking.When dealingactivitiesareexecutedin thismannertheBankis considered
to be a broker-trader of commodities. Inventories held by broker-traders are outside the measurement scope of I1AS 2 Inventories (IAS 2) and are
accordingly measured at fair value less cost to sell (with any changes in fair value less cost to sell recognised in profit or loss). Commodities held
under this business model are presented within tradingand hedging portfolio assets, and fair value measurement changes are presented within
gains and losses from bankingand tradingactivities.

The fair value for commodities is determined primarily using data derived from markets in which the underlying commodities are traded.
1.11 Intangible assets

1.11.1 Goodwill

Goodwill recognised in a business combination under IFRS 3 is an asset which represents the future economic benefits arising from other assets
acquired in the business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill does not generate cash flows
independently of other assets or groups of assets, and often contributes to the cash flows of multiple cash-generating units.
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiariesand is measured on initial recognition as the excess of (a) over (b) below:
(@) theaggregate of:

o theconsideration transferred, measured in accordance with IFRS 3;

o theamount of any non-controllinginterest inthe acquiree, also measured in accordance with IFRS 3; and

o in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interestin the

acquiree.

(b) thenetoftheacquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired andthe liabilities assumed measured in accordance with IFRS 3.

In accordance with the requirements of I1AS 36, goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently when there are indications
that an impairment may have occurred. Impairment is tested by comparingthe carryingamount of the cash-generatingunit (CGU), including the
goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the CGU. If the recoverable amount of the unit exceeds it's carryingamount, the CGU and the goodwill
allocated tothat unitis not impaired. If the carryingamount of the CGU exceeds the recoverable amount of the CGU, the Bank must recognises an
impairment loss.

1.11.2 Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets include brands, customer lists, internally generated software, and licences and are accounted for in accordance with IAS 38
Intangible Assets (IAS 38). Intangible assets may only be recognised when all of the requirementsunder|AS 38 are met. The asset, whichis contraled
by the entity, must be separately identifiable, reliably measurable, and it should be probable that future economic benefits will be derived from the
asset. The asset is identifiable when it iseither separable (that is, it is capable of being sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged) or the asset
should arise from contractual or other legal rights.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, completion of development is technically and
commercially feasible, the generation of future economic benefits is probable and the asset’s capability of use can be demonstrated. Further, the
Bank should have sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, staff costs, professional
fees and overhead costs that are directlyattributable to preparing the asset for intended use. Other development expenditure which does not meet
the above requirements is recognised in profit or loss when the Bank has right of access to the goods or as the services are received.

Intangible assets are stated at cost (which is, in the case of assets acquired in a business combination, the fair value at acquisition date) less
amortisation and any provision for impairment. The assets are amortised over their useful lives ina manner that reflects the patternin which they
contribute to future cash flows, as set out in the following table.

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when there are indicators that impairment may have occurred. Should such an indicator exist, or in
the instance that an intangible asset is not yet available for use, the asset is tested for impairment by comparing its carrying value with its
recoverable amount. Any impairment loss identified is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Customer lists and Computer software
. . Other
relationships developments costs
Useful lives Finite Finite Finite

Amortised over the period of

the expected use from the Amortised over the period of

Amortised over the period of

Amortisation method used the expected use on a straight- - . the expected use on a straight-
. - related project on a straight- . -
line basis. . " line basis.
line basis.
Internally generated or acquired| Acquired Internally generated Acquired
Annual amortisation rate (%) 8-20 10-33 10
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1.12 Property and equipment

1.12.1 Propertyandequipmentnotsubjecttolease agreements

Property and equipment is stated at cost, which includesdirect and incremental acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and provisions for
impairment, if required. Subsequent costs are capitalised if these result in anenhancement to the asset. Depreciation is provided on the depreciable
amount of items of property and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives. Depreciation rates, methods and the
residual values underlyingthe calculation of depreciation of items of property and equipment are kept under review to take account of any change
in circumstances. The Bank uses the following annual rates in calculating depreciation:

Item Annual depreciation rate (%)
Computer equipment 14-25
Freehold property 2
Furniture and other equipment 10-15
Motor vehicles 25
Leasehold improvements 10-15

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carryingamount of the
asset) isincluded in profitor loss within ‘cther operating income’ in the reporting period that the asset isderecognized.

1.12.2 Property and equipmentsubjecttolease agreements
1.12.2.1 Property and equipment subject tolease agreements

As lessee

Where the Bank is a lessee, a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognised at the lease commencement date. The right-of -use
assetisinitially and subsequently measured at cost with depreciation recognised on a straight-line basisover the shorter of the assets useful life
and the lease term. Theright of use asset isincluded within“property and equipment” inthe statement of financial position. The lease liability is
initially measured at the presentvalue of the lease payments discounted usingthe interest rate implicit in the lease, if readily determinable, or the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability determined and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Any revisions to in-substance
fixed lease payments, reassessment or lease modifications will be reflected by re-measuring the carryingamount of the lease liability. Interest is
recognised within net interest income and the lease liability is included within “other liabilities” in the statement of financial position.

The lease payments in relation toshort term leases (leases with a lease term of 12 months or less at commencement date) and leases in which the
underlyingasset is of low value are recognised as an expense on a straight line basisover the lease term.

As lessor

Finance leases

A financeleaseis alease which confers substantiallyall the risks and rewards of the leased assets on the lessee. Where the Bank is the lessor, the
leased asset is not held on the statement of financial position; insteada finance lease receivableis recognised representing the minimum lease
paymentsreceivableunderthetermsofthe lease,discounted attherate of interestimplicitinthelease.Financeincomeonthereceivableisallocated
over thelease term on a systematic basis so as toreflect a constant periodicrate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the finance lease.

Operating leases

An operatingleaseis a leasein which substantially all of the risks and rewards of the leased assets remain with the lessor. Where the Bank s the
lessor, lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless another systematic basis is more appropriate. The
Group recognizes leased assets relating to excess space within branches. As such items do not meet the definition of investment property per IAS
40, they arerecognised on the statement of financial position within property and equipment

1.12.3 Investment properties

IAS 40 Investment Property appliestothe accounting for property (land and/or buildings) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation (or both)The
Bank initially recognisesinvestment properties at cost, and subsequently at fair value at each reporting date reflecting market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains and losses on measurement are included in profit or loss, and presented within ‘other operatingincome’.

1.13 Repossessed properties

Repossessed properties acquired inexchange for loans as partof an orderly realisation are reported in‘other assets’ as inventory as it is heldfor
sale in the ordinary course of business. The repossessed properties are recognised when the risks and rewards of the properties have been
transferred tothe Bank. The correspondingloans are derecognised when the Bank becomes the holder of the title deed.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Repossessed properties(continued)

The properties acquired areinitially recorded at cost, which is the lower of their fair value less costs to sell and the carryingamount of the loan
(net of impairment allowance) atthe date of exchange. They are subsequently measured at the lower of the carryingamount or net realisable value.
No depreciation is charged in respect of these properties. Any subsequent write-down of the acquired properties to net realisable value is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, in ‘other operatingincome’. Any subsequent increase in net realisable value, to the extent
that it does not exceed the cumulative write-down, is also recognised in ‘other operating income’.

Gains or losses on disposal of repossessed properties are reported in ‘other operatingincome’ or ‘operating expenses’, as the case may be.

1.14 Non-currentassetsheldforsale

Non-currentassets (ordisposal groups comprisingassetsand liabilities) thatareexpected toberecovered primarily through saleratherthan through
continuing use, are classified as held for sale. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate saleinits present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.Immediately before classification as held for sale, the assets (or
components of a disposal group) are remeasured in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policies. Thereafterthe assets (or disposal group) are
measured at the lower of their carryingamount or fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated to reduce
goodwill and then to remainingassets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to financial assets, deferred tax assets,
investment properties, insurance assets and employee benefit assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Bank’s accounting
policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains
are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss until finally sold.

Property, equipment and intangible assets, once classified as held for sale, are not depreciated or amortised.

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash comprises coins and notes, call advances, mandatory reserve balances held with the SARB
and other central banks as well as nostro balances. While cash equivalents comprise highly liquid investmentsthat are convertible into cash with an
insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less. Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements are not
considered tobe part of cash equivalents.

1.16 Provisions, contingentliabilities and commitments
Aprovision is recognised toreflecta present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event where it is more likely than not that a transfer
of economic benefits will be necessarytosettle the obligation. Further, the expected transfer of economic benefits must be reliably estimable.

A provision is recognised by the Bank toreflect the anticipated cost of restructuring when the general recognition criteria for a provision are met.
In assessing whether a constructive obligation torestructure might exist the Bank assesses whether there is a detailed formal plan to execute the
restructuringand the Bank has raised a valid expectation amongst those affected that such restructuring will be implemented.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, and present obligations where the
transfer of economic resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the statement of financial
position but are disclosed unlessthe outflow of economic resources is remote.

Under IFRS 9, the ECL calculated on financial guarantees and lettersof credit are presented as provisionson the statement of financial position. In
the case of undrawn loan commitments, the inherent creditrisk is managed and monitored by the Bank together with the drawn component as a
single exposure. The EAD on the entire facility istherefore used to calculate the cumulative ECL. As a result, the total ECL is recognised in the EQL
allowancein respect of the financial asset unless the total allowance exceeds the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. If this isthe case, the
excess ECL is recognised as a provision on the face of the statement of financial position.

1.17 Employee benefits

117.1 Post-retirementbenefits
The Bank operates a number of pension schemes includingdefined contribution and defined benefit schemes and post-retirement medical aid
plans.

Defined contribution schemes
The Bank recognises contributions due in respect of the reporting period in profit or loss. Any contributions unpaid at the reporting date are
included as aliability.

Defined benefit schemes

The Bank recognises its obligation (determined using the projected unit credit method) to members of the scheme at the reportingdate, less the
fair value of the scheme assets. Scheme assets are stated at fair value as at the reporting date.

Costs arising from current service cost, interest on net defined benefit liability or asset, past service cost settlements are recognised in profit or
loss.

All actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately through OCl in order for the net defined benefit scheme asset or liability recognised in
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.17 Employee benefits (continued)

1.17.1 Post-retirementbenefits(continued)

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

the statement of financial position toreflect the full value of the plan surplus or deficit, takinginto account the asset ceiling.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefitliability (or asset, as the case may be) comprise experience adjustments (differences between previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate tothe opening net defined liability or asset, takingintoaccount any changes in the net defined
liability or asset duringthe period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

Gains and losses on amendments and curtailments are recognised when the curtailment occurs, which may be when a demonstrable commitment
to areduction in benefits or reduction in eligible employees occurs. The gain or loss comprisesany change in the present value of the obligation and
the fair value of the assets. Where a scheme’s assets exceed its obligation, an asset is recognised to the extent that it does not exceed the present
value of future contribution holidays or refunds of contributions.

Post-employment medical aid plans
The cost of providing healthcare benefits to retired employees is accrued as a liabilityin the financial statements over the reporting period that
the employees provide services to the Bank, using a methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension schemes.

1.17.2 Staff costs

Short-term employee benefits, including salaries, accrued performance costs, salary deductionsand taxes are recognised over the reporting period
in which the employees provide the services towhich the payments relate. Performance costs are recognised to the extent that the Bank has a
present obligation toits employees that can be measured reliably and are recognised on an undiscounted basis over the period of service that
employees are required towork to qualify for the services.

Termination benefitsresult from either an entity’s decision to terminate the employment or an employee’s decision toaccept an entity’s offer of
benefits in exchange for termination of employment.

1.17.3 Share-based payments

The Bank operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment plans.

Employee services settledin equity instruments

The cost of the employee services received in respect of the shares or share options granted is recognised in profit or loss over the period that
employees provide services, generally the period in which the award is granted or notified and the vesting date of the shares or options. The overall
cost of the award is calculated using the number of shares and options expected tovest and the fair value of the shares or options at the date of
grant.

The number of shares and options expected to vest takes intoaccount the likelihood that performance and service conditionsincluded inthe terms
of the awards will be met. Failure to meet the non-vesting condition is treated as a cancellation, resultingin an acceleration of recognition of the
cost of the employee services.

The fair value of shares is the market price rulingon the grant date, in some cases adjusted toreflect restrictionson transferability. The fair value
of options granted is determined usingoption pricing models to estimate the value of shares likely to vest. These take intoaccount the exercise
price of the option, the current share price, the risk-free interest rate, the expected volatility of the share price over the life of the option and other
relevant factors. Market conditions that must be met in order for the award to vest are also reflected in the fairvalue of the award, as are any other
non-vesting conditions.

Rechargearrangementsthatexistbetween entitieswithintheBankdonot impactthenatureof the share-based paymenttransaction,andtherefore
donot affect the classification as either equity-settled or cash-settled. Bank entities account for intergroup recharges within equity.

Employee services settledin cash

Thefairvalueof the amount payabletoemployees interms of a cash-settled share-based paymentisrecognisedasan expense,withacorresponding
increasein liabilities, over the vesting period. The liability isremeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value
of the liabilityare recognised as staff costsin profit or loss. Noamount is recognised for services received if the awards granted do not vest because
of afailure tosatisfy a vesting condition.

1.18 Tax
1.18.1 Currenttax
Income tax payableon taxable profits (current tax) is recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which the profits arise.

Withholding taxes are also treated as income taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses isrecognised as a current tax asset
only tothe extent thatitis regarded as recoverable by offsetagainst taxable profits arisingin the current or prior reporting period.

Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.18 Tax(continued)
1.18.2 Deferredtax

Deferred tax is providedin full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising from the differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carryingamounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is determined usingtax rates and legislation enactedor
substantively enacted by the reporting date which are expected toapply when the deferred tax asset isrealised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis.

1.18.3 Dividends withholding tax
The South African tax legislation provides that dividends are taxed at 20% inthe hands of certain qualifying shareholders, rather than in the hands
of the entity which declares such dividend. As such, where dividends are declared and paid by the Bank, the Bank does not recognise dividends tax.

1.18.4 Value addedtax(VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except:

o wherethe VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services isnot recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognised
as part of the asset or expense; and

o receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

Non-recoverable VAT on operating expenditure is disclosed separately in ‘other expenses’in profit or loss.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payablesin the statement of
financial position.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.19 Reporting changes overview

The Bank effected the following financial reporting changes during the current reporting period:

1.19.1 Change inaccounting policy for Cashand cash equivalents

The IFRS Interpretation Committee published an agenda decision on ‘Demand Deposits with Restrictions on Use arising from a Contract with a Third
Party (IAS 7 Statement of cash flows) — Agenda Paper 3’in April 2022. Based on the afore-mentioned agenda decision, the Statement of Cash flows
of the Bank has been reviewed and it was concluded that the mandatory reserves with the SARB should be included as ‘Cash and cash equivalents’
in the Statement of cash flows. The portion which is included in cash and cash equivalents is that which can be utilised by the Bank. Thisis calculated
by applyingthe percentage thatis accessible to the Bank in accordance with the regulatory terms.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periods affected. These changes in accounting
policydonot haveanimpacton theStatementof comprehensiveincome,Statementof financial position,Statementof changesinequity,orearnings
per share of the Bank.

Theimpact of the afore-mentioned restatements is as follows:

31 December 2021
Accounting policy  Correction of prior
change  period error (refer

Mandatory reserve tonote1.19.2
As previously balances with the below)
reported SARB Nostros Restated
Statement of cash flows Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents 6170 19379 4777 30326
Netincreasein other assets (25937) 1556 - (24 381)
Netincreasein loans and advances (55 828) - (2520) (58 348)
Net cash generated from operatingactivities (2047) 1556 (2520) (3010)
1January 2021
Accounting policy
change Correction of prior
Mandatory reserve  period error (refer to
balances with the note 1.19.2 below)
As previously reported SARB below) Restated
Statement of cash flows Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents 8783 17822 7297 33902

1.19.2. Correction of prior period errors

Nostro balances in the Statement of cash flows

As part of the review of what constitutes Cash and cash equivalents, it was identified that nostro balances with foreign banks was incorrectly
excluded from Cash and cash equivalentsand the Statement of cash flows has subsequently been corrected.

Refer to note 1.19.1 above for the impact of the afore-mentioned restatement.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periods affected. These errors have noimpact on
the Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, or earnings per share of the Bank.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.19 Reporting changes overview(continued)
1.19.2. Correctionof prior period errors (continued)

Trading and Hedging portfolio assets and liabilities and debt securities in the Statement of financial position

In terms of the Bank's accounting policy, movements in the fair value of collateral held on certain over the counter (OTC) derivative contracts are, in
terms of the requirements of I1AS 32, required to be offset against the related derivative market-to-market movement and presented on a net basis
on the Statement of financial position. Certain movements in the fair value of the collateral linked to the Bank’s hedging strategy were historically
reported as part of Trading portfolio assetsand Trading portfolio liabilities, as opposed to Hedging portfolio assets and Hedging portfolio liabilities,
respectively. These items have been adjusted to correctly set off derivative movements from movements in collateral in terms of the requirements
of 1AS 32.

Furthermore, as part of the Bank’s ongoing process toimprove financial controlsand processes, it was identified thatthe fair value of certain credit
linked note (CLN) instruments had been incorrectly recognised as part of Trading portfolio assets, as opposed to Debt securities inissue.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periods affected. These errors have noimpact on
the Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of changes in equity, or earnings per share of the Bank.

Theimpact of the afore-mentioned restatements on the Statement of financial position and Statement of cash flows are as follows:
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
31 December 2021

As previously oTC
reported  derivatives Fair value on CLNs Restated
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Statement of financial position
Assets
Trading portfolio assets 141815 1462 (1301) 141976
Hedging portfolio assets 5157 (1462) - 3696
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (67 354) (749) - (68 103)
Hedging portfolioliabilities (3659) 749 - (2910)
Debt securities in issue (128571) - 1301 (127 271)
1January 2021

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |59



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Accounting policies
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

As previously oTC
reported derivatives Fair value on CLNs Restated
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Trading portfolio assets 166 148 3525 (1293) 168 380
Hedging portfolio assets 10998 (3525) - 7473
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities (105967) 145 - (105 822)
Hedging portfolioliabilities (4 868) (145) - (5013)
Debt securities in issue (144 159) - 1293 (142 867)
31 December 2021
As previouslv reported Correction of prior period error Restated
Statement of cash flows P yrep
Rm
Rm Rm
Net decrease in tradingand hedging portfolio 26123 7 26130
assets
Net increasein other liabilities 9729 (7) 9722
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.19 Reporting changes overview(continued)
1.19.3 Changes toreportable segments and business portfolios

Reportable segment changes
The Bank has changed its operating model, effective 1 July 2022. Thischange is part of the Bank's journey to enhance market competitiveness, while

also improvingits transformation position. In essence, the Bank has moved from two commercial businesses, Corporate and Investment Banking
(CIB) and Retail and Business Banking (RBB), to four business units (EverydayBanking, Relationship Banking, Product Solutions and CIB).

Business portfolio changes

The business portfolio changes below resulted in the restatement of the business units' financial results for comparative periods but have had no
impact on the overall financial position or net earnings of the Bank.

a.Costs related tobusiness unitshave beenreallocated between the relevant segments, resultingin an adjustment to operating expenses and other
expenses between segments.

2021
As previously . Business Regs;z:{:i Restated
reported portfoliochanges changes

Statement of comprehensive income Rm Rm Rm Rm
Operating expenses
RBB (24 102) - 24102 -
Product Solutions Cluster n/a (560) (3775) (4 335)
Everyday Banking n/a 601 (12824) (12223)
Relationship Banking n/a 112 (7503) (7391)
CiB (7301) 30 - (7271)
Head Office, Treasury and other operations (2822) (183) - (3005)
Other expenses
RBB (579) - 579 -
Product Solutions Cluster n/a - (113) (113)
Everyday Banking n/a - (415) (415)
Relationship Banking n/a - (51) (51)
cB (249) (2) - (251)
Head Office, Treasury and other operations (694) 2 - (692)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1.19 Reporting changes overview(continued)
1.19.3 Changes toreportable segments and business portfolios (continued)

b.The followingre-allocations occurred withintotal income:

i Revenue received from Islamic Bankingin Everyday Banking was aligned to Bank’s accounting policyand therefore eliminated the adjustment
required in Head Office.

ii. Group Treasury refined its allocation methodology to better reflect the underlying performance of the relevant business units which resulted
in thereallocation of net interest income.

2021
As previously Business portfolio Rezg;::r:: Restated
reported changes changes

Statement of comprehensive income Rm Rm Rm Rm
Totalincome
RBB 43849 - (43 849) -
Product Solutions Cluster n/a 197 9107 9304
Everyday Banking n/a 439 21516 21955
Relationship Banking n/a 447 13226 13673
CiB 12854 782 - 13636
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 1765 (1865) - (100)

c. Portions of the Commercial Property Finance portfolio were moved between Relationship Banking and CIB to align with client portfolio
segmentation.

2021

As previously Business portfolio Reportable

segment Restated
reported changes

changes
Loans and advances to customers Rm Rm Rm Rm
RBB 543698 (109) (543 589) -
Product solutions n/a 368 352 368 352
Everyday banking n/a 49672 49672
Relationship Banking n/a 125565 125565
CiB 338008 109 - 338117
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.19 Reporting changes overview(continued)
1.19.3 Changes toreportable segments and business portfolios (continued)

d.Thereallocations as describedin atob above resulted in adjustments to the related intercompany balances. These balances are included in “other
assets” and “other liabilities” the impact of which is shown in the table below.

2021
. Fair value
As previously Busmes:.s Reportable correction of
reported ['):?]r;:c;’lelz iii:;g; CLNs (refer to Restated
note 1.19.2)
Statement of financial position Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Otherassets
RBB 436 416 - (436 416) - -
Product Solutions Cluster n/a 0 29517 - 29517
Everyday Banking n/a 974 291727 - 292701
Relationship Banking n/a 947 115172 - 116119
ciB 404719 (453) - (1293) 402973
Head Office, Treasury and other operations (542 400) (1475) - - (543 875)
Other liabilities
RBB 541230 - (541 230) - -
Product Solutions Cluster n/a 495 409774 - 410269
Everyday Banking n/a (411) 75865 - 75454
Relationship Banking n/a 145 55591 - 55736
cB 407 499 (1325) - - 406174
Head Office, Treasury and other operations (801328) 1096 - - (800 231)

1.20 Newstandards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to existing standards have been issued but not yet effected for the reporting period and have not
been applied in preparing these annual financial statements. Unlessspecifically noted to the contrary, these amendments are not expected to have
a material impact on the Bank.

1.20.1 Amendments to I1AS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

The amendments aim to help companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain
settlement date should be classified as current (due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. The amendments include
clarifyingthe classification requirements for debt a company might settle by convertingitintoequity. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginningon or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted.

1.20.2 Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changesin Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is
important because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively only to future transactions and other future events, while changes in
accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginningon or after 1 January 2023.

1.20.3 Amendments tolAS 1and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies. Further amendments
explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. Examples of when an accounting policyis likely to be material are added. To support
the amendment, to explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’described in IFRS Practice Statement 2. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.20 Newstandards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

1.20.4 Amendments toIAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify that theinitial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of deductible and taxable
temporary differences arise on initial recognition. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,
with earlier application permitted.

1.20.5 IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts replacesIFRS 4, Insurance Contracts and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The Bank
has not elected for early adoption of the standard.

1.20.6 Amendments to IFRS 16 sale and leaseback with variable payments that do not depend on anindex or rate
The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilitiesarising from a leasebackin a way that it doesn’t recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that related totheright of use it retains. The new requirementsdo not prevent a seller-lessee from recognising in prdfit
or loss, any gain or loss relatingto the partial or full termination of a lease. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024.
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Rm
2. Cash, cashbalances and balances with central banks
Balances with the SARB 31103 27 684
Coins and bank notes 6241 6067
37344 33751

The minimum reserve balance held in cashwith the SARB and other central banks across the different jurisdictions is determined in
accordance with the regulatory terms applicable to the respective countries. The portion of the balance that can be utilised by the Bankiis
included in “Cash and cash equivalents” (note 45) and iscalculated by applyingthe percentage thatisaccessible tothe bankin accordance

with the respective regulatory terms for each jurisdiction.

Bank
2021
BE

3. Investmentsecurities

Government bonds 87924 75007
Listed equity instruments 1414 1158
Other debt securities 7 312 9100
Treasury bills 30680 29936
Unlisted equity and hybridinstruments 1110 1065
Gross investment securities 128440 116 266
Impairment losses (1) (1)
128439 116 265

Government bonds of RO (2021:R8 281m) which relate to repurchase agreements have been pledged with the SARB and other central

banks. The terms of the pledges are usual and customary to such agreements.

Impairment losses relate to expected credit losses raised on investment securities held at amortised cost. Expected credit losses of R184m

(2021:R222m) has been recognised on investment securities at FVOCI.
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Bank
2021
Rm

4. Tradingand hedging portfolio assets

Commodities 614 642
Debt instruments® 83 845 67 424
Derivative assets (refer tonote 48.3 and 48.4) 57076 55701
Commodity derivatives 188 920
Credit derivatives 224 142
Equity derivatives 8779 8581
Foreign exchange derivatives 16 394 10090
Interest rate derivatives® 31491 35968
Equity instruments 1201 3877
Money market assets 13335 14332
Total trading portfolio assets 156 071 141976
Hedgingportfolio assets (refer to note 48.3)* 4972 3696
161043 145672

Trading portfolioassets with carrying values of R42 945 (2021: R37 907m) and R1 800m (2021: R2 810m) were pledged as security for
repurchase and scrip lending agreements respectively. These assetsare pledged for the duration of the respective agreements. The terms

of the pledges are usual and customary to such agreements.

Included within debt instrumentsare financial assetstraded in the debt capital market with an original maturity of more than one year

such as government and corporate bonds.

Included within money market assets are highly liquid financial assets with an original maturity of one year or less, such as floating rate
notes, negotiable certificates of deposit, treasury bills, promissory notes, commercial paperand bankers’ acceptance notes.

These amounts have been restated, refer toreporting changes overview note 1.19.
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

2021
Rm

5. Otherassets
Accounts receivable! 10 864 8595
Prepayments® 1790 1676
Deferred costs 166 154
Inventories 4 50
Cost 4 50
Write-down - -
Retirement benefit fund surplus (refer to note 34) 466 465
Settlement accounts 3973 5797
Gross other assets 17 263 16737
Impairment losses 0 0
17 263 16 737

For Accounts receivable and Settlement accounts, the ECL impact for isimmaterial due to the short term nature of these items.

*Accounts receivable and prepayments, which were previously disclosed as a single line item, have been disclosed separately due to their distinct nature.
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Bank
2021
Rm
6. Non-currentassets heldforsale
Non-currentassets held for sale
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 57 136
Disposals (34) (93)
Impairment of an NCAHFS (refer to 29) - (1)
Transfer from property and equipment (referto note 10) 67 15
Balance at the end of the reporting period 90 57

The following movements in non-current assets occurred during the current financial reporting period:

o Head Office, Treasury and other operationsdisposed of property and equipment with a carryingamount of R34m.

o Head Office, Treasury and other operationstransferred propertyand equipment with a carryingamount of R67m to non-current
assets held for sale.

The following movements in non-current assets held for sale occurred during the previous financial reporting period:

o  Head Office, Treasury and other operationsdisposed of property and equipment with a carryingamount of R93m.

o Head Office, Treasury and other operationstransferred propertyand equipment with a carryingamount of RL5m to non-current
assets held for sale and a R1mimpairment was recognised on remaining assets previously classified as held for sale.
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Bank
Rm
7. Loansandadvances

Corporate overdrafts and specialised finance loans 23428 20479
Credit cards 38169 34694
Foreign currency loans 54477 37953
Instalment credit agreements 119 356 109 457
Finance leasereceivables (refer tonote 7.1) 3311 3529
Loans to associates and joint ventures 25163 25909
Microloans 4897 3448
Mortgages 380611 353272
Other advances 15742 12700
Overdrafts 49520 43542
Overnight finance 25193 26 579
Personal and term loans 64424 58 950
Preference shares 30200 27 450
Reverse repurchase agreements (Carries) 44 490 60208
Wholesale overdrafts 110 440 95618
Gross loans and advances to customers!® 989421 913788
Gross loans and advances to banks* 76572 50424
Gross loans and advances 1065993 964 212
Impairment losses (33473) (31437)
Impairment losses for loans and advances to customers (33 445) (31387)
Impairment losses for loans and advances to banks (28) (50)
Net loans and advances 1032520 932 775

The Bank has securitised certain loansand advances to customers, the total value of these securitised assets is R8 466m (2021:R 6
933m). Included above are collateralised loansof R3,418m (2021: R 1 673m) relating to securities borrowed.

The amount pledged is the required threshold of cash collateral based on specific arrangements with different counterparties. Exposures
arereviewed on a periodic basis, whereby these thresholdsare adjusted accordingly. The financial assetsare pledged under termsthat are
usual and customary to such arrangements.

Other advances include working capital solutions and collateralised loans.

Included in both gross loans and advances to customers, and in the total allowance for impairment losses, is accrued interest in suspense
of R3796m(2021:R3277m).

Included above in Gross loans and advances to banks are reverse repurchase agreements of R34 774m(2021:R 19 453m) and other
collateralised loans of R4,180m (2021:R 24m) relating to securities borrowed.

YIncluded in this amount are credit linked notes of which R2 351m is relating to loans and customers and R1 097 mto loans and advances to banks.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |69



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

7. Loans and advances (continued)

Bank
2022 2021
Unearned
finance Unearned
Gross advances (o BTN S T AEN T Gross advances financecharges  Netadvances
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
7.1. Finance leasereceivables
Maturity analysis
Less than one year 340 (25) 315 169 (15) 154
Between one and five years 3116 (231) 2 885 2876 (176) 2700
More than five years 120 (9) 111 817 (142) 675
Gross carryingamount 3576 (265) 3311 3862 (333) 3529
The Bank enters intofinance lease contractsin respect of motor vehicles, equipment and medical equipment.
The majority of these agreements are denominated in South AfricanRand and the average term entered intois five years.
Under the terms of the agreements, nocontingent rentals are payable.
Unguaranteed residual values of finance leases are R1 872m (2021: R1 781m).
2021
Rm
8. Loans to Group companies
Gross loans to Group companies 73452 76 979
Impairment losses (249) (246)
73203 76733
Refer to Related parties, Note 38 for further detailson the gross loans to Group companies.
Bank
2021
Rm
9. Investmentsinassociatesandjointventures
Unlisted investments 1725 1593
9.1 Movement incarrying value of associates and joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1593 1601
Share of current reporting period post-tax results 132 132
Share of current reporting period results before taxation 181 183
Taxation on reporting period results (49) (51)
Disposal of investment - (11)
Dividends received = (140)
Reversal of impairments (refer to note 29) = 11
Balance at theend of thereporting period 1725 1593
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9.2 Associates and joint ventures
Thefollowinginformation is presented inrespectof associates andjoint ventures accounted for under the equity method:

Associates Joint ventures
2021 2021
Bank share Rm Rm
Post-tax profit from continuing operations 33 21 99 111
Total comprehensive income 33 21 99 111
Bank

Rm

9.3 Analysis of carrying value of associates and joint ventures accounted for under the equity

method
Unlisted investments
Shares at cost less impairments 89 89
Share of post-acquisition reserves 1519 1387
Additional capital contribution 117 117
1725 1593
Bank

2022 2021

Joint Joint
Associates ventures Associates ventures Total

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

9.4 Carrying value of associates and joint

ventures
Equity accounted 456 1269 1725 422 1171 1593
Designated at fair value through profit or loss - 209 209 - 209 209

456 1478 1934 422 1380 1802

Theinvestments in associates and joint ventures designated at fair value through profitand loss are presented within unlisted equity
instruments under ‘Investment Securities’ (note 3).

Refer to note 38.5 for additional disclosure of the Bank’s investments inassociates and joint ventures.

Bank
2022 2021
Accumulated Accumulated
depreciation depreciation
and/or i and/or Carrying
impairments Cost impairments value
Rm Rm Rm Rm

10. Property and equipment

Computer equipment 6 315 (4 790) 1525 6726 (5098) 1628
Freehold property 4836 (297) 4539 4713 (308) 4 405
Furniture and other equipment 8936 (5513) 3423 8636 (4713) 3923
Motor vehicles 13 (5) 8 6 (3) 3
Right of use assets (refer tonote 33) 5808 (3617) 2191 5064 (2641) 2423

25908 (14 222) 11 686 25145 (12 763) 12 382
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10. Property and equipment(continued)
Bank

2022

Transfer
to non-

current Foreign
assets exchange

Opening held for movemen Depre-
Reconciliation of property and balance Additions Disposals Transfers® sale ciation
equipment Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer equipment 1628 683 (31) - - - (706) (49) 1525
Freehold property? 4405 395 (24) (136) (65) = 9) (27) 4539
Furniture and other equipment 527 (7) 136 (2) - (994) (160)
3923 3423
Motor vehicles 3 7 - - - - (2) - 8
Right of use assets 2423 749 - - - - (863) (118) 2191
12 382 2361 (62) = (67) = (2574) (354) 11686
Note 33 6 28 29
2021
Transfer
to non-

current  Foreign
assets exchange

Opening held for movemen Depre- Impair- Closing
Reconciliation of property and balance Additions Disposals Transfers sale ts ciation ment  balance
equipment Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer equipment 2294 417 (32) (16) - - (980) (55) 1628
Freehold property 4538 293 (14) (388) (15) - (9) - 4405
Furniture and other equipment
4561 173 (30) 404 - - (1048) (137) 3923
Motor vehicles 1 3 - - - - (1) - 3
Right of use assets 2529 769 - - - - (875) - 2423
13923 1655 (76) - (15) - (2913) (192) 12382
Note 33 6 28 29

Included in the above additions is R394m (2021: R283m) thatrelates to expenditure capitalised to the cost of property and equipment
duringthe course of its construction.

Assets under construction relating to computer equipment and furniture and other equipment was brought into use during the reporting
period R136m (2021:388m).

Certain property and equipment was transferred to non-current assets held for sale due toa change in the use of the assets.R67m (2021:
R15m)

1 An amount of R136m was transferred from freehold property to furniture and other equipment these transfers consist of transfers to/from asset categories and divisions

2 Assets under construction of projects are mapped to freehold which isthen moved to different assets classes.
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Bank
2022 2021
Accumulated Accumulated
amortisation amortisation
and/or i and/or Carrying
Cost impairments Cost impairments amount
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

11. Goodwill andintangible assets

Computer software development costs 16 345 (5208) 11137 14 358 (4072) 10286
Goodwill 149 (37) 112 149 (37) 112
Other 30 (24) 6 30 (22) 8
16 524 (5269) 11 255 14 537 (4131) 10406

Bank

Additions
through
Opening business Impairment
Reconciliation of goodwilland balance Additions combinations Disposals Amortisation charge Transfers
intangible assets Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer software development costs 10 286 3351 - - (2348) (237) 85 11137
Goodwill 112 - - - - - - 112
Other 8 - - - (2) - - 6
10406 3351 - - (2350) (237) 85 11255
Note 28 29
2021
Additions
through
Opening business Impairment Closing
Reconciliation of goodwilland balance Additions combinations Disposals Amortisation charge Transfers balance
intangible assets Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer software development costs 9489 3172 - (10) (2221) (144) - 10286
Goodwill 112 - - - - - - 112
Other 25 - - (11) (6) - - 8
9626 3172 - (21) (2227) (144) - 10406
Note 28 29

The majority of computer software development costs were internally generated. Included in computer software development costsis R4 157m
(2021:R4 135m) relating toassets under construction which isnot yet amortised, thisincludes opening balance and any movements to date.

R2 629m(2021:R1 531m) of assets under construction relating to computer software was brought intouse duringthe reporting period.

Included in “Other” intangible assets are brandsand licences.
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Bank
2021
Rm
11. Goodwill andintangible assets (continued)
Composition of goodwill
Absa Vehicle and Management Solutions Proprietary Limited 112 112
112 112
Bank
2021
Rm
12. Deferredtax
12.1 Reconciliation of net deferred tax (asset)/liability

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (3 242) (2022)

Deferred tax on amounts charged directly to other comprehensive income and equity (1517) (1376)

Charge to profit and loss (refer to note 31) 24 117

Tax effect of translation and other differences 19 39

Balance at the end of thereporting period (4716) (3242)

12.2 Deferredtax(asset)/liability

Tax effects of temporary differences between tax and book value for:

Deferred tax liability 23 19
Prepayments, accruals and other provisions 21 19
Impairment of loans and advances 2 -

Deferred tax asset (4 739) (3261)
Prepayments, accruals and other provisions (1126) (1178)
Capital allowances 1233 1122
Cash flow hedge and financial assetsat fair value through other comprehensive income reserve (1183) 122
Own credit risk (174) (122)
Impairment of loans and advances (3 020) (2966)
Lease and rental debtor allowances (175) (130)
Property allowances 257 257
Retirement benefit fund asset and liabilities 28 64
Fair value adjustments on financial instruments (147) (178)
Share-based payments (432) (252)

Net deferred tax (asset) (4716) (3242)

Future taxrelief

The Group has estimated tax losses of R0.9m (2021:R9.4m) which are available for set-off against future taxable income. The assessed
losses in Absa Bank Mozambique expire after five years of origination. The Group has actual losses that have not been recognised of R0.9m

(2021:R9.4m).
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Bank
2021
Rm

13. Tradingandhedging portfolioliabilities

Derivative liabilities (refer to notes 48.3 and 48.4) 54 550 46 957
Commodity derivatives 117 824
Credit derivatives 260 93
Equity derivatives 4678 2682
Foreign exchange derivatives 16 947 11490
Interest rate derivatives* 32548 31868
Short positions 36 847 21146
Total trading portfolioliabilities 91397 68103
Hedging portfolioliabilities (refer to note 48.3)* 2237 2910
93634 71013

These amounts have been restated, refer toreporting changes overview note 1.19.
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Bank
Rm
14. Otherliabilities

Accruals 1910 1993
Audit fee accrual 154 130
Cash-settled share-based payment liability (refertonote 46 ) 50 94
Creditors 10460 8542
Deferred income 390 260
Lease liabilities 2858 3006
Settlement balances 8171 21809
23993 35834
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Bank

Undrawn
contractually

Staff bonuses committed and

and incentive Sundry guarantees

provisions provisions provision
Rm

15. Provisions

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 2147 1065 735 3947
Additions 2371 534 - 2905
Amounts used (2026) (619) - (2 645)
Reversals (143) (91) - (234)

Movement in provisions for financial guarantees, undrawn committed
facilities and letters of credit (refer to note 52)

Balance at the end of the reporting period 2349 889 813 4051

- - 78 78

Provisionshavebeenraised onfinancial guarantees, lettersof creditand undrawn committed facilities,whichisinlinewith therequirements
of IFRS 9 (refer tonote 52.2 for detailed reconciliations of the expected credit losses).

Provisions expected tobe recovered or settled within 12 monthsafter the reporting date amount toR2 770m (2021: R2 443m).

Sundry provisions include amounts with respect to fraud cases, litigation and claims.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |77



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
B
16. Deposits
Customers
Call deposits 88501 90398
Cheque account deposits 236319 229531
Credit card deposits 2142 2137
Fixed deposits 222001 210135
Foreign currency deposits 41388 33429
Notice deposits 67 562 70148
Other deposits 871 935
Repurchase agreements 19071 21863
Savings and transmission deposits 236768 225300
Total deposits due to customers 914 623 883876
Banks
Call deposits 2561 9322
Fixed deposits 28914 12957
Foreign currency deposits 19 357 12928
Other deposits 2447 2871
Repurchase agreements 47 218 51667
Savings and transmission deposits 503 500
Total deposits due to banks 101 000 90 245
Total deposits 1015623 974121

‘Other deposits’ due to customers include deposits on structured deals and unclaimed deposits. ‘Other deposits’ from banks consist mainly of
Vostro’ balances.

Bank
Restated
2021
BE

17. Debtsecuritiesinissue

Commercial paper 4802 1913
Credit linked notes* 19734 13865
Floating rate notes 51722 34693
Negotiable certificates of deposit 85660 36117
Other 2646 2480
Promissory notes 2 2
Senior notes 38608 38100
Structured notes and bonds 101 101
203 275 127 271

* These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19.
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Bank
2021
Rm
18. Borrowed funds
Subordinated callable notes issued by Absa Bank Limited
Interest rate Final maturity date Note
Consumer Price Index linked notes fixed at 5.50% 7 December 2028 i 1500 1500
11.81% 3 September 2027 i - 737
Three-month JIBAR + 2.13% 17 May 2030 i 2676 2676
Three-month JIBAR + 2.40% 11 April 2029 iv 1580 1580
Three-month JIBAR + 2.45% 29 November 2028 v 1500 1500
Three-month JIBAR + 3.60% 3 September 2027 vi - 30
Three-month JIBAR + 3.78% 17 March 2027 vii - 642
Three-month JIBAR + 3.85% 25 May 2027 viii - 500
Three-month JIBAR + 3.85% 14 August 2029 ix 390 390
Three-month JIBAR + 3.15% 30 September 2027 X - 295
Three-month JIBAR + 3.45% 29 September 2029 Xi 1014 1014
Three-month JIBAR + 2.10% 16 September 2032 xii 1916 -
Foreign currency denominated notes
USD 6.25% 25 April 2028 xiii 4952 4952
USD 6.375% n/a Xiv 6866 6 866
Other
Accrued interest 1400 1195
Fair value adjustments (940) 60
Foreign exchange movements 3428 2522
26 282 26 459
Bank

2021
Rm

18. Reconciliation of borrowed funds

OpeningBalance 26 459 20621
Changes arising from cash movements: (3677) 4332
Borrowed fund issuances 1916 6866
Borrowed fund redemptions (2 204) (2381)
Interest paid (3389) (153)
Changes arising from non-cash movements: 3500 1506
Interest accrued 3594 244
Fair value adjustments (1 000) (358)
Foreign exchange movements 906 1620
Closing Balance 26 282 26 459

i.  The5.50% CPI linked notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 7 December 2023. Interest is paid semi-annually in
arrears on 7 June and 7 December of each year, provided that the last day of payment shallbe 7 December 2028. If Absa Bank Limited does
not exercise the redemption option, a coupon step up of 150 basis points(bps) shall apply.

ii.  Thell.81% fixed rate notes were redeemed in full on 3 September 2022.

iii.  Thethree-month JIBAR plus 2.13% floating rate notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 17 May 2025. Interest is
paid quarterly in arrears on 17 February, 17 May, 17 August and 17 November. Absa Bank Limited has the option to exercise the redemption
on any interest payment date after 17 May 2025.No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not exercise the
redemption option.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

18. Borrowed funds (continued)

The three-month JIBAR plus 2.40% floating rate notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 11 April 2024. Interest is
paid quarterly in arrears on 11 January, 11 April, 11 July and 11 October. Absa Bank Limited has the option to exercise the redemption on any
interest payment date after 11 April 2024. No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not exercise the redemption
option.

The three-month JIBAR plus 2.45% floating rate notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 29 November 2023.
Interest is paid quarterly inarrears on 28 February, 29 May, 29 August and 29 November. Absa Bank Limited has the option to exercise the
redemption on any interest payment date after 29 November 2023. No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not
exercise the redemption option.

The three-month JIBAR plus 3.60% floating rate notes were redeemed in full on 3 September 2022.
The three-month JIBAR plus 3.78% floating rate notes were redeemed in full on 17 March 2022.
The three-month JIBAR plus 3.85% floating rate notes were redeemed in full on 25 May 2022.

The three-month JIBAR plus 3.85% floating rate notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 14 August 2024. Interest
is paid quarterly in arrears on 14 February, 14 May, 14 August and 14 November. Absa Bank Limited has the option to exercise the redemption
on any interest payment date after 14 August 2024. No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not exercise the
redemption option.

The three-month JIBAR plus 3.15% floating rate notes were redeemed in full on 30 September2022.

The three-month JIBAR plus 3.45% floating rate notes may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited on 29 September 2024.
Interest is paid quarterly inarrears on 29 March, 29 June, 29 September and 29 December. Absa Bank Limited hasthe option to exercise the
redemption on any interest payment date after 29 September2024. No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not
exercise the redemption option.

The three-month JIBAR plus 2.10% floating rate with a nominalamount of R1.9bn may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited
on 16 September 2027.The interest is paid quarterly on 16 March, 16 June, 16 September and 16 December each year until the maturity date
with the first interest determination date being 12 September 2022. No step-up will apply on the coupon rate, should Absa Bank Limited not
exercise the redemption option.

The 6.25% fixed rate reset callable USD notes with a nominal amount of USD 400m may be redeemed in full at the option of Absa Bank
Limited on 25 April 2023. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on 25 Apriland 25 October of each year. Absa Bank Limited has the
option to exercise the redemption on 25 April 2023. If Absa Bank Limited does not exercise the redemption option from (and including) 25
April 2023, theinterestrate per annum will be equal tothe reset interest rate which shall be determined by the calculation agent on 27 April
2023.Thereset margin is 3.523% per annum.

The 6.375% fixed rate reset unsecured and perpetual notes with a nominal amount of USD 500m have no fixed redemption date. The notes
qualify as additional Tier 1 capital for the Bank. The Bank is obliged to pay interest on each Interest Payment Date unless: (a) it elects not to
pay therelevant interest amount on such Interest Payment Date in whole or in part and for any reason; (b) itisin breach of either (i) the
Capital Regulations or (ii) the Solvency Condition on the business day prior to such Interest Payment Date or would be in breach of the Capital
Regulations or the Solvency Condition if the relevantinterest amount were paid on such Interest Payment Date; or (c) at any time the
Prudential Authority imposes a mandatory prohibition on the payment by the Issuer of such interestamount. The interest is payable semi-
annually in arrears on 27 May and 27 November each year, commencingon 27 November 2021. The reset dates are every 5 years. The
interest rateis 6.375% from the issue date to (but excluding) the first reset date, 27 November 2026. Thereafter, the interest rate will be
reset to an interest applicable tothe relevant reset period. The terms of the Additional Tier 1 capital notes include a regulatory requirement
which provides for the write off,in whole or in part, in the case of a disqualifying event. In addition, interest payments are mandatorily
payableif, for any reason, the instrument no longer meets the criteria of AT1 Capital interms of Regulation 38(11).

Notes i is listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange Debt Market.
Note ii toxiv have been issued to Absa Group Limited.

In accordance with its memorandum of incorporation, the borrowing powers of Absa Bank Limited are unlimited.
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Bank
2021
Rm
19. Share capital and premium
19.1 Ordinarysharecapital
Authorised
320000000 (2021:320 000 000) ordinary shares of R1.00 each 320 320
250000000 (2021: 250 000 000) 'A' ordinary shares of R0.01 each 3 3
323 323
Issued
302 609 369 (2021:302 609 369) ordinary sharesof R1.00 each 303 303
145691 959 (2021: 145 691 959) 'A' ordinary shares of R0.01 each 1 1
304 304
Total issued capital
Share capital 304 304
Share premium 36 879 36 879
37183 37183

19. Share capital and premium

19.1 Ordinary sharecapital

Authorised shares
There were no changes tothe authorised share capital during the current reporting period.

Unissued shares

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors, subjecttoa limit of 5% of issued ordinary share capital as at the reporting
date, in terms of a general authority toallot and issue them on such terms and conditions and at such times as they deem fit This
authority expires at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank.

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary shareswhen issued entitlesthe holderstodistribution of profit and the right to vote on any matter dobe decided by a vote of
holders of the ordinary shares of the Bank.

Shares issued
There were no shares issued during the currentand prior reporting periods. All shares issued by the Bank were paid in full.

Bank
2021
Rm
19.2 Preference share capitaland premium
Authorised
30000000 (2021:30 000 000) non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each 1 1
Issued
4944839 (2021:4 944 839) non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each 1 1
Total issued capital
Share capital 1 1
Share premium 4643 4643
4 644 4 644

The preference shares have a dividend rate of 70% of the prime overdraft lending rate. The holdersof such shares shall not be entitled to
votingrights unless a declared preference dividend remainsin arrears and unpaid after six months from the due date thereof, or a
resolution is proposed by the Company which directly affectsthe rightsattracted tothe preference sharesor the interestof the holders
thereof.
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19.3

Directors’interestsin Absa Bank Limited preference shares

As at thereportingdate, nodirector held any preference shares of Absa Bank Limited.

Bank
2021
Rm
19.4 Additional tier 1 capital
Subordinated Callable notes issued by Absa Bank Limited
Interest rate Date of issue
Three-month JIBAR + 5.65% 11 September 2017 - 1500
Three-month JIBAR + 4.75% 9 October 2018 1241 1241
Three-month JIBAR + 4.50% 28 May 2019 1678 1678
Three-month JIBAR + 4.25% 5 December 2019 1376 1376
Three-month JIBAR + 4.55% 26 October 2020 1209 1209
Three-month JIBAR + 3.58% 15 November 2022 1999 -
7503 7 004

20.
20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.7

The Additional Tier1 capital notes represent perpetual, subordinated instruments redeemable in full at the option of Absa Bank Limited
(theissuer) on 10 October 2023,28 November 2024, 5 June 2025, 27 October 2025and 16 November 2027 subject to regulatory approval.
AT1’s that wereissued on 11 September 2017 were redeemed on 12 September 2022. These instruments include a write-off provision
which is required under Basel Ill. This provision is triggered by the Prudential Authorityand shall be instituted at the earlier of (i) a decision
that a write-off, without which the Issuer would become non-viable, is necessary; or (ii) a decision to make a public sector injection of
capital, or equivalent support, without which the Issuer would have become non-viable. In addition, the Additional Tier 1 Notes do not
have a contractual obligation to pay interest. Accordingly, the instrumentsare classified as equity instruments.

Other reserves

Fair value through other comprehensive incomereserve

The fair value reserve comprises only the cumulative net change in the fairvalue of debt instruments measured at FVOCI, until such time as
they are derecognised. Upon derecognition of debt instruments at FVOCI, the cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income
is released to profit or loss. Since the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity instruments designated as at FVOCI is not recycled
to profit or loss upon derecognition, the Bank recognises the cumulative net change in fairvalue in retained earnings.

Cashflow hedgingreserve
The cash flow hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactionsthat have not yet occurred.

Foreign currency translation reserve
Thetranslation reserve comprises all foreign currency differencesarising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations.

Capitalreserve
The capital reserve arose on the amalgamation of the founding banks of Absa Bank Limited.

Share-based payment reserve

Thereserve comprises the creditto equity for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in terms of IFRS 2. The standard
requires that the expense be charged tothe profit andloss component of the statement of comprehensive income, while a credit needs
to beraised against equity over the vesting period (i.e. the period between the allocation date and the date on which employees will
become entitled totheir options). When optionsare exercised or if the options lapse after vesting, the reserve related to the specific options
is transferred to retained earnings. If the options lapse before vesting, the related reserve is reversed through the profit and loss component
of the statement of comprehensive income.

Associates’ and joint ventures’ reserve
The associates’and joint ventures’ reserve comprises the Bank’s share of its associates’ and/or joint ventures’ reserves.

Retained earnings

Theretained earnings comprises of the cumulative total comprehensive income recognised from inception (reduced by any amounts
transferred to a separate reserve), reduced by dividends paid to date and any total comprehensive income relating to disposed
subsidiaries andincluding changes in OCl with respect to the following:

o  movement in the fair value of equity instruments measured at FVOCI;

o  movement in own credit riskon liabilities designated at FVTPL;
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o movement in the actuarial valuation of retirement benefitfund assetsand liabilities; and

o direct shareholdercontributions.

Bank
2021
Rm
21. Interestandsimilarincome
Interest and similar income is earned from:
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - 2
Interest on hedginginstruments 1297 2270
Investment securities 10002 7993
Loans and advances 76910 60331
Loans and advances to customers 74 453 58 460
Corporate overdrafts and specialised finance loans 1542 961
Credit cards 4945 4021
Foreign currency loans 1701 1059
Instalment credit agreements and finance lease receivables 10842 8627
Loans toassociates and joint ventures 1720 1376
Microloans 668 432
Mortgages 27013 21455
Other advances 1178 917
Overdrafts 4167 3614
Overnight finance 1372 964
Personal and term loans 9044 7544
Preference shares 2073 1608
Reverse repurchase agreements 13 8
Wholesale overdrafts 8175 5874
Loans and advances to banks 2457 1871
Other interest 960 1548
89169 72144
Classification of interest and similar income
Interest on hedginginstruments 1297 2270
Cash flow hedges (refer to note 48.6) 2486 3985
Fair value hedges (1189) (1715)
Interest on financial assetsheld at amortised cost 81719 66148
Interest on financial assets measured at FVOCI 4240 2072
Interest on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1913 1654
Investment securities 114 156
Loans and advances 1799 1498
89169 72144

Interest income on ‘other advances’ includes items such as interest on factored debtors’ books. Other interest includes items such as overnight
interest on contracts for difference.
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Bank
2021
Rm
22. Interestexpenseandsimilarcharges
Interest expense and similar charges are paid on:
Borrowed funds 2928 2540
Debt securities in issue 9271 6271
Deposits 34 824 26 404
Deposits due to customers 33377 25 664
Call deposits 7 335 4961
Cheque account deposits 3978 3447
Credit card deposits 6 6
Fixed deposits 7813 6876
Foreign currency deposits 293 164
Notice deposits 3870 3118
Other deposits 974 605
Savings and transmission deposits 9108 6487
Deposits from banks 1447 740
Call deposits 144 186
Fixed deposits 1185 444
Foreign currency deposits 118 110
Interest on hedginginstruments (615) (1739)
Interest incurred on lease liabilities 231 243
Other 143 124
46 782 33843
Classification of interest expense and similar charges
Interest on hedginginstruments (615) (1739)
Cash flow hedges (refer to note 48.6) (150) (321)
Fair value hedges (465) (1418)
Interest on financial liabilities held at amortised cost 47 397 35582
46 782 33843

Other interest and similar charges include items such as overnight interest on contracts for difference.
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Bank
2021
Rm
23. Netfeeand commissionincome
Consultingand administration fees 318 343
Insurance commission received 663 631
Investment, markets execution and investment banking fees 404 391
Merchant income 2280 2101
Other 195 197
Transactional fees and commissions 17396 16 035
Cheque accounts 4 805 4681
Credit cards 2105 1820
Electronic banking 6336 5593
Other 2779 2439
Savings accounts 1371 1502
Trust and other fiduciary services 94 79
Portfolioand other management fees 93 77
Trust and estate income 1 2
Fee and commission income 21350 19777
Fee and commission expense (2018) (1704)
Brokerage fees (1) -
Cheque processing fees (5) (13)
Clearingand settlement charges (1102) (890)
Notification fees (251) (235)
Other (554) (446)
Valuation fees (105) (120)
19332 18073
The Bank provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to third parties, which
involves the Bank makingallocation and purchase and sale decisionsin relation toa wide range of financial instruments. Some of these
services involve the Bank accepting targets for benchmark levels of returns for the assets under the Bank's care.
Bank
2021
Rm
23.1 Included above are net fees and commissions linked to financial instruments not at fair
value
Cheque accounts 4805 4681
Credit cards 2105 1820
Electronic banking 6336 5593
Other 2779 2439
Savings accounts 1371 1502
Fee and commission income 17396 16 035
Fee and commission expense (1804) (1470)
15592 14 565

Credit cards include acquiringand issuing fees.
Other transactional fees and commissions income include service and credit-related fees of R874m (2021: R644m)and exchange

commission of R795m (2021: R680m).

The majority of these items are accounted for as revenue recognised at a pointin time in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 15.
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Bank
2021
Rm
24. Gains andlossesfrom bankingand trading activities
Net gains on investments 147 147
Equity instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 140 27
Unwind from reserves for debt instruments at FVOCI 7 120
Net trading result 1465 1585
Net tradingincome excluding the impact of hedge accounting 1658 2090
Ineffective portion of hedges (193) (505)
Cash flow hedges (refer to note 48.6.2) (208) (539)
Fair value hedges (refer to note 48.6.1) 15 34
Other losses (26) (10)
1586 1722
Net trading result and other gains on financial instruments
Net tradingincome excludingthe impact of hedge accounting 1658 2090
Gains/(Losses) on financial instruments designated at FVTPL 312 (2423)
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets designated at FVTPL 1484 (853)
Net losses on financial liabilities designated at FVTPL (1172) (1570)
Gains on financial instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 1346 4513
Other losses (26) (10)
Losses on financialinstruments designated at FVTPL (563) (769)
Gains on financial instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 537 759
Bank
2021
Rm
25. Gains andlossesfrominvestmentactivities
Other gains 3 1
Bank
2021
Rm
26. Otheroperatingincome
Foreign exchange differences, including amounts recycled from other comprehensive income (14) (3)
Income arising from contracts with customers® 27 41
Income from maintenance contracts 27 37
Profit on sale of repossessed properties - 4
Gross sales 8 18
Cost of sales (8) (14)
Insurance proceeds received related to property and equipment? 126 96
Profit on disposal of property and equipment* 2 (2)
Rental income 9 10
Sundry income® 616 253
766 395

! Line items not included within the scope of IFRS 15 have been removed from “Revenue arising from contracts with customers” and have been separately disclosed within
this note. Revenue arising from contracts with customers was previously reported with the value of R137m and this has now been amended to R48m as result of the

above.

2Insurance proceeds of R126m was received during the current financial year for damaged sustained to property and equipment due to the KZN riots that took place.

3Sundry income includes profit on disposal of non-core assets and non-interest income.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |86




DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Rm
27. Creditimpairment charges

Impairment losses raised during the reporting period 8960 6603
Stage 1 expected losses (1 281) (1727)
Stage 2 expected losses 1950 (171)
Stage 3 expected losses 8291 8501
Losses on modifications 488 365
Recoveries of loans and advances previously written off (761) (573)
8687 6395

Charge to the statement of comprehensive incomeby 2021

marketsegment Rm

Comprising:

Credit impairment charges raised 8960 6603
Loans and advances to customers and undrawn facilities 8920 6121
Loans and advances to banks (23) 28
Other financial instruments subject to credit impairment (52) 223
Guarantees and letters of credit 115 231

Recoveries of financial instruments subjectto credit impairment previously written off (761) (573)

Modifications 488 365

Total charge to the statement of comprehensive income 8 687 6395

Bank
Rm
28. Operatingexpenses

Administration fees 114 149

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer tonote 11) 2350 2227

Auditors’ remuneration 369 333
Audit fees - current reporting period 323 273
Audit fees — under provision 6 3
Audit-related fees 30 23
Other services 10 34

Cash transportation 988 1024

Depreciation (refer tonote 10) 2574 2913

Equipment costs 296 196

Maintenance 212 115

Rentals 84 81

Information technology 4397 4032

Marketing costs 1309 1006

Other 916 927

Printingand stationery 186 159

Professional fees 2452 1892

Property costs 1401 1480

Staff costs 18 908 18032
Bonuses 2361 2063
Deferred cash and share-based payments (refer to note 46) 603 514
Other 269 218
Salaries and current service costs on post-retirement benefit funds 15177 14911
Training costs 498 326

Straight line lease expenseson short term leases and low value assets 127 127

Telephone and postage 735 735

37122 35232

Audit-related fees include fees paid for assurance reports performed on behalf of various regulatory bodies. Professional fees include research and development costs

totaling R167m (2021: R193m).

‘Other’ includes fraud losses, travel, entertainment costs and recoveries from fellow subsidiaries.
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Bank
2021
Rm
29. Otherimpairments
Intangible assets (refer tonote 11)* 237 144
Investments in associates and joint ventures (refertonote 9) - (11)
Non-current asset held for sale (refer to note 6) - 1
Property and equipment (refer to note 10)? 354 192
591 326
Bank
2021
Rm
30. Indirecttaxation
Traininglevy 165 146
VAT net of input credits 1160 989
1325 1135

1The Group has impaired certain software assets totaling R237m (2021: R144m) for which the value in use is determined to be zero.

2Property and equipment amounting to R354m (2021: R192m) was impaired without a related transfer to non-current assets held for sale. Included in the R354m recognised during

2022, is the impairment of a right of use asset of RL17m, impairment on furniture and other equipment of R84m and an impairment of buildings of R27m due to the

underutilisation of the properties.
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Bank
2021
Rm
31. Taxationexpense
Current
Foreign and other taxation 161 172
South African current tax 4440 3967
South African current tax - previous reporting period (333) (117)
4268 4022
Deferred
Deferred tax (refer tonote 12) 24 117
Capital allowances 22 180
Expected creditlosses/allowances for loan losses (125) 255
Provisions 7) (270)
Retirement benefit/pension fund 87
Movements in prepayments, accruals and other provisions 62 115
Fair value and similar adjustments through profit and loss (153) (88)
Fair value and similar adjustments in relation to prior year 191 (30)
Share-based payments (53) (45)
4292 4139
Reconciliation between operating profit before income tax and the taxation expense
Operating profit before income tax 16481 15536
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures (refer to note 9) (132) (132)
16 349 15404
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 28% 4578 4313
Effect of different tax rates inother countries® 123 136
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes * 165 240
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets (11) -
Dividend income? (602) (475)
Non-taxable interest (170) (164)
Income not subject to tax (22) (14)
Non-taxable portion of capital gain (2) 79
Other 117 24
Effect of tax rate changes® 116 _
4292 4139

1This includes additional tax levies and general non-deductible expenses due to the application of in country tax legislation.

2During the budget speech presented on 23 February 2022, the Finance Minister announced that the South African corporate tax rate will be reduced from 28% to 27%,
effective for tax assessment years ending after 31 March 2023. This change was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and has therefore been reflected in the

measurement of the Bank’s deferred tax balances at 31 December 2022.
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Bank
2021
Gross Net
Rm Rm
32. Headline earnings
Headline earnings is determined as follows:
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Bank 11314 10573
Total headline earnings adjustment: 336 153
IFRS 5 - Gains and losses on disposal of non-current assets held for sale (refer
to 6) (20) (15) (20) (16)
IFRS 5 - Re-measurement of non-current assets held for sale (refer to 6) - - 1 1
IAS 16 - Loss/(profit) on disposal of property and equipment (referto 10) (2) - 2 -
IAS 16 and IAS 36 - Insurance recovery of property and equipment (refer to
note 26 and 29) (126) (92) (121) (87)
IAS 28 —Reversal of investments in associates and joint ventures (refer to note
29) - - (11) (11)
IAS 28 - Profit on disposal of associates and jointventures - - (1) (1)
IAS 36 — Impairment of property and equipment (refer to note 29) 354 254 217 157
IAS 36 — Impairment of intangible assets (refer to note 29) 237 185 144 110
IAS 40 - Profit on disposal of investment property (0) (0) - -
Changein tax rate - 4 _ -
Headline earnings/diluted headline earnings 11 650 10726
Headline earnings per ordinary share/diluted headline earnings per ordinary
share (cents) 2598.7 2392.6
The net amount is reflected after taxation and non-controlling interest.
Other non-core assets include assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets that are not core to the operations of the Bank.
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Bank
2021
Rm
33. Leases
Thefollowing amounts have been recognised in the statement of comprehensiveincome in respect
of leases in which the Bank is the lessee:
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets (refer to note 10) 863 875
Property 863 875
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer to note 22) 231 243
Expense related toshort-term leases 180 179
Expense related tolow-value assets 5 8
Variable lease payments 21 16
Right-of-use assets recognised in the statement of financial positionrelate to the following classes
of assets:
Right-of-use assets (refer tonote 10) 2191 2423
Property 2191 2423
Total additions to right-of-use assets recognised during the year (refer to note 10) 749 769
Total cash outflow included in the statement of cash flows related to leases 1215 1227
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities - contractual undiscounted cash flows:
Less than one year 1026 1026
Between oneand five years 2040 2093
More than five years 330 524
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3396 3643
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position (refer to note 14) 2858 3006

The Bank’s leases consist mostly of property leases including branches, head offices, ATM sites and other administrative buildings. None
of these leases are considered individuallysignificant to the Bank. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three to five years
although this differs dependingon the type of property. Some leases will include renewal options but these are generally renewalsat
market rates to be negotiated at the time of renewingthe contract. These rates will only beincludedin the lease liability onceitis
reasonably certain that the Bank will exercise the extension option. Most leases inthe Bank have fixed escalations.
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34. Retirementbenefitfundobligations

34.1 Absa Pension Fund

The Absa Pension Fund (the Fund) is governed by the Pension Funds Act of 1956, which requires that an actuarial valuation of the
Fund be carried out at least once every three years. The most recent statutory valuation of the Fund was effected on 31 March 2021
and confirmed that the Fund was in a sound financial position. Thisvaluation was in accordance with the Pension Funds Second
Amendment Act of 2001 (the PF Act).

The valuation has been performed usingthe projected unit creditmethod in respect of the defined benefit portion. The asset ceiling of
the Fund is limited to the Employer Surplus Account (ESA). According to the Fund rules and the PF Act, the ESA can be used for a
number of purposes including fundinga deficitin the Fund, enhancing benefits of the Fund or enablinga contribution holiday.

In terms of Section 7 of the PF Act, notwithstandingthe rules of a fund, every fund must have a board of trustees consisting of at least
four Board members, at least 50% of whom the members of the Fund have theright toelect. The objective of the board is todirect,
control and oversee the operations of a fund in accordance with the applicable laws and the rules of the Fund. In carrying out this
objective, the Board must take all reasonable steps to ensure that the interests of members in terms of the rules of the Fund and the
provisions of this Actare protected at all times that they act with due care, diligence and good faith; and avoid conflicts of interest. The
Board must act independentlyand with impartiality in respect of all members and beneficiaries. The members of the board have a
fiduciary duty to members and beneficiaries inrespect of accrued benefitsor any amount accrued to provide a benefit, as well as a
fiduciary duty tothe Fund, to ensure that The Fund is financially sound and is responsibly managed and governed inaccordance with
therules and the PF Act.

Therules of the Fund were amended in July 2015 toallow a retiring member who had joined the Fund before 1 July 2015 the choice to
receive either a conventional annuity or a livingannuity from the Fund (as was previously the case) or to purchase a pension from a
registered insurer (new option). Members joining the Fund on or after 1 July 2015 had the choice toreceive a livingannuity from the
Fund or to purchase a pension from a registered insurer.

Should aretiree elect a conventional annuity, the Bank is thereafter exposed tolongevity and other actuarial risk. The conventional
annuity is calculated based on the defined contribution plan assetsat the retirement date. The Bank is therefore not exposed toany
asset return risk prior tothe election of this option i.e, the retirement date. The classification rules within1AS 19 require that, where
the employer is exposed toany actuarial risk, the entire fund be classified as a defined benefitplan. The valuation of the option is
included in the defined benefitobligation. The assets and liabilities of the defined contribution active members are separately
presented. Pensioners who have elected toreceive a living annuity as well as members who joined the fund on/after 1 July 2015 have
been excluded from the IAS 19 disclosuresas at 31 December 2022 the employer is not exposed toany longevity or other actuarial risk
in respect of these members at this date.

The change in investment strategy implemented in the prior year (refer below) results in the assets of the Fund fully matching the
nature, term and cashflows of the pensions in payment. As a result, the Trustees approved a change to the rules of the Fund in
September 2022 to again allow all members an option, effective 1 January 2023, to purchase alivingannuity from the Fund,
regardless of their date of employment. This change to the rules does not have an impact on the net defined benefit recognized
as at 31 December 2022 but will increase the values disclosed for the defined contribution portion, from 1 January 2023.

Net defined benefit plans assets relating to these pensioners that have elected to receive a living annuity, amount to R4459.6m(2021:

R4 180m).
Bank
Absa Pension Fund

2021
Categories of the Fund
Defined benefit active members 11 13
Defined benefit deferred pensioners 1 1
Defined benefit pensioners 7131 8084
Defined contribution active members 16 969 18405
Defined contribution pensioners 2973 2963
Duration of the scheme - defined benefit(years) 7.7 8.3
Duration of the scheme - defined contribution (years) 18.3 189
Duration of the scheme - defined contribution option (years) - -
Expected contributions to the Fund for the next 12 months (Rm) 1,814.5 1,121.6
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Retirement benefit fund obligations (continued)
Absa Pension Fund (continued)

The benefits provided by the defined benefit portion of the Fund are based on a formula, takinginto account years of membershipand
remuneration levels. The benefits provided by the defined contribution portion of the Fund are determined by accumulated
contributions and return on investments.

While the Fund as a whole has been classified as a defined benefit fund for IAS 19 purposes, the defined contribution portion provides
its members with an asset-based return. The Bank has measured the liability for the defined contribution portion of the Fund at the fair
value of the assets upon which the benefits are based.

The Fund is financed by employer and employee contributions and investment income. Employer contributions in respect of the
defined benefit portion are based on actuarial advice. The expense or income recorded in profit or loss includes the current service
cost, interestincome on plan assets as well as interest expense on the defined benefit obligation and the irrecoverable surplus. It is
the Bank’s policy to ensure that The Fund is adequately funded to provide for the benefits due to members, and particularly to
ensure that any shortfall with regard to the defined benefit portion will be met by way of additional contributions.

During the prior year, the investment strategy of the Trustee Portfolio moved to a fully matching strategy with the objective of
matching theinvestment strategy for these assets to the nature, term and cashflows of the current pensions in payment, together
with the future targeted pensionincreases (as a percentage of inflation).

The abovementioned strategy is known as a Liability Driven Investment (LDI) strategy. The portion of the assets in the Trustee
Portfolio not invested in the liability matchingstrategy or reserve accounts are invested in growth assets to create some possible
upside for funding increases above the policy increase. The assets in theliability matching strategy will mainly be invested in South
African nominal and inflation-linked government bonds. This strategy aims to fully match the reasonable benefit expectations of
the pensioners to receive annual pension increases in line with the inflation target chosen by a pensioner at retirement.

Bank
2021
Rm
34.1.1 Reconciliation of the net defined benefit plan surplus

Reconciliation of the net surplus
Present value of funded obligations (30 341) (30870)
Defined benefit portion (7 582) (7 648)
Defined contribution portion (22 759) (23222)
Fair value of the plan assets 32790 33155
Defined benefit portion 10031 9933
Defined contribution portion 22759 23222
Funded status 2449 2285
Irrecoverable surplus (effect of asset ceiling) (1983) (1820)
Net surplus arising from the defined benefit obligation 466 465

34.1.2 Reconciliation of movement in the funded obligation

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (30870) (26 100)
Defined benefit portion (7 648) (7 319)
Defined contribution portion (23 222) (18 781)
Reconciling items - defined benefit portion 66 (329)
Actuarial gains/(losses)- finandial 516 (11)
Actuarial gains - experience adjustments 74 233
Benefits paid 794 748
Current service costs (13) (13)
Past service costs - (54)
Interest expense (805) (755)
Defined contribution member transfers (500) (477)
Reconciling items - defined contribution portion 463 (4 441)
Increase in obligation linked to planassets return (2 086) (6562)
Employer contributions (636) (657)
Employee contributions (506) (524)
Disbursements and member transfers 3691 3302
Balance at the end of thereporting period (30 341) (30870)
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Bank
2021
Rm
34. Retirementbenefitfundobligations(continued)
34.1 Absa Pension Fund (continued)
34.1.3 Reconciliation of movement in the planassets
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 33155 27124
Defined benefit portion 9933 8343
Defined contribution portion 23222 18781
Reconciling items - defined benefit portion 98 1590
Benefits paid (794) (748)
Employer contributions 2 1
Interest income 1048 862
Return on plan assets in excess of interest (658) 998
Defined contribution member transfers 500 477
Reconciling items - defined contribution portion (463) 4441
Return on plan assets 2085 6562
Employer contributions 637 657
Employee contributions 506 524
Disbursements and member transfers (3691) (3302)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 32790 33155
34.1.4 Reconciliation of movement in the irrecoverable surplus
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (1820) (631)
Interest on irrecoverable surplus (195) (67)
Changes in theirrecoverable surplus in excess of interest 32 (1122)
Balance at the end of the reporting period (1983) (1820)

Debt
instruments

Rm

Bank
2022

Fair value of plan assets

Equity
instruments

Rm

Other
instruments

Rm

34.1.5 Nature of the pension fund assets
Plan assets relating tothe defined benefit plan

Defined Benefit Portion 8396 1227 408 10031
Quoted fair value 8 055 1202 103 9360
Unquoted fair value 233 5 272 510
Own transferable financial instruments 108 20 1 129
Investments in listed property entities/ funds - - 32 32

Defined Contribution Portion 7890 14132 737 22759
Quoted fair value 5497 13863 352 19712
Unquoted fair value 2221 5 (18) 2208
Own transferable financial instruments 172 264 2 438
Investments in listed propertyentities/ funds - - 401 401

16 286 15359 1145 32790
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2021
Fair value of plan assets
Debt Equity Other
instruments instruments instruments Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm
34. Retirementbenefitfundobligations(continued)
34.1 Absa Pension Fund (continued)
34.1.5 Nature of the pension fund assets
Defined Benefit Portion 8230 1293 410 9933
Quoted fair value 7762 1272 89 9123
Unquoted fair value 367 5 272 644
Own transferable financial instruments 101 16 2 119
Investments in listed propertyentities/ funds - - 47 47
Defined Contribution Portion 6807 15277 1138 23222
Quoted fair value 6091 15099 401 21591
Unquoted fair value 577 4 300 881
Own transferable financial instruments 139 174 - 313
Investments in listed propertyentities/ funds - - 437 437
15037 16570 1548 33155
Bank
2021
Rm
34.1.6 Movements in the defined benefit plan presented in the statement of comprehensive
income
Recognised in profit or loss:
Net interest income (48) (42)
Current service cost 13 13
Past service cost - 54
(35) 25
Recognised in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gains)/ losses— financial (516) 11
Actuarial adjustments (gains) - experience (74) (233)
Return on plan assets in excess of interest 658 (998)
Changes in theirrecoverable surplus in excess of interest (32) 1122
36 (98)
34.1.7 Actuarial assumptions used:
Discount rate (%) p.a. 11.9 10.7
Inflation rate (%) p.a. 6.4 6.0
Expected rate on the plan assets (%) p.a. 10.4 10.0
Future salary increases (%) p.a. 7.4 7.0
Average life expectancy inyears of pensionerretiring at 60 — male 22.0 21.9
Average life expectancy inyears of pensionerretiring at 60 — female 26.9 26.8
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Bank

Increase/

Reasonable (decrease) on
possible defined benefit
change obligation
Rm

34. Retirementbenefitfund obligations (continued)
34.1 AbsaPension Fund (continued)

34.1.8 Sensitivity analysis of the significant actuarial assumptions

Increasein discount rate (%) 0.5% 246
Increasein inflation (%) 0.5% 279
Increasein life expectancy (years) 1 203
2021
Increase/

(decrease) on
Reasonable defined benefit

possible change obligation

Rm

Increasein discount rate (%) 0.5% (296)
Increasein inflation (%) 0.5% 276
Increasein life expectancy (years) 1 219

34.1.9 Sensitivity analysis of the significant assumptions

Sensitivity analysis
The aforementioned sensitivity analysis indicates how changes in significant actuarial assumptions would affect the defined benefit
portion of R7 582m (2021: R 7 648m).

The sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change inthe defined benefit obligation as itis unlikelythat the change in
assumptions would occur inisolation of one another. For the purpose of the sensitivity analysis, itis assumed that any change in inflation
impacts other inflation-dependent assumptions, i.e, certain pension increases and salary growth. In presenting the sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period. The defined contribution obligation of R 22 759m (2021:R 23 222m) does not giveriseto any actuarial risks as the measurement is
derived from the defined contribution plan assets.

Therewas no change inthe methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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35. Dividends pershare

2021
Rm

Dividends declared to ordinary equity holders

Interim dividend (15 August 2022: 1003.78911 cents per share (cps)) (16 August 2021:0 cps) 4500 -
Final dividend (13 March 2023:669.19277 cps) (14 March 2022:446.12851 cps) 3000 2000
7 500 2000
Dividends declared to preference equity holders
Interim dividend (15 August 2022: 2883.42466 cps) (16 August 2021:2 470.13699 cps) 143 122
Final dividend (13 March 2023: 3 509.58904 cps) (14 March 2022:2 494.10959 cps) 174 123
317 245
Distributions declared and paid to Additional Tier 1 capital note holder
Distribution
10 January 2022: 21 024.73 Rands per note (rpn); 11January 2021:20 214.47 rpn 26 25
27 January 2022: 20 751.67 rpn; 27 January 2021:20 085.45 rpn 26 24
28 February 2022: 20 860.19 rpn; 26 February 2021:19 268.38 rpn 35 32
07 March 2022: 20 236.90 rpn; 05 March2021:18 786.19 rpn 28 26
14 March 2022: 23 747.26 rpn; 12 March2021:22 301.37 rpn 36 33
11 April 2022: 21545.81 rpn; 12 April 2021: 20 922.52 rpn 27 26
28 April 2022: 21087.07 rpn; 28 April 2021:20 423.89 rpn 26 25
30 May 2022: 21 732.79rpn; 28 May 2021:20 299.23 rpn 36 34
06 June2022: 21 109.51 rpn; 07 June 2021: 20 326.60 rpn 29 28
13 June2022: 24 744.52 rpn; 14 June 2021: 23 971.29 rpn 37 36
11 July 2022:22769.95 rpn; 12 July 2021:20 984.85 rpn 28 26
27 July2022:22068.49 rpn; 27July 2021:20 280.82rpn* 27 25
29 August 2022: 23 415.67 rpn; 30 August 2021:21 074.03 rpn 39 36
05 September 2022: 22 792.38 rpn; 06 September 2021: 19 778.16 rpn 31 27
12 September 2022: 26 345.12 rpn; 13 September 2021: 23 268.58 rpn 40 35
10 October 2022: 24 515.15 rpn; 11 October 2021:21 047.18 rpn 30 26
27 October 2022: 25 878.67 rpn; 27 October 2021:20 751.67 rpn 31 25
28 November 2022: 25 574.74; 29 November 2021:20 361.56 rpn 43 34
05 December 2022: 24 993.84 rpn; 06 December 2021:19 738.27rpn 34 27
13 December 2021:23 248.63 rpn - 35
609 585
Dividends paid to ordinary equity holders
Final dividend (22 April 2022: 446.12851 cps) (2021: 0 cps) 2000 -
Interim dividend (19 September 2022: 2 883.42466 cps) (2021:0 cps) 4500 -
6500 -
Dividends paid to preference equity holders
Final dividend (22 April 2022: 2 494.10959) (25 April 2021: 2429.86301 cps) 123 120
Interim dividend (19 September 2022: 2 883.42466 cps) (20 September 2021:2 470.13699 cps) 143 122
266 242

*In December 2021, the Bank inadvertently disclosed an incorrect ‘distributions declared’ date. This has been corrected to 27 July 2021.
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36. Securities borrowed/lent and repurchase/reverserepurchase agreements

36.1 Reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowed
As part of the reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowing agreements, the Bank has received securities as collateral thatare
allowed to be sold or repledged. These securities are pledged for the duration of the respective agreements. The terms of the pledges are
usual and customary to such agreements. The fair value of these securities at the reporting date amounts to R79 790m (2021: R83 430)* of
which R61838m (2021:R46 162m)* have been sold or repledged. The Bank has an obligation to return the collateral held except inthe event
of default.

36.2 Repurchase agreements and securities lent

The followingtable shows the carrying amount of transferred assets that have not resulted in any derecognition, together with the
associated liabilities.

Bank

Fair value of

Carrying Carrying associated
amount of amountof Fair value of liabilities
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Debtinstruments 42945 (41 513) 42945 (41513) 1432
20211
Fair value of
Carrying Carrying associated
amount of amount of  Fair value of liabilities
transferred associated transferred associated Net fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities value
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Debt instruments 45 856 (45 636) 45 856 (45 636) 220

The transferred assets are presentedin the ‘Trading portfolio assets’ and ‘Investment securities' lineson the statement of financial
position.

1 Equity instruments with a net fair value of R1 257m were erroneously included as part of securities lent. However, as these related to inter-company transactions,
which should not have been eliminated.
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37. Transferof financial assets
37.1 Transfer of financial assets involving structured entities
In the ordinary course of its normal banking activities the Bank transfers financial assets to SEs, either legally (where legal rightsto the
cash flows from the asset are transferred to the counterparty) or beneficially (where the Bank retains the rights to the cash flows but
assumes a responsibility to transfer them to the counterparty). Depending on the nature of the transaction, this may result in
derecognition of the assets in their entirety, partial derecognition of the assets or no derecognition of the assets.
37.2 Transfer of financial assets that does not result in derecognition
Bank
Carrying Carrying
amount of amountof Fairvalueof Fairvalueof
transferred associated  transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Investment securities 3083 (2315) 3083 (2315) 768
Loans and advances to customers 5693 (1929) 5693 (1929) 3764
2021
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of  Fairvalueof  Fair value of
transferred associated  transferred associated Net fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities value
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Investment securities 1716 (1195) 1716 (1195) 521
Loans and advances to customers 7924 (4514) 7924 (4514) 3410
Balances included withinloans and advances to customers representinstances where substantially all the risks and rewards (credit risk and
prepayment risk) of the financial asset have been retained by the Bank.
Therelationship between the transferred assets and the associated liabilities is that holders of the associated liabilities may only look to
cash flows from the transferred assets for payments due to them, although the contractual terms may differ from those of the transferred
assets.
37.3 Continuing involvement in financial assets that have been derecognised in their entirety

The instance may arise where the Bank transfers a financial asset to an SE in its entirety but may have continuing involvement in it
Continuinginvolvement largely arises from providing financing to the SE in the form of retained notes, which do not bear first losses as they
arenot considered equity instruments of the SE. As at 31 December 2022, the Bank had no continuinginvolvement where financial assets

have been derecognised in their entirety (2021: None).
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38. Relatedparties
Transactions with key management personnel

Daniel Mminele announced his resignation as the Group Chief Executive Officer of Absa Group Limited from 30 April 2021. The Board
appointed Jason Quinn as the Interim Chief Executive Officerand Punki Modise as the Interim Financial Director with effect from 20 April
2021 and 23 April 2021, respectively.She held the position of Interim Chief Executive of Retail Business Banking till 30June 2022 after
which she was appointed as Group Chief Strategy and Sustainability Officer effective 1 July 2022.

The Board appointed Sello Moloko as an independent non-executive director and Chairman designate with effect from 1 December 2021.
He commenced his role as Chairman of Absa Group on 1 April 2022, taking over from Wendy Lucas-Bull, who retired from the position with
effect from 1 April 2022.

Following the decision todissolve Integrated Processing Solutions Proprietary Limited, the Group disposed of the Integrated Processing
Solution investment on 30 September 2021. The Group received a cash consideration of R12m on disposal.

38.1 Transactions with key management personnel

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (IAS 24), requires the identification of key management personnel, whoareindividualsresponsible for
planning directingand controlling the activities of the entity, including directors. Key management personnel are defined as executive and
non-executive directors and members of the Executive Committee (Exco). A number of bankingand insurance transactions are entered
intowith key management personnel in the normal course of business, under terms that are no more favourable than those arranged with
other employees. These include loans, deposits and foreign currency transactions. The outstanding balances at the reporting date with
related parties and related partytransactions conducted during the reporting period are as follows:

Bank
2021
Rm
Key management personnel compensation
Directors
Deferred cash payments 0 1
Non-deferred cash payments 18 15
Post-employment benefit contributions 1 1
Salaries and other short-term benefits 38 43
Share-based payments 26 16
83 76
Other key management personnel
Deferred cash payments 1 3
Non-deferred cash payments 41 31
Post-employment benefit contributions 2 1
Salaries and other short-term benefits 44 40
Share-based payments 46 30
134 105
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38. Relatedparties(continued)
38.1 Transactions with key management personnel (continued)

2021
Transactions Transactions
with entities with entities
Transactions controlled by
Transactions with with key key
CGTNELEECT O A ELEEG )G management  management
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Loans
Balance at the beginning of the period 48 5 37 16
Inception/(discontinuance) of related party relationships* 21 - 9 (1)
Loans issued and interest earned 34 2 44 1
Loans repaid (34) - (42) (11)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 69 7 48 5
Interest income (10) (1) 9 (3)
Deposits
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 23 1 22
Inception/(Discontinuance) of related party relationships* 22 - 2 1
Deposits received 67 23 152 3
Deposits repaid and interest paid (60) (21) (153) (3)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 52 3 23 1
Interest expense 5 - - -
Guarantees 211 8 92 20
Other investments
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 114 43 90 35
(Discontinuance)/inception of related party relationships* 94 44 - -
Value of new investments/contributions - - 3 -
Value of withdrawals/disinvestments (10) - (7) -
Fees and charges - - - -
Investment returns - - 28 8
Balance at the end of the reporting period 198 87 114 43

Loans include mortgages, asset finance transactions, overdraftsand other creditfacilities. Loans to key management personnel are provided on
the same terms and conditions as loans to employees of the Bank, including interestrates and collateral requirements. No loans to key
management personnel or entities controlled by key management personnel were written off as irrecoverable.

In addition to the specific guarantees, a number of key management personnel and entities controlled by key management personnel have
unlimited surety with the Bank.

Insurance premiums paid and claims received

Key management personnel paid insurance premiums of R1m(2021: ROm) and received claims of ROm (2021: ROm)

Includes balances relating to key management personnel who resigned during the reporting periods.
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38. Relatedparties(continued)

38.2 Balances and transactions with the parent company, fellow subsidiaries, and associates and joint ventures of the

parent company

Bank®

2022
Fellow
subsidiaries

2021

Fellow
subsidiaries

Parent and associates Parent and associates
company and joint company and joint
ventures of the ventures of the
parent parent
Rm Rm Rm
Balances
Cash and cash balances with central banks - - - -
Loans and advances to banks - 94 - 200
Trading portfolio assets/liabilities - - - 349
Other assets - 1138 - 1217
Loans to Absa group companies - 73452 - 76978
Deposits from banks - (688) - 807)
Other liabilities - (677) - (351)
Borrowed funds - (24 491) - (23 845)
Trading portfolio liabilities - (128) - -
Loans from Absa group companies - (9152) - -
Transactions
Dividends paid - - - -
Distributions paidto Tier 1 capital holders 609 - 585 -
Interest and similarincome - (1012) - (1555)
Interest expense and similar charges 1679 (36) 2242 116
Fee and commission income - 565) - (587)
Fee and commission expense - 3 - 3
Gains and losses from banking and trading activities - 1619 - (7867)
Gains and losses from investing activities - 2 - 3
Other operatingincome - 1 - (2)
Operating expenditure/(recovered expenses) - (729 - (934)

Debit amounts are shown as positive, credit amounts are shown as negative.
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38.
38.3

Related parties (continued)
Subsidiaries and consolidated structured entities

The followinginformation providedis inrespectof the Bank’s main subsidiaries. The main subsidiaries are those entities whose results or
financial position, inthe opinion of the directors, had the most significant impact, relative to all the Bank’s subsidiaries, on the figures
shown in the consolidated financial statements. The significance of this impact is judged from both a qualitative and a quantitative
perspective and is assessed on a half yearly basis.

Bank

2021

Country of %

Name Nature of business incorporation holding

Absa Representative Office Nigeria Limited Representative office to faul_ltatg trade Nigeria 100 100
and obtain market sharein Nigeria.

Absa Technology Prague s.r.o Provides infromation technology services Czech Republic 100 100

for Absa Group.

Operates as a fleet manager providing
financial, leasing, maintenance and South Africa 100 100
management services.

Absa Vehicle and Management Solutions
Proprietary Limited

Home Obligors Mortgage Enhanced Securitization vehicle for Absa Home .

Securities (RF) Proprietary Limited Loans Division. South Africa 100 100
United Towers Proprietary Limited Isr;]\;ersetsment inand issuance of preference South Africa 100 100
Structured entities

Absa Foundation Trust Fund used to invest in unit trusts. Provides South Africa n/a n/a
NewFunds Collective Investment Scheme Collective Investment Scheme. South Africa n/a n/a

iMpumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Special pUrpose, bankruptcy-remote
Limited company incorporated for the purpose of n/a n/a

issuing Absa Bank guaranteed Commercial

Absa Home Loans 101 (RF) Limited Securitisation vehicle. South Africa n/a n/a
Comm_lssmne_r S_treet No 10 (RF) Securitisation vehicle. South Africa n/a n/a
Proprietary Limited

AB Finco 1 (RF) Limited Securitisation vehicle. South Africa n/a n/a

Afull list of subsidiaries and consolidated Structured Entities (SE's) isavailable, on request, at the registered address of the Bank.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 | 103



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

38.
384

38.5

Related parties (continued)
Nature and extent of significant restrictions relating to investments in subsidiaries

There aresignificantrestrictions on the ability of the Bank to require distributions of capital, accessthe assets, or repay the liabilities of
members of its group arising from regulatory and contractual requirements and from the protective rights of non-controlling interests.

Regulatory requirements

The Bank’s bankingand insurance subsidiaries are subject to the regulatory capital (RC) requirements of the countries in which they
operate. These require, inter alia, that these entities maintain minimum capital ratios which restrict the ability of these entities to make
distributions tothe parentcompany. Distributionsare also restricted by leverage constraints, large exposure limits and local legal licence
requirements.

The requirements to maintain capital also affect certain equity and non-equityinstruments inthese subsidiaries such as Tier 1 and Tier 2
capital instrumentsand other subordinated liabilities which enable subsidiaries to meet their ratios. To the extent that these are retired,
they must be replaced with instruments of similar terms.

The minimum amount of RC required tobe maintained by the Bank was R87.3bn (2021: R76.8bn).

Contractual requirements

Certain of the Bank’s securitisation and SEs hold assets or interests inassets that are onlyavailable to meet the liabilities of those entities
and may haveissued public debt securities. The Bank has the ability towind up these structures and repay the notes, but only on the
occurrence of certain contingencies, such as changes in tax laws or regulatory requirements. The carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities of the entities to which these restrictions apply as at 31 December 2022 was R15bn and R15bn respectively (2021:R14bn and
R12bn respectively).

Associates, joint ventures and retirement benefit fund

The Bank provides certain banking and financial services to associates and joint ventures. The Bank also provides a number of current and
interest-bearing cash accounts tothe Absa Pension. These transactions are generally conducted on the same terms as third-party
transactions.

In aggregate, the amounts included in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2022
Associates

and joint
ventures
Rm

Statement of financial position

Other assets 15
Loans and advances 22224
Other liabilities (15)
Deposits (87)
Statement of comprehensive income =
Interest income from joint ventures and associates and on plan assets 1691
Interest expense on defined benefitobligations (5)
Fee and commission income =
Fee and commission expense (3)
Operating expenses (1127)

Operatingincome -
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38. Related Parties (continued)
38.5 Associates, joint ventures and retirement benefit fund (continued)

2021
Associates
and joint
ventures
Rm
Statement of financial position

Other assets 9
Loans and advances 25918
Other liabilities (9)
Deposits (107)

Statement of comprehensive income
Interest income from joint ventures and associates and on plan assets 1371
Interest expense on defined benefitobligations (5)
Fee and commission income -
Fee and commission expense (3)
Operating expenses 1305

Operatingincome -

Loans and advances is made up of joint ventures
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Theinformation provided below is in respect of the Bank’s main associates and joint ventures. The main associatesand joint ventures are
those arrangements whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, had the most significantimpact, relative toall the
Bank’s associates and joint ventures, on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements. Despite these investments having the most
significant impact relative toall the Bank’s associates and joint ventures, none of the Bank’s associates or joint ventures are considered to
have an impact that is individually material. Materiality and the relative significance of the Bank’s associates and joint ventures are judged
from a qualitative and quantitative perspective and is assessed half-yearly.

Bank

2022 2021
Ownership Ownership
Name Nature of business % %

Equity-accounted associates

SBV Services ProprietaryLimited Cash transportation services. 25 25

Document Exchange Association (DEA) Facilitates the electronic exchange of 25 25
documents between the banks.

South African Bankers Services Company Automatic clearing house. 23 23

Equity-accounted joint ventures
FFS Finance South Africa (RF) Proprietary Limited Provides financing solutions to Ford Motor Company

customers.
50 50
MAN Financial Services (SA) (RF) Proprietary Joint venture with MAN Financial Services GmbH for
Limited financing of trucks and buses.
50 50
Zeerust Joint Venture Engages in property investment.
55 55
John Deere Financial (Pty) Ltd Undertakes marketingactivities for asset financing of
John Deere products.
50 50
Associates and joint ventures designated at fair Various
value through profit or loss . .
Various Various

All associates and joint ventures are incorporated in South Africa.
Afull list of associates and joint venturesis available, on request, at the registered address of the Bank.
SBV Services Proprietary Limited and The South Africa Bankers Services Company Proprietary Limted have a reporting period of 30 June.
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39. Segmentreport

39.1 Summary of segments

The Bank has identified its operating model with ‘customer’ as primary dimension, creating a platform for increased focus and dedicated
management capacity. The identified reportable segments are ina mannerin which the Bank’s businesses are managed and reported to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The Bank has changed its operating model, effective from 1 July 2022. This change is part of the Bank'’s journey
to enhance market competitiveness, while alsoimprovingits transformation position. In essence, the Bank has moved from two commercial
businesses, Corporate and InvestmentBank (CIB) and Retail and Business Banking (RBB), to four business units (Everyday Banking, Relationship
Banking, Product Solutions Clusterand CIB.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Bank’s business units:

> Product Solutions Cluster: offers a comprehensive suite of product solutions to the retail consumer segment. Products include
mortgages, vehicle financing, life and non-life insurance products, investmentproductsand advisory services. Customers are served
through an extensive distribution network, including digital channels, branches, mortgage originators, dealerships, financial advisors
and partnerships. The focus remains on providing a consistently superior experience across channel tailored to each customer's needs
and expectations.

>  Everyday Banking: offers a comprehensive range of day-to-day banking products and services to a diverse spectrum of retail
customers, from those needing basic banking services to those requiring sophisticated financial solutions. Everyday Banking focuses
on providingaconsistentlysuperior experienceacross multiplechannels designed tomatch the expectationsof each customer segment,
including digital and voice channels, as well as an extensive network of branch and ATM channels.

> Relationship Banking: consists of the business units and associated products, where a named relationship exists and was formed
to provide customers with a single ‘warm-body’ relationship manager rather than multiple touch points within the Group. The
businesses within Relationship Bankinginclude Business Banking Services,Commercial Paymentsand Private Wealth. Relationship
Bankingalsoincludes an Equity portfoliowhichis beingreduced in an orderly manner.

>  CIB: provides innovative solutions to meet clients’ needs by delivering specialist investment banking, corporate and transactional
banking, financing, risk management, and advisory productsand services. Clients across various industry sectors such as corporates,
financial institutionsand public sector bodies are serviced by combining our in-depth productknowledge with regional expertise and
an extensive, well-established local presence. CIB's goal is to build a sustainable, trustworthy business that helps clientsachieve their
ambitions inthe right way and by executing this we will create shared growth for clients, employees and communities.

>  Head Office, Treasury and other operationsconsists of various non-banking activities and includes investmentincome earnedby the
Group, as well as income earned by AbsaManx Holdings and Corporate Real Estate Services.

> Barclay’s separation: Barclays PLC contributed R12.1 billion tothe Bank in June 2017, primarily in recognition of the investments
required for the Bank to separate from Barclays PLC. This contribution was invested primarily in rebranding, technology and separation-
related projectsand itis expected that it will neutralise the capital and cash flow impact of separation investments on the Bank over
time. The Separation Programme was completed within agreed timelines. The separation process has had a significant impact on the
Group’s financial results over the past years, most notablyan increase inthe capital base and internally generated intangible assets,
together with generated endowment revenues, and amortisation of the assets as they are brought into use. The afore-mentioned
results show a disconnect between the underlying business performance and the IFRS financial results. Normalised results have
therefore been disclosed to reflect the underlying business performance.

Reportable segments:

> Product Solutions Cluster:

Product Solutions offers a comprehensive suite of residential and vehicle finance solutions along with insurance products and services
to protect customer’s wealth and investment. The focus is on providinga consistently superior experience across each of the channels,
matched closely tothe needs and expectations of each customer. Customers across all segments are serviced through an extensive
branch network, electronic channels, financial advisors, originators, dealerships as well as alliances andjoint ventures.

Key business areas:

o Home Loans - Offers residential property-related finance solutions directly to customers through personalised services,
electronic channelsand intermediaries such as estate agents and mortgage originators.

o  Vehicle and Asset Finance (VAF) - Offers funding solutions for passenger and light commercial vehicles to individual
customers through approved dealerships and preferred suppliers. VAF's Joint Venture with Ford Financial Services is an
extension of the business and reinforces the strategicintent of establishingand harnessing relationships with dealers and
customers.

o InsuranceSA consists of:

. Life Insurance - offers life insurance, covering death, disability and retrenchment, as well as funeral and life-
wrapped investment products.

=  Non-Lifelnsurance - provides non-life insurance solutions to the retail and commercial market segments. Direct-
to-client short-term solutionsbeing iDirect and Activate, are also available to the retail market.

o Non-BankingFinancial Services - Includes the following:

= Absalnsurance and Financial Advisors which include face-to-face advisors, a digital advice platform and a direct
sales service centre

= Stockbrokingand Portfolio Management products and services to core-middle-market, retail-affluent, private-
banking, wealth, and business clients
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= Absa Trust facilitates wealth preservation through implementing estate planning solutions, including wills drafting
and safe custody of wills, estate administration, trustadministration and beneficiary fund administration

. Insurance Group holding companies, related consolidation entries, allocated shareholder overhead expenses and
investments spend.

>  Everyday Banking - offers the day-to-day banking services for the retail customer and includes:

o

Card- offers credit cards through a mix of Absa-branded and co-branded products, including British Airways. This portfalio
alsoincludes partnerships with Woolworths Financial Services, which offers in-store cards, credit cards, personal loans, and
short-term insurance products.

Personal Loans - offers unsecured loans through the Absa Mobile Banking app, internet banking, face-to-face engagements,
and the contactcentre channels.

Transactional and Deposits - offers a full range of transactional banking, savings, and investment products and services
through multiple channels.

> Relationship Banking - places primary focus on client segmentin drive to put the customer first. Essentially, the business focuses on
the followingkey client segments Smalland Medium Enterprises (SMEs), Commercial Segment and Private Wealth which are serviced

by th

o

e following key business areas:

Business Banking Services — which offers banking solutions spanning lending and transactional banking products as well as
savings and investmentproducts. The lending products consist of commercial assetfinance, commercial property finance, term
lending, structured lending as well as overdrafts.

Commercial Payments - acceptelectronic payments using various payment methods such as cash, debit, credit and prepaid cards
as well as mobile payments. Commercial Payments also provides value added services such as money transferand ‘cash back at
point of sale.

Private Wealth - which offers a full suite of banking services to customers in the Private and Wealth segment including
transactional, lending, savings and investment products as well as other wealth management services.

> CIB: Client Engagement integrates client coverage across Africa to provide holistic solutions to clients through end-to-end relationship
management and origination activities, leveraging the deep segment and sector specialisation within CIB across the business areas
below. This includesthe Growth Capital solutions team, which focuses on offering B-BBEE financing to clients with the aim of creating
sustainable local and regional economies. Key businessareas serviced are as per below:

Absa Bank Limited

Corporate: Provides corporate banking solutions spanning financing and transactional banking requirements, including trade and
working capital solutions, and a full suite of cash management, payments and liquidity productsand solutions. These services are
provided acrossour African institutional, corporate and public sector client base. The Absalnvestor Services business providesa
full suite of custody and trustee services, further building out our services and client value proposition.
Investment Bank comprising:
. Global Markets - engages in trading, sales and research activities across all major asset classesand productsin Africa,
delivering pricing, hedging and risk management capabilities to both corporate and institutional clients.
. Investment Banking Division- structuresinnovative solutions delivering to meet clients’ strategic advisory, financing
and risk managementrequirements acrossindustry sectors;
. Commercial Property Finance (CPF) - specialises in financing commercial, industrial, retail and residential devel opment
property across our African footprint aswell ascross border financingin otherjurisdictions; and
. Private Equity and Infrastructure Investments (PEII) - Infrastructure Investmentsacted as a principal by investing in
equity to entities focused on infrastructure development in sub-Saharan Africa. Private Equity traditionally actedas a
principal by investingin unlisted equity exposures. This portfolio continues to be reduced in line with the Group’s
strategy to exit non-core businesses.
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Product Solutions Cluster Everyday Banking Relationship Banking
2021* 2021t 2021t
Rm Rm Rm
39.2 Segmentreport(continued)
Statement of comprehensive income
Net interest income? 9138 8242 12 855 11614 9328 8759
Interest and similar income 34351 26227 11346 9394 13026 10472
Interest expense and similarcharges (25 213) (17 985) 1509 2220 (3698) (1713)
Non-interest income (Refer to note 39.4) 1109 1062 11185 10341 5095 4914
Total income 10 247 9304 24 040 21955 14 423 13673
Impairment losses (2586) (1 292) (5070) (3569) (616) (876)
Operating expenses? (4677) (4 335) (12 675) (12 223) (7 894) (7 391)
Depreciation and amortisation (64) (31) (1432) (1469) (258) (283)
Information technology costs (92) (89) (555) (487) (126) (109)
Staff costs (1291) (1191) (5613) (5484) (2 664) (2603)
Other operating expenses (3230) (3024) (5075) (4 783) (4 846) (4 396)
Other expenses (120) (113) (544) (415) (69) (51)
Other impairments (36) (25) (171) (120) - (4)
Indirect taxation (84) (88) (373) (295) (69) (47)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint 59 90 - - 40 22
Operating profit beforeincome tax 2923 3654 5751 5748 5884 5377
Tax expense (774) (967) (1695) (1583) (1657) (1469)
Profit for the reporting period 2149 2687 4056 4165 4227 3908
Profit attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders 1934 2496 3919 4045 4045 3722
Non-controllinginterest - ordinary shares - - - - - -
Non-controllinginterest - preference shares 65 56 42 35 56 55
Other equity: Additional Tier 1 Capital 150 135 95 85 126 131
2149 2 687 4056 4165 4227 3908
Headline earnings 1960 2521 3948 4050 4046 3723
Statement of financial position
Loans and advances 400 643 368 648 63777 62331 " 135897 126171 -
Loans and advances to customers 400 354 368352 54945 49672 134 699 125565
Loans and advances to banks 289 296 8832 12 659 1198 606
Investment securities 20841 18490 3901 3574 6 590 6111
Other assets 33 640 29517 309 469 292701 123150 116119
Total assets 455124 416 655 377 147 358 606 265 637 248401
Deposits 1863 1915 - 289 606 278 334 201191 188394
Deposits due to customers 1863 1915 289 606 278334 201185 188390
Deposits due to banks - - - - 6 4
Debt securities in issue - - - - - -
Other liabilities 448 800 410 269 83523 75454 59993 55736
Total liabilities 450 663 412 184 373129 353788 261 184 244130
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Head office, Treasury and

Total before Barclays

Barclays separation

CIB other operations separation effects effects Bank

2021 2021% 2021 2021 2021

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

10199 9657 809 4 42 329 38276 58 25 42 387 38301
23060 18136 7 386 7915 89169 72144 - - 89169 72144
(12 861) (8479) (6577) (7911) (46 840) (33 868) 58 25 (46 782) (33 843)
3937 3979 361 (104) 21687 20192 - (1) 21687 20191
14136 13636 1170 (100) 64 016 58468 58 24 64 074 58492
(413) (657) (2) (2) (8687) (6396) - 1 (8687) (6395)
(8105) (7271) (2 854) (3 005) (36 205) (34 225) (917) (1007) (37 122) (35232)
(297) (225) (1867) (2058) (3918) (4 066) (1 006) (1074) (4924) (5140)
(448) (471) (2607) (2824) (4 394) (3980) (3) (52) (4397) (4032)
(4 746) (4176) (4 329) (4593) (18 908) (18047) - 15 (18 908) (18032)
(2614) (2 399) 5949 6470 (8 985) (8132) 92 104 (8 893) (8028)
(205) (251) (978) (692) (1916) (1 522) - 61 (1916) (1461)
- (54) (384) (87) (591) (290) - (36) (591) (326)
(205) (197) (594) (605) (1325) (1 232) - 97 (1325) (1 135)

15 9 18 11 132 132 - - 132 132
5428 5466 (2 646) (3788) 17 340 16 457 (859) (921) 16 481 15536
(876) (1094) 474 720 (4528) (4 393) 236 254 (4292) (4139)
4552 4372 (2172) (3068) 12 812 12 064 (623) (667) 12189 11397
4211 4041 (2172) (3064) 11937 11240 (623) (667) 11314 10573
= - = (3) = (3) = - = (3)

103 97 - (1) 266 242 - - 266 242
238 234 - - 609 585 - - 609 585
4552 4372 (2172) (3068) 12 812 12 064 (623) (667) 12189 11397
4211 4081 (1891) (3020) 12 274 11355 (624) (629) 11 650 10726
431733 379 464 470 (3839) 1032520 932775 - - 1032520 932775
362782 338117 3195 695 955975 882401 - - 955975 882401
68 951 41 347 (2 725) (4534) 76 545 50374 - - 76 545 50374
43 396 40503 53711 47 587 128 439 116 265 - - 128 439 116 265
435 046 402 973 (585065) (543 875) 316 240 297 435 2153 3223 318 393 300 658
910175 822940 (530884) (500127) 1477 199 1346475 2153 3223 1479 352 1349698
405 780 392 985 117183 112493 1015623 974121 - - 1015623 974121
318 885 320689 103 084 94 548 914 623 883876 - - 914 623 883876
86 895 72296 14 099 17 945 101 000 90 245 - - 101 000 90 245
27 282 18428 175993 108 843 203 275 127271 - - 203 275 127271
471 673 406 174 (905368) (800231) 158 621 147 402 (1105) (814) 157 516 146 588
904 735 817 587 (612192) (578895) 1377519 1248794 (1105) ( 814) 1376414 1247980

1These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19.

2Head Office, Treasury and other operations in South Africa represents a reconciling stripe and is not a reporting segment.
3The segment reporting presentation has been enhanced based on the requirements of IFRS 8 — Operating Segments. The Group has disaggregated Net interest income into
Interest Income and similar income and Interest expense and similar charges, as well as operating expenses into technology and staff costs.

39. Segmentreport (continued)
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39.3 Total internal income

Rm

Product Solutions (23 301) (15996)
Everyday Banking 16138 13206
Relationship Banking 4574 3745
CiB (6 739) 4173
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 9345 2494
Barclays PLC separation effects 58 25
Total internal income 75 7647

1These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19.
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39.4 Disaggregation of non-interest income

The followingtable disaggregates non-interest income splittingit intoincome received from contracts with customers by major service
lines and per reportable segment, and other items making up non-interest income:

Bank

Head Office,
Product Treasury and

Solutions Everyday Relationshi other
Cluster Banking p Banking ciB operations
Rm Rm Rm Rm

Fee and commission income from contracts with

customers 1155 11740 5768 2714 (27) 21 350
Consultingand administration fees 137 - 122 32 27 318
Transactional fees and commissions 727 10798 3744 2 055 71 17 395

Cheque accounts - 2921 1729 155 - 4 805
Credit cards - 1868 194 - 43 2105
Electronic banking - 4045 1136 1154 - 6335
Other? 727 715 561 748 28 2779
Savings accounts - 1249 124 (2) - 1371
Merchantincome - 563 1717 - - 2280
Trust and other fiduciary services fees - - 76 18 - 94
Other fees and commissions 2 9 66 244 (125) 196
Insurance commissions received 289 370 4 - - 663
Investment banking fees - - 39 365 - 404

Other income from contracts with customers = = 27 = o 27

Other non-interest income, net of expenses? (46) (555) (700) 1223 388 310

Total non-interestincome 1109 11185 5095 3937 361 21687

20213
Product Head Office,
Solutions Everyday Relationshi Treasury and other
Cluster Banking p Banking CB operations Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Fee and commission income from contracts with

customers 1106 10887 5395 2477 (88) 19777
Consultingand administration fees 147 - 153 24 20 344
Transactional fees and commissions 667 9997 3534 1857 (20) 16 035

Cheque accounts - 2742 1804 135 - 4681
Credit cards - 1665 155 - - 1820
Electronic banking - 3514 996 1083 - 5593
Other? 667 703 450 639 (20) 2439
Savings accounts - 1373 129 - - 1502
Merchant income - 543 1558 - - 2101
Trust and other fiduciary services fees - 2 59 18 - 79
Other fees and commissions 3 9 49 223 (88) 196
Insurance commissions received 289 336 6 - - 631
Investment banking fees - - 36 355 - 391

Other income from contracts with customers - - 37 - - 37

Other non-interest income, net of expenses? (45) (547) (517) 1502 (16) 377

Total non-interest income 1061 10340 4915 3979 (104) 20191

*0ther transactional fees and commissions income include service and credit-related fees of R873m (2021: R644m), exchange commission of R795m (2021: R680m) and cash
handling fees of R315m (2021:242m)

2This amount consists of other sources of income not accounted for under IFRS 15. This amount has been included to reconcile to the total non-interest income amount presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

3These numbers have been restated, refer to the reporting changes overview, note 1.19.
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40. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where relevant the Bank reports derivative financial instruments, reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements and other similar
secured lendingand borrowing agreements on a net basis.

The following table shows the impact of nettingarrangements on the statementof financial position for recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities that are reported net on the statement of financial position. Also presented are derivative financial instruments
and reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements and other similar lending and borrowing agreements that are subject to
enforceable master netting or similaragreements which did not qualify for presentation on a net basis. The table also shows potential
netting not recognised on the statement of financial position that results from arrangements that do not meet all the IAS 32 netting
criteria, because thereis nointention to net settle or realise simultaneously, and related financial collateral that mitigates creditrisk.

The net amounts presented are not intended torepresentthe Bank’s actual credit exposure as a variety of credit mitigation strategies
are employed in addition tonettingand collateral arrangements.

Bank
2022
Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements
Effects of netting on statement of
financial position Related amounts not set off

Net amounts Amounts not

reported on subject to
the legally Total per
statement of Offsetting enforceable statement
Gross Amounts financial financial Financial netting of financial
amounts set off position’ instruments collateral’> Net amount arrangements® position*
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Derivative financial
assets 96 760 (35500) 61260 (48 390) (1727) 11143 788 62 048

Reverse repurchase
agreements and
other similar

secured lending 86 861 - 86 861 - (86 861) - - 86 861
Total assets 183 621 (35 500) 148121 (48 390) (88 588) 11143 788 148 909
Derivative financial

liabilities (94 748) 40768 (53 980) 48 390 - (5590) (2.807) (56 787)
Repurchase

agreements and
other similar
secured borrowing (66 356) - (66 356) - 66 356 0 - (66 356)

Total liabilities (161 104) 40768 (120 336) 48 390 66 356 (5590) (2807) (123 143)

INet amounts reported on the statement of financial position comprise exposures that have been netted on the statement of financial position in compliance with IAS 32 (net
exposure) and exposures that are subject to legally enforceable netting arrangements but have not been netted on the statement of financial position.

2Financial collateral excludes over collateralisation and amounts, which are measured at fair value and are in excess of the net statement of financial position exposure. The financial
collateral is pledged under terms that are usual and customary to such arrangements.

3In certain jurisdictions a contractual right of set-off is subject to uncertainty under laws of the jurisdiction and therefore netting is not applied and the amounts are classed as not
subject to legally enforceable netting arrangements.

“Total per statement of financial position is the sum of ‘Net amounts reported on the statement of financial position’ which are subject to enforceable netting arrangements and
‘Amounts not subject to enforceable netting arrangements’.
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40. Offsettingfinancial assetsand financial liabilities (continued)

Bank

2021
Amounts subject toenforceable netting arrangements

Effects of netting on statement of

financial position Related amounts not set of f

Net amounts

reported on Amounts not
the subject to Total per
statement of Offsetting enforceable statement of
Gross Amounts set financial financial Financial netting financial
amounts off position® instruments collateral?> Netamount arrangements® position*
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Derivative financial
assets 66431 (8 285) 58146 (37139) (2 219) 18788 1249 59395
Reverse repurchase
agreements and
other similar
secured lending 81 358 - 81 358 - (81 358) - - 81 358
Total assets 147 789 (8 285) 139504 (37 139) (83577) 18788 1249 140753
Derivative financial
liabilities (53391) 7924 (45 467) 37139 - (8328) (4401) (49 868)
Repurchase
agreements and
other similar
secured borrowing (75 555) - (75 555) - 75555 - - (75 555)
Total liabilities (128 946) 7924 (121 022) 37139 75555 (8 328) (4401) (125423)

Offsetting and collateral arrangements

Derivative assets and liabilities

Creditriskis mitigated where possible through netting arrangements, such as the International Swaps and Derivative Association (ISDA)
Master Agreement or derivative exchange or clearing counterparty agreements, whereby all outstanding transactions with the same
counterparty can be offset and close-out nettingapplied across all outstanding transactions covered by the agreements if an event of
default or other predetermined events occur. Financial collateral (cashand non-cash) isalso obtained, often daily, for the net exposure
between counterparties where possible to further mitigate credit risk.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending and borrowing

Creditriskis mitigated where possible through netting arrangements such as global master repurchase agreements and global master
securities lending agreements whereby all outstanding transactions with the same counterparty can be offset and close-out netting
applied across all outstanding transactions covered by the agreements if an event of default or other predetermined events occur.
Financial collateral isobtained and typically comprises highly liquid securities which are legally transferred and canbe liquidatedin the

event of counterparty default.

These offsettingand collateral arrangements and the creditrisk mitigation strategies used by the Bank are further explained inthe Credit
risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancementssection of note 52.

INet amounts reported on the statement of financial position comprise exposures that have been netted on the statement of financial position in compliance with IAS 32
(net exposure) and exposures that are subject to legally enforceable netting arrangements but have not been netted on the statement of financial position.

2Financial collateral excludes over collateralisation and amounts, which are measured at fair value and are in excess of the net statement of financial position exposure.
3In certain jurisdictions a contractual right of set-off is subject to uncertainty under laws of the jurisdiction and therefore netting is not applied and the amounts are
classed as not subject to legally enforceable netting arrangements.

“Total per statement of financial position is the sum of ‘Net amounts reported on the statement of financial position’ which are subject to enforceable netting
arrangements and ‘Amounts not subject to enforceable netting arrangements’.
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Bank
2021
Rm
41. Earnings pershare
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per shareiscalculated by dividing the profitor loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue during the reporting period.
Diluted earnings are determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for the effects
of all dilutive potential shares. There are noinstruments thatwould have a dilutive impact.
Basic and diluted earnings attributable to ordinaryequity holders 11314 10573
Weighted average number and diluted number of ordinary shares inissue (millions) 448.3 448.3
Issued shares at the beginning of the reporting period 448.3 448.3
Basic earnings per ordinary share/diluted earnings per ordinary share (cents) 2523.8 2 358.5
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Bank
Rm
42. Assets under managementand administration (unaudited)

Alternative asset management and exchange-traded funds 25908 27790

Other assets under administration 350790 285401
Portfolio management 4397 5046

Unit trusts 1518 1589
382613 319 826

Other assets under administration' includes those for which custodyand trustee services are provided. It includes assets managed on

behalf of Absa Bank Limited.

Bank
Rm
43. Contingencies, commitmentsandsimilaritems

Guarantees 44102 36293
Irrevocable debt facilities* 98379 100334
Letters of credit 12873 9475
Other 10 -
155 364 146102

Authorised capital expenditure
Contracted but not provided for 622 509

Guarantees include performance guarantee contractsand financial guarantee contracts.

Financial guarantee contracts represent contracts where the Bank undertakes to make specified paymentstoa counterparty, should the
counterparty suffer aloss as a result of a specified debtor failing to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument. This amount represents the maximum off-statement of financial position exposure.

Irrevocable facilitiesare commitments to extend credit where the Bank does not have the right to terminate the facilities by written

notice.

Irrevocable facilitiesare commitments to extend credit where the Bank does not have the right to terminate the facilities by written
notice. Irrevocable debt facilities has been updated, in the currentyear, to remove other lending facilities for whichan impairment
provision has been raised, and to present gross loan commitments thatare contractually committed only and are legally irrevocable.

Commitments generally have fixed expiry dates. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total contract amounts do

not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Bank has capital commitments inrespectof computer equipment, software and property development. Management is confident

that future net revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover these commitments.

During the year, the group reviewed its classification of certain undrawn facilities granted to customers. As a result of this review, the classification of certain facilities
was amended from irrevocable to revocable. This reclassification more accurately reflects the underlying terms of these facilities. The prior year numbers have been

restated from R 144 832m to R100 334m to reflect this change.
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Legal proceedings
Legal matters

TheBankis engaged in various other legal, competition and regulatory matters both in South Africa and a number of other jurisdictions. It
isinvolved in legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business from time to time, including (but not limited to) disputes in
relation to contracts, securities, debt collection, consumer credit, fraud, trusts, client assets, competition, data protection, money
laundering, employment, environmental and other statutory and common law issues.

The Bankis alsosubject toenquiries and examinations, requests for information, audits, investigations and legal and other proceedings by
regulators, governmental and other public bodies in connection with (but not limited to) consumer protection measures, compliance with
legislation and regulation, wholesale tradingactivity and other areas of bankingand business activities inwhichthe Bank is or has been
engaged.

At the present time, the Bank does not expect the ultimate resolution of any of these other matters to have a material adverse effect on
its financial position. However, in light of the uncertaintiesinvolved in such matters and the matters specifically describedin this note,
there can be noassurance that the outcome of a particular matter or matters will not be material to the Bank’s results of operations or
cash flow for a particular period, depending on, amongst other things, the amount of the loss resulting from the matter(s) and the amount
of income otherwise reported for the reporting period.

The Bank has not disclosed the contingent liabilities associated with these matters either because they cannot reasonably be estimated or
because such disclosure could be prejudicial to the outcome of the matter. Provision is made for all liabilities which are expected to
materialise.

Regulatory developments

The scale of regulatory change remains challenging post the reforms introduced in response to the global financial crisis. These reforms
resulted in significanttightening of regulation and changes to regulatory structures globally and locally, especially for companies that are
deemed to be of systemic importance. Concurrently, there is continuing political and regulatory scrutiny in the operation of the banking
and consumer credit industries globally andlocally which, in some cases, is leading toincreased regulation.

The nature and impact of future changes in the legal framework, policies and regulatory action, especially inthe areas of financial crime,
bankingand insurance regulation, cannot currently be fully predicted and are beyond the Bank’s control. We are also awaiting policy
positions to be taken by Regulators. Some of these are likely to have an impact on the Bank’s customers, business lines, systems and
earnings.

The Bankis continuously evaluatingits programmes and controlsin general relating to compliance with regulation and responding to the
same. The Bank undertakes monitoring, review and assurance activities, and has also adopted appropriate remedial and/or mitigating
steps, where necessary or advisable, and has made disclosures on material findings as and when appropriate. The Bank regards the
relationship with Regulators as very important and manages such engagements on a continuous basis.

Therelief measures provided by the PAin 2020 of a temporary relaxation of both capital supply and short-term liquidity requirements,
enabled banks to continue the provision of creditinto the economy duringthis period of financial stress. This support was discontinued in
its entirety in April 2022.

Income taxes

The Bankis subject toincome taxes in numerous jurisdictions and the calculation of the Bank’s tax charge and provisions for income taxes
necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
treatment is uncertain or in respect of which the relevant tax authorities may indicate disagreement with the Bank’s treatment and
accordingly the final tax charge cannot be determined until resolution hasbeen reached with the relevant tax authority.

The Bank recognises provisions for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due after taking
intoaccount external advice where appropriate. The carryingamount of any resulting provisions will be sensitive tothe manner inwhich
tax matters are expected to be resolved, and the stage of negotiations or discussion with the relevanttax authorities. There may be
significant uncertainty around the final outcome of tax proceedings, which in many instances, will onlybe concluded after a number of
years. Management estimates are informed by a number of factors including, inter alia, the progress made in discussions or negotiations
with the tax authorities, the advice of expert legal counsel, precedentset by the outcome of any previous claims, as well as the nature of
therelevant tax environment.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is differentfrom the amounts that were initially recorded, such differenceswill impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the reporting period in which such determination is made. These risks are
managed in accordance with the Bank’s Tax Risk Framework.
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Structured entities

Preference share funding vehicles

The Bank provides financing to a number of SEs, established and managed by clients, in the form of a subscription for cumulative redeemable
preference shares. These instruments typically have the economic characteristics of vanilladebtinstruments, and as such the Bank recognises
interest incomefrom itsinvestments. Often the Bank subscribes for preference sharesin these vehicles together with other financial institutions on
a syndicated basis. The Bank does not have the ability to direct the relevant business activities in these vehicles and therefore in the absence of
control, the vehicles are not consolidated. An entity which forms part of the same group of companies as the preference sharefunding vehicle, most
commonly the parent company, writes the Bank a financial guarantee or a putoption, so as to provide securityin theevent of default

Structured investment vehicles

The Bank holds investments ina number of vehicles which were established and are managed by third-party fund managers. These vehicles are
generally not consolidated by the Bank on the basis that the relevantactivities of the vehicles are directed by the fund manager, and no substantive
kick-out rights exist. The investments held in the vehicles are measured at fair value with changes therein being recognised in profitor loss.
Distributions made by the vehicles will be recognised as investmentincome in profit or loss. The vehicles are funded through the commitment and
provision of capital by investors.

Securitisation vehicles

The Bank has used SEsin order to securitise loans that were originated by the Bank. These entities have minimal equity and therefore rely on funding
in the form of notes in order to acquire the underlying loans. The Bank transfers the contractual right to receive cash flows on the underlying loans,
but in many instances, does not relinquish exposure to substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Exposures to credit risk prepayment risk
and/or interestrate risk areretained when the Bank purchases either senior notes or junior notes and sells derivatives to the entity. When the
securitisation vehicles areestablished to run entirely on autopilot or when theonly relevant activity of the entity constitutes recovery of the
securitised loansin the event of default, then provided such activityis not directed by the Bank, the Bank will not have power over the relevant
activities of the vehicle. The Bank earnsinterestincome on the notes issued by the vehicles, together with management fees from the Bank’s
ongoing involvement To the extent that the notes are fair valued, unrealised gains and losses are generated, which are recognised by the Bankin
profit orloss.

Exchange-traded funds

Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) are passively managed index funds thatare listed and traded on a securities exchange. An ETF tracks the performance
of and/or gains abroad exposure to a particular index, sector or commodity for individual and institutional investors. All ETFs havea market maker to
ensure that liquidity is always maintained, and in many instances, the Bank will act in this capacity. The Bank may therefore hold a directinterest in
the fund, but the magnitude of such interest will vary with sufficient regularity. Whether the Bank consolidates any of the funds depends on the
magnitude of the interest held therein, as well as on the Bank’s ability to direct the relevant activities of the fund, either directly or indirectly. The
Bank, through its contractual undertaking to actas market maker, ensures that liquidity is always maintained. The Bank earns management fee
income from itsinvolvement in the funds. To theextent that the Bankholds participatory units in the funds, the Bank will receive distributions
recognised as investment income, as well as unrealised gains and losses on the revaluations thereof. ETFs are regulated by the Financial Sector
Conduct Authority and the Collective Investment Schemes Control Act, No. 45 of 2002.
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44,

44.1

Structured entities (continued)

Funding vehicles
The Bank provides funding in the form of loans to bankruptcy remote SEs to enable themto purchase fixed assets, such as property. The loans are
fully collateralised by the underlying asset, and the repayment of principal and interest is met through thereceipt of lease income. Theloansare

subject to guarantees received from the parent company, or from other trading entities within the same group of companies. The Bank earns interest
on the loans. The loans are either measured at amortised cost, or are designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Consolidated structured entities
During the reporting period the Bank provided financial or other support to the following consolidated SEs despite not being contractually obliged to
doso:

Bank

2021
Name Nature of support Reason for providing support Rm

The Trust was constituted to fund community

TheAbsaFoundation Trust Donation - A
upliftment and social welfare programmes.

Subsidising the fixed cost incurred by the newETF
Various ETF Portfolios Expense Subsidy funds as the funds cannot yet cover their own costs
due tolow levels of market capitalisation

44.2

The Bank has consolidated the Absa Foundation Trustsince2006 and new ETFs since2017.
The Bank intends to provide financial support to the Absa Foundation Trust and any new ETFs in 2023.

Unconsolidated structured entities
The level of riskthat the Bank is exposed to is determined by the nature and purpose of it holding an interest in the entity. Owing to the large
number of SEsin which theBank holds an interest, information about such entities has been aggregated according to the purpose for which the
entity was established.

Bank

2022

Preference Structured

funding investment Securitisation Exchange Funding
vehicles vehicles vehicles traded funds vehicles

Assets
Trading portfolio assets - 346 - = o 346
Investment securities = = - 3706 - 3706
Debt securities - - - - - -
Equity securities = = - 3706 - 3706
Loans and advances to customers 29 694 - 500 - 13 30207
Undrawn liquidity facilities and 281 281
financial guarantees (notional value)* o o = - - -
29 694 346 781 3706 13 34 540
Maximum exposure to loss? 29 694 346 781 3706 13 34 540
Total size of entities® 122 529 346 1447 25908 13 150243

There are no liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments with third parties that may affect the fair value or risk of the entity’s interest in unconsolidated
structured assets.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to loss has been calculated as the sum of its assets recognised in the statement of financial position and its unrecognised contractual commitments
to provide further finance. The actual loss, due to the collateral held by the entities, the availability of netting and credit protection held is likely to be less in most cases.

3 . e .
Total size of entities is measured relative to total assets.
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44. Structuredentities (continued)
44.2 Unconsolidated structured entities (continued)

Bank
2021
Preference Structured Exchange
funding Investment Securitisation traded Funding
vehicles vehicles vehicles funds vehicles Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Investment securities - 234 - 4225 - 4459
Debt securities - 234 - - - 234
Equity securities - - - 4225 - 4225
Loans and advances to customers 26 632 - 593 - 15 27 240
Undrawn liquidity facilities and
financial guarantees (notional value)* - - 240 - - 240
26 632 234 833 4225 15 31939
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading - - - - - -
Interest rate derivatives - - - - - -
(carryingvalue) - - - - - -
Interest rate derivatives - - - - - -
(notional value) - - - - - -
Deposits due to customers - - - - - -
Maximum exposure to loss’ 26 632 234 833 4225 15 31939
Total size of entities® 120168 234 1631 28999 15 151047

44.3 Sponsored entities

The Bank did not earn material income from its involvement in the unconsolidated SEs which it sponsors.

Assets transferred to unconsolidated sponsored structured entities

The Bank did not transfer assets during the current reporting year (202 1: Rnil) to its unconsolidated sponsored structured entities.

There are no liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments with third parties that may affect the fair value or risk of the entity’s interest in unconsolidated

structured assets.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to loss has been calculated as the sum of its assets recognised in the statement of financial position and its unrecognised contractual commitments
to provide further finance. The actual loss, due to the collateral held by the entities, the availability of netting and credit protection held is likely to be less in most cases.

3 . L . .
Total size of entities is measured relative to total assets.
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Bank
Restated

Rm

45. Cashandcashequivalents

Mandatory reserve balances with the SARB and other central banks® 21813 19379
Coins and notes 6241 6067
Loans and advances to banks?! 8409 4879

36463 30325

1This note has been restated, refer to 1.19.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 [121



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Bank
2021
Rm
46. Deferredcashandshare-based payments

Share-based payments expense 593 473
Equity-settled arrangements:
Absa Group Share Incentive Plan Performance Award (SIPP) 299 309
Absa Group Limited Share Incentive Plan Retention Buyout Award (SIPRB) 19 12
Absa Group Limited Share Incentive Plan Deferred Award (SIPD) 164 129
Absa Group Limited Share Incentive Plan Retention Award (SIPR) 72 10
Cash-settled arrangements:
Absa Group Share Incentive Plan Performance Award (SIPP) 33 9
Absa Group Limited Share Incentive Plan Retention Buyout Award (SIPRB) 0 2
Absa Group Limited Share Incentive Plan Deferred Award (SIPD) 6 2
Deferred cash expense
Absa Group Limited Cash Value Plan (CVP) 10 41
Total deferred cash and share-based payments (refer to note 28) 603 514
Total carrying amount of liabilities for cash-settled arrangements (refer to note 14) 50 94
Total carrying amount of equity settled share based payment arrangement (refer to the statement 977 614

of changes in equity)

Cash-settled share-based payment schemes are measured with reference tothe statement of financial position date and the Absa Group

Limited share price.
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46.

Deferred cash and share-based payments (continued)

Absa Group Limited ShareIncentive Plan Performance Award

Qualifying participants of the Share Incentive Plan Performance Award (SIPP) will be entitled to Absa Group Limited ordinary shares either
by way of a share award or a cash award that must be used to purchase Absa Group Limited ordinary shares. The Bank retains the obligation
to settlein cash certain SIPP awards that are prohibited from being equity-settled. The award will be issued by Absa Group Limited. In order
for the participant to be entitled to these awards, the participant needs to render three years or five years (depending on the grant received)
of serviceand therequisite performance conditionsneed to be met. Dividends may accumulate and are reinvested over the vesting period.

Absa Group Limited Sharelncentive Plan Retention Buyout Award

The Share Incentive Plan Retention Buyout Award (SIPRB) enables the Bank to attract and motivate new employees by buying out the “in the
money” portion of a participant’s shares or options under their previous employers’share scheme by offering the employees Absa Group
Limited awards. Thereis no consideration payable for the grant of an award and the vesting of the award is not subject to performance
conditions. Dividends may accumulate and are reinvested over the vesting period, which will align with the vesting period of the previous
employer.

Absa Group Limited ShareIncentive Plan Deferred Award

The Share Incentive Plan Deferred Award (SIPD) (and any associated notional dividends) are awarded at no cost to the participants. The
awards typically vest in equal tranches after one to five years. The Bank retains the obligation to settle in cash certain SVP awards that are
prohibited from beingequity-settled. The amount that is paid tothe cash-settled participantsis equal to the market value of a number of
Absa Group Limited ordinary shares, as determined on the vesting date. On vesting, equity-settled participants are awarded Absa Group
Limited ordinary shares in settlement of their awards. Dividends may accumulate and are reinvested over the vesting period.

Absa Group Limited ShareIncentive Plan Retention Award

The Share Incentive Plan Retention Award (SIPR) (and any associated notional dividends) are awarded at no cost to the participants. The
awards vest after three to five years. The Bank retains the obligation to settle in cash certain SVP awards that are prohibited from being
equity-settled. Theamount thatis paid to the cash-settled participants is equal to the market value of a number of Absa Group Limited
ordinary shares, as determined on the vesting date. On vesting, equity-settled participants are awarded Absa Group Limited ordinary shares
in settlement of their awards. Dividends may accumulate and are reinvested over the vesting period.

Additionalto Share Incentive Plan Retention Award: Individual Performance Conditions
Award will Vest on the Vesting Date(s), subject toachievinga performance ratingin respect of the 2021,2022 and 2023 performance years
of “Good or above” (or any other equivalent ratingin force from time to time).

Absa Group Limited Restricted ShareValuePlan

The Restricted Share Value Plan (RSVP) awards (and any associated notional dividends) are awarded at no cost to the participants. Vesting
periods range from two to five years, with each tranche subject to its own independent non-market-related performance conditions on
vesting. The Bank retains the obligation to settlein cash certain Restricted SVPawards that are prohibited from being equity-settled. The
amount thatis paid to the cash-settled participants is equal to the market value of a number of Absa Group Limited ordinary shares, as
determined on the vesting date, to the extent that the non-market-related conditions attached tothe awards are met. On vesting, equity-
settled participants are awarded Absa Group Limited ordinary shares in settlement of their awards. Dividends may accumulate and are
reinvested over the vesting period.
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46. Deferred cashandshare-based payments (continued)

Number of awards '000

2021

Opening Granted/ Closing Opening Granted/ Closing
balance transferred Forfeited Exercised balance balance transferred Forfeited Exercised balance
Equity-
settled:
SIPP 14 058 2469 (4 451) (929) 11147 12610 3144 (1642) (54) 14058
SIPRB 217 150 (16) (106) 245 204 148 (36) (99) 217
SIPD 2843 1287 (82) (1512) 2536 4659 498 (364) (1950) 2843
SIPR 824 754 (60) - 1518 - 833 (9) - 824
RSVP 52 - - (20) 32 71 - - (19) 52
Cash-settled:
SIPP 95 33 (23) 9) 96 62 33 - - 95
SIPRB 6 - - (6) (0) 16 - - (10) 6
SIPD 14 14 (1) (6) 21 14 4 - (4) 14

The terms and conditions of the above share-based payment arrangements dictate thatawards be settled immediately on vesting and
therefore there are noawards which have vested but have not yet been settled at any given time. Furthermore the awards outstandingin
the aforementioned schemes have no exercise price.

Weighted average share price at

exercise dateduring thereporting

period (Rands)

Weighted average contractual life of
awards outstanding (years)

(Rands)

Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the period

2022 2021 NG Il 2022 2021
Equity-settled:
SIPP 155.46 151.61 1.06 1.33 190.62 137.18
SIPRB 135.05 138.54 1.08 1.22 167.19 129.13
SIPD 102.66 117.40 0.80 0.72 190.64 124.17
SIPR - - 1.97 2.75 190.58 153.24
RSVP 153.00 138.43 - 0.09 - -
Cash-settled:
SIPP 178.58 - 1.26 1.40 191.00 124.17
SIPRB 181.56 147.06 - 0.54 - -
SIPD 191.00 124.17 0.96 0.88 191.00 12417
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46. Deferredcashandshare-based payments (continued)

Future cash flow affects associated with equity settled share payments

Bank
2022

From 1 year to 5

Within 1 year
years

More than 5 years

Estimate of amount expected to be transferred to tax

authorities 642 627 - 1269
2021
Within 1 year From 1year to 5 More than 5 years Total
years

Estimate of amount expected to be transferred to tax
authorities 228 513 - 741

The estimates provided above indicate the amounts which are expected to be transferred to tax authorities relating to the employees’ tax
obligations on equity schemes which have been granted but which vestin future periods. The amounts were estimated based on the number
of awards expected tovest, the share price as at year end and an estimate of the average applicable employee effective tax rate.

47. Acquisitions and disposals of businesses and other similar transactions
47.1 Acquisitions of businesses during the current reporting period
There were no acquisitions of businesses during the current reporting period.
47.1.2 Disposals of businesses during the current reporting period
There were nodisposals of businesses during the current reporting period.
47.2.1 Acquisitions of businesses during the previous reporting period
There were noacquisitions of businesses during the previous reporting period.

47.2.2 Disposals of businesses during the previous reporting period

The Bank disposed of Card Issuingand Personal loan books on 30 June 2021. The bank received a cash consideration of R94m on disposal.
The Bank disposed of the Integrated Processing Solution investment on 30 September 2021. The Bank received a cash consideration of
R12mon disposal.
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48,
48.1

48.2

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are entered intoin the normal course of businessto manage various financial risks.

The derivative instrument contractvalue is derived from one or more underlying financial instruments or indices definedin the contract
They include swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of these instruments and primarily affect the Bank’s net
interest income, net tradingincome, net fee and commission income and derivative assets and liabilities.

Some derivative financial instruments have been designated as hedginginstruments infair value or cash flow hedgingrelationshipsor
hedges of net investments in foreign operations. At the reporting date, the Bank did not have any compound financial instruments with
multiple embedded derivatives inissue.

The Bank trades the following derivative instruments:

Foreign exchange derivatives

The Bank’s principal exchange rate-related contracts are forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options.
Forward foreign exchange contracts are agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign currency, usually on a specified future
date at an agreed rate. A currency swap generally involves the exchange, or notional exchange, of equivalent amounts of two currencies
and a commitment to exchange interest periodically until the principal amounts are re-exchanged on a future date.

Currency options provide the buyer with the right, but not the obligation, either to purchase or sella fixed amount of a currency at a
specified exchange rate on or before a future date. As compensation for assuming the option risk, the option writer generally receives a
premium at the start of the option period.

Interest rate derivatives

The Bank’s principalinterest rate related contracts are interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, basis swaps, caps, floors and
swaptions.Included in this product category are transactionsthat include combinations of these features. An interest rate swap is an
agreement between two parties to exchange fixed rate and floating rate interest by means of periodic payments based upon a notional
principalamount and the interest rates defined in the contract. Certain agreements combine interest rate and foreign currency swap
transactions, which may or may not include the exchange of principal amounts. In a forward rate agreement, two parties agree a future
settlement of the difference between an agreed rate and a future interest rate, applied toa notional principal amount.

Interest rate derivatives, designated as cash flow hedges, primarily hedge the exposure to cash flow variability from interest rates of
variable rate loans tobanks and customers, variable rate debt securitiesheld and highly probable forecast financing transactions and
reinvestments.

Interest rate derivatives designated as fair value hedges primarily hedge the interest rate risk of fixed rate borrowings in issue, fixed rate
loans to banks and customers as well as investments in fixed rate debt securities held.

Credit derivatives

The Bank’s principal credit derivative-related contracts include credit default swaps and total return swaps. A credit derivative is an
arrangement whereby the credit risk of an asset (the reference asset) is transferred to the seller of protection. A credit default swap isa
contract where the protection seller receives premium or interest-related paymentsin return for contracting to make payments tothe
protection buyer upon a defined creditevent. Credit events normally include bankruptcy, payment default, or downgrades by a rating
agency.

Atotal return swap is an instrument whereby the seller of protection receives the full return of the asset, including both the income and
changein the capital value of the asset. The buyer of the protection inreturn receives a predetermined amount.

Equity derivatives

The Bank’s principal equity-related contracts are equity and stock index swaps and options (including warrants, which are equity options
listed on an exchange). An equity swap is an agreement between two parties to exchange periodic payments, based upon a notional
principalamount, with one side payingfixed or floatinginterest and the other side paying based on the actual return of the stock or stock
index. An equity option provides the buyer with the right, but not the obligation, either to purchase or sell a specified stock, basket of
stocks or stock index at a specified price or level on or before a specified date. The Bank also enters into fund-linked derivatives, being
swaps and options which include mutual funds, hedge funds, indices and multi-asset portfolios as underlying.

Commodity derivatives
The Bank’s principal commodity-related derivative contractsare swaps, options, forwards and futures. The main commodities transacted
are agricultural commodities and precious metals.

Notional amount

The gross notional amount is the sum of the absolute value of all contracts. The notional amount will not generally reflect the amount
receivable or payable under a derivative contract. The notional amount should be viewed only as a means of assessing the Bank’s
participation in derivative contracts and not the market risk position nor the credit exposure arising on such contracts.

The absolute value of all contracts is also not indicative of the Bank’s net exposure to, or position in any of the markets that the Bank
tradesin.
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48. Derivatives (continued)
48.3 Derivative financial instruments
The Bank’s total derivative asset and liability position as reported on the statement of financial position is as follows:
Bank
2021
Notional Notional
contract contract
Assets  Liabilities amount Assets'  Liabilities® amount
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
perivayes held for trading (refer tonote 4 and 57076  (54550) 10270883 55701 (46957) 7274921
22;';?(‘)":;:?'agr:‘jtne:t:ig)eldg'”g Instruments 4972 (2237) 291801 3696 (2910) 272461
Total derivatives 62048 (56 787) 10562 684 59397 (49 867) 7547 382
48.4 Derivatives held for trading - detail by market and instrument type
Derivatives held for trading by the Bank related to the various markets and instrument types the Bank trades inare as
follows:
Bank
2021
Notional Notional
contract contract
Assets Liabilities amounts Assets' Liabilities! amounts*
Foreign exchange derivatives 16 394 (16 947) 907 135 10090 (11 490) 660 085
Forwards 5912 (6 679) 158074 2092 (2840) 116 229
Futures - - 14957 - - 14099
Swaps 8020 (9 636) 522 634 5305 (8378) 435994
Options 2462 (632) 211470 2693 (272) 93763
Interest rate derivatives 31491 (32548) 9156 886 35968 (31868) 6454779
Forwards 1639 (1 665) 2177 588 848 (1195) 1660426
Futures - - 111209 - - 78069
Swaps? 29 632 (30671) 6 825954 34976 (30546) 4691414
Options?® 220 (212) 42 135 144 (127) 24 870
Equity derivatives 8779 (4 678) 188 426 8581 (2682) 148871
Forwards 565 (823) 30261 177 (1170) 23275
Futures - - 42392 - - 22408
Swaps* 4936 (3730) 51536 533 (1319) 50388
Options?® 3278 (125) 52701 7871 (193) 40013
Options - exchange traded - - - - - 3951
Other - 0OTC - - 11536 - - 8836
Commodity derivatives 188 (117) 6764 920 (824) 5359
Forwards 23 (69) 4381 85 (88) 4792
Swaps 129 (25) 2056 578 (540) 403
Options 36 (23) 327 257 (196) 164
Credit derivatives
Default swaps 224 (260) 11673 142 (93) 5827
Derivatives held for trading 57076 (54550) 10270884 55701 (46957) 7274921
Note 4 13 4 13

Forwards, swaps and options in the table above have been traded on a bilateral OTCbasis, unless specified otherwise. Futures in the table above

have been traded on authorised exchanges.

1During the year the Group determined that certain items previously disclosed as Swaps within Interest rate and Equity derivatives would be more appropriately disclosed as Options within these same categories. Amounts

have accordingly been reclassifiedas follows:
Interest rate derivatives (Assets - R110m; Liabilities - R114m; Notionals - R22 090m)
Equity derivatives (Assets — R1 249m; Notionals - R3 951m)
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48. Derivatives (continued)

48.5 Counterparty netting and collateral

Derivative assets subject to counterparty netting agreements amounted toR61 260m (2021: R58 146m). Additionally, the Bank held
R1727m(2021:R2 219m) of collateral against the net derivative asset exposure.

OTCtraded instruments are subjectto counterparty credit risk as the related cash flows are not guaranteed by an independent third
party. This risk is mitigated by means of netting agreements. The International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master
Agreement is used by the Bank. The ISDA Master Agreement and all the confirmations entered into under it, formasingle
agreement. This allows the parties toan ISDA Master Agreement to aggregate the amounts owing by each of them under all of the
transactions outstanding under that ISDA Master Agreement and toreplace them with a single net amount payable by one party to
the other.

48.6 Hedge Accounting

Risk Management Strategy

Where derivatives are held for risk management purposes, and when transactions meet the required criteria for documentation and hedge
effectiveness, the Bank appliesfair value hedge accounting, cash flow hedge accounting, or hedging of a netinvestmentina foreign
operation, as appropriate tothe risks being hedged. The assessment of the effectiveness of hedge relationships are performed on a
cumulative life to date basis.

In order to hedge the risks towhich the Bankis exposed, the hedginginstruments employed are interest rate swaps, inflation swaps, cross
currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. The economic relationship between the hedge instrument and the hedged items is
aligned since all hedginginstruments are exposed to the same risks as the hedged items, beinginterest rate risk, inflation risk and/or
foreign currency risk.

Interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, primarily hedge the exposure to cash flow variability from interest rates of variable
rate loans to banks and customers, variable rate borrowed funds or debt securities held and highly probable forecast investment
transactions.

Foreign exchange derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, primarily hedge the exposure to highly probable forecast foreign denominated
expenditure.

Interest rate derivatives designated as fair value hedges primarily hedge the interest rate risk of fixed rate borrowings in issue, fixed rate
loans to banks and customers as well as investments in fixed rate debt securities held.

In certain circumstances, items thatare designated for hedge accounting purposes are different from the economic hedge owingtothe
existence of restrictionson the ability toapply hedge accounting to the economic hedge. Specifically, the Bank employs a governed interest
rate risk management strategy (hedging programme) through the interest rate cycle toreduce volatility associated with structural balances
(i.e, rateinsensitive liabilities as well as the endowment associated with equity).

The hedge ratio between the hedged item and the hedginginstrumentsis typically determined with reference to the sensitivity of the
hedged item, on designation, totherisk factor, compared tothe hedginginstrument.In many cases the hedge ratiois directly proportional
to the hedged item.

In some hedgingrelationships, the Bank would designate risk components of hedged items as follows:
(i) Benchmarkinterest raterisk;

(ii) Inflation risk as a contractually specified component of a debt instrument;

(i) Spot exchangeraterisk for foreign currency denominated financial assets or financial liabilities;

(iv) Spotor forward exchange raterisk for highly probable forecast foreign denominated expenditure or a net investmentin a foreign
operation

(v) Components of cash flows of hedged items, for example certain interest payments for part of the life of an instrument
Sources of ineffectiveness which may affect the Bank’s designated hedge relationships are as follows:

(i)  Mismatches between the contractual terms of the hedged item and hedginginstrument, including basis differences between the
hedged risk and the risk exposure of the hedginginstrument;

(ii) Changesin creditrisk of the hedginginstruments.

(iii) If ahedgeaccountingrelationship becomes overhedged. This mightoccur in hedges of net investments ifthe net asset value
designated at the start of the period fallsbelow the amount of the hedginginstrument.

No other source of ineffectiveness has arisen during the period.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |128



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives(continued)
48.6 Hedge Accounting
48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting

Fair value hedges are used by the Bank to protect against changes in fairvalue of financial instruments due to movements in exchange
rates and interest rates. The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk include investment securities, loans and advances, debt
securities and borrowed funds. The profile and timing of hedginginstruments designated in fair value hedge relationships based on
notional amounts are as follows:

Bank

More than

Less than 5 years

1year years

Rm Rm
Interest raterisk-Interest rate swaps 6776 586 3390 28713 1630 32 835 73930
Hedge of investment securities 817 - 2229 19528 171 32265 55010
Hedge of loans and advances 882 544 569 141 42 320 2498
Hedge of debt securities in issue 125 42 592 2178 1417 250 4604
Hedge of borrowed funds 4952 - - 6866 = = 11818

Interest rate risk-Cross currency swaps
Hedge of investment securities - -

Inflation risk-Interest rate swaps

Hedge of investment securities 225 280 100 - - 379 984
2021
More than
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5 years
1year years years years years years Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Interest rate risk-Interest rate swaps 6161 7066 827 4129 27 588 26925 72 696
Hedge of investment securities 2700 817 239 2967 18403 24 892 50018
Hedge of loans and advances 1867 823 546 570 141 366 4313
Hedge of debt securities in issue 1229 125 42 592 2178 1667 5833
Hedge of borrowed funds 365 5301 - - 6866 - 12532
Interest rate risk-Cross currency swaps
Hedge of investment securities 2857 - - - - - 2857
Inflation risk-Interest rate swaps
Hedge of investment securities 736 200 155 100 - 379 1570
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48. Derivatives(continued)
48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)
48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting (continued)

The average rates or prices set out below relate to the hedginginstruments designated in fair value hedging relationships:

Bank
2022 2021
A EECE XN EI R/ Average price or rate %
Interest raterisk
Interest rate swaps
Average fixed interest rate 8% 8%
Inflation risk
Interest rate swaps
Average fixed interest rate 3% 3%

If the hedge accountingobjective changes, the relevanthedge accountingrelationshipis de-designated; in some cases a de-designated
relationship isreplaced with a different hedge accounting relationship.

The following amounts relate toitems designated as hedginginstruments in fairvalue hedge relationships:

Bank

Changein fair

value used for

calculating
hedge Ineffectivenes

Notional ineffectivenes recognised in

amount Assets Liabilities for2022 profitorloss
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Total 74914 4498 (1274) 2798 (15)
Interest rate risk 73930 4160 (1015) 2824 10
Interest rate swaps - hedge of investment securities 55010 5080 (812) 4036 -
Cross currency swaps - hedge of investment

securities - - - (2) -
Interest rate swaps - hedge of loans and advances 2498 17 (168) 124 9
Interest rate swaps - hedge of borrowed funds 11818 (987) - (1001) 1
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities in

issue 4604 50 (35) (333) -
Inflation risk

Inflation linked swaps - hedge of investment

securities 984 16 (259) (26) (25)
Collateral held against derivatives? - 322 - - -
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)
48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)
48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting (continued)

2021
Changein fair
value used for
calculating
hedge Ineffectiveness
Notional ineffectiveness  recognised in
amount Assets? Liabilities® for2021  profitor loss
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Total 77123 1265 (2 755) 1508 (34)
Interest rate risk 75553 1295 (2262) 1503 1
Interest rate swaps - hedge of investment securities® 50018 789 (1878) 2078 11
Cross currency swaps - hedge of investment
securities 2857 - (71) (2) -
Interest rate swaps - hedge of loans and advances*® 4313 - (311) 183
Interest rate swaps - hedge of borrowed funds! 12532 110 - (359)
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt securities in
issuet 5833 396 (2) (397) (12)
Inflation risk
Inflation linked swaps - hedge of investment
securitiest 1570 15 (493) 5 (35)
Collateral held against derivatives? - (45) - - -

The hedge ineffectiveness in profit andloss is presented within gains and losses from banking and trading activities on the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, and the hedginginstruments of the Bank are presented within Hedging portfolio assets and liabilities on the
Statement of Financial Position.

1These amounts have been restated, refer to reporting changes overview note 119.
2These disclosures have been included for fair presentation.
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives(continued)

48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)
48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting (continued)

The followingamounts relate to items that were designated as hedged items in a fairvalue hedge relationships:

Hedged item statement of financial position
classification and risk category

Carrying

value
Rm

Bank
2022

Accumulated fair
value adjustment
included in the
carrying amount
of the hedged
item

Rm

Portion related
to items no
longerin ahedge
relationship

Rm

Changein
value used for
calculating
hedge
ineffectiveness
Rm

Financial Assets

Investment securities 54 665 (3762) (10) (3989)
Interest raterisk 52339 (3643) (13) (4 035)
Inflation risk 2326 (119) 3 46

Loans and advances
Interest raterisk 2953 (58) (5) (139)

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities in issue
Interest raterisk (5347) 23 0 333

Borrowed funds
Interest raterisk (15 329) 940 - 1000

2021
Accumulated fair Changein
valueadjustment  portion related value used for
c;r;:)lllijr?ggrlr?omi to items no calculating

Hedged item statement of financial position Carrying of thehedged longerinahedge hedge

classification andrisk category value item relationship  ineffectiveness

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial Assets

Investment securities 56 363 728 (6) (2057)
Interest rate risk 52901 783 (14) (2087)
Inflation risk 3462 (55) 8 30

Loans and advances
Interest rate risk 3975 71 (7) (195)

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities in issue
Interest rate risk (6 503) (337) 0 409

Borrowed funds
Interest rate risk (15170) (60) - 358
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)
48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)

48.6.2 Cash Flow hedge accounting

Gash flow hedges are used by the Bank to protect against the potential cash flow variability arising from the Bank exposure to; interest rate
and foreign currency risk. The financial instruments designated as hedged items include loans and advances, and highly probable forecast

foreign denominated expenditure.
The profile and timing of hedginginstrumentsdesignated in cash flow hedge relationshipsbased on notional amounts are as follows:

Bank

More than

Less than 5 years
1 year years
Rm Rm

Interest rate risk-Interest rate swaps

Hedge of loans and advances 78 895 21763 26 754 28305 23717 21200 200634
Foreign currency risk-Cross currency swaps 6 887 30 - 5420 - - 12337
Hedge of debt securities - 30 - - - - 30
Hedge of borrowed funds 6887 - - 5420 - - 12307
Foreign currency risk-Forwards
Hedge of highly probable forecastexpenditure 2804 1112 - - - - 3916
2021
More than
Less than 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5 years
1 year years years years years years Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Interest rate risk-Interest rate swaps

Hedge of loans and advances 59424 32592 18393 26513 28295 15432 180649
Foreign currency risk-Cross currency swaps - 6 887 50 - 5420 128 12485
Hedge of investment securities - - - - - 128 128
Hedge of debt securities - - 50 - - - 50
Hedge of borrowed funds - 6 887 - - 5420 - 12 307

Foreign currency risk-Forwards -

Hedge of highly probable forecastexpenditure 2112 92 - - - - 2204

The average rates or prices set out below relate tothe hedginginstruments designated in cash flow hedging relationships:

Bank
LA EECE XM E1e] Average price or rate
Interest rate risk
Interest rate swaps 7% 7%
Foreign currency risk
Currency swaps
Average EUR/ZAR exchange rates 18.75 11.99
Average GBP/ZAR exchange rates 21.84 1434
Average USD/ZAR exchange rates 16.93 17.04
Average CZK/ZAR exchange rates 0.71 0.00
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)
48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)
48.6.2 Cash flow hedge accounting (continued)

If the hedge accounting objective changes, the relevanthedge accountingrelationshipis de-designated; in some cases a de-designated
relationship isreplaced with a different hedge accounting relationship.
The following amounts relate to items designated as hedginginstruments in cash flow hedge relationships:

Notional

amount
Rm

Assets

Rm

Bank
2022
Changesin
fair value
used to
calculate
hedge

ineffectivenes
s

Liabilities

Rm Rm

Hedging
gains or
losses

recognised

in OCI

Rm

Interest raterisk

Total 216 887 474 (963) (6 402) (3438) (208)
Interest rate swaps - Hedge of Loans and
advances 200634 92 (4 595) (6 387) (3490) (218)
Foreign currency risk - cross currency swaps 12 337 220 - (52) 15 -
Foreign currency swaps - hedge of investment
securities - - - - - -
Foreign currency swaps - hedge of debt
securities 30 11 - 9) (1) -
Foreign currency swaps - hedge of borrowed
funds 12 307 209 - (43) 16 -
Foreign currency risk - forwards
Forwards - hedge of forecast expenditure 3916 162 (63) 37 37 10
Collateral held against derivatives® - - 3695 - - -
2021
Changesin Hedge
fair value Hedging ineffect
used to gains or iveness
calculate losses  recognised
Notional hedge  recognised in profit
amount Assets!  Liabilities! ineffectiveness in OCI or loss
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Interest rate risk
Total 195338 2429 (154) (6427) (1463) (539)
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Loans and
advances! 180649 2694 (139) (6 688) (1802) (535)
Foreign currency risk - cross currency swaps 12 485 355 - 183 262 1
Foreign currency swaps - Hedge of loans and
advances 128 142 - (1) 66 1
Foreign currency swaps - Hedge of debt
securities 50 20 - (2) 10 -
Foreign currency swaps - Hedge of borrowed
funds 12307 193 - 186 186 -
Foreign currency risk - forwards
Forwards — hedge of forecast expenditure 2204 48 (15) 78 77 (5)
Collateral held against derivatives? - (668) - - - -

The hedge ineffectiveness in profit andloss is presented within gains and losses from bankingand trading activities on the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

LThese numbers have been restated, refer to reporting changes overview note 1.19.
2These disclosures have been included for fair presentation.
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48.
48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)

Derivatives (continued)

48.6.2 Cash flow hedge accounting (continued)

The hedginginstruments of the Bank are presented within Hedging portfolio assets/liabilities, on the statement of financial position.
Hedge accounting has not been applied toany forecast transactions that have not subsequently occurred.
Impact on the income statement and OCl of recyclingamounts in respect of cash flow hedges during the period.

Amount

recycled
from OCl

to profit and

2022
Amount

recycled
from OCl
dueto hedge

Bank

Amount
recycled
from OCI

to profitland

2021
Amount

recycled
from OCI
due tohedge

dueto discontinued dueto  discontinued
continuing continuing
et hedges hedges hedges Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash flow hedge of interest rate risk 2663 (3) 2660 4211 27 4238
Recycled tointerest income 2486 24 2510 3902 15 3917
Recycled tointerest expense 177 27) 150 309 12 321
Cash flow hedge of currency risk 47 11 58 (75) _ (75)
Recycled tointerest income 11 11 68 _ 68
Recycled tointerest expense 59 _ 59 _ _ _
Recycled tooperating expenses (12) _ (12) (143) _ (143)
Total 2710 8 2718 4136 27 4163
The following amounts relate toitems designated as hedged items in cash flow hedges:
Bank
2022 2021
Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow
Changein hedge hedge Changein hedge hedge
value used for reserve (S value used for reserve reserve
calculating  inrespectof inrespectof calculating in respect of in respect of
hedge continued discontinued hedge continued  discontinued
ineffectiveness hedges WGBS ineffectiveness hedges hedges
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Loans and advances
Interest rate risk 6983 (4 586) (42) 5960 1546 (22)
Highly probable forecast transactions
Foreign currency risk (37) 80 - (78) 30 -
Highly probable forecast transactions
Foreign currency risk - - - 1 11 -
Highly probable forecast transactions
Foreign currency risk 9 - - 2 1 -
Highly probable forecast transactions
Foreign currency risk (43) 143 - (186) 186 -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)

48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)

48.6.3 Reconciliation of equity
Thefollowingtable provides a reconciliation by risk category of components of equity and analysis of OCl items (before tax) resulting from
hedge accounting.

Bank
2021

Cash flow Cash flow
WEELNEEEYE  hedge reserve

Rm Rm
Balance on 1 January 1755 7381
Foreign currency translation movements
Hedging gains/(losses) for the reporting period (3438) (1463)
Interest raterisk (3490) (1802)
Foreign currency risk 52 339
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss
In relation to cash flows affecting profit or loss (2718) (4163)
Balance on 31 December (4 401) 1755
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)

48.7 Interest rate benchmark reform
Background

The Bank structures and executes a variety of transactions, including equity-linked offerings, debt issuances, lending activities as well as structured
and derivative transactions.

Fair value hedges are used by the Bank to protect against changes in the fairvalue of financial instruments due to movements in interest rates and
are therefore affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk include fixed rate investment
securities, fixed rate loans and advances, fixed debt securities and borrowed funds. The hedging instruments typically utilised are interest rate
swaps or cross currency swaps, which reference a floating rate, such as ZAR JIBAR or USD LIBOR.

Cash flow hedges are used by the Bank to protect against the potential cash flow variability arising from exposure to interest rate and foreign
currency riskand are therefore also affected by interest rate benchmark reform. The financial instruments designated as hedged items include
variablerateloans and advances, and the hedginginstrumentstypically utilised are interest rate swaps or cross currency swaps which reference a
floating rate, such as ZARJIBAR or USD LIBOR.

In addition, the Bank has derivative and non-derivative financial instruments linked to IBORs that are not in hedge accounting relationships.

The GBP, EUR and JPY LIBOR rates and the one-week and two-month USD LIBOR rates were discontinued at 31 December 2021. The remaining USD
LIBOR rates are expected tobe discontinued post 30 June 2023.

The Bank’s exposure to IBORs subject to change at 31 December 2022 were not significant compared tothose expected tobe changed post June
2023.The GBP LIBOR, EUR LIBOR, JPY LIBOR and USD LIBOR have transitioned tothe Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA), Euro Short-Term
Rate (ESTR), Tokyo Overnight Average Rate (TONAR) and Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) respectively, as alternative reference rates.

The SARBannounced in 2020 that the JIBAR would cease to exist in the near future as it did not comply with the International Organisation of
Securities Commissions Principles for Financial Benchmarks. The SARB Market Practitioners Bank (MPG), a joint public-private body has been
mandated to facilitate decisionson the choice of alternative reference rates for financial contractsthat should replace JIBAR.

The transition journey for JIBAR has made some progress at an industry level however transition timelines are yet to be announced by the SARB.
The Group participates in the SARB’s MPG which has started the preparations for the transition of JIBAR at an industry level. The Group will leverage
the experienceit gained in the IBOR transition journey to plan for the upcomingJIBAR transition. The Group’s JIBAR journey thus far includes daily
submission of transaction data to the SARB for the calculation and publication of ZARONIA.

The Bank’s IBOR transition steering committee which comprises a series of business and function workstreams with oversight and coordination
provided by a central project team is currently managing the transition. Workstreams actively participate inindustry-wide working groups to remain
informed of the latest developments and to ensure consistency with the approaches of other market participants.

The main risks towhich the Bank is exposed as result of IBOR reform are detailed below:

Conduct risk: The transition to alternative benchmark rates could result in the risk of market or customer misconduct, which may lead to customer
complaints, regulatory sanctions or reputational impact. This includes the risk of misleadingclients, anti-competitive practices, both duringand
after transition (such as collusion and information sharing) and risks arising from conflicts of interest.

Pricing and Valuation considerations: International Securities and Derivatives Association (ISDA) published the IBOR Fallbacks Supplement (the
Supplement) and ISDA 20201BOR Fallbacks Protocol (the Protocol) on 23 October 2020. New fallbacks for derivatives linked to key IBORs came into
effect on 25 January 2021, ensuringa viable safety netis inplacein the event an IBOR becomes permanently unavailable while entities continue to
have exposure to that rate. The supplement incorporates the fallbacks intoall new non-cleared derivatives contracts from 25 January 2021 that
reference the 2006 ISDA Definitions. Derivative participants canincorporate the fallback into legacy non-cleared derivatives contracts via use of an
ISDA protocol or through bilateral negotiation. For cleared derivatives, central counterparties have incorporated the ISDA IBOR fallbacks in their rde
books for both newand legacy contracts.

Accounting: If transition to alternative benchmark rates for certain contracts is finalised in a manner that does not permit the application of the
reliefs introduced inthe Phase 2 amendments, this could lead to discontinuation of hedge accountingrelationships, increased volatility in profit or
loss if re-designated hedges are not fully effective, and volatility in the profit or loss if non-derivative financial instruments are modified or
derecognised. The Bank is aimingto agree changes to contracts that would allow IFRS 9 reliefs to apply.In particular, the Bankis not seeking to
novate derivatives or close out derivatives and enter into new on-market derivatives where derivatives have been designated in hedging
relationships.
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for thereporting period ended 31 December

48. Derivatives (continued)

48.7 Interest rate benchmark reform

Litigation risk: If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate benchmark reform on existingcontracts, (e.g, arisingfrom differing
interpretation of existing fallback terms), thereis a risk of litigation and prolonged disputes with counterparties which could give rise to additional
legal and other costs. The Bank is working proactively with all counterparties to minimise this risk from occurring.

Operational risk: Our Bank’s IT systems are undergoing upgrades to fully manage the transition toalternative benchmark rates and thereiis a risk
that such upgrades are not fully functional in time, resulting in additional manual procedures which give rise to operational risks.

These risks are being managed through either the Bank’s IBOR Steering Committee or where more appropriate the relevant function bestplaced to
monitor and/or mitigate risk.

Developments made towards implementing alternative benchmark interest rates

For derivatives subject tointerest rate reform, the Bank and a significantportion of its counterparties have adhered to the Protocol as well as the
Supplement. The protocol provides for the calculation of an economically equivalentrate to previous rates when IBORs are no longer available.

TheBank hasbeen systematicallyincludingfallbacklanguageinall newcontractsasof January 2021 acrossall LIBOR currencies.Forlegacy contracts
referencing LIBOR, particularly for non-USD currencies, the Bank has either included fallback language into the contracts or actively transitioned
these tonew risk-free rates i.e.re-contracted usingthe risk-free rates in preparation of the cessation of LIBOR. As at 31 December 2021 all active
transactions referencing non-USD LIBOR, either contain fallback language, have been actively transitioned or will naturally roll-off as they donot
have further reset dates. Absa isin the process of transiting contracts referencing USD LIBOR either through the use of fallbacks or the active
transitions approach and will aim to complete this activity by 30 June 2023.

The Bank will continue toapply the Phase 1 amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 39 until the uncertainty on the timingand amount of cash flows arising from
interest rate benchmark reform ends. It is expected that this uncertainty will continue until the Bank’s contractsthat reference IBORs are amended
to specify the date on which theinterest rate benchmark will be replaced and the basis for the cash flows of the alternative benchmark rate are
determined including any fixed spread. The Bank has elected to apply the Phase 2 amendments prospectively from effective date with no
restatement of comparatives.

The Bank’s cash flow hedgingrelationships of JIBAR and USD LIBOR risks extend beyond the anticipated cessation dates for both IBORs. There is
uncertainty over the timing and amount of the replacement rate cash flows which may impact the hedging relationship i.e. its effectiveness
assessment and highly probable assessment. For the purposes of these assessments, the Bank assumes that the hedged benchmark interest rate,
the cash flows of the hedged item and/or the hedginginstrument will not be altered as a result of IBOR reform.

If a hedgingrelationshipimpacted by uncertainty about IBOR reform has not been highly effective throughout the financial reporting period, then
the Bank evaluates whether the hedgeis expected to be highly effective prospectively and whether the effectiveness of the hedging relationship
can bereliably measured. The hedgingrelationship will not be discontinued as long as it meets all criteria for hedge accounting, with the exception
of the requirement that the hedge was actually highly effective.

Hedgingrelationships impacted by uncertaintyabout IBOR reform may experience ineffectiveness attributable to market participants’ expectations
of when the shift from the existing IBOR benchmark rate to an alternative benchmark interest rate will occur. This transition may occur at different
times for the hedged item and the hedginginstrument, which may lead to hedge ineffectiveness. The Bank has measured its hedginginstruments
indexed to IBORs using available quoted market rates for IBOR-based instruments of the same tenor and similar maturity and has measured the
cumulative change in the present value of hedged cash flows attributable to changes in IBOR on a similar basis.
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48. Derivatives (continued)
48.7 Interest rate benchmark reform

The Bank has certain designated hedging relationships where hedged items and/or hedginginstruments reference an interest rate
benchmark. These rates are in the process of being transitioned torisk free rates (RFRs) as these rateswill nolonger exist once the interest
rate benchmark reformis finalised.

The Bank’s cash flow hedgingrelationships of JIBAR and US dollar LIBOR risks extend beyond the anticipated cessation dates for both
IBORs. Thereis uncertainty over the timing and amount of the replacement rate cash flows which may impact the hedgingrelationshipi.e.
its effectiveness assessment and highly probable assessment. For the purposes of these assessments, the Bank assumes that the hedged
benchmarkinterest rate, the cash flows of the hedged item and/or the hedginginstrument will not be altered as a result of IBOR reform.

If ahedgingrelationshipimpacted by uncertainty about IBOR reform has not been highly effective throughout the financial reporting period,
then the Bank evaluates whether the hedge is expected to be highly effective prospectively and whether the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship canbe reliably measured. The hedgingrelationship will not be discontinued as longas it meets all criteria for hedge accounting,
with the exception of the requirement that the hedge was actually highly effective.

Hedgingrelationshipsimpacted by uncertainty about IBOR reform may experience ineffectiveness attributable to market participants’
expectations of when the shift from the existing IBOR benchmark rate to an alternative benchmark interest rate will occur. This transition
may occur at different times for the hedged item and the hedginginstrument, which may lead to hedge ineffectiveness. The Bank has
measured its hedginginstruments indexed to IBORs using available quoted market rates for IBOR-based instruments of the same tenor and
similar maturity and has measured the cumulative change in the present value of hedged cash flows attributable to changes inIBOR on a

similar basis.

Thetable below provides more information on the hedge accounting relationships that are impacted byinterest rate benchmark reform.

Bank
Notional amount
Notional
notimpacted by
benchmark Total
ZARJIBAR USDLIBOR EURLIBOR reform q
Notional
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash Flow Hedges 200634 - - - 200 634 16 253 216 887
Interest Rate Swaps 200634 - - - 200 634 - 200 634
Cross Currency Swaps = = - - - 12337 12337
Forwards o = = - - 3916 3916
Fair Value Hedges 59 800 15114 - - 74914 - 74914
Interest Rate Swaps 58816 15114 - 73930 - 73930
Cross Currency Swaps - - - - - - -
Inflation Rate Swaps 984 - - - 984 - 984

Notional amount

Notional
not impacted by

benchmark Total

PY
ZARJIBAR ~ USDLIBOR ~ EURLIBOR | ooo Total reform Notional
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash Flow Hedges 192 956 - 50 128 193134 2204 195338
Interest Rate Swaps 180 649 - - - 180649 - 180649
Cross Currency Swaps 12307 - 50 128 12485 - 12485
Forwards _ - - - - 2204 2204
Fair Value Hedges 61052 15943 - 128 77123 - 77123
Interest Rate Swaps 56 625 15943 - 128 72696 - 72696
Cross Currency Swaps 2857 - - - 2857 - 2857
Inflation Rate Swaps 1570 - - - 1570 - 1570
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48. Derivatives (continued)
48.7 Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

The table below provides information on financial instruments that have yet to transition to an alternative benchmark rate as at
the end of the reporting period

Bank
Carrying values of financial instruments impacted by
benchmark reform and yet to transition

USD LIBOR GBP LIBOR EURLIBOR JPY LIBOR

Rm
Non-derivative assets® 30763 - - - 30763
Non-derivative liabilities® 2891 - - - 2891
Derivative notionals? 764528 - - - 764528

Carrying values of financial instruments impacted by benchmark
reform and yet to transition

USD LIBOR GBP LIBOR EURLIBOR JPY LIBOR Total

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Non-derivative assets® 59758 1554 926 0 62238
Non-derivative liabilities® 5251 0 0 0 5251
Derivative notionals? 867998 4001 2212 63 874274

Financial instrument modifications due to IBOR reforms

If the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at amortised cost changes
as aresult of interest rate benchmark reform, then the Bank updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial
liability toreflect the change that is required by the reform if the following conditions are met; the change is necessaryas a direct
consequence of the reform; and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent tothe
previous basis i.e.the basis immediately before the change.

*Includes both on balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. Carrying amounts for on balance sheet and notional amounts for off-balance sheet have been
included.

2Balances represent the notional amount of derivative assets and liabilities directly impacted by the IBOR reform.
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Fair value through profit or loss

Mandatorily held Designated at

at fair value

Rm

fair value*
Rm

Hedging
instruments
Rm

49,

Consolidated statement of financial position summary
- IFRS9 classification

Assets

Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks

Investment securities 4171 9397 - 13568
Trading portfolio assets 155457 - - 155457
Hedging portfolio assets 2 - - 4972 4972
Other assets - - - -
Loans and advances 76 554 31674 - 108 228
Non-current assets held for sale - - - -
Loans to Group companies - - - -
Assets outside the scope of IFRS 9 - - - -
236182 41071 4972 282 225
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities 91397 - - 91397
Hedging portfolioliabilities - - 2237 2237
Other liabilities - - - -
Deposits - 117 655 - 117 655
Debt securities in issue - 62219 - 62219
Borrowed funds - - - -
Loans from Group companies - - - -
Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9° - - - -
91397 179874 2237 273508
Fair value through profit or loss
Mandatorily held Designated at Hedging |
at fair value fairvalue instruments Tota
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Consolidated statement of financial position summary
- IFRS 9 classification
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - - - -
Investment securities 5752 281 - 6033
Trading portfolio assets® 141334 - - 141334
Hedging portfolio assets*® - - 3696 3696
Other assets - - - -
Loans and advances® 82362 29514 - 111876
Non-current assets held for sale - - - -
Loans to Group companies - - - -
Assets outside the scope of IFRS 9 - - - -
229448 29795 3696 262939
Liabilities
Tradingportfolioliabilities® 68103 - - 68103
Hedging portfolioliabilities®® - - 2910 2910
Other liabilities - - - -
Deposits - 121375 - 121375
Debt securities in issue® - 23877 - 23877
Borrowed funds - - - -
Loans from Group companies - - - -
Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9° - - - -
68103 145 252 2910 216265

! Includes non- financial assets and liabilities and financial instruments outside the scope of IFRS 9.
?Includes derivative assets to the amount of R474m (2021: R3 502m) and R4 498m (2021: R1 300mm)that have been designated as cash flow and fair value hedging instruments

respectively.

?Includes derivative liabilities to the amount of R963m (2021: R913m) and R1 274m (2021: R2 746 m) that have been designated as cash flow and fair value hedging instruments

respectively.
*Includes items designated as hedged items in fair value hedging relationships.

® Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9 includes R813m (2021: R735) that relates to expected credit losses from undrawn fadilities, financial guarantees and letters of credit.

¢ These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19

’ The investmentin unlisted equity and hybrid instruments represent investments that are held for strategic long term purposes but have the ability to be sold atany point. Due to this
dual intention these investments have been designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

Absa Bank Limited . .
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |

141



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

2022
Fair value through other comprehensive income’ Amortised cost Assets/
liabilities Total assets
outsidethe and liabilities

scope of IFRS 9?
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Debt Equity Hedged Debt Hedged

2 Total

instruments instruments items' instruments items*

o o o o 37344 o 37344 = 37344
43745 438 29926 74109 16 025 24738 40763 - 128439
- - - - - - - 614 156 071
- - - - - - - - 4972
- - - - 14 837 - 14837 2426 17 263
- - - - 921339 2953 924 292 - 1032520
- - - - - - - 90 90
- - - - 73203 - 73203 - 73203
- - - - - - - 29450 29450
43745 438 29926 74109 1062 748 27 691 1090439 32580 1479 352
- - - - - - - - 91397
= = = = = = = = 2237
- - - - 21488 - 21488 2505 23993
- - - - 897 968 - 897 968 - 1015623
- - - - 135708 5347 141 055 - 203 275
- - - - 26 282 - 26 282 - 26282
- - - - 9152 - 9152 - 9152
- - - - - - - 4 455 4 455
- - - - 1090598 5347 1095945 6960 1376414
2021
Fair value through other comprehensive income Amortised cost

Assets/ liabilities Total assets

Debt Equit Hedged Debt Hedged outside the scope S
instruments instrurr?entz itergns4 Total instruments itergns4 Total of IFRS 9* and liabilities
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
- - - - 33751 - 33751 - 33751
40180 408 36744 77 332 13281 19619 32900 - 116 265
- - - - - - - 642 141976
- - - - - - - 3696
- - - - 14 392 - 14 392 2345 16 737
- - - - 816924 3975 820899 - 932775
- - - - - - 57 57
- - - - 76733 - 76733 - 76733
- - - - - - - 27 708 27 708
40180 408 36744 77 332 955081 23594 978 675 30752 1349698
- - - - - - - - 68103
- - - - - - - - 2910
- - - - 33357 - 33357 2476 35834
- - - - 852 746 - 852 746 - 974121
- - - - 96 891 6503 103394 - 127271
- - - - 11289 15170 26 459 - 26 459
- - - - 9214 - 9214 - 9214
- - - - - - - 4068 4068
- - - - 1003497 21673 1025170 6 544 1247980
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50. Fairvaluedisclosures
50.1 Assets andliabilities held atfair value

The following table shows the Bank's assets and liabilities that are recognised and subsequently measured at fair value and are analysed

by valuation techniques. The classification of assets and liabilities isbased on the lowest level input that issignificantto the fair value

measurement in its entirety.

Bank
2022 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3* Level 1 Level 23 Level 3 Total

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Investment securities 44522 38575 4580 87677 37400 39541 6424 83365
Tradingand hedging portfolio assets 84 706 65 645 10078 160429 71515 71188 2327 145030
Debt instruments® 81011 2348 486 83845 66 545 758 122 67 425
Derivative assets - 58098 3950 62048 - 58010 1386 59 396
Commodity derivatives - 188 - 188 - 907 13 920
Credit derivatives - 32 192 224 - 2 140 142
Equity derivatives - 5027 3752 8779 - 7 349 1232 8581
Foreign exchange derivatives - 16 388 6 16 394 - 10089 1 10090
Interest rate derivatives - 36463 - 36463 - 39663 - 39663
Equity instruments 1201 - - 1201 3877 - - 3877
Money market assets 2494 5199 5642 13 335 1093 12420 819 14332
Loans and advances - 98 701 9527 108228 - 95147 16729 111876
Total financial assets 129228 202921 24185 356334 108915 205876 25480 340271

Financial liabilities

Tradingand hedging portfolio

liabilities 36 847 56424 363 93634 21146 49 594 273 71013
Derivative liabilities - 56 424 363 56 787 - 49594 273 49 867
Commodity derivatives - 117 - 117 - 823 1 824
Credit derivatives - - 260 260 - - 93 93
Equity derivatives - 4588 20 4678 - 2513 169 2682
Foreign exchange derivatives - 16934 13 16947 - 11490 - 11490
Interest rate derivatives - 34785 - 34785 - 34768 10 34778
Short positions 36 847 - - 36 847 21146 - - 21146
Deposits 1 115373 2281 117 655 156 119245 1974 121375
Debt securities in issue® 1222 60997 - 62219 975 22902 - 23877
Total financial liabilities 38070 232794 2644 273508 22277 191741 2247 216265
Non-financial assets
Commodities 614 - - 614 642 - - 642
Non-recurring fair value
adjustments
Non-current assets held for sale? - - 90 90 - - 57 57

1As a result of the uncertainties inherent in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, its measurement is estimated based onvaluation assumptions and inputs
derived from market expectations. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information. Resultantly, any changes in key assumptions
relating to their valuation is treated as a changein accounting estimate and has been accounted for prospectively in the financial statements.

2 Includes certain items classified in terms of the requirement of IFRS 5 which are measured at fair value in terms of their respective standards.

3These amounts have been restated, refer to reporting changes overview note 1.19.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the reporting period ended 31 December

50. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
50.2 Reconciliation of Level 3 assets and liabilities
Areconciliation of the openingbalances to closing balances for all movements on Level 3 assets and liabilities isset out below:
Bank
2022
[l and.hedglng Loans and advances Investment securities
portfolio assets
Rm Rm Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting
period 2327 16729 6424
Net interest income - 202 144
Gains and losses from bankingand tradingactivities (544) (447) (52)
Purchases 5689 816 596
Sales (304) (2463) (3358)
Movement in other comprehensive income - - 14
Issues - - -
Settlements - - -
Transfer to Level 3 3450 - 813
Transfer out of Level 3 (540) (5310) (1)
Closing balance at the end of the reporting period 10078 9527 4580
2021
Tradlngand‘hedglng Loans and advances  Investment securities
portfolio assets
Rm Rm Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting
period 2502 13597 9612
Net interest income - 180 47
Gains and losses from bankingand trading activities 906 (96) (5)
Purchases 626 6009 916
Sales (42) (4137) (2913)
Movement in other comprehensive income - - 21
Issues - - -
Settlements - - (60)
Transfer toLevel 3 175 1176 -
Transfer out of Level 3 (1.840) - (1194)
Closing balance at the end of the reporting period 2327 16729 6424
50.2.1 Significant transfers between levels

Duringthe 2022 and 2021 reporting periods, transfers between levels occurred because of changes inthe observability of valuation
inputs, in some instances owingtochanges in the level of market activity. Transfers between level 1 and level 2 are not considered

significant for disclosure.

These transfers have been reflected as if they had taken place at the beginning of the year.
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Trading and
Total Assets at Fair Hedgiqg Deposits Total liabilities at Fair
Value Portfolio Value

Liabilities

Rm
25480 273 1974 2247
346 - - -
(1043) (31) (84) (115)
7101 - - -
(6125) - - -
14 - - -
- 240 1145 1385
- (8) (736) (744)
4263 2 - 2
(5851) (113) (18) (131)
24185 363 2281 2644
2021

Tradingand
Total Assets at Fair Hedging Deposits Total liabilities at Fair
Value Portfolio Value

Liabilities
Rm Rm Rm Rm
25711 172 3562 3734
227 - - -
805 48 (118) (70)
7551 - - -
(7092) - - -
21 - - -
- 55 373 428
(60) (1) (1692) (1693)
1351 - - -
(3034) (1) (151) (152)
25480 273 1974 2247
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for the reporting period ended 31 December

50. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
50.3 Unrealised gainsand losses on Level 3 assets and liabilities

The total unrealised gains and losses for the reporting period on Level 3 positions held at the reporting date are set out below:

Bank

Trading and hedging Total assets at fair

Loans and advances Investment securities

portfolio assets value

Gains and (losses) from banking and trading

activities 2777 (306) 24 2495
2021
Tradlngand'hedglng Loans and advances Investment securities Total assets at fair
portfolioassets value
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Gains and (losses) from banking and trading
activities 147 1833 45 2025
Bank

Trading and hedging Deposits Total liabilities at fair
P value

portfolio liabilities

Gains and (losses) from bankingand trading activities

(30) 354 324
2021
Tradingand hedging Total liabilities at fair
portfolioliabilities Deposits value
Rm Rm Rm
Gains and (losses) from bankingand trading activities
189 1190 1379
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for the reporting period ended 31 December

50.
50.4

Fair value disclosures (continued)
Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs

As part of the Bank's risk management processes, we perform a sensitivity analysis on the significant unobservable parameters, in order to
determine the impact of reasonably possible alternative assumptions on the valuation of level 3 financial assetsand liabilities. The assets
and liabilities that mostly impact this sensitivityanalysis are those with more illiquid and/or structured portfolios. The alternatives

are appliéd independently and do not take account of any cross correlation between assumptions that would reduce the overall effect on the
valuations.

The followingtables reflects the reasonable possible variances applied to significant parameters utilised in our valuations:

Significant unobservable parameter Positive/(negative) variance applied to parameters
Credit spreads 100/(100) bps

Volatilities 10/(10)%

Basis curves 100/(100) bps

Yield curves and repo curves 100/(100) bps

Future earnings and marketability discounts 15/(15)%

Fundingspreads 100/(100) bps

Asignificant parameter hasbeen deemed to be one which may result in a charge to profit or loss, or a change in the fairvalue of the
asset or liability by more than 10% of the underlying value of the affected item.

This is demonstrated by the following sensitivity analysis which includes reasonable range of possible outcomes:

Potential effect recorded in | Potential effect recorded directly in
profit or loss

Significant unobservable Favourable/(Unfavourable) Favourable/(Unfavourable)
parameters Rm Rm

Absa Group Limited/Absa

funding spread 119/(128) -/-

Deposits

Risk adjustment yield curves,
Investment securities future earnings and -/- (77)/80
marketability discount

Loans and advances Credit spreads (623)/683 -/-

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
curves, vield curves, repo curves, 216/(210) -/-
funding spreads

Tradingand hedging portfolio
assets

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
curves, yield curves, repo curves, (457)/457 -/-
funding spreads

Tradingand hedging portfolio
liabilities
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50. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
50.4 Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs (continued)

2021
Potential effect recorded in| Potential effect recorded directly
profit or loss in equity
Significant unobservable Favourable/(Unfavourable) Favourable/(Unfavourable)
parameters Rm Rm
Deposits Absa Group Limited/Absa 126/(138) -

funding spread

Risk adjustment yield curves,
Investment securities future earnings and -/- (113)/116
marketability discount

Loans and advances Credit spreads 979/1 060 -/-

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
curves, yield curves, repo curves, (41)/41 -/-
funding spreads

Tradingand hedging portfolio
assets

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
curves, yield curves, repo curves, (37)/37 -/-
funding spreads

Tradingand hedging portfolio
liabilities
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50.5 Unrecognised losses/(gains) as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs
Theamount thatis toberecognised in the statement of comprehensive income that relates to the difference between the
transaction price and the amount that would have arisen had valuation models using observable inputs been used on initial
recognition, less amounts subsequently recognised, is as follows:

Bank
2021
Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period (521) (446)
New transactions (394) (212)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the reporting period 281 137
Closing balance at the end of the reporting period (634) (521)

50.6 Third party credit enhancements
There were no significant liabilities measured at fairvalue and issued with inseparable third-party credit enhancements.
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50. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
50.7 Assets andliabilities not held at fair value
The followingtable summarises the carryingamounts and fair value of those assets and liabilities not held at fair value:
Bank

2022

Carrying

amount  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Balances with the SARB! 31103 31103 31103 - -
Coins and bank notes! 6241 6241 6241 - -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks® 37 344 37 344 37 344 - -
Investment securities 40763 40 337 40337 - -
Other assets 14837 14 601 3728 5823 5050
Product Solutions 400 354 384544 - - 384 544
Home Loans 293402 285089 - - 285089
Vehicle and Asset Finance 106 952 99 455 - - 99 455
Everyday Banking 54 946 53285 - - 53 285
Card 31446 31446 - - 31446
Personal loans 20382 18721 - - 18721
Transactions and deposits 3118 3118 - - 3118
Relationship Banking 134 699 133472 - - 133472
CIB 288980 291903 - - 291903
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 3195 3195 - 2 865 330
Loans and advances to customers 882174 866 399 - 2865 863534
Loans and advances to banks! 42118 42118 15446 26 672 -
Loans and advances 924 292 908517 15446 29537 863534
Loans to group companies 73 203 73 255 - 73 255 -
Total assets (not held at fair value) 1090439 1074054 96 855 108 615 868 584
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 21488 21302 9848 5633 5821
Call deposits* 88501 88501 88501 - -
Cheque account deposits® 236318 236318 236 318 - -
Credit card deposits® 2142 2142 2142 - -
Fixed deposits 171107 171119 - 68 552 102 567
Foreign currency deposits 41 388 41 388 - 39715 1673
Notice deposits 67 562 67 562 - 67 562 -
Other deposits 871 871 367 504 -
Savingand transmission deposits* 236 768 236 768 219536 291 16941
Deposits due to customers 844 657 844 669 546 864 176 624 121181
Deposits from banks 53311 53 307 2560 50747 -
Deposits 897 968 897976 549 424 227 371 121181
Debt securities in issue 141 055 140946 - 140946 -
Borrowed funds 26 282 26 269 - 26 269 -
Loans from group companies 9152 9152 - 9152 -
Total liabilities (not held at fair value) 1095945 1095645 559 272 409 371 127 002

1These financial instruments have been inincluded in level 1 as the carrying value approximates fair value and no valuation techniques are applied.
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for the reporting period ended 31 December

50. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
50.7 Assets and liabilities not held at fair value
The followingtable summarises the carryingamounts and fair value of those assets and liabilities not held at fair value:
Bank
2021
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Financial assets
Balances with the SARB! 27 684 27 684 27 684 - -
Coins and bank notes! 6067 6067 6067 - -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks® 33751 33751 33751 - -
Investment securities 32900 33919 33919 - -
Other assets 14392 14392 5831 5379 3182
Product Solutions 368352 367117 - - 367117
Home Loans 270275 266310 - - 266310
Vehicle and Asset Finance 98077 100807 - - 100 807
Everyday Banking 49672 49 845 - - 49 845
Card 28227 28227 - - 28227
Personal loans 18611 18784 - - 18784
Transactions and deposits 2834 2834 - - 2834
Relationship Banking 125565 130427 - - 130427
CIB 248129 249152 - - 249152
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 695 695 339 356 -
Loans and advances to customers 792413 797 236 339 356 796 540
Loans and advances to banks! 28486 28486 10166 18 320 -
Loans and advances 820899 825722 10505 18676 796 540
Loans to group companies 76733 76733 - 76733 -
Total assets (not held at fair value) 978675 984517 84 006 100 788 799722
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 33357 33357 21810 11547 -
Call deposits® 90398 90398 90397 - -
Cheque account deposits? 229375 229375 229375 - -
Credit card deposits® 2137 2137 2137 - -
Fixed deposits 154785 154186 - 151711 2475
Foreign currency deposits 33429 33429 - 33429 -
Notice deposits® 70148 70148 33623 36525 -
Other deposits 935 935 - 935 -
Savingand transmission deposits* 225300 225300 29590 17571 178139
Deposits due to customers 806 507 805908 385123 240171 180614
Deposits from banks 46239 46229 9164 37 065 -
Deposits 852746 852137 394287 277 236 180614
Debt securities in issue 103394 102718 - 102718 -
Borrowed funds 26 459 26 282 - 26 282 -
Liabilities from Group companies 9214 9214 - 9214 -
Total liabilities (not held at fair value) 1025170 1023708 416 097 426 997 180614

!These financial instruments have been inincluded in level 1 as the carrying value approximates fair value and no valuation techniques are applied.
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51. Creditriskoffinancialinstrumentsdesignated at fair value

Thefollowingtable represents the maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at
thereporting date before takinginto account collateral held or other credit enhancements:

Bank

2021
Rm

Assets
Investment securities 9397 281
Loans and advances 31675 29514
Loans and advances to banks 367 -
Loans and advances to customers 31308 29514
41072 29795

The Bank utilised credit derivatives and credit linked notes as a mechanism to hedge its exposure to credit risk for financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The value of collateral has been limited to the fair value of the instrument.

The Bank does not hold any collateral against the financial assets designated at fair value in the current year.

Contractual obligation at maturity of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
The followingtable represents the carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and lossand the amount
that the Bank s contractually required to pay to the holder of the obligation at maturity:

Bank
2022 2021
Carrying Contractual Carrying Contractual
value obligation value obligation
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Liabilities
Deposits 117 655 135 253 121 365 130381
Deposits from banks 47 689 52436 44006 44 664
Deposits due to customers 69 966 82817 77 359 85717
Debt securities in issue® 62219 71163 23876 29180

179874 206416 145241 159561

(Increase)/decrease in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk during the reporting period

Bank
2021
Rm
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and customers (202) (36)
Cumulative adjustment in fair value attributable to changes in own risk
Rm
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and customers 712 510

The followingapproach is used in determining changes in fairvalue due to changes in credit risk for deposits from banks and customers
designated at fair value through profit or loss:

o Thecarryingamount reflects the effect on fair value of changes in own credit spreads derived from observable market data, such as
fundingissued by the Bank. Most market parameters are either directly observable or are implied by instrument prices. The model may
perform numerical procedures in the pricing such as interpolation when input values do not directly correspond to the most actively
traded market trade parameters.
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! These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19.
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52. Riskmanagement

52.1 Effective risk managementand control areessential for sustainableand profitable growth

The Bank actively identifies and assesses risks arising from internal and external environments, while also proactively identifying emerging
risks. Toensure effective implementation, this consolidated response is monitored as follows:

o An integrated and dynamic governance structure at Bank, country, business and enterprise core function levels, promotinga sound risk
culture.

o Well-defined material risk categories, known as principal risks, for complete risk coverage.

o A combined assurance model with clear accountability for managing and overseeing the effective execution of assurance throughout the
Bank.

o Comprehensive and structured processes for evaluating, responding toand monitoring risks.

o An entrenched risk culture underpinning an effective risk operating model and appropriate risk practices, tools and techniques to support
the Bank’s strategy.

Therole of risk management is to evaluate, respond toand monitor risks in the execution of the Bank’s strategy. The Bank’s strategy is
supported by an effective ERMF. The Bank'’s risk function performs conformance reviews; checks and challenges the risk profile; and retains
independenceinanalysisand decision-making, underpinned by regular reporting to the Executive Committee and the Board. The GCRO assumes
responsibility for the ERMF.

The ERMF:

o Outlines the approach to the management of risk and provides the basis for setting frameworks and policies, and establishing appropriate
risk practices throughout the Bank;

o Defines the risk management process and sets out the activities, tools, techniques and the operating model to ensure material risks can
beidentified and managed;

o Ensures appropriate responses arein place to protect the Bank andits stakeholders;and

o Sets out principalrisks and assigns clear ownership and accountability for these risks.

The principal risks as defined in the ERMF are credit, traded market, treasury, insurance, business, model, operational, resilience, conduct,
financial crime, reputational and sustainability. Risks are defined in recognition of their significance to the Bank's strategic ambitions.

The ERMFis reviewed and approved annually by the Board.

Strategy and risk appetite

Therisk strategy is developed alongside the Bank’s business strategy and forms an integral part of the integrated planning process. Withinthe
risk strategy, risk appetite defines the nature and amount of risk that the Bank is willing to take to meet its strategic objectives. Thisforms part
of the strategic planning processto ensure the business strategy is achievable within risk appetite, and risk information is considered inthe
organisation’s decision-making and planning process.

The Bank’s risk appetite:

o Specifies the level of risk the Bank is willing to take.

o Considers all principal and material risksindividually and, where appropriate, in aggregate.

o Consistently measures, monitors and communicates the level of risk for different risk types, expressedin qualitative and quantitative
terms.

o Describes agreed parameters for the Bank’s performance under varying levels of financial stress relating to earnings, capital adequacy,
leverage and liquidity ratios.

o Is considered in key decision-making processes, including business planning, mergers and acquisitions, new product approvals and

business change initiatives.
The Bank's risk appetite is stated qualitatively interms of risk principles and risk preferences, and refers to the types of risk the Bank actively
seeks as well as those it accepts and avoids. In addition, the maximum amount of risk that the Bank is prepared to accept toachieve itsbusiness
objectives is defined using a range of quantitative metrics relating to capital adequacy, earnings volatility, liquidity and leverage. These are
cascaded tothelevel of principalrisk, legal entity and business unit.

Stress testing and scenario planning

Stress testingand scenarioanalyses are key elements of the Bank’s integrated planningand risk management process. The use thereof allows
the Bank to assess the performance and resilience of its business model in specific economic environments.

Stress tests provide a forward-looking view of risks under adverse circumstances to estimate the potential impact on the financial system and
the Bank, includingits subsidiaries and business lines / portfolios. This is supported by a framework, policies, procedures and consideration of
international best practice and infrastructure platforms.

The Group Risk and Capital Management Committee is responsible for oversightof the stress testing results with senior management
committees such as the Executive Risk Committee tasked with developing, reviewingand challenging the robustness of the process.
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52. Riskmanagement
52.1 Effective risk managementand control areessential for sustainableand profitable growth (continued)

Credit risk
Creditriskis therisk of suffering financial loss due to a borrower, counterparty to a derivative transaction, or an issuer of debt securities
defaulting on its contractual obligations.

Traded market risk

Therisk of the Bank's earnings or capital being adversely impacted due to changes in the level or volatility of prices affecting the positionsin its
active tradingactivities across the Bank. Thisincludes but isnot limited to changes in interestrates, credit spreads, commodity prices, equity
prices and foreign exchange levels.

Liquidity risk
Therisk that the Bankis unable to meet its contractual or contingent liquidity obligations or that it does not have the appropriate amount, tenor
and composition of fundingtosupport its assets.

Capital risk

Therisk that the Bank has an insufficient level or inappropriate composition of capitaltosupport its normal business activities and to remain
within its Board-approved capital target ranges under normal operating conditions or above regulatory capital requirements under stressed
conditions.

Interest raterisk in the banking book

Therisk that the Bank’s current or projected financial condition and resilience might be adverselyaffected by changes in interest rate levels,
yield curves and spreads. This risk arises in the banking book, due tore-pricing differences between assets, liabilities and equity, and also
includes funding spread risk and foreign exchange rate risk.
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.2. Creditrisk

The following table sets out information regarding the credit quality of financial instruments to which the impairment requirements in IFRS 9 are

applicable
Gross maximum Stagel’
exposure
DG1-9 DG10-19 DG20-21
Maximum exposure to credit risk Rm
Balances with the SARB 31103 31103 - -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 31103 31103 _ _
Government bonds 87924 84295 3629 -
Other 6959 4143 564 -
Treasury bills 19551 19551 - -
Investment securities 114434 107 989 4193 -
Accounts receivable 10865 6264 4595 -
Settlement accounts 3973 705 3268 -
Other assets 14 838 6969 7863 -
Product Solutions Cluster 414412 36 597 295636 19 283
Home Loans 300980 31623 216 777 9038
Vehicle and Asset Finance 113432 4974 78 859 10 245
Everyday Banking 66 586 4076 39548 5477
Card 37 249 3449 23698 2066
Personal Loans 25345 365 13712 3202
Transactions and Deposits 3940 262 2138 209
Other 52 - - -
Relationship Banking 139526 12947 106 061 -
CIB 292220 178 231 97 209 10
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 2875 2010 863 -
Loans and advances to customers 915619 233861 539317 24770
Loans and advances to banks 42146 35944 3616 -
Loans and advances 957 765 269 805 542933 24770
Loans and advances to group companies 73452 73452 _ _
Off statement of financial position exposure
Guarantees 44102 24969 14307 36
Letters of credit 12872 6777 4678 -
Revocable and irrevocable debtfacilities? 206 220 41636 160 325 731
Total off statement of financial position exposure 263194 73 382 179 310 767

1 Refer to note 1.2.1.3 for DG bucket definitions.

2 Includes the risk that certain revocable debt facilities may be drawn down, without further intervention from the Bank.
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.2. Creditrisk (continued)

Bank
Stage 3!
Default
- 1605 - 647
- 1605 - 647
- 6 - -
- 6 - -
497 13323 19 489 29 587
496 9774 12 094 21178
1 3549 7395 8409
101 4096 4016 9272
11 1275 1931 4819
16 2154 1977 3919
74 667 108 482
- - - 52
741 12103 - 7674
2538 8229 127 5876
- 2 - -
3877 37753 23632 52409
90 2256 240 -
3967 40 009 23872 52409
2 3725 304 759
21 1125 268 3
454 2527 212 335
477 7377 784 1097
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.2. Creditrisk (continued)

2021t
Stage 1°
Gr_oss
maximum

exposure DG1-9 DG10-19 DG20-21
Maximum exposure to creditrisk Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balances with the SARB 27 684 27 684 - -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 27 684 27 684 ) )
Government bonds 74992 74992 - -
Other 8863 6038 663 -
Treasury bills 25970 25970 - -
Investment securities 109 825 107000 663 -
Accounts receivable 8595 4493 4101 -
Settlement accounts 5797 5771 26 -
Other assets 14 392 10264 4127 -
Product Solutions Cluster 381506 39070 265347 19187
Home Loans 277 413 28686 197 326 10441
Vehicle and Asset Finance 104093 10384 68021 8746
Everyday Banking 60 149 3632 35949 5782
Card 33922 2943 21512 2070
Personal Loans 22571 444 12593 3417
Transactions and Deposits 3603 245 1844 295
Other 53 - - -
Relationship Banking 130801 13242 95480 -
cB 251005 134931 81240 200
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 339 266 9 -
Loans and advances to customers 823800 191141 478 025 25169
Loans and advances to banks 28537 23396 4048 -
Loans and advances 852 337 214 537 482073 25169
Loans and advances to group companies 76978 76978 - -

Off-statement of financial position exposure
Guarantees 36293 26414 8233 11
Letters of credit 9475 2253 6479 -
Revocable and irrevocable debtfacilities® 194942 53167 137493 749
Total off-statement of financial positionexposure 240710 81834 152 205 760

1 These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19.
2Refer to note 1.2.1.3 for DG bucket definitions.

3 Includes the risk that certain revocable debt facilities may be drawn down, without further intervention from the Bank.
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)

52.2. Creditrisk (continued)

2021°

Stage 2° Stage 3°
DG1-9 DG10-19 DG20-21 Default
Rm Rm Rm Rm
253 1038 - 871
253 1038 - 871
- 1 - -
- 1 - -
558 13527 16813 27 004
526 9959 10606 19869
32 3568 6207 7 135
98 2578 3376 8734
21 1120 1477 4779
14 946 1766 3391
63 512 133 511
- - - 53
265 13465 - 8349
6023 23035 142 5434
- 64 - -
6944 52 669 20331 49521
- 981 112 -
6944 53650 20443 49521
63 949 103 520
- 659 82 2
650 2297 228 358
713 3905 413 880
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)

52.2. Creditrisk (continued)

The followingtable sets out information about the credit quality of financial instrumentswhichare classified at fairvalue through profit or

loss:

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Gross carrying

amount

DG10-19

DG20-21

Investment securities 11482 11129 353 -
Government bonds - - - -
Other 353 - 353 -
Treasury bills 11129 11129 - -

Trading and hedging portfolio assets 159 227 129439 29612 176
Debt instruments 83 846 72739 10936 171
Derivative assets 62047 46 390 15652 5
Money market assets 13334 10310 3024 -

Loans and advances 108 228 38483 69 745 -

Loans and advances to customers 73 802 24941 48 861 -
Loans and advances to banks 34426 13 542 20884 -
Total 278937 179 051 99710 176
2021
Gross carrying
amount DG1-9 DG10-19 DG20-21

Maximum exposure to credit risk Rm Rm Rm Rm

Investment securities 4218 3981 237 -
Government bonds 15 15 - -
Other 237 - 237 -
Treasury bills 3966 3966 - -

Trading and hedging portfolio assets 141153 114242 26 688 223

Debt instruments? 67 423 51139 16284 -
Derivative assets® 59397 51697 7477 223
Money market assets 14333 11406 2927 -
Loans and advances 111875 52 696 59179 -
Loans and advances to customers 89988 38685 51303 -
Loans and advances to banks 21887 14011 7876 -
Total 257 246 170919 86 104 223

1These numbers have been restated refer to 1.19.
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.2. Creditrisk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when a number of counterparties are located ina geographical region, such that their ability to
meet contractual obligations is similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

Bank
2022
Asia, Americas Africa South
and Australia Europe Regions Africa
Geographical concentration of risk Rm Rm Rm
On-statement of financial position exposure
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - - - 31103 31103
Investment securities 11359 - 31 114526 125916
Trading portfolio assets 5341 23687 5078 120150 154 256
Hedging portfolio assets - - - 4972 4972
Other assets 50 - 626 14161 14 837
Loans and advances 25204 36 051 51257 953481 1065993
Loans and advances to group companies - 250 14863 58 339 73452
Subject to credit risk 41954 59988 71855 1296732 1470529
Off-statement of financial position exposures
Guarantees 917 3055 2638 37492 44102
Letters of credit 999 461 4 659 6753 12872
Irrevocable debt facilities? - - - 206 220 206 220
Subject to credit risk 1916 3516 7 297 250465 263194
2021
Asia, Americas Africa South
and Australia Europe Regions Africa Total
Geographical concentration of risk Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
On-statementof financial position exposure
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - - - 27 684 27 684
Investment securities 8951 5001 78 100013 114043
Trading portfolio assets® 1820 21579 6160 107 898 137 457
Hedging portfolio assets® - - - 3696 3696
Other assets 51 - 684 13657 14392
Loans and advances 26771 46 505 23992 866 944 964 212
Loans and advances to group companies - 250 15024 61704 76978
Subject to credit risk 37593 73335 45938 1181596 1338462
Off-statementof financial position exposures
Guarantees 2130 3436 3909 26818 36293
Letters of credit 1345 303 4282 3545 9475
Irrevocable debt facilities® - - - 194942 194942
Subject to credit risk 3475 3739 8191 225305 240710

1These numbers have been restated, please refer to 1.19.

2Includes the risk that certain revocable debt facilities may be drawn down, without further intervention from the Bank.
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52.Risk Management (continued)

IFRS disclosures in terms of credit mitigation

Thefinancial effect and forms of collateraland creditenhancements for financial instrumentsthat are credit impaired at the reporting
datearedisclosed in the table to follow. The accounting policy on how the collateral impacts the impairmentprovisions to be carried
against the financial asset and off-statement of financial position exposure as describedin note 1.2.1.

The Bank offsets asset and liability amounts in the statement of financial position where the ability and intention to net settle exists and
the Bank has alegally enforceable right to do so. Amounts disclosed in the maximum exposure category are stated net of these.

The collateral reported is calculated by determining the values of available underlying collateral, limited to the carryingamount and the
undrawn facility of the related credit exposure where a loan is possibly over-collateralised.

The Bank may also obtain collateral in the form of floating charges over receivables and inventory of corporate and other business
customers. The value of this collateral variesdepending on the level of receivables and inventory. It is impractical to provide an estimate
of the amount of this collateral and the value of this collateral is not reported.

Duringthe period there were nochanges in the Bank’s collateral policies.

Collateral includes:

Guarantees and/or letters of credit from third parties.

Credit default swaps and other creditderivatives.

Creditinsurance.

Physical collateral including fixed charges over property.

Cash collateral.

Other forms including master netting agreements, put options, and highly liquid securities held underreverse repo agreements.

O O O O O O
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52. Risk Management (continued)
52.2 Credit risk (continued)

2022
Collateral- creditimpaired financial assets
Guarantees
credit
Gross Insurance
maximum and credit Physical Cash
Analysis of credit risk mitigation and exposure®| derivatives collateral collateral
collateral Rm
Debt instruments 83846 - - - -
Derivative assets 62048 - - - -
Money market assets 13335 - - - -
Trading and hedging portfolio assets 159 229 - - - -
Product Solutions Cluster 470749 - 25601 - -
Home Loans 355768 - 18965 - -
Vehicle and Asset Finance 114981 - 6 636 - -
Everyday Banking 94 769 - - - -
Card 60432 - - - -
Personal Loans 25853 - - - -
Transactions and Deposits 8432 - - - -
Other 52 - - - -
Relationship Banking ) 163 094 87 4383 2 2
CiB 464 009 - 515 - -
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 3020 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1195641 87 30499 2 2
Loans and advances to banks 76 572 - - - -
Loans and advances 1272213 87 30499 2 2
Off balance sheet
Guarantees 44103 - - - -
Letters of credit 12873 - - - -
Total off-statement of financial position exposure 56 976 - - - -

For financial assets not listed inthe table above, no credit mitigation or collateral was held during the reporting period.

tIncluded in the gross maximum exposure is the exposure for off-statement of financial position exposure for irrevocable debt facilities and those revocable debt facilities
which expose the Bank to the risk of draw down in the absence of further intervention from the Bank.
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52. Risk Management (continued)
52.2 Credit risk (continued)

2022
Collateral- not credit impaired financial assets
Guarantees
credit Total maximum
Joommimen e S
impaired and credit Physical Cash financial assets
Unsecured financial assets* derivatives collateral collateral Unsecured !
Rm Rm
- - - - - - 83846 83846
- - 6 550 - 1727 48 390 5381 62048
- - - - - - 13 335 13 335
- - 6 550 - 1727 48 390 102 562 159 229
4028 29 629 - 374 625 - - 66 495 441120
2 255 21220 - 313517 - - 21031 334548
1773 8409 - 61108 - - 45 464 106 572
9472 9472 - - - - 85 297 85 297
4999 4999 - - - - 55433 55433
3923 3923 - - - - 21930 21930
498 498 - - - - 7934 7934
52 52 - - - - - -
3293 7767 1442 142 984 122 6 10773 155 327
5361 5876 - 56 248 - 103497 298 388 458133
- - - - - 778 2242 3020
22154 52744 1442 573857 122 104 281 463 195 1142897
- - - - - 47 552 29020 76 572
22154 52 744 1442 573857 122 151 833 492 215 1219469
759 759 5 1957 149 19 41214 43344
3 3 - - - - 12 870 12 870
762 762 5 1957 149 19 54 084 56 214
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52. Risk Management (continued)
52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

2021t
Collateral- credit impaired financial assets

Guarantees

credit

Gross Insurance

maximum and credit Physical Cash
Analysis of credit risk mitigation and exposure®  derivatives collateral collateral Other
collateral Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Debt instruments 67 423 - - - -
Derivative assets 59397 - - - -
Money market assets 14332 - - - -
Trading and hedging portfolio assets 141152 - - - -
Product Solutions Cluster 438815 - 23132 - -
Home Loans 332256 - 17778 - -
Vehicle and Asset Finance 106 559 - 5354 - -
Everyday Banking 87 898 - - - -
Card 56 515 - - - -
Personal Loans 23108 - - - -
Transactions and Deposits 8222 - - - -
Other 53 - - - -
Relationship Banking 155022 173 4377 57 54
CiB 426 313 - 456 - -
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 682 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1108730 173 27965 57 54
Loans and advances to banks 50424 - - - -
Loans and advances 1159154 173 27 965 57 54
Off balance sheet

Guarantees 36293 - - - -
Letters of credit 9475 - - - -
Total off-statement of financial position exposure 45768 - - - -

For financial assets not listed inthe table above, no credit mitigation or collateral was held during the reporting period.

1 These numbers have been restated, refer note 1.19.2.

2Included in the gross maximum exposure is the exposure for off-statement of financial position exposure for irrevocable debt facilities and those revocable debt facilities
which expose the Bank to the risk of draw down in the absence of further intervention from the Bank.
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52. RiskManagement(continued)

52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

2021
Collateral- not credit impaired financial assets
Guarantees
credit Total maximum
exposurecredy  Imswrance | credicimpaired
impaired financial and credit Physical Cash financial assets
Unsecured assets? derivatives collateral collateral Other Unsecured !
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
- - - - - - 67423 67423
- - - - 3723 47111 8563 59397
- - - - - - 14332 14332
- - - - 3723 47111 90318 141152
3916 27048 - 343426 - - 68341 411767
2135 19913 - 288106 - - 24 237 312343
1781 7 135 - 55320 - - 44104 99 424
8955 8955 - - - - 78943 78943
4970 4970 - - - - 51545 51545
3396 3396 - - - - 19712 19712
536 536 - - - - 7 686 7 686
53 53 - - - - - -
3781 8442 2073 134003 887 181 9436 146580
4600 5056 - 44580 - 85497 291180 421257
- - - - - - 682 682
21252 49501 2073 522009 887 85678 448582 1059229
- - 2 - - 28874 21548 50424
21252 49501 2075 522009 887 114552 470130 1109653
520 520 12 5170 756 21 29814 35773
2 2 - - - - 9473 9473
522 522 12 5170 756 21 39 287 45246
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

Financial assets written off during the financial period but still subject to enforcement activities

Contractual amount outstanding on financial assetsthat were written off duringthe reporting period and are still subject to enforcement

activity:

Assets written off during financial period still subject to enforcement activities

Bank
2021
Rm
9251 10160

Reconciliation of impairment loss allowance

Bank
2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
('LEL")
Total expected
S S creditlosses
Investment securities at amortised cost and FVOCI Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 11 2 210 223
Asset moved/Allowance transferred tostage 1 - - - -
Current period provision 1 15 (71) (55)
Net changein interest - - 17 17
Balance at the end of the reporting period 12 17 156 185
2021
Lifetime expected credit losses ('LEL)
Total expected
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 credit losses
Investment securities at amortised cost and FVOCI Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 11 32 - 43
Asset moved/Allowance transferred to stage 1 1 (1) - -
Current period provision (1) (29) 210 180
Balance at the end of the reporting period 11 2 210 223

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 | 168



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

2022
. : Head Office, Total
Product  Everyday Relationship Treasury
Solutions Banking Banking cs and other e.xpected
ey credit losses
Loans and advances at amortised cost and undrawn
facilities! Rm Rm
Balances at the beginning of the reporting period 13155 10477 5236 2922 7 31797
Stage 1 1534 1940 682 1137 7 5300
Stage 2 2001 1902 913 256 - 5072
Stage 3 9620 6 635 3641 1529 - 21425
Transfers between stages - - - - - -
Stage 1 net transfers 546 83 337 47) - 919
Transfers to/ (from) stage 1 805 525 409 (56) - 1683
Transfers from/(to) stage 2 (159) (203) (42) 8 - (396)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 3 (100) (239) (30) 1 - (368)
Stage 2 net transfers (200) (812) (411) 48 - (1375)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 1 (500) (425) (351) 56 - (1220)
Transfers to/ (from) stage 2 909 419 110 (8) - 1430
Transfers from/ (to) stage 3 (609) (806) (170) - - (1585)
Stage 3 net transfers (346) 729 74 (1) - 456
Transfers from/ (to) stage 1 (305) (101) (58) - - (464)
Transfers from/(to) stage 2 (750) (216) (68) - - (1034)
Transfers to/ (from) stage 3 709 1046 200 (1) - 1954
Credit impairment charges raised 2607 5185 771 333 1 8897
Amounts written off (2677) (4 750) (1 648) (176) (9 251)
Net changein interest 973 727 468 187 - 2355
Balance at the end of thereporting period 14058 11639 4827 3266 8 33798
Stage 1l 1534 2078 544 779 8 4943
Stage 2 2209 2371 747 310 - 5637
Stage 3 10315 7190 3536 2177 - 23218

*Previously the Bank presented theloans and advances and undrawn facilities ECL reconciliation ata consolidated level. To enhance the disdlosure, this has been disaggregate per segment to
provide users with more granularity in the current year and will be applied prospectively.

Absa Bank Limited . .
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |
169



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

2021t
Product . . Head Office, Total
Solutions Egg;yk?sé Rela’g::lfif:z CIB Treasurgt?]ldr expected
Cluster Operations credit losses
If.:cairliiiiaer;d advances at amortised cost and undrawn Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balances at the beginning of the reporting period 13198 12897 5446 2885 6 34432
Stage 1 1601 1845 800 1335 6 5587
Stage 2 1789 2686 1228 381 - 6084
Stage 3 9808 8366 3418 1169 - 22761
Transfers between stages - - - - - -
Stage 1 net transfers 704 591 240 (52) - 1483
Transfers to/ (from) stage 1 946 978 331 (61) 2194
Transfers from/ (to) stage 2 (153) (167) (54) 9 (365)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 3 (89) (220) (37) - (346)
Stage 2 net transfers 506 (1151) (280) 48 - (877)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 1 (526) (867) (273) 61 (1605)
Transfers to/ (from) stage 2 1549 616 100 (13) 2252
Transfers from/ (to) stage 3 (517) (900) (107) - (1524)
Stage 3 net transfers (1210) 560 40 4 - (606)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 1 (420) (109) (60) - (589)
Transfers from/ (to) stage 2 (1396) (450) (45) 4 (1887)
Transfers (from)/ tostage 3 606 1119 145 - 1870
Credit impairment charges raised 999 3208 980 238 1 5426
Amounts written off (1730) (6390) (1719) (321) - (10160)
Net changein interest 688 762 529 120 - 2099
Balance at the end of the reporting period 13155 10477 5236 2922 7 31797
Stage 1l 1534 1940 682 1137 7 5300
Stage 2 2001 1902 913 256 - 5072
Stage 3 9620 6635 3641 1529 - 21425

1 These numbers have been restated, refer to note1.19.
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52.

Risk management (continued)

52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment loss allowance by market segment for loans and advances:

Product Solutions Cluster:

During the current financial year, gross loans and advances increased toR414 412m particularly driven by new business in Home loans and
Vehicle and asset finance. This resulted in an increase in ECL allowance of R1 834m.

The value of loans written off duringthe year amounted to R2 678m (Home loans: 680m, Vehicle and asset finance:R1 998m). This led toa
decreasein the ECL allowance for the year R2 678m.

Loan modifications that did not result in derecognition of the loan amounted to R3 300m (Home loans:R1 530m, Vehicle and asset finance:
R1770m)

No gross loans and advances sold during the current year.

Everyday Banking:

o

During the current financial year, gross loans and advances increased to R66 586m particularly driven by new business in Personal loans,
Transactions and depositsand higher consumer spend inthe Credit Card portfolio. Thisresulted in an increase in ECL allowance of R3 598m.
The value of loans written off during the year amounted to R4 749m (Personal loans: R 2 084m; Transactions and deposits: R513m; Card: R2
155m).This led toa decrease in the ECL allowance for the year of R4 749m.

Loan modifications that did not result inderecognition of the loan amounted toR1 343m (Personal loans: R670m; Transactionsand deposits:
R65m; Card: R608m).

Gross loans and advances sold during the currentyear amounted to R1 347m (Personal loans: R770m, Card: R577m,). This resulted in a decrease
of R1 215 tothe ECL allowance.

Relationship Banking:

o

CIB:

During the current financial year, gross loans and advances increased to R139 526m, particularly driven by new business in the Agri and
Commercial Asset Finance portfolios. This resulted inan increase in ECL allowance of R236m.

The value of gross loans written off during the year amounted toR1 648m. This led toa decrease inthe ECL allowance for the year of R1648m.
No gross loans and advances sold duringthe current year.

During the current financial year, gross loans and advances increased to R366 022m, particularly driven by new business in Transactional
Banking (overdrafts) and Investment Banking (foreign currency loans), offset by trades maturing across these Business Units. Thisresulted in
aincreasein ECL allowance of R434m.

The value of loans written off duringthe year amounted toR176m. This led toa decrease in the ECL allowance for the year of 176m.

No new loan modifications that did not result in derecognition of the loan were observed.

Gross loans and advances sold during the current year amounted toR37m. This resultedin an increase of R2m to the ECL allowance.

Head Office, Treasury and other operations:

o

No material ECL balance in the current year.

2021

Although gross loans and advances increasedtoR1 134bnduring the period, particularly driven by a 7% growth in Retail SA secured
Iendlng products and a 6% growth in CIB, ECL allowances decreased due to:

o

o

Higher write-offs in Retail SA of R9.8bn in the unsecured portfolios and the workout of NPLs as backlogs in legal processes started toclear.
Sale of unsecured legal balances in Personal Loans of R881m and Card of R512m.

Benefits realised from model enhancements and the revised application of the existing definition of default which now aligns more closely
with industry practice. Refer tonote 1.2.1 Approach tocredit risk and impairment of loans and advances.

The improvement in forward-looking assumptions relative to initial expectations and consumption of the macro-overlay as anticipated risks
have either materialised or dissipated over time.

Thenet changein interest relates only to stage 3 assets where contractual interest issuspended, and interest income is recognised based on the
net carrying value of the exposures. The amount of R2 355m (2021:R2 099m) disclosed istherefore reflective of the amount of interest not
recognised duringthe current reporting period.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.2 Creditrisk (continued)

Bank
2022
Lifetime expected credit losses
(LEL")
Stage2 stege3 TG fiiosses
Guarantees and letters of credit Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 57 6 312 375
Asset moved/Allowance transferred to stage 1 (24) 1 23 -
Asset moved/Allowance transferred to stage 2 - - - -
Current period provision (6) (3) 124 115
Balance at the end of thereporting period 27 4 459 490
2021
Lifetime expected credit losses
('LEL")
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Toctf;;i)ﬁggzii
Guarantees and letters of credit Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at the beginningof the reporting period 57 12 76 145
Asset moved/Allowance transferred tostage 1 1 (1) - -
Asset moved/Allowance transferred to stage 2 (1) 1 - -
Current period provision - (6) 236 230
Balance at the end of the reporting period 57 6 312 375

Loans and advances to group companies:

The ECL recognised on loans and advances to group companies as at 31 December 2022 amounted to R249m (2021: R246m).

Modified financial assets

The followingtable provides information on financial assets that were modified during the reporting period, specifically where a gain or
loss has arisen and without resulting in derecognition, while they had a loss allowance measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL:

Bank
2021
Rm
Financial assets modified during the period
Loans and advances
Amortised cost before modification 3188 2696
Net modification loss (822) (203)

There were no financial assets modified during the year for which loss allowance has changed to 12-month measurement.
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52. Risk management (continued)
52.3. Macro-overlays, paymentrelief and sensitivity analysis

Macro-overlays

The Bank continues to use macro-overlays to ensure adequate protection against future losses. The macro-overlay has however materially
reduced from pandemic-period highs as a larger portion of anticipated risks are now captured through incurred losses or recalibrated IFRS 9
models, which reflect the COVID-19 loss experience. The remaining macro-overlay is primarily held to adjust for vulnerable sectors in CIB.

Coverage levels have remained fairly stable despite the reduction inthe macro-overlay. For further detailson expected credit loss analysis by
market segment and credit exposure type, please see note 2.1 in the Bank’s Summary consolidated financial results. The segment report per

market segment also provides further insights on key credit metrics.

Sensitivity of expected creditlosses

For the purposes of the Bank’s actual weighting of its economic scenarios, a 40% probability weightingis applied to the baseline scenario; with
a 30% probability weighting applied to both the upside and downside scenarios. However, given the level of uncertainty required in the
determination of ECL, the Bank has conducted a sensitivity analysisin order toindicate theimpact on the ECL when assigninga probability
weighting of 100% to each macroeconomic variable scenario. The analysisonly reflects the impact of changing the probability assigned to each
scenarioto100% and does not include management adjustmentsrequired to provide a more appropriate assessment of risk.

2022

Rm % Change
ECL allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 loans and
advances. 10281 0
Baseline 10032 (2)
Upside 8664 (16)
Downside 12 254 19

2021

Rm % Change
ECL allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 loans and
advances 10069 -
Baseline 9855 (2)
Upside 9825 (2)
Downside 10547 5

In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the Bank assessed what the impact on expected credit losses would be, if 5% of the gross carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers in stage 1 experience a SICR and move to stage 2. The ECL changes below include the effect on undrawn
committed facilities and guarantees which are reflected as ‘provisions’ in the statement of financial position. This impact hasbeen presented

below:
2022
Stage 2
Increasein gross carrying amount Increase in expected credit loss
Rm Rm
Product Solutions Cluster 17576 1088
Everyday Banking 2455 605
Relationship Banking 5950 319
CIB 13773 343
2021t
Stage 2
Increase in gross carrying amount Increase in expected credit loss
Rm Rm
Product Solutions Cluster 16180 972
Everyday Banking 2268 616
Relationship Banking 5436 327
CIB 10819 38

! These numbers have been restated, referto 1.19.
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52. Risk management (continued)
52.3. Macro-overlays, paymentrelief and sensitivity analysis (continued)

Paymentrelief measures

Payment relief provided to clients under Directive 3/2020 has fully matured. Inflows into arrears of the expired payment relief portfolio have
stabilised and the portfoliois performingin line with expectation. The credit portfoliois once again managed on a holistic basis and the normal
credit stage allocation methodology is applied across the entire portfolio.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.4 Equity investment risk

Equity investment risk refersto the risk of adverse changes in the value of listed and unlisted equityinvestments. These investments are longer-
term investments held in the banking book for non-trading purposes.

The Bank’s equity investment risk objective is to balance the portfolio composition inline with the Bank’s risk appetite, with selective exitsas
appropriate.

Approach

The Bank’s governance of equity investmentsis based on the following key fundamental principles:

o aformalapproval governanceprocess;

o keyfunctional specialistsreviewinginvestment proposals;

o adequate monitoringand control afterthe investmentdecision has been implemented; and

o ongoingimplementation of best practice standards based on current market trends, hurdle rates and benchmarks.

Criteria considered for new investments and investment reviews cover a comprehensive set of financial, commercial, legal (and technical, where
required) matters. The performance of these investments is monitored relative to the objectives of the portfolio.

The majority of the Bank’s equity investmentsare heldinCIBand RBB.

Risk measurement

Equity investment risk is monitored monthly in terms of regulatory and Economic Capital (EC) requirements and is complemented by a range of
additional risk metrics and stress testing. The equity investment risk profile is further tracked across a range of dimensions such as geography,
industry and currency. Risk monitoringis done in accordance with a risk appetite, mandate and scale limits framework.

The Bank has adopted the market-based simple risk-weighted approach to calculate Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) and Regulatory Capital (RC) for
equity riskin the bankingbook. Accordingto this approach,the Bank applies a 300% risk weighting to listed exposures and 400% to unlisted
exposures in non-financial entities subject to a prescribed scalingfactor of 1.06. Investments in financial entities are treated in line with the
principles embodied in Basel Il and the Regulations relating to Banks, whereby the risk weightings are subject to the aggregate value of the Bank’s
shareholdingin those investmentsand alsoin relation to the Bank’s capital.

Analysis of equity investment risk in the banking book

Thetable belowillustrates the equity sensitivity analysis and discloses the impact on pre-tax profit or loss and equity after the effect of hedges.
Debt instruments have been excluded from the sensitivity analysis. Equity hedge structures were in place for the shareholders’ equity investment
portfolioin previous reporting periods. This assisted tohedge downsideriskon equities if market values decrease with more than 6% and
resulted in counterparties sharingin positive returnsif market values increased by between 2% and 4%. No equity hedge structures were in place
atthereportingdate.

Bank
2021
Impact of a 5% Impact of a 5% Impact of a 5% Impact of a 5%
reduction in increasein reduction in increasein
fair value fair value fair value fair value
Profit Profit Profit Profit
or loss Equity Fair value or loss Equity or loss Equity Fairvalue or loss Equity
Rm Rm ) ) Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Listed equity investments (67) (4) 1414 67 4 (54) (4) 1158 54 4
Unlisted equity investments (75) (36) 1110 75 36 (74) (33) 1065 74 33
Total Bank equity investments (142) (40) 2524 142 40 (128) (37) 2223 128 37
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52.
52.5

Risk management (continued)
Market risk

Traded market riskis the risk of the Bank's earnings or capital being adversely impacted by changes in the level or volatility of prices
affecting positions inits trading activities across the Bank. This includesbut is not limited to changes ininterest rates, credit spreads,
commodity prices, equity prices and foreign exchange levels.

The Traded Market Risk Committee (TMRC) meets monthly toreview, challenge and make recommendations concerning the traded
market risk profile, including risk appetite, policies, limits, risk utilisation, valuation risk and the effectiveness of the control
environment.

The Trading Risk Committee (TRC) and Market Risk Infrastructure, Data, Governance and Control Committee (MRIDGCC) are
subcommittees of the TMRC that provide oversight of specifictraded market risks and the traded market risk control environment.

Approach
Traded market risk arises primarily as a result of client facilitation in wholesale markets. This involves market making, providing risk

management solutions, generating revenues from assumingand managing risk, and execution of syndications.

Interest rateriskin the banking book is subjected to the same rigorous measurement and control standards as in the trading book, but
the associated sensitivities are reported separately as “Interest rate risk inthe banking book” as part of the Treasury Risk framework.

Risk appetite

Therisk appetite for market riskis based on:

proposed business strategy;

budgeted revenue growth;

statistical modelling measures; and

risk equated to capital projection under normal and stressed market conditions.

O O O O

Risk measurement

Anumber of techniques are used tomeasure and contrd traded market risk on a daily basis, which include:

o  valueat risk(VaR) based measures including both VaR and stressed value at risk (sVaR);
o tail metrics;

o  position and sensitivity reporting;

o  stresstesting;

o  backtesting; and

o  standardised generaland specific risk, as relevant

Daily value at risk
Daily value at risk (VaR) is an estimate of the potential loss that may arise from unfavourable market movements if current positions

were tobe held unchanged for one business day.

The Bank uses an internal VaR model based on the historical simulation method toderive the quantitative market risk measures under
normal conditions. The VaR model utilises a two-year data history of unweighted historical price and rate data and a holding period of
one day with a confidence interval of 99%.

The historical simulation methodology can be splitintothree parts:
o  Calculate hypothetical daily profit or loss for each position over the most recent two years, using observed daily market moves.
o Sum of all hypothetical profitsor losses for day one across all positions, giving one total profit or loss. Repeat for all other days in
the two-year history.
o  VaRisthe99th percentile loss selected from the resultanttwo-year historically simulated strip of daily hypothetical net profit or
loss. Daily losses in excess of the VaR figure are likely to occur, on average, up to six times over the two-year period.

This internal model is also used for measuring VaR over both a one-day and a 10-day holding period at a 99% confidence level for
regulatory back testingand regulatory capital (RC) calculation purposes, respectively. The VaR internal model has been approved by the
PA to calculate RCfor trading book portfolios in South Africa. The approval covers general position risk across interest rate, foreign
exchange, commodity, equity and traded credit products. As part of this approval, the PA has assigned a VaR and sVaR model multiplier
to beused in RCcalculations. In addition tothe VaR internal model, products which have not received IMA approval are capitalized under
the standardized approach. General position risk intrading books in the Absa Regions is also capitalised under the regulatory
standardised approach. Issuer-specific risk is currently reported inaccordance with the regulatory standardised approachacross the
Bank.

The performance of the VaR model is regularly assessed for continued suitability. The main technique employed is backtesting, which
counts the number of days when actual losses from tradingactivities exceed the corresponding 99% level of confidence assuminga
one-day holding period calculated by the VaR model.
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52. Risk management (continued)
52.5 Market risk (continued)

VaR estimates have a number of limitations:

Historical simulation assumes that the past isa good representation of the future, which may not always be the case.
The assumed time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be closed out or hedged within this time
horizon.
VaR does not indicate the potential loss beyond the selected percentiles.
VaRis based on positions as at the close of business and consequently intra-day risk, the risk from a position bought and sold on
the same day, is not captured.

o Prudent valuation practices are used in the VaR calculation when there is difficulty obtaining rate/price information.

sVaR uses a similar methodology to VaR, but is based on a one-year period of financial stresswhichis reviewed quarterly and assumes a
10-day holding period and a worst case loss. The period of stress used for RCis currently the 2008/2009 financial crisis.

Loss thresholds, tail risk metrics, position and sensitivity reporting and stress testing are used to complement VaR in the management
of traded market risk.

Analysis of traded market risk exposure
The followingtable reflects the VaR, sVaR and expected shortfall statistics for trading book activities as measured by the internal
models approach (IMA). Traded market risk exposure, as measured by average total VaR, increased toR56.49 (2021:R51.86m) for the
reporting period, which is a 9% (2021:18%) increase on the prior year average. This was principally due toincreased volatility in the
current two year timeseries and changes in risk positioning, primarily affectinginterestrate products as central banks acted
aggressively in raisinginterest rates in order to stem inflation and market liquidity remained sporadicin various markets.
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52. Risk management (continued)
52.5 Market risk (continued)

2022 2021

As at the

reporting reporting

Average High? Low?* date Average High' Low* date

Rm Rm ) ) Rm Rm Rm Rm

Interest rate risk 67.42 135.24 39.76 97.27 56.64 174.77 26.00 62.67
Foreign exchange risk 15.23 38.31 3.74 38.31 21.75 58.94 5.01 1443
Equity risk 15.46 27.99 5.97 11.43 10.98 30.64 3.03 16.83
Commodity risk 0.72 2.93 0.43 0.94 0.85 4.85 0.39 0.54
Inflation risk 48.35 73.93 23.70 68.41 35.83 117.64 13.36 43.69
Credit spread risk 8.78 12.15 5.09 5.10 10.33 11.69 8.36 9.17
Diversification effect 99.47) - - (140.12) (84.52) - - (94.31)
Total DVaR 56.49 85.30 31.83 81.35 51.86 83.33 30.53 53.02
Expected shortfall 91.99 309.36 59.77 110.55 81.29 221.71 41.92 70.03
Regulatory VaR? 56.49 85.30 31.83 81.35 51.86 83.33 30.53 53.01
Regulatory sVaR? 64.62 109.11 34.10 75.19 78.60 121.65 48.18 65.23

Other market risks

The Bank maintains different pension plans with defined benefit and defined contribution structures for current and former employees. In respect
of defined benefit plans, the ability to meet the projected pension payments is maintained through investments and regular contributions. Market
risk arises when the estimated market value of the pension planassets declines, theirinvestment returnsreduce, or when the estimated value of
the pension liabilities increases, resulting in a weaker funding position or shortfall. In these circumstances the Bank may choose to make
additional contributions or be required to make good the shortfall of the plan.

Asset management income risk arises where the fee and commission income earned by asset management products and businesses isaffected by
achangein market levels, primarily through the link between income and the value of assets under management. The risk is measured in terms of
thelikely volatility inthe annual earnings over the next year toreflect the sensitivity of earnings to shocks in financial markets. Bank policy
dictates that businesses monitor, report and regularly assess potential hedging strategies relating to this risk. Exposure to this risk currently
arises in the Wealth segment.

'The high (and low) VaR figures reported for each category did not necessarily occur on the same day as the high (and low) total VaR. Consequently, a diversification effect number
for the high (and low) VaR figures would not be meaningful and is therefore omitted.
: Regulatory VaR and sVaR are reported with a one-day holding period at a 99% confidence level. The sVaR period is subject to ongoing review for appropriateness.
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52.6 Treasuryrisk

Treasury risk comprises liquidity risk, capital risk and interest rate risk in the banking book.

o  Liquidityrisk: Therisk that the Group is unable to meet its contractual or contingent cash obligations or that itdoes not have the
appropriate amount, tenor and composition of fundingand liquidity tosupport its assets.

o  Capital risk: Therisk that the Group has an insufficientlevel or inappropriate composition of capital supply tosupport its normal
business activities while remaining withinits Board-approved capital target ranges and above regulatory capital requirements.

o Interest raterisk in the banking book (IRRBB): The risk thatthe Group is exposed to capital or income volatility because of a mismatch
between the interest rate exposures of its banking book assets and liabilities.

52.6.1 Liquidityrisk

Liquidity riskis defined as the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its contractual or contingent liquidity obligationsor that it does not have
the appropriate amount, tenor and composition of fundingto support its assets. These outflows would deplete available cash resources for
client lending, tradingactivities and investments. Such outflows could be through customer withdrawals, wholesale counterparties removing
financing, collateral posting requirements or loan drawdowns. Thisriskis inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of
Bank-specific and market-wide events.

Liquidity risk is monitored at Bank level under a single comprehensive Treasury Risk Framework. The Treasury Risk Framework was designed
to deliver an appropriate tenor structure and composition of fundingconsistent with therisk appetite set by the Board. This framework is
delivered through a combination of policy formation, review and governance, analysis, stress testing, limit settingand monitoring.

Priorities

The Bank’s liquidity risk management priorities are:

o  PreservetheBank's liquidity position inline with risk appetite.

o  Focus on growing core retail, relationship bank, corporate and publicsector deposits.

o  Manage the fundingand HQLA position in line with the Board-approved framework and ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements.

o  Continueto lengthen and diversify the funding base to support asset growth and other strategic initiatives, while optimising funding
costs.

o  Collaborate with the regulatory authorities and other stakeholders on the SARB's approach toresolution planning, depositor insurance
schemes and the monetary policy implementation framework in South Africa.

Approach

The efficient management of liquidity isessential for safeguarding the Bank’s depositors, preserving market confidence and maintaining the

Bank’s brand. The Bank considers sustainable access to appropriate liquidity for each of itsentities to be extremely important Liquidity risk

is managed under the Liquidity Risk Policy inline with the Treasury Risk Framework to:

o  Maintain liquidity resources that are sufficient inamount and quality together with a funding profile that isappropriate to meet the risk

appetite as expressed by the Board.

Maintain market confidence.

Set limits to manage liquidity risk withinand across lines of business and legal entities.

Priceliquidity costs accurately and incorporate these into product pricingand performance measurement.

Monitor early warningindicators (EWIs) toimmediately identify the emergence of increased liquidity risk or vulnerabilities including

events that would impair access toliquidity resources.

Fully project over an appropriate set of time horizons cash flows arising from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items.

o Maintain arecovery plan that incorporates a contingent funding plan (CFP) that is comprehensive and proportionate to the nature, scale
and complexity of the business andregularly tested toensureit is operationally robust.

O O O O
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6 Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.1 Liquidity risk (continued)

Stressandscenario testing

Under the Treasury Risk Framework, the Bank established the Internal Liquidity Stress Metric (ILSM), which setsthe level of liquidity risk the
Bank chooses to take to achieve its business objectives and in meetingits regulatory requirements. It is measured with reference tothe
anticipated stressed net contractual and contingent outflows for a variety of stress scenarios andis used to determine the appropriate size
of theliquidity pool, along with the LCR.

Each entity in the Bank undertakes a range of stress tests appropriate toits business. Stress tests consider both name-specific and
market-wide scenarios. The results of the stress tests are used to determine the liquid asset buffer, to develop the CFP which is a
component of the Bank’s recovery plan. Stress testingresults are also considered when setting limits for the management of liquidity risk
and the business planning process.

As part of stress and scenariotesting, the relevant liquid assets portfolio serves as the main source of liquidity under stress. Liquidity value
is alsoassigned tounsecured fundinglines, readily marketable investmentsecurities and price-sensitive overnight loans.

Contingency funding planning
The Contingency Funding Plan (CFP) includes, inter alia:
o theroles and responsibilities of senior management in a crisis.
authorities for invoking the plan.
communications strategy.
an analysis of a realisticrange of market-wide and Bank-specific liquidity stress tests.
scenarioanalyses and the extent to which each stress test and scenario can be mitigated by the management of the balance sheet.
arange of early warnings indicators (EWIs), which assist ininforming management when deciding whether the CFP should be invoked.

O O O O O

Each bankingentity inthe Bank must establish local processes and procedures to manage local liquidity stresses that are consistent with
the Bank’s plan. The CFPs set out the specific requirements to be undertaken locally ina crisis. This could include monetising the liquidity
pool, slowing the extension of credit, increasing the tenor of fundingand securitising or selling assets. For the Bank the CFP was merged
with the recovery plan.

The Bank’s liquidity risk position was resilient, in line with risk appetite, and above the minimum regulatory requirements.
The Bank’s foreign currency funding position remained robust with diversified funding facilities from international banks and appropriate tenors
to meet term fundingasset growth.

Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities

The table below provides detail on the contractual maturity and mismatch position of all financial instruments and other assets and liabilities.
Derivatives (other than those designated in a hedgingrelationship)and trading portfolio assets and liabilities are includedin the ‘on demand’
time bucket at their fair value. Liquidity risk on these items is not managed on the basis of contractual maturity since they are not held for
settlement accordingto such maturity and will frequently be settled before contractual maturity at fair value. Derivatives designated in a
hedgingrelationshipareincluded accordingto their contractual maturity.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6 Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.1 Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank

2022

Carrying amount (excluding impairment losses on
amortised cost instruments)

(o])] Within Fromlyear Morethan Impairment
demand lyear to5years 5 years Losses

Discounted maturity Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 37 344 - - - - 37 344
Investment securities 2524 46173 44746 34997 (1) 128 439
Tradingand hedging portfolio assets 155458 192 313 4467 - 160430

Derivative assets 57076 192 313 4467 - 62048

Non-derivative assets 98 382 - - - - 98 382
Other financial assets 4403 10425 9 - - 14 837
Loans and advances 117710 266 002 390421 291 859 (33472) 1032520
Loans to Group companies 1929 61903 7 647 1973 (249) 73203
Financial assets 319 368 384 695 443136 333296 (33722) 1446773
Non-financial assets® 32579
Total assets 1479 352
Liabilities®
Tradingand hedging portfolio liabilities 91400 599 1364 271 - 93 634

Derivative liabilities 54552 599 1364 271 - 56 786

Non-derivative liabilities 36 848 - - - - 36 848
Other financial liabilities 11431 7 200 - - - 18631
Deposits 595 854 342097 68111 9561 - 1015623
Debt securities in issue 2465 115148 74054 11 608 - 203 275
Borrowed funds - 14971 11311 - - 26 282
Loans from Group companies 5667 3485 - - - 9152
Financial liabilities 706 817 483 500 154 840 21440 - 1366 597
Non-financial liabilities? 9817
Total liabilities 1376414
Equity 102 938
Total equity and liabilities 1479352
Net liquidity position of financial instruments (387 449) (98 805) 288 296 311856 (33722) 80176

1The above table does not include the maturity analysis of finance lease payables, which is detailed in Note 33.

ZThe following current items are disclosed under non-financial assets and liabilities: Current Tax Liabilities, Provisions (please refer to note 17 for the split), Current Tax Liability and
Deferred Tax Asset/Liability.

The following non-current items are disclosed under non- financial assets and liabilities: Investments in associates and joint ventures, Goodwill and Intangible assets, Provisions,(
please refer to note 17 for the split), Investment property, Property and Equipment and Deferred Tax Asset/Liability.
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Bank

2021
Carryingamount (excludingimpairment losses on
amortised cost instruments)

On Within From lyear  More than Impairment
demand lyear  to5years 5 years Losses Total
Discounted maturity Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 33751 - - - - 33751
Investment securities 2220 40569 46 655 26822 (1) 116 265
Tradingand hedging portfolio assets* 141 465 356 2400 809 - 145030
Derivative assets® 55832 356 2400 809 - 59 397
Non-derivative assets’ 85633 - - - - 85633
Other financial assets 5996 8396 - - - 14392
Loans and advances 151174 219322 342057 251659 (31437) 932775
Loans to Group companies 52 046 17 353 6 646 934 (246) 76733
Financial assets® 386652 285996 397758 280224 (31684) 1318946
Non-financial assets 30752
Total assets 1349698
Liabilities®
Tradingand hedging portfolio liabilities® 68 107 365 1967 574 - 71013
Derivative liabilities* 46961 365 1967 574 - 49 867
Non-derivative liabilities* 21146 - - - - 21146
Other financial liabilities 24234 6116 - - - 30350
Deposits 600683 305826 58155 9457 - 974121
Debt securities in issue! 1051 50434 67 832 7954 - 127271
Borrowed funds - 3364 23095 - - 26 459
Loans from Group companies 8705 509 - - - 9214
Financial liabilities® 702780 366 614 151049 17985 - 1238428
Non-financial liabilities 9552
Total liabilities 1247980
Equity 101718
Total equity and liabilities® 1349698
Net liquidity position of financial instruments! (316 128) (80 618) 246 709 262 239 (31 684) 80518

1These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.19
2The above table does not include the maturity analysis of finance lease payables, which is detailed in Note 33.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6 Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.1 Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank
Undiscounted maturity* 2022
(statement of financial On Within Fromlyear Morethan Discount
position value with impact demand lyear to5 years 5 years effect
of futureinterest) RmM Rm Rm Rm Rm
Liabilities
On-statement of financial position
Tradingand hedging portfolio liabilities 91400 622 1723 572 (682) 93635
Derivative liabilities 54 552 622 1723 572 (682) 56 787
Non-derivative liabilities 36848 = - - - 36 848
Other financial liabilities 11430 7200 = = - 18 630
Deposits 603130 433723 94 659 21670 (36559) 1116623
Debt securities in issue 2465 118 688 92127 22039 (32 044) 203 275
Borrowed funds - 15533 13897 - (3148) 26 282
Loans from Group companies 12637 3525 - - (7010 9152
Financial liabilities 721062 579 291 202 406 44 281 (79443) 1467597
Non-financial liabilities (91183)
Total liabilities = - - - - 1376414
Off-statement of financial position
Financial guarantee contracts 44102 = - - - 44102
Loan commitments 76 843 21536 - - - 98 379
Letters of credit® 12873 - - - - 12873
Undiscounted maturity* 2021
(statement of financial On Within From 1lyear More than Discount
position value with impact demand lyear to5years 5 years effect Total
of futureinterest) RM RM RM RmM RM Rm
Liabilities
On-statement of financial position
Tradingand hedging portfolio liabilities? 68 107 371 2470 1172 (1108) 71013
Derivative liabilities? 46961 371 2470 1172 (1108) 49 867
Non-derivative liabilities? 21146 - - - - 21146
Other financial liabilities 24234 6115 - - - 30350
Deposits 600 683 308051 67 505 19846 (21964) 974121
Debt securities in issue? 1051 51342 79975 13541 (18 638) 127271
Borrowed funds - 3428 25856 - (2825) 26459
Loans from Group companies 8705 475 - - 34 9214
Financial liabilities? 702780 369782 175806 34 559 (44 499) 1238428
Non-financial liabilities 9552
Total liabilities 1247980
Off-statement of financial position
Financial guarantee contracts 36293 - - - - 36293
Loan commitments 73063 27 271 - - - 100334
Letters of credit® 9475 - - - - 9475

1The above table does not include the maturity analysis of finance lease payables, which is detailed in Note 33.
2These numbers have been restated, refer tonote 1.19.1.
3 The disclosure has been enhanced to incorporate letters of credit.
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52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.6 Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.2 Capital management

Capital riskis therisk that the Bank has an insufficient level or inappropriate composition of capital supplyto support its normal business
activities while remaining withinits Board capital target ranges and above regulatory capital requirements.

The Bank’s capital management strategy, which isinline with and insupport of the Bank's strategy, is to create sustainable value for shareholders
within the boundaries imposed by the Bank’s risk appetite through effective financial risk management.

The Bank’s capital management priorities are to:

o  Create sustainable value for shareholders while maintaining sufficient capital supply for growth, with capital ratios within the Board
approved risk appetite and above minimum levels of regulatory capital.

o  Remain above the minimum Board capital targets and maintain a sustainable dividend pay-out-ratio

o Monitor and assess upcoming regulatory developments that may affect the capital position. These include the Basel 11l enhancements,
including FRTB; the proposed amendments to the regulations relating to banks and the resolution framework in South Africa.

Various processes play arolein ensuring that the Bank’s capital management prioritiesare met, including:
o Thelnternal Capital Adequacy AssessmentProcess (ICAAP);
o  Stresstesting; and
o  Recoveryand Resolution Planning.

Appropriate Board-approved capital buffers above the minimum regulatory requirements, are held at an entity level. The Bank ensures that itis
adequately capitalisedin terms of it's minimum regulatory capital adequacy requirements (CARs). The Bank’s capital target ranges for the current
reporting period were set after considering the following:

Capital risk appetite;

The preference of ratingagencies for loss absorbing capital;

Stress scenarios and its impact on the integrated plan, including the capital position of the Bank;
Current and future Basel Ill requirements and accounting developments; and

Peer analysis.

0O 0O0OO0O

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |
185



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

52. Riskmanagement(continued)
52.6 Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.2 Capital management

Capital adequacy ratios (unaudited)

2021
Minimum Minimum
regulatory regulatory
Board target capital Board target capital
2021 ranges requirements’ ranges requirements
Bank % % % %
Statutory capital ratios (includes
Common Equity Tier 1 12.5 124 10.5-12.0 8.5 10.5-12.0 8.0
Tier 1 14.8 14.8 >12.0 10.3 >12.0 9.5
Total 17.6 179 >14.5 12.5 >14.5 115
Capital supply and demand for the
reporting period (Rm)
Qualifying capital 116433 112981
Total RWA 662 093 629980

Regulatory capital comprisesthe following:

Common Equity Tier 1 - ordinary share capital, share premium and retained earnings including reserves, less regulatory deductions.
Tierl - Common Equity Tier 1 plus perpetual, non-cumulative instrumentswith principal loss-absorption features issued in terms of the

Basel Ill rules.

Total Capital - Tier 1 plus other items such as the general allowance for credit impairmentsand subordinated debt with principal loss-

absorption features issued under Basel Ill.

Duringthe past year, the Bank complied in full with all externally imposed capital requirements which remained the same.

1 The 2022 minimum total regulatory capital adequacy requirement of 12.5% (2021: 11.5%) includes the capital conservation buffer, Pillar 2A which was reinstated at 1% and the

D-SIB add-on but excludes the bank specific individual capital requirement (Pillar 2B add-on) as required by regulatory guidance.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6  Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.3 Interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB)

Approach

IRRBB s therisk that the Bank’s financial position might be adversely affected by changes in interestrate levels, yield curves and spreads. Non-
traded interest rate risk arises inthe banking book from the provision of retail and wholesale (non-traded) banking products and services, and
certain structural exposures within the balance sheet from re-pricing differences between assets, liabilities and equity. These risksimpactboth
the earnings and economic value of the Bank.

The Bank’s objective for managing IRRBB is toensure a higher degree of interest rate margin stability and reduced interest rate risk over an
interest rate cycle. This is achieved by transferring the interest rate risk from the businesstolocal treasury or Bank Treasury, whichis mandated
to hedge material net exposures with the external market. Interest rate risk may arise when some of the net position remainswith treasury as a
result of timing considerations. A limitframework is in place to ensure that the retained risk remains within approved risk appetite.

Risk Mitigation

Risk management strategies considered include:
o  strategies regarding changes in the volume, composition, pricingand interest rate risk characteristics of assets and liabilities; and

o theexecution of applicable derivative contracts to maintain the Bank's interest rate risk exposure within limits.

o  Wherepossible, hedge accountingis applied to derivatives that are used to hedge IRRBB. In cases where hedge relationships do
not qualify for hedge accounting, mismatches may arise due todifferent bases used in fair valuing the hedges and the underlying
bankingbook exposure. Applicable accountingrules, as detailed in the Bank’s accounting policies, are followed.

o  Structural interest rate risk arises from the variability of income from non-interest bearing products, managed variable rate
products and the Bank’s equity, and is managed by Bank Treasury. Interestrate risk also arises in each of the ARO treasuries inthe
normal course of managingthe balance sheet and facilitating customer activity. The risk is managed by the local treasury
functions, subject torisk limits and other controls.

Keyassumptions

Embedded optionality risk may also give rise to IRRBB:
o  Prepaymentriskarises in relation to transactions where an early settlement option is embeddedin the product. Thisrisk most commonly

arises in relation tofixed rate loans offered toretail customers, where the customer has an option to repay the loan prior to contractual
maturity and where the Bank is unable to collect full market-related compensation. This risk is managed by modelling the loans on a
behaviouralised basisfor both pricingand risk measurement. This treatment is also applied to non-maturing customer deposits.

o  Recruitmentrisk arises when the Bank commits to providinga product at a predetermined price for a period into the future. Customers have
the option to take up this offer. Processes are in place to enable robust management of these additional forms of IRRBB.

Risk measurement

The techniques that are used to measure and control IRRBB include re-pricing profiles, annual earnings at risk (AEaR), DVaR and tail metrics,
economic value of equity (EVE) sensitivity and stress testing. DVaR and tail metrics are assessed on a daily basis while re-pricing profiles, AEaR
and EVE are assessed on a monthly basis.

Re-pricing profiles

With the re-pricing profile, instrumentsare allocated to time periods with reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate re-pricing
date and the maturity date. Instruments which have no explicit contractual re-pricing or maturity dates are placed in time buckets based on the most
likely re-pricing behaviour. The re-pricing profiles take the assumed behavioral profile of structural product balances into account.

Annualearnings atrisk (AEaR)/Netinterestincome (NII) sensitivity

AEaR/NII sensitivity measures the sensitivity of NIl over the next 12 months to a specified shockininterest rates. AEaR is assessed across a range
of interest rate scenarios, including parallel and key rate shocks and yield curve twists and inversions as appropriate for each business. AEaR is
monitored against approved internal limits.

Daily value atrisk (DVaR)

The Bank uses a sensitivity-based approach to calculate DVaR at a 95% confidence level for measuring IRRBB. The DVaR is monitored against
approved internal limits andisused as a complementary metricto AEaR. The DVaR is supplemented by non- DVaR, stress and tail metrics.
Economic value of equity (EVE) sensitivity

EVE sensitivity measures the sensitivity of the present value of the bankingbook at a specific point intime (PIT) to a specified shock to the yield
curve. Similar toDVaR, EVE is a present value sensitivity and is complementary toincome sensitivity measures such as AEaR. EVE sensitivity is
measured against regulatory guidelines and not against approved internal limits.

Stresstesting

Stress testingis tailored to each banking book and consists of a combination of stress scenarios and historical stress movements applied tothe
respective banking books. Stress testingis carried out by Market Risk to supplement the DVaR and AEaR metrics for South Africa.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6  Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.3 Interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB) (continued)

Risk control

Market risk is controlled through the use of AEaR, DVaR and stress limits as appropriate and supported by non-DVaR metrics(position and
sensitivity limits), as well as the monthly monitoring of the risk profiles and EVE sensitivity. Limits are set and monitored in accordance with the
limit framework. Limits for AEaR, DVaR and stress are agreed by the GMRC. Compliance with limits is monitored by the respective Rest of Africa
market risk team with oversight provided by Market Risk.

Risk reporting

DVaR and supporting metrics are reported daily for Bank Treasury, with the exception of two businesses, where reportingis performed on a monthly
basis. There-pricing profiles, AEaR, EVE sensitivity and stressresultsare reported monthly for Bank Treasury.

Interest rate sensitivity analyses

Three separate interest rate sensitivity analyses for the Bank’s banking book are set out in the table that follows, namely, the re-pricing profile of
the book, the potential effect of changes in market interest rates on annual earnings and impacton equity reserves.

Re-pricing profile

There-pricing profile of the Bank’s banking books shows that the banking book remains asset sensitive, as interest-earning assets re-price sooner
than interest-payingliabilities before and after derivative hedging activities. Accordingly, future net interest income remains vulnerable to a decrease
in market interest rates.

Bank

On demand - Over

3 months 12 months
Expected repricing profile Rm Rm

Banking book!

Interest rate sensitivity gap 147 047 (4 632) (58 428) (46 695)
Derivatives? (127 205) (18 469) 53854 91820
Net interest rate sensitivity gap 19842 (23101) (4574) 45125
Cumulative interest rate gap 19 842 (3259) (7 833) 37292
Cumulative gap as a percentage of the Bank's total assets (%) 1.3 (0.2) (0.5) 2.5
2021
On demand - 4-6 7-12 Over
3 months months months 12 months
Expected repricing profile Rm Rm Rm Rm
Banking book!
Interest rate sensitivity gap 135961 (26 896) (31272) (43 958)
Derivatives? (148911) 31819 26036 91056
Net interest rate sensitivity gap (12 950) 4923 (5236) 47 098
Cumulative interest rate gap (12 950) (8027) (13 263) 33835
Cumulative gap as a percentage of the Bank's total assets (%) (1.0) (0.6) (1.0) (2.5)

Impact onearnings

The following table shows the impact on AEaR/NII sensitivity for 100 and 200 bps up and down movements in market interest rates for the Bank’s
banking books. Assumingno management action is taken in response to market interest rate movements, a hypothetical,immediate and
sustained parallel decrease of 200 bps inall market interest rates would, at the reporting date, result ina pre-tax reduction in projected 12-month
netinterest income of RO.6bn (2021: RO.7bn A similar increase would resultin an increase in projected 12-month net interest income of R0.6bn
(2021:R0.41bn). AEaR decreased to 0% (2021: 1.8%) of the Bank’s net interest income.

1 . .
Includes exposures held in the CIB banking book.

2 . . . . .
Derivatives for interest rate risk management purposes (net nominal value).
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)

52.6  Treasuryrisk (continued)

52.6.3 Interest rate risk in banking book (IRRBB) (continued)

Annual earnings at risk for 100 and 200 bps changes in market interest rates

Bank
2022
Changein market interest rates
200 bps 100 bps 100 bps 200 bps
decrease decrease increase increase
Changein projected net interest income (Rm) (614) (296) 318 628
Percentage of the Bank’s net interest income (%) (1.4) (0.7) 0.8 1.5
Percentage of the Bank's equity (%) (0.6) (0.3) 0.3 0.6
2021
Change in market interest rates
200 bps 100 bps 100 bps 200 bps
decrease decrease increase increase
Changein projected net interest income (Rm) (700) (290) 209 414
Percentage of the Bank’s net interest income (%) (1.8) (0.8) 0.6 11
Percentage of the Bank's equity (%) (0.7) (0.3) 0.2 04

Impact on equity reserves

Market interest rate changes may affect equity (capital) in the following three ways:

o higher or lower profit after tax resulting from higher or lower net interest income;

o higher or lower available-for-sale reserves reflecting higher or lower fair values of available-for-sale financial instruments; and
o higher or lower values of derivatives held inthe cashflow hedgingreserve.

The pre-tax effect of net interest income sensitivity isreported inthe preceding sensitivity analysis. The effect of taxation can be estimated using
the effective tax rate for the reporting period.

The equity reserve sensitivities that follow are illustrative, based on simplified scenarios and considerthe impact on the cash flow hedges and
available-for-sale portfolios which are mark-to-market through reserves. The impact on equity is calculated byrevaluing the fixed rate available-
for-sale financial assets, including the effect of any associated hedges and derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, for an assumed changein
market interest rates. The increase in sensitivity of the available-for-sale reserves is mainly due totheincrease in the net directional risk.

Sensitivity of reserves to market interest rate movements
Bank
2022 2021
Impacton Impacton

equity at Maximum Minimum equity at Maximum Minimum
reporting date impact*? 1)) :Flaad reporting date impact? impact®?

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

+100 bps parallel move in all

yield curves

Available-for-sale reserve 1877 2405 1119 1877 2405 1119

Cash flow hedgingreserve (1148) 191 (5287) (1148) 191 (5287)
729 2596 (4168) 729 2596 (4168)

As a percentage of Bank equity (%) 0.7 2.5 (4.0) 0.7 2.6 4.1

The sensitivity of reserves to market interestrates movements exhibit very little convexity resultingin a materially equivalent change in value for
-100 bps parallel move. Basis risk has been maintained constant.

1The maximum and minimum impacts for each reserve category did not necessarily occur for the same months.

2Includes hedging portfolio assets and liabilities, which was separately disclosed in prior reporting period.The number represents the maximum or minimum potential combined
impact for both reserve categories in a single month (and does not equate to the sum of the

minimum and maximum per month as indicated in footnote 1 above.
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52. Riskmanagement (continued)
52.6  Treasuryrisk (continued)
52.6.4 Foreign exchange risk

The Bankis exposed to two sources of foreign exchange risk, namely, transactional and translational risk.
Transactional foreign exchange risk

Transactional foreign exchange risk arises when the banking assets and liabilities are not denominatedin the functional currency of the
transactingentity. The Bank’s policy is for transactional foreign exchange risk to be concentrated and managed within the trading book.

In accordance with the Bank’s policy, there were no significant net open currency positions outside the tradi ng book at the reporting date that
would give rise to material foreign exchange gains and losses being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or in equity as a result
of aforeign exchange rate shock.

Foreign currency translation sensitivity analysis

Thebank has a Rnil carrying value (2021: Rnil) of foreign currencynet investments.

53. Going concern

The Directors assess the Bank’s future performance and financial position on an ongoing basis and have noreason tobelieve that the bank will not
beagoing concern in thereporting period ahead. For this reason, these consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

54. Events after the reporting period

During 2022, Ghana requested assistance from the InternationalMonetary Fund (“IMF”), to address the ongoing economic crisis. In December, a
staff-level agreement was reached on an IMF programme at restoring macroeconomic stabilityand debt sustainability while preserving financial
stability. As a result, wide rangngstructural and fiscal reforms were initiated to restore fiscal stabilityand debtsustainability.

As part of the reforms, the Domestic Debt Exchange Programme (“DDEP”) was announced on 5 December 2022. The programme involved an
invitation toexchange certain domestic notes and bonds, for new bonds of the Republic of Ghana. During 2023 certain entities within the Group
accepted theinvitation to exchange the eligible bonds held.

The new bonds received will be accounted for in the 2023 financial year end. However, informationrelating to the DDEP and related economic
reforms have been considered in determining the calculation of impairments and fair values of exposures facing the government of Ghana for the
2022 financial year end as it gave evidence of conditionswhich existed at the reporting date. The economic environment in Ghana continues to be
closely monitored and assessed.

In February 2023, the international Financial Action Task Force (FATF) announced its decision to place South Africa, among other countries, on its
‘grey list'as the country has not yet implemented all the actions recommended by FATF to combat money laun dering, terrorist financingand similar
threats adequately. The grey-listing action may raise the cost of transactions as foreign financial institutions will, at least in some instances, apply
additional controls to transactions that involve South African entities and individuals. The Bank already complies with rigorous international an ti-
financial crime standards and regulation, as required in order to access global financial markets. It is therefore unlikely that the grey-listing action
will have any material directimpacton the bankin the short term.

In line with the disposal of the Bank’s investment management business, NewFunds (RF) Pty Ltd retired as the manager of the NewFunds
Collective Investment Scheme in Securities, effective from 1 March 2023.”

Thedirectors are not aware of any other events, other than the aforementioned (as defined per IAS10 Events after the Reporting Period) after the
reporting date of 31 December 2022 and the date of authorisation of these annual consolidated and separate financial statements.
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration

As a subsidiary of the Group, the Bank is governed by the Absa Group Remuneration Committee (RemCo).

The RemCo’s mandate includes ensuring that the remuneration policy and related practices are aligned with shareholder interests, both in the
performance of our employees and the values they uphold.The Group strives to promote remuneration practices that foster sustainable high
performance and accordingly, the Group rewards both short and longer term performance. All elements of remuneration are benchmarked against
therelevant markets, as well as local and international best practice.

The RemCo reviews executive director and prescribed officer performance against a balanced scorecard of objectives, which ensures rigorous focus
on business imperatives including, importantly, financial performance.The outcomes of this are a primary input to variable remuneration decisions.

Risk management is carefully considered.
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (continued)

Tables for 2022 total awarded remuneration

Arrie Rautenbach’ lason Quinn
Executive directors 2022 2021 2022 2071
Awarded remuneration R R R R
Salary 8689014 6444479 6098485 5418952
Medical aid 167 556 161 892 123 804 119 604
Retirement benefits 185 596 158 651 462 660 411 749
Other employes benefits 232 918 494 316 67 380 59 008
Total fixed remuneration 9275084 7259338 6752329 6009313
Non-deferred cash award* 9750000 6 750000 8000000 9000000
Deferred share award? 8 750 000 5750000 7 000 000 8 000 ood
Total short-term incentive? 18500000 12500000 15000000 17000000
Face value of long-term incentive award (on-target award)® 17000000 17000000 13000000 12500000
Other payments? — 2007617 — —
Total awarded remuneration® 44775084 3876695955 34752329 35509313

This 15 the portion of the short-term incentive award not subject to deferral, paid in cash in March 2022 and March 2023 in respect of prior year performance.
This is the portion of the short-term incentive award that is subject to deferrzl into Absa Group shares on 50% of the portion that exceeds R1m. Deferred awards
were granted in April 2022 for the 2021 short-term incentive award, and will be granted in April 2023 for 2022.
Short-term incentives are not defined as incentives that are settled in the next 12 months after the reporting period, but rather represent the category of
performance-based awards [comprising a cash payment and a deferred award) per the Group’s remuneration palicy, to which no future performance targets apply. The
only conditions attached to deferred short-term ncentives relate to the continued service requirements over the vesting penod (three years).
The long-term incentives relate to awards which have future Group parformance critaria that will determine the final vesting outcome, in addition to a continued
service condition, This is the ‘'on-target’ value of the award,
‘Other payments' reflect all payments made to Daniel Mminele on termination of employment (sea note 8) and for other executive directors and prescribed officers,
the encashment of leave as a consequence of changes to our leave policy.
Total awarded remuneration includes the fixed remuneration paid during 2022, the total short-term incentive in respect of prior year performance (consisting of a
cash award paid in March 2023 and a deferred share award granted in April 2023), and the face value of the long-term incentive to be granted in April 2023. Amounts
disclosed in 2021 follow the same principle.

rrie Rautenbach was appointed as Group Chief Executive and executive director on 29 March 2022, and was the Chief Executive: Retail and Business Banking and a
prescribed officer prior to that. His total remuneration for 2022 is reflected in his capacity as an executive director, with his 2021 remuneration disclosed in respect of
his role as a prescribed officer and included for comparative purposes.
Daniel Mminele stepped down as an executive director on 20 April 2021 and ceased being an employee on 30 April 2021. All remuneration paid to him in 2021 has
been included in this disclosure. This includes separation payments, contractusl notice payments and leave payments which are shown as "Other payments’ Both
short-term incentives and long-term incentives are shown at full value.
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Daniel Mminele® Total

2022 2021 2022 2021
R R R R

— 2922288 14787499 14785719
—_ — 291 360 281 496
— 51 466 648 256 621 866
— 26 247 300 298 579 571
— 3000001 16027413 16 268652
— — 17750000 15 750000
—_ — 15750000 13750000
— — 33500000 25500000
—_ — 30000000 29500000
— 30466273 — 324738%0
— 33466274 79527413 107 742542

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |
193



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (continuec)

Tables for 2022 total awarded remuneration

Charles Russon Punki Modise’
Prescribed officers 2022 2021 2022 2021
Awarded remuneration R R R R
Salary 5763 388 5585822 1624 045 1 866 091
Medical ad 209 508 202 428 108 194 156 811
Retirement benefits 192 301 162 055 137 037 159 877
Other employee henefits 62132 59 008 181193 210403
Total fixed remuneration 6227 329 6009 313 2050 469 2393182
Mon-deferred cash award* 7500000 6750000 3500000 5500000
Deferred share award?® 6 500 000 5 750 000 2 500 000 4 500 000
Total short-term incentive? 14 000000 12 500 000 6000000 10000000
Face value of long-term incentive award (on-target award)* 11000000 10000000 8000000 10000000
Other payments® — — — 816 546
Total awarded remuneration® 31227329 28509313 16050469 23209728

t

This is the portion of the short-term incentive award not subject to deferral, paid in cash in March 2022 and March 2023 in respect of prior year performance.,

This is the portion of the short-term incentive award that is subject to deferral into Absa Group shares on 50% of the portion that exceeds RIm. Deferred awards
were granted in April 2022 for the 2021 short-term incentive award, and will be granted in Apnl 2023 for 2022 performance.

Short-term incentives are not defined as incentives that are settled in the next 12 months after the reporting period, but rather represent the category of
performance-based awards (comprising a cash payment and a deferred award| per the Group's remuneration policy, to which ne future performance targets apply. The
only conditions attached to deferred short-term incentives relate to the continued service requirements over the vesting penod (three years),

The long-term incentives relate to awards which have future Group performance criteria that will determine the final vesting outcome, in addition to a continued
service condition. This is the ‘on-target’ value of the award.

‘Other payments’ reflect the encashment of leave as a conseguence of changes to our leave policy. See note 9 regarding Saviour Chibiya’s ‘Other payments’

Total awarded remuneration for 2022 includes the fixed remuneration paid during 2022, the total short-term incentive in respect of prior year performance {consisting
of a cash award paid in March 2023 and & deferred share award granted in April 2023}, and the face value of the long-term incentive to be granted in April 2023.
Amounts disclosed in 2021 follow the same principle. See notes 7 and 8 regarding the proration of fixed remuneration for individuals who were not in their roles for
the full year.

Punki Modise was appointed as the Interim Financial Director and executive director on 23 April 2021 until 28 March 2022, She was subsequently appointed as
Interim Chief Executive: Retail and Business Banking and prescribed officer from 29 March 2022 until 30 June 2022 Her remuneration disclosures for 2022 and the
comparative 2021 disclosures are all set out in this table for ease of reference and comparison. Her 2022 fixed remuneration is pro-rated for the period served as an
executive director and a prescribed officer during the year, with the short-term incentive and long-term incentive shown at full value.

As a result of the Board-approved changes to the Group operating model, four new prescribed officers were appointed on 1 luly 2022, Their fixed remuneration has
been pro-rated from appointment date, with short-term incentives and long-term incentives shown at full value.
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Faisal Mkhize® Cowyk Fox® Geoffrey Lee® Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
R R R R R R R R
2543 235 — 2 478 656 - 2652901 — 15062 225 7 451913
55710 - 104 754 - 94 266 - 572 432 359 239
196 991 — 99 769 — 107 639 — 733 737 321932
79 064 — 293 380 - 19 664 - 635 433 269 411
2875 000 — | 25976559 — 2874470 — 17003827 8402495
4 000 000 — 4000000 — 4 000 000 — 23000000 12250000
3 000 000 — 3000000 — 3000000 — 18000000 10250000
7 000 000 — 7000000 — 7000000 — 41000000 22500000
8 500 000 — 8500000 —  B500000 — 44500000 20000000
— — — — — . — 816 546
18 375 000 — 18476559 — 1B374470 — 102503827 51715041

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |
195



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (continued)
Outstanding share-based long-term incentives
The table below outlines share-based and long-term incentive awards (awarded in respect of performance in a prior period).

2022

Number
of shares/cash

MNumber of Number
shares under of shares/cash

award awarded Share price released
at 1 January during on award during
2022 2022 R 2022

Executive directors
Arrie Rautenbach?

Share value plan 2019 - 2021 10878 — — 10878
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 39821 — — 19910
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 37 664 — — 12 555
Long-term incentive award 2019° 88 780 — — 6131
Share incentive plan performance 2020° 130321 — — —
Share incentive plan performance 20212 80430 — — -—
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 - 2025 — 31972 17984 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022* — 94 528 179.84 —
Total 387 894 126 500 49 474
Jason Quinn

Share value plan 2019 - 2021 5676 — — 5676
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 41 631 — — 20 815
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 37 664 — — 12 555
Long-term incentive award 20192 86 615 — — 5981
Share incentive plan performance 20207 130321 — — -—
Share incentive plan performance 20217 78 468 — — —
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 - 2025 — 44 483 179.84 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022* = 69 506 179.84 —
Total 380375 113989 45027

L Arrie Rautenbach's outstanding share-based long-term awards include awards received as a prescribed officer since 9 April 2018 and before his appointment as CEO
and an executive director on 29 March 2022.
The number of shares that vested was based on the measurement of the predetermined performance conditions linked to the perfarmance awards.
For all executive directors, the awards will vest over a five-year period.
For all executive directors, the 2022 Share Incentive Plan Performance award will vest over a three-year period.
The fair value of the awards is calculated based on the number of shares multiplied by the closing share price on 31 December 2022 (R193.90). For the 2020, 2021
and 2022 Share Incentive Plan Performance awards, the fair value is calculated prior to the application of Group performance conditions, which will be tested at the
end of the relevant performance period to determine the vesting outcome. Dividend equivalents may apply at the time of vesting on the number of shares that vest.
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2022
value of Number of Fair value of
Market valueof dividsnd Number of shares under unvested awards
price on release el shares/options  award/option at at 31 December
release date (pre-tax) (pre-tax) (EREEDIIaE )] 31 December Last scheduled 2022°

R R R in 2022 2022 vesting date R

18593 2022547 353 639 — — 2022/03/18 —
151.00 3 B02 810 371113 — 19911 2023/04/01 3860743
151.00 2 398 005 51570 - 25109 2024/04/01 4 868 635
18593 1139537 199 317 70 387 12 262 2024/03/18 2377 602
— — — — 130321 2025/04/01 25269 242

— — — — 80430 2026/04/01 15 595 377

— — — — 31972 2025/04/01 6199371

= - . —= — 94 528 2025/04/01 18 328979

9 363 299 975 639 70387 394 533 76 499 949

185.93 1055339 184 628 - - 2022/03/18 —
191.00 3 975 665 387921 — 20 816 2023/04/01 4036 222
151.00 2 398 005 51 570 — 25109 2024/04/01 4 868 635
185.93 1112047 194 483 6B 670 11964 2024/03/18 2319820
— — — — 130 321 2025/04/01 25 269 242

— - — — 78 468 2026/04/01 15214945

— — — — 44483 2025/04/01 8 625 254

— — — — 69 506 2025/04/01 13477 213
8541056 818 602 6B 670 380 667 73811331
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (continued
Outstanding share-based long-term incentives
The table below outlines share-based and long-term incentive awands {awarded in respect of perfermance in a pror penadl

2022

Share price
an award
(1]
Prescribed officers
Charles Russon
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 4020 — - 4020
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 — 2023 30 227 — - 15114
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 — 2024 31 387 — - 10 462
Long-term incentive award 2019 60 630 — - 4187
Share incentive plan performance 20207 99 370 — — —
Share incentive plan performance 20212 54927 — - —
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 — 2025 — 31972 17984 —
Share incentive plan performance 20227 — 55 604 17984 —
Total 280 561 B7 576 33 783
Punki Modise!
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 871 — - B71
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 — 2023 6 661 — - 3330
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 980 — — 327
Lomg-term incentive award 2019 24 915 — - 5162
Share incentive plan performance 2020 32 580 — — —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 25 109 — - -
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 - 2025 — 25022 175984 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022° — 55 604 17984 -
Total 81116 B0 626 9690
Faisal Mkhize®
Share value plan 201% - 2021 743 — - 743
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 — 2023 10 860 — - 5430
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 31348 — — 1045
Long-term incentive award 2019 25911 — - 5368
Share incentive plan performance 2020 35 295 — - -
Share incentive plan performance 2021 265679 — - —
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 — 20:25 — 8 340 17984 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 22 241 17964 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 24 536 18340 —
Total 102 626 55117 12 587
Cowyk Foo®
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 1892 — - 1g92
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 13 098 — — 6049
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 — 2024 3923 — - 1308
Lomg-term incentive award 2019 19 953 — - 4134
Share incentive plan performance 2020 40 400 — - —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 29 817 — - —
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 - 2025 — 9035 L7964 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 22 241 L7964 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 24 536 18344 —
Total 108 0E3 55812 13 383
Geoffrey Lee®
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 1135 — — 1135
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 11 946 — — 5973
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 3923 — - 1308
Lomg-term incentive award 2019 25911 — - 5368
Share incentive plan performance 2020 35 295 — — —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 26679 — — —
Share incentive plan deferral 2022 — 2025 — 9730 L7984 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 22 241 17984 —
Share incentive plan performance 2022 — 24 536 18340 —
Total 104 889 56507 13 784

Tho numaer of shanes that vested was based on the measurement of the predetermmed porformance conditiors Snked to the performance awsrds

Chardes Russon's 2020 snd 2021 Share Man incentrse Performancs sweands will west over a five=year paniod

Charies Russons 2022 Shae incontive Man Performance saamd will vest ovor a three-year period
& Punk Modess's outstanding shamehemed Jong- teom awards indude swards recerved prior to becoming an executne director on 23 Aprid 7021 40 28 March 2022, Punki
Modise’s 2019 Long Term Incentree award vested based on the messurement of the predetermimed performance conditions puer 2 three year perod. The 2030 and
2021 Share Plen Ircomtive Performance awands vwest over a three yoar perod: 25 they weire made prios to her becoming an executree director. The 2022 Share Flan
Incentive Pesformance sward will also vest over & three year period os it vwas made subsequent o her executive dirdctorship comeng to-an and.
Faizal Mkhae's, Cowyk Fox's and Geofirey Lee's cutstanding shane -besed long-tem mwards incdudo swards recesved prar to bocomeng prescribed of fioees on 1 uly
202L The 2020 and 2021 Share Plan incentive Performance avwards will vest over a three yeae pericd as they wiere made prior to them becoming  prescribed offcers.
* The fair valoe of the awards = calculated based on the number of shares maltipled by the closirg share prioe on 31 December 2022 (R193.901 For the 2020, 2021

and 303Z Shane Incentwe Plan Perfarmanoe swards, the far value & calcolsted prior to the application of Group performance conditions, winich will be tested st the

pnd of the relevant performance period to determime the veating cotcome, Deadend eouivalants may apply at the time of westing on the number of shares that vest
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Value of

Markat Value of dwidend

prICE an release released
relezse date {pre-taw) (pre-tax] [ElE==s i) : Last schaduled

R R R vESLiNg Cate

18593 747 439 130 709 — 2022/03/18 —_
19140 2 BEG 774 281 725 — 15113 2023/04/01 2930411
191400 1598 242 42 975 — 20925 2024/04/01 4 057 358
185.93 778 489 135 101 43 069 B374 2024/03/18 1623 719
— — — — 59 370 202504101 19 267 B43

—_ — — —_ 54 927 2026/04/01 10650 345

—_ — — — 31872 2025/04&/01 6199 371

— - — — 55 604 2025/04101 10781 616

6 410 944 5591 510 48 069 286 285 55 510 663

1A5.93 151 945 28 26l — — 2022/03/18 —
191.00 636 030 62 475 —_ 31331 2023/04/01 645 BE1
191 00 &2 457 1337 — 653 2024/04/01 126 617
178.10 919 352 149 960 13753 - 2022108402 —_
— — — — 32 580 2023/04/01 6317 262

—_ — —_ —_ 25109 2024/04/01 4 868 635

— — — — 25022 2025/04/01 4 B51 766

— — —_ —_ 55 604 2025/04/01 10781 616
1770 T84 241 633 19753 142 299 27591 777

18593 138 145 23 985 —_ —_ 2022/03/18 —_
19140 14037 130 101 X30 —_ 5430 2023/04/01 1052 877
181.00 199 786 4 202 — 2092 2024/04/01 405 639
17810 055 D41 155 B3g 20 543 - 2022/08/02 —
— — — — 35 295 20230401 6843 701

—_ — — —_ 26679 2024/04/01 5173 058

— — — — B340 2025/04/01 1617 126

— — — — 22241 2025/04/01 4312530

— — — — 24 536 2025/08/01 4 757 530

2 331 103 285 255 20 543 124 613 24 162 461

18593 351 78O 61 543 — - 2022/03/18 —
1891.00 1 155 359 112 590 —_ 6 049 2023/04/01 1172 901
19140 249 828 5 348 — 2615 2024/04/01 507 049
18583 768 635 134 427 15819 -- 2022/03/18 —_
- —_ — —_ 40 400 2023/04/01 7 B33 560

— — — — 29 B17 2024/04/01 5781 516

— — — — 9035 2025/04/01 1751 687

— — — — 22 241 202504101 4312 530

— — — — 24 536 2025/09/01 4 757 530

2 525 a2 314 008 15819 134 693 26116973

18593 211 631 36814 — — 2022/03/18 —
159100 11ab 843 111 353 — 5973 2023/04/01 1158 165
19100 249 828 5 348 — 2615 2024704101 507 D49
17810 056 41 155 &37 20 543 - 2022/09/02 —_
— - - — 35 295 2023/04/01 6 843 701

— — — — 26679 2024/04/01 5173 058

— — — —_ 9 730 2025/04/01 1 886 647

—_ — — —_ 22 241 2025/04/01 4312530

— — — — 24 536 2025/09/01 4 757 530

2 557 743 308 353 20543 127 069 24 638 680

Absa Bank Limited

Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |
199



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration icontinued
Outstanding share-based long-term incentives

The table below outlines share-based and leng-term incentive awards {awarded in respect of performance in a prior penad).

2021
Wumber of Nurmber Mumber
shares under of shares/cash af shares/cash
award awarded Share price released
at 1 January during an award during
2031 2021 R 2021
Executive directors
Daniel Mminels*
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 — 349 234 12744 —
Share incentive plan performance 2020 162 902 - — —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 — 117 7oz 12744 —
Total 162 902 128 938 —
lason Quinn
Share value plan 2018 - 20200 4057 - - 4 057
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 11 352 - — R
Share mcentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 62 446 - - £0 B1h
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 — 37 664 12744 —
Long-term incentive award 2019 BE BL5 - - —
Share incentive plan performance 20209 13631 - — —
Share mcentive plan performance 20217 — /B 468 12744 —
Total 294 791 116 132 30 548
Punki Modise®
Share value plan 2018 - 2020° 09 - — ag
Share walue plan 201% - 2021 1741 - — B70
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 T 4el - - 3330
Share incentive plan defepral 2021 - 2024 — QB0 127.44 —
Long-term incentive award 2019 24 915 - - —
Share incentive plan performance 2020 32 580 - - —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 — 25 109 12744 —
Total B9 836 26 089 4 809

Dares! Mminele cosed to be an exeoutive dimector an 15 Aped 2021 and sohssgueently terminated his service with dbea Group on 30 April 2021 All he swerds wene
farferted an teminaton of seroce date.

' For a8l ewecutree directors, the saerd will vest over g five-yesr ponod

' Punkl Modaes outstanding shene:based long: term awards include swerds recesved priar to-becomeng s executrve director on 23 Sprid 2021 Punki Modise's Lang
Tarm incentive sward 2015, Share PMan incentroe Performance sward 2020 and Share Plan (moentive award 2021 vest owver a thrae-yesr pericd since the avwards were
made prear to her becoming an esecutive doector,

*  The schoduled vestniog date for the 1 March 2021 shamw vaiue plan vesting moved 1o 18 March 2021 due to the osginal vesting detes fahing within a prohdnitedy
Ciorsed period.
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2021

Value of Number of

Markat Walue of dividend Mumber of shiares under

price an releazs reteased shates/options  award/option t
releasa date {pra-tau) lpre-tax} lapsed/[forfaited) 31 December Last schaduled
R R R in. 2021 2021 vesting date
— - — 39 234 — 2024/04/01
- - - 152 902 — 20250401
— - - 117 702 — 20260401

— - 319838 —
12698 515 158 117 203 — — 202170318
12698 720738 108 187 — L&6T6 2022/03718
12417 25A4 5899 192 339 — 41 631 20230401
— - — — 37 664 £024/04/01
— - - — B& 615 202403718
— - — — 130 321 £025/04/01
= = e —_ 78 468 20260401

I B20 485 417 729 — 380 375
12698 77331 17523 - — 2021/03/18
12698 118 473 16 507 — 871 20220318
12417 413 486 30 670 —_ B &6l 2023/04/01
— - — — 980 20240401
— - - —_ 24 515 20220902
— - — — 32 580 20230401
— ac = _ 25 109 202400401

601290 &4 700 - 91 114
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

55.

Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration iortinued
Outstanding share-based long-term incentives

The table below outlines share-based and long-term incentive awards (@warded in respect of perfarmance in 3 priar penod].

2021
Number of Nurmibier MNumber
shares under of sharesfcash of shares/cash
award awanded Share price released
at 1 January during on award during
2021 2021 R 2021
Preseribed officers
Arrie Rautenbach
Share value plan 2018 - 20204 9130 - - 9130
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 21758 - - 10880
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 59731 - - 199190
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 — 37 664 12744 —
Long-term incentive award 2019° Ba 7E0 - - —
Share incentive plan performance 20:20° 130 31n - - —
Share incentive plan performance 2021 — B0 430 12744 —
Tortal 309 720 118 094 39520
Charles Russon
Share value plan 2018 - 202004 8114 - - B 114
Share value plan 2019 - 2021 & 041 - - 4021
Share incentive plan deferral 2020 - 2023 45 341 — - 15114
Share incentive plan deferral 2021 - 2024 — 31 387 12744 -
Long-term incentive award 2015 B0 530 - - —
Share incentive plan performance 20207 94 370 - - -
Share incentive plan performance 20217 — 54927 127.44 —
Total 221 498 86 314 27 248
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Arme Rauterhach's outstandirg share-based lorg-term awards inclode swards received prior o becomimg s prescribed officer on 19 Apn| 2018,
The scheduled westing date for the 1 March 202 1 shame value plan vesting maved to 18 March 2021, due to tho onginal vesting dates fafling withen a
prohibited)dosed perind

! For afi presoibed afficers, the award will vest ower a fiveposr period.

& [hares Russon's outstanding share- based larg-term awards include awards recsived prior ta becoming a presonbed officer on 5 Mowember 2018

2021

Valise of Number of

Markat Valtie of dividend Mumber of shares under

peice an relegce released sharesfoptions award/optian at
release date {pra-tax) [pre-tax}  lapsed/Forfeited] 31 December Last scheduled
R R R in 2021 2021 westing date
12598 1159 337 263 64 — — 2021/03/18
12698 13A]1 542 207 231 — 10878 2022103718
12417 2472225 183 894 — 39821 2023/04/01
— — — — a7 ebd 2024/04/01
— - — — BE TEO 2024/03/18
— — — — 130 321 2025/04/0L
— - — — BO 430 2026/04/01

5013 04 654 991 — 387 894
126.98 1030318 234 405 — — 2021103118
12598 510 587 76 559 — 4 020 2022/03/18
12437 1876 705 139 567 — n 227 2023/04/01
— - — — 31 387 20240401
— — — — 60 &30 2024/03/18
— - — — 59370 2025/04,/01
- - s — 54 927 2026/04/01

3417 808 450 541 — 2H0 561
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration ccronued
Outstanding cash-based long-term awards

Value

U e
award at Value Valise Valug
gwarded refeased forfaited
in tha yaar i the year in the year
2] R R
Executive directors
lason Quinn
Cash value plan 201% - 2021 G983 000 1277 %00 - Ga3 000 —
Total 983 000 1277 900 - 983 300 —
Prescribed officers
Charles Russon
Cash value plan 201% - 2021 6596 334 805 234 - 696 334 —
Total 6596 334 805 234 - 696 334 —
Punki Modise’
Cash walue plan 2019 - 2021 150 726 195 944 - 150 726 —
Total 150 726 195 944 - 150 726 —
Faisal Mkhize?
Cash value plan 2019 - 2021 128 BOO 167 440 - 128 800 -
Cash value plan IMRT) 2021 1 400 GO0 1 400 000 - 1 400 G00 —
Total 1528 BOO 1567 440 - 1 528 200 —
Cowyk Fox®
Cash walue plan 201% - 2021 327 666 425 966 - 327 866 —
Cash valwe plan (MET) 2021 1 500 000 1 500 000 - 1 500 000 —
Total 1827 666 1925 966 - 1 B27 666 —
Geoffrey Lee?
Cash walwe plan 2019 - 2021 196 600 255 580 - 196 600 —
Cash value plan (MRT] 2021 1 500 000 1 500 000 - 1 500 G00 —
Total 1 696 600 1755 580 - 1 696 800 —

*  Punki Modse's outstanding cash-based borg-term awands inclode awards received prios to becoming an esecutive dinector for the peniod 23 April 2021 to 29 March 2032
Faisad Mibe's, Cowyh Fox' and Ceaffrey Lee'’s outstandng cash-bemed longsterm awards incude swards rocessed pnior to becoming prescobed officers on 1 duly 2022
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2022
MaxamiLim
potential
Sarvice credit Service credit Servece credit
Converted gwarded in released in  lapsed/[forfeited)

10 Bquity the year the year in the year Last scheduked
24 R R 5 vesbing date
- - 294 9040 - 2022103118
- - 294 9040 -

- - 208 300 - 2022/03f18
- - 208 300 -
- - 45 218 — 2022/03/18
- - 45 218 -
— - 38 p4Q — 2022/03/18
- = . — 2022/04r01
- - 38 640 -
- - Q8 300 - H022{03/18
o - e = 20220401
— - Q8 300 —
- - 58 980 - 2022/03/18
£3 - L - 2022/04/01
- - 58 980 -
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (ccronued
Outstanding cash-based long-term awards (continued)

2021
Value Maxirmuam
urgder potential
awand at walue at value Valeo valua
1 faniiary L lanuary awarded released forfeited
2021 2021 in tha year in the year in the year
R R R R R
Executive directors
Jason Quinn
Cash valwe plan 2018 - 2020 B0 OO0 593 333 - BOG 000 -
Cash valee plan 2019 - 2021 1 9&6 000 2 260900 — G983 000 -
Total 2 766 000 3254 233 - L 783 000 -
Punki Modise?
Cash valee plan 2018 - 2020 120 000 158 000 - 120 000 -
Cash vahse plan 2019 - 2021 301 453 346 671 - 150 727 -
Total 421453 502 671 - 20727 -
Prescribed officer
Charles Russon
Cash valee plan 2019 - 2021 1392 667 1 601 567 - B9 333 -
Total 1392 667 1 601 567 - B9& 333 -

Y Punki Modese's ouetstanding cash- based lang-term awards include avards received prior ta becaming &n executive dinctar on 23 Aped 2021
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2021

valug Masimuim

under potentizl

Sarvice credit Service: crédit Service credit iare “wipe oL

Converted awarded in released in  lapsed/Forfeited) 31 December 31 December
to equity the year the year in the year 2021 2021 Last schedukad
B R (] R R R vesting date
— - 193 333 - - — 2021/03/01
- - - - Q83 200 1277900 2022/03/18

- - 193 333 - 983 000 1277900
- - 36 000 - - — 2021/03/01
- - — - 150 726 195 944 2022/03/18

- - 36 000 - 150 726 185 944
- - — - 695 334 @05 234 HZ03/18

=5 = — — 696 334 %05 234
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55. Directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration (continued)
Group Chairman and non-executive directors’ fees

Subsidiary boards, committees and

trusts
Croup Board
commitiees Absa
Grgasp and sub- Financial 2021
Baoard committees  Absa Bank Sarvices Othar Tatal®
Directors ] (] R R (1] [
Alex Darko 730993 1357 896 103 300 - — 2192189 2 255669
Francis Okomo-Okatlo? 730993 678 142 103 300 - A9 558 1601993 105719812
Mark Merson® 74 633 107 653 B 608 - 807 217 998111 3407 614
Monhtanhla Mjaki-Mnoube? A70 993 662 250 o4 92 - — 1627935 -
Rend van Wk 730993 1501 584 04 592 — — 2727269 —
Rose Keanly® 730993 1236177 04 692 676 100 — 2737962 -
Gello Maloka® * 5239575 345 0B3 25 825 - — S5s5l0483 126974
Tasneem Abdoal-Samad 730993 1775 650 103 300 B15 450 — 3426393 3495505
Wendy Lucas-Bull (Chairman}® 16749125 - — — — 1679125 6627100
Tatal 11514 291 8 0a5 435 628 400 1 491 550 8%6 775 22601460 17 BB 854

Francis Okomo-Oiked o was a tnrstes of the Abss Foondaton Tnest and paid for attendances. until 31 October 2022, Alsa Afrcn Foundation Adviscry Boand was
established in Q3 of 2022 as o sub-commattes of the Social, Sustainabalty and Ethics Commattes {S5EC] Board committee. Francs Okomo-Okello wes sppeinted osa
member and Chairman of the Absa Afeca Foundation Advsocy Bosrd (neported under Cthar)
Mark Merson resigned from the Group and Bark boards on 31 farmary 3022, but remained as-Chairman of the Absa Securities United Eingdom Limited; a subizidiary of
Ab=za Crowp Lemited {reparted under Cther].
Whilamhiz Mjol-Mnoube 'wes appomted as the Lead independent Director (L0} and joened the Bank Board on B Febroary 2022, The LD fors are included under tho
Group for
* Rane van Wyk joined the Bank Board on 1 February 30232,
Rose Koanly jomned the Benk Board on 8 February 2022
¥ Sefin Molokn was apposnted st Chaérman of the ‘Group ard Bark boards on 1 Agril 20232
Thie foe spplicable to Sellc Moloko, the Croup Chaermar, covers chasmanship of the #bsa Group snd Atisa Bank boards &s el as membershg of a0y boand
committees [from 1 Apnl 2023k prior to that, separate fiees were pesd for mombership of the boands and relevant board committees
* ‘Wondy Locas-Bull netered from the Groop and Sank boords effecte 31 March 2022
Th fees indicated abouwe sre exclusive of VAT, Whems applicshle VAT has been |evied by the ranexecutive dimctors and such fees plus VAT were paid to the non-
moecutive diectors conoemed {subject tothe issor of & vald tas invaioel
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Company statementof financial position

as at
Company
Restated
RIS LI 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
Note Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks 2 37 344 33751 33812
Investment securities 3 127 220 114 401 97113
Trading portfolio assets* 4 155778 141993 168403
Hedging portfolio assets* 4 4972 3696 7473
Other assets 5 17114 16 757 14734
Current tax assets - - 251
Non-current assets held for sale 6 90 57 136
Loans and advances 7 1027 244 926 642 868438
Loans to Group Companies 8 81939 87708 66 553
Investments in associates and joint ventures 9 206 206 206
Subsidiaries 10 98 98 109
Property and equipment 11 11 665 12 369 13918
Goodwill and intangible assets 12 11143 10294 9514
Deferred tax assets 13 4574 3124 1900
Total assets® 1479387 1351096 1282560
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities* 14 91 396 68102 105821
Hedgingportfolioliabilities® 14 2237 2910 5013
Other liabilities 15 23565 35430 22127
Provisions 16 4023 3922 2764
Current tax liabilities 364 85 -
Deposits 17 1017 207 975403 892 054
Debt securities in issue! 18 197 243 124387 137 886
Loans from Group Companies 16 354 14 657 3793
Borrowed funds 26282 26 459 20621
Total liabilities* 1378671 1251355 1190078
Equity
Capital and reserves
Attributable to equity holders:
Ordinary share capital 19 304 304 304
Ordinary share premium 19 36 880 36880 36880
Preference share capital 19 1 1 1
Preference share premium 19 4643 4643 4643
Additional Tier 1 capital 19 7503 7004 7004
Retained earnings 20 52158 48474 38081
Other reserves 20 (773) 2435 5569
Total equity 100716 99741 92 482
Total liabilities and equity’ 1479387 1351096 1282560

1These numbers have been restated, refer to restatement note 1.1
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Company statementof comprehensiveincome
for thereporting period ended 31 December

2021
Note Rm

Net interest income 42188 38014
Interest and similar income 21 88013 71195
Effective interest income 86 360 69 755
Other interest income 1653 1440
Interest expense and similarcharges 22 (45 825) (33181)
Non-interest income 21452 20151
Net fee and commission income 19 216 17961
Fee and commission income 23 21234 19663
Fee and commission expense 23 (2018) (1702)
Gains and losses from banking and tradingactivities 24 1570 1723
Gains and losses from investment activities 25 3 141
Other operatingincome 26 663 326
Total Income 63 640 58165
Credit impairment charges 27 (8717) (6 308)
Operating income before operating expenses 54923 51857
Operating expenses 28 (37 003) (35101)
Other expenses (1915) (1470)
Other impairments 29 (591) (336)
Indirect taxation 30 (1324) (1134)
Operating profit beforeincome tax 16 005 15286
Taxation expense 31 (4 056) (3945)
Profit for the reporting period 11949 11341

Profit attributable to:

Ordinary equity holders 11074 10514
Preference equity holders 266 242
Additional Tier 1 capital 609 585

11949 11341
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Company statementof comprehensiveincome
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm
Profit for thereporting period 11949 11341
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (152) 55
Fair value gains/(losses) on equity instruments measured at FVOCI (1) 10
Fair value (losses)/gains (1) 13
Deferred tax - (3)
Movement of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in own credit risk (151) (26)
Fair value losses (202) (36)
Deferred tax 51 10
Movement in retirement benefit fund assetsand liabilities - 71
Increase/(decrease) inretirement benefit surplus (36) 98
Deferred tax 13 36 (27)
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (3570) (3412)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 1 (2)
Differences in translation of foreign operations | 1 (2)|
Movement in cash flow hedging reserve (4477) (4 051)
Fair value losses (3439) (1463)
Amount removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profitor loss (2718) (4163)
Deferred tax 1680 1575
Movement in fair value of debt instruments measured at FVOCI 906 641
Fair value gains/ (losses) 1288 1007
Release to profit or loss (7) (120)
Deferred tax 13 (375) (246)
Total comprehensive income for the reporting period 8227 7984
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders 7 352 7157
Preference equity holders 266 242
Additional Tier 1 capital 609 585
8227 7984
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Company statementof changes in equity
for the reporting period ended 31 December

Number of Preference Preference

ordinary Share Share share share

shares capital  premium capital premium

‘000 Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning previous reporting period 448301 304 36 880 1 4643 7 004
Total comprehensive income - - - - 266 609
Profit for the period - - - - 266 609
Other comprehensive income o o - - - -
Dividends paid duringthe reporting period = o o = (266) =

Distributions paidduringthe reporting period - - - - - (609)

Movement in Additional Tier 1 capital* - - - - - 499

Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of
equity-settled share-based payment schemes

Movement in share-based payment reserve - - - - - -

Intercompany recharge = = - - - -
Value of employee services = o = - - -

Deferred tax - - - - - =

Balance at the end of the reporting period 448301 304 36 880 1 4643 7503
Note 19 19 19 19 19 19
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Company statementof changes in equity
for the reporting period ended 31 December

Company
2022
Fair value
through
other
compre- Foreign Share-
hensive Cashflow currency based
Retained Total other income hedging translation Capital payment
earnings reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve
Rm Rm Rm Rm
48474 2435 (864) 1265 (1) 1422 613 99 741
10922 (3570) 906 (4477) 1 - - 8227
11074 - = = - - - 11949
(152) (3570) 906 (4477) 1 - - (3722)
(6 500) - - - - - - (6 766)
- - = = - - - (609)
o o o > o o > 499
(738) - = = = = - (738)
- 362 - - - - 362 362
- (318) - - - - (318) (318)
= 554 = = = = 554 554
- 126 - - - - 126 126
52158 (773) 42 (3212) - 1422 975 100716
20 20 20 20 20

IMovement in Additional Tier 1 Capital includes an issuance of R1 999m and an expiry of R1 500m.
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Company statementof changes in equity
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Number of Preference Preference Additional
ordinary Share Share share share Tierl
shares capital premium capital premium capital
‘000 Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 448301 304 36 880 1 4643 7004
Total comprehensive income - - - - 242 585
Profit for the period - - - - 242 585
Other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Dividends paid during the reporting period - - - - (242) -
Distributions paidduring the reporting period - - - - - (585)
Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of ) ) ) ) ) )
equity-settled share-based payment schemes
Movement in share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Transfer from share-based payment reserve - - - - - -
Value of employee services - - - - - -
Deferred tax - - - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 448 301 304 36 880 1 4643 7004
Note 19 19 19 19 19 19
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Company statementof changes in equity
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Fair value
through
other
compre- Foreign Share-
hensive  Cashflow  currency based
Retained Total other income hedging translation Capital payment Total
earnings reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve equity
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
38081 5569 (1505) 5316 1 1422 335 92482
10569 (3412) 641 (4051) (2) - - 7984
10514 - - - - - - 11341
55 (3412) 641 (4051) (2) - - (3357)
. - - . - - . (242)
- - - - - - - (585)
(176) - - - - - - (176)
- 278 - - - - 278 278
- (253) - - - - (253) (253)
B} 461 - - - - 461 461
- 70 - - - - 70 70
48474 2435 (864) 1265 (1) 1422 613 99741
20 20 20 20 20

10n 30 September 2021, the board of directors disposed of Integrated Processing Solutions.
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Company statementof cash flows
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
Restated
2021
Note Rm
Cashflow from operatingactivities
Profit before tax 16 005 15286
Adjustment of non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 28 4919 5134
Other impairments 29 591 336
Other non-cash items included in profit and before tax (22) (534)
Dividends income from investing activities (43) (174)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in operatingassetsand liabilities 21450 20048
Net (increase)/decrease intradingand hedging portfolio assets” (19539) 26137
Netincreasein loans and advances® (96 935) (61 049)
Net increasein investmentsecurities (11887) (16 617)
Net decrease/(increase) inother assets™” 3164 (25053)
Net increase/(decrease) intradingand hedging portfolio liabilities 22620 (39822)
Net increase in amounts due to customers and banks 41804 83348
Net increasein other liabilities?@ 63124 13574
Income taxes paid (3729) (3481)
Net cash generated from/(utilised in) operating activities®” 20072 (2915)
Cashflow from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets held for sale 54 113
Purchase of property and equipment 11 (1 604) (874)
Proceeds from disposal of properties and equipment 64 170
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (3 246) (2751)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets - 20
Disposal of associates and joint ventures - 11
Dividends received from investing activities 16 154
Net cash utilised in investing activities (4 716) (3157)
Cash flow from financing activities
Net contribution from/distribution tothe Group in respect of equity-settled share-based payment (1070) (176)
Issue of Additional Tier 1 capital 1999 -
Expiry of Additional Tier 1 capital (1500) -
Distributions paidto Tier 1 capital holders (609) (585)
Proceeds from borrowed funds 1916 6 866
Repayment of borrowed funds (2204) (2381)
Repayment of IFRS 16 lease liability (984) (984)
Dividends paid (6 766) (242)
Net cash (utilised) in/generated from financing activities (9 218) 2498
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents®? 6138 (3574)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period® 30326 33900
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period"? 39 36464 30326

As part of operatingactivities, interest income amounting toR89 750m (2021: 70 367m); and interest expense amounting toR45 825m (2021:

R31 877m) were received and paid incashrespectively.

1These amounts have been restated, refer to note 1.1
2Net increase in other liabilities includes debt securities inissue, provisions and loans from group companies.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

1. Accounting policies

The financial statements of Absa Bank Limited (the Company) are prepared according to the same accounting policies used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

1.1Reporting changes overview

The Company effected the following financial reporting changes during the current reporting period:

1.1.1 Change in accounting policy for Cash and cash equivalents

The IFRS Interpretation Committee published anagenda decision on ‘Demand Deposits with Restrictions on Use arising from a Contract with a
Third Party (IAS 7 Statement of Cash flows) — Agenda Paper 3'in April 2022. Based on the afore-mentioned agenda decision, the Statement of
cash flows of the Company has been reviewed and it was concluded that the mandatory reserves with the SARB should be included as ‘Cash and
cash equivalents’in the Statement of cash flows. The portion which isincluded in cashand cash equivalentsis that which canbe utilised bythe
Company. This is calculated by applying the percentage that is accessible to the Company in accordance with the regulatory terms.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periodsaffected. These changes in accounting
policy donot have an impact on the Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, Statement of changes in equity or
earnings per share of the Company.

Theimpact of the afore-mentioned restatements is as follows:

31 December 2021

Accounting policy Correction of prior
change period error (refer to
As previously Mandatory reserves note 1.1.2 below)
reported with the SARB Nostros Restated balance
Statement of cash flows Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents 6170 19379 4777 30326
Net increase in other assets (26 609) 1556 - 25053
Netincreasein loans and advances (58 530) - (2519) (61 050)
Net cash utilised in operating activities (1952) 1556 (2519) (2915)
1January 2021
Accounting policy Correction of prior
change  period error (refer to
As previously ~ Mandatory reserves note 1.1.2 below)
reported with the SARB Nostros Restated balance
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents 8781 17822 7297 33900
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

1.1.2. Correction of prior period errors

Nostros in the Statement of cash flows

As part of the review of what constitutes Cash and cash equivalents, it was identified that nostro balances with foreign banks have been
incorrectly excluded from Cash and cash equivalents and the Statement of cash flows has subsequently been corrected.

Refer to note 1.1.1 above for the impact of the afore-mentioned restatement.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periodsaffected. These errors have noimpact on
the Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, or earnings per share of the Company.

Trading & Hedging portfolio assets and liabilities and debt securities in the Statement of financial position

In terms of the Company's accounting policy, movements in the fair value of collateral held on certain over the counter (OTC) derivative contracts
are, in terms of the requirements of I1AS 32, required to be offset against the related derivative market-to-market movement and presented on a
net basis on the Statement of financial position. Certain movements in the fairvalue of the collateral linked to the Company’s hedging strategy
were historically reported as part of Trading portfolio assets and Trading portfolio liabilities, as opposed to Hedging portfolio assets and Hedging
portfolioliabilities, respectively. These items have been adjusted to correctly set off derivative movements from movements in collateral interms
of the requirements of 1AS 32.

Furthermore, as part of the Company’s ongoing process toimprove financial controlsand processes, it was identified thatthe fairvalue of certain
credit linked note (CLN) instruments had been incorrectly recognised as part of Trading portfolio assets, as opposed to Debt securitiesin issue.

As required by IAS 8, the afore-mentioned changes have been applied retrospectively toall prior periodsaffected. These errors have noimpact on
the Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of changes in equity, or earnings per share the Company.

The impact of the afore-mentioned restatements on the Statement of financial position and the Statement of cash flows are as follows:
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for thereporting period ended 31 December

31 December 2021

Fair value on

As previously reported OTCderivatives CLNs Restated balance
Statement of financial position Rm RmM Rm Rm
Assets
Trading portfolio assets 141832 1462 (1301) 141993
Hedging portfolio assets 5157 (1462) - 3696
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities (67 353) (749) - (68102)
Hedging portfolio liabilities (3659) 749 - (2910)
Debt securities in issue (125 687) - 1301 (124 387)

1January 2021
) o Fair value on Restated balance

As previously reported OTCderivatives CLNs
Statement of financial position Rm Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Trading portfolioassets 166172 3525 (1293) 168403
Hedging portfolio assets 10998 (3525) - 7473
Liabilities
Trading portfolio liabilities (105 966) 145 ; (105 821)
Hedging portfolio liabilities (4 868) (145) - (5013)
Debt securities in issue (139179) 1293 (137 886)

As previously

31 December 2021

Correction of

reported error Restated balance
Statement of cashflows Rm Rm Rm
Net decrease in tradingand hedging portfolio liabilities 26130 7 26137
Net increase in other liabilities 13581 (7) 13574
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm
2. Cash, cashbalances and balances with central banks
Balances with the SARB 31103 27 684
Coins and bank notes 6241 6067
37 344 33751

The minimum reserve balance held incash with the SARB and other various central banks across the different jurisdictions is determined
in accordance with the regulatory terms applicable to the respective countries. The portion of the balance that canbe utilised by the Group
isincluded in cash and cash equivalents(note 52) and s calculated by applying the percentage that is accessible tothe bank inaccordance

with the respective regulatory terms for each jurisdiction.

Company
2021
BE

3. Investmentsecurities

Government bonds 87924 75007
Listed equity instruments 205 201
Other debt securities 7 306 8196
Treasury bills 30680 29936
Unlisted equity and hybridinstruments 1106 1062
Gross investment securities 127 221 114 402
Impairment losses (1) (1)
127 220 114401

Government bonds of ROm (2021: R8 281m) which relate to repurchase agreements have been pledged with the SARB and other central

banks. The terms of the pledges are usual and customary to such agreements.

Impairment losses relate to expected credit losses raised on investment securities held at amortised cost. Expected credit losses of

R184m(2021:R222m) has been recognised on investment securities at FVOCI.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm

4. Tradingand hedging portfolio assets

Commodities 614 642
Debt instruments® 83846 67 424
Derivative assets (refer to note 44) 57032 55707
Commodity derivatives 188 920
Credit derivatives 224 142
Equity derivatives 8758 8581
Foreign exchange derivatives 16 394 10090
Interest rate derivatives® 31468 35974
Equity instruments 951 3888
Money market assets 13335 14332
Total trading portfolio assets 155778 141993
Hedging portfolio assets (refer to 44)* 4972 3696
160 750 145 689

Trading portfolioassets with a carrying values of R42 945m (2021: R37 907m) and R1 800m (2021: R2 810m) were pledged as security for
repurchase and scrip lending agreements respectively. These assetsare pledged for the duration of the respective agreements. The terms
of the pledges are usual and customary to such agreements.

Included within debt instrumentsare financial assetstraded in the debt capital market with an original maturity of more than one year
such as government and corporate bonds.

Included within money market assets are highly liquid financial assets with an original maturity of one year or less, such as floating rate
notes, negotiable certificates of deposit, treasury bills, promissory notes, commercial paperand bankers’ acceptance notes.

1These amounts have been restated, refer to reporting changes overview note 1.1.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm

5. Otherassets

Accounts receivable! 10 725 8656
Prepayments® 1781 1672
Deferred costs 166 154
Inventories 4 11
Cost 4 11
Write-down - -
Retirement benefit fund surplus (refer to note 46) 466 465
Settlement accounts 3972 5799
Gross other assets 17114 16 757
Impairment losses 0 0
17114 16757

The ECLimpact is immaterial due tothe short term nature of these items

*Accounts receivable and prepayments, which were previously disclosed as a single line item, have been disclosed separately due to their distinct nature.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm
6. Non-currentassets heldforsale
Non-currentassets held for sale
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 57 136
Disposals (34) (93)
Impairment of an NCAHFS (refer to 29) - (1)
Transfer from property and equipment (referto note 11) 67 15
Balance at the end of the reporting period 20 57

The following movements in non-current assets occurred during the current financial reporting period:
o  Head Office, Treasury and other operationsdisposed of property and equipment with a carryingamount of R34m.

o  Head Office, Treasury and other operationstransferred propertyand equipment with a carryingamount of R67m to non-current

assets held for sale.

The following movements in non-current assets held for sale occurred during the previous financial reporting period:
o  Head Office, Treasury and other operationsdisposed of property and equipment with a carryingamount of R93m.

o  Head Office, Treasury and other operationstransferred propertyand equipment with a carryingamount of R15m to non-current

assets held for saleand a R1mimpairment was recognised on remaining assets previously classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
Rm
7. Loansandadvances

Corporate overdrafts and specialised finance loans 23428 20479
Credit cards 38169 34 694
Foreign currency loans 54 477 37953
Instalment credit agreements 116 292 106110
Finance lease receivables 3311 3529
Loans to associates and joint ventures 25563 25909
Microloans 4897 3448
Mortgages 379720 352209
Other advances 15795 12730
Overdrafts 49520 43542
Overnight finance 25193 26579
Personal and term loans 64424 58950
Preference shares 29829 27061
Reverse repurchase agreements (Carries) 44 490 60208
Wholesale overdrafts 108 774 94 083
Gross loans and advances to customers 983 882 907 484
Gross loans and advances to banks 76 569 50311
Gross loans and advances 1060451 957795
Impairment losses (33207) (31153)
Impairment losses for loans and advances to customers (33179) (31103)
Impairment losses for loans and advances to banks (28) (50)
Net loans and advances 1027 244 926 642

Included above are collateralised loansof R3 418m (2021:R 1 673m) relating to securities borrowed.

The amount pledged is the required threshold of cash collateral based on specific arrangements with different counterparties. Exposures
are reviewed on a periodic basis, whereby these thresholdsare adjusted accordingly. The financial assets pledged underterms that usual
and customary to such arrangements.

Other advances include working capital solutions and collateralised loans.

Included in both gross loans and advances to customers, and in the total allowance for impairment losses, is accrued interest in suspense
of R3796m(2021:R3277m).

Included above in Gross loans and advances to banks are reverse repurchase agreements of R34 774m(2021:R 19 453m) and other
collateralised loans of R4 180m (2021:R 24m) relating to securities borrowed.

YIncluded in this amount are credit linked notes of which R3 041m is relating to loans and customers and R409mto loans and advances to banks.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

Company
Rm
8. Loans to Group companies
Gross loans to Group companies 82190 87958
Impairment losses (251) (250)
81939 87708
Refer to Related parties, Note 38 in the Bank's financial statements for further details on the gross
Company
Rm
9. Investmentsinassociatesandjointventures
Unlisted investments 206 206
9.1 Movement incarrying value of associates and joint ventures
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 206 206
Disposal of investment - (11)
Reversal of impairments (refer to note 29) - 11
Balance at the end of the reporting period 206 206
Refer to note 38.5 of the Bank's financial statements for additional disclosure of the Company’s investments inassociates and joint
ventures.
Company
Rm
10. Subsidiaries
Shares at cost 98 98
98 98
Refer to note 38.3 of the Bank's financial statements for the list of significant subsidiaries.
Company
2022 2021
Accumulated Accumulated
depreciation depreciation
and/or and/or Carrying
Cost impairments Cost impairments value
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
11. Property and equipment
Computer equipment 6296 (4 775) 1521 6709 (5083) 1626
Freehold property 4836 (297) 4539 4713 (308) 4405
Furniture and other equipment 8917 (5506) 3411 8622 (4710) 3912
Motor vehicles 13 (5) 8 6 (3) 3
Right-of-use-assets 5808 (3622) 2186 5064 (2641) 2423
25870 (14 205) 11 665 25114 (12 745) 12 369
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

11. Property and equipment (continued)

Company
2022
Transfers
to non-
current
Opening asset held Impairment
Reconciliation of property balance Additions Disposals Transfers for sale Depreciation charge
and equipment Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer equipment 1626 681 (31) - - (706) (49) 1521
Freehold property* 4405 395 (24) (136) (65) (9) (27) 4539
Furniture and other equipment 3912 521 (7) 136 (2) (989) (160) 3411
Motor vehicles 3 7 - - - (2) - 8
Right-of-use-assets 2423 744 - - - (863) (118) 2186
12 369 2348 (62) - (67) (2569) (354) 11 665
Note 6 28 29
2021

Transfers to
non-current

Opening asset held Impairment Closing
Reconciliation of property and balance Additions Disposals Transfers for sale Depreciation charge balance
equipment Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer equipment 2289 418 (32) (14) - (980) (55) 1626
Freehold property 4538 293 (14) (388) (15) (9) - 4405
Furniture and other equipment

4561 159 (30) 402 - (1044) (136) 3912

Motor vehicles 1 3 - - - (1) - 3
Right-of-use-assets 2529 767 - - - (873) - 2423

13918 1640 (76) - (15) (2907) (191) 12369
Note 6 28 29

Included in the above additions is R394m (2021: R283m) thatrelates to expenditure capitalised to the cost of property and equipment
duringthe course of its construction.

Assets under construction relating to computer equipment and furniture and other equipment was brought in touse duringthe reporting
period R136m (2021:383m). There were no assets under construction relating to freehold property was brought in touse during the
reporting period (2021: ROm).

Certain property and equipment was transferred to non-current assets held for sale due toa change in the use of the assets R67m (2021:
R15m).

! Assets under construction of projects are mapped to freehold which is then moved todifferentassets classes.
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the reporting period ended 31 December

Company
2022 2021
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortisation
and/or and/or Carrying
Cost impairments Cost impairments amount
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
12. Goodwill andintangible assets
Computer software development costs 16 345 (5208) 11137 14 358 (4072) 10286
Other 30 (24) 6 30 (22) 8
16 375 (5232) 11143 14 388 (4 094) 10294
12. Goodwill andintangible assets
Company

Additions

through
business Disposal Amortisatio
Additions combinations s n
Rm Rm Rm

Closing
balance
Rm

Impairment
charge
Rm

Opening
balance
Rm

Reconciliation of intangible assets
Transfers
Rm

Computer software development

costs 10286 3351 - - (2348) (237) 85 11137
Other 8 - - - (2) - - 6
10294 3351 - - (2350) (237) 85 11143

Note 28 29

2021
Additions
through Transfers
Reconciliation of intangible assets Opening business Amortisatio Impairment  (to)/from Closing
balance Additions combinations Disposals n charge PPE balance
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Computer software development

costs 9489 3172 - ( 10) (2221) ( 144) - 10286
Other 25 - (11) (6) - - 8
9514 3172 - (21) (2227) (144) - 10294

Note 45 28 29

The majority of computer software development costs were internally generated. Included in computer software development costs is R4 157m
(2021:R4 135m) relating toassets under construction which isnot yet amortised, thisincludes opening balance and any movements to date.

In assets under construction, R2 629 (2021: R1 531m) relates to computer software was brought into use duringthe reporting period.

Included in ‘Other’intangible assets is brandsand licences.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

Company
2021
Rm
13. Deferredtax
13.1 Reconciliation of net deferred tax (asset)/liability
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (3124) (1900)
Deferred tax on amounts charged directly to other comprehensive income and equity (1518) (1379)
Charge to profit or loss (refer tonote 31) 49 127
Tax effect of translation and other differences 19 28
Balance at the end of thereporting period (4574) (3124)
13.2 Deferred tax (asset)/liability
Tax effects of temporary differencesbetween tax and book value for:
Deferred tax asset (4574) (3124)
Prepayments, accruals and other provisions (963) (1093)
Capital allowances 1235 1122
Property allowances 257 257
Cash flow hedge and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (1183) 123
Own credit risk (174) (122)
Share-based payments (432) (252)
Fair value adjustments on financial instruments (149) (178)
Impairment of loans and advances (3018) (2915)
Lease and rental debtor allowances (175) (130)
Retirement benefit asset and liabilities 28 64
Net deferred tax (asset)/liability (4574) (3124)
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Company
2021
Rm

14. Tradingandhedging portfolioliabilities

Derivative liabilities (refer to note 44) 54549 46 956
Commodity derivatives 117 824
Credit derivatives 260 93
Equity derivatives 4678 2682
Foreign exchange derivatives 16 947 11490
Interest rate derivatives® 32547 31867
Short positions 36 847 21146
Total trading portfolioliabilities 91 396 68102
Hedgingportfolioliabilities (refer to note 44)* 2237 2910
93633 71012

These amounts have been restated, refer toreportingchanges overview note 1.19.1.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |230



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the Company financial statements
for the reporting period ended 31 December

Company
Rm
15. Otherliabilities
Accruals 1876 1963
Audit fee accrual 150 126
Cash- settled share-based payment liability (refer to note 49) 50 94
Creditors 10075 8172
Deferred income 390 260
Lease liabilities 2854 3006
Settlement balances 8170 21809
23 565 35430
Company
Staff bonus Undrawn
and contractually
incentive Sundry committed and
provisions  provisions guarantees provision
Rm Rm
16. Provisions
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 2122 1065 735 3922
Additions 2352 534 = 2886
Amounts used (2010) (619) - (2629)
Reversals (143) (91) - (234)
Moygnjent in provisions for.financial guarantees, undrawn committed _ _ 78 78
facilities and letters of credit (refer to note 52)
Balance at the end of thereporting period 2321 889 813 4023

Provisions expected to be recovered or settled within 12 monthsafter the reporting date were R2 742m (2021: R2 418m).

Sundry provisions include amounts with respect to fraud, litigation and claims.
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Company
2021
Rm
17. Deposits

Customers
Call deposits 88501 90398
Cheque account deposits 237 504 230444
Credit card deposits 2142 2137
Fixed deposits 222001 210135
Foreign currency deposits 41388 33429
Notice deposits 67562 70148
Other 1270 1304
Repurchase agreements 19071 21863
Savings and transmission deposits 236 768 225300
916 207 885158

Banks

Call deposits 2560 9322
Fixed deposits 28915 12957
Foreign currency deposits 19 357 12928
Other 2447 2871
Repurchase agreements 47 218 51667
Savings and transmission deposits 503 500
101 000 90 245
Total deposits 1017 207 975403

‘Other deposits’ due to customers include deposits on structured deals and unclaimed deposits. ‘Other deposits’ from banks consist mainly of

Vostro' balances.

Company
Restated
Rm
18. Debtsecuritiesinissue

Credit linked notes® 19734 13864
Floating rate notes 51722 34694
Negotiable certificates of deposit 85660 36117
Other 1416 1508
Promissory notes 2 3
Senior notes 38608 38100
Structured notes and bonds 101 101
197 243 124 387

! These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.1
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Company
2021
Rm
19. Share capital and premium
19.1 Ordinary share capital
Authorised
320000000 (2021:320 000000) ordinary shares of R1.00 each 320 320
250000 000 (2021: 250 000 000) 'A' ordinary shares of R0.01 each 3 3
323 323
Issued
302 609 369 (2021:302 609 369) ordinary shares of R1.00 each 303 303
145691 959 (2021: 145 691 959) 'A' ordinary shares of R0.01 each 1 1
304 304
Total issued capital
Share capital 304 304
Share premium 36 880 36 880
37184 37184

19. Share Capital (continued)
19.1 Ordinary share capital (continued)

Authorised shares

There were no changes tothe authorised share capital during the current reporting period.

Unissued shares

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors, subjecttoa limit of 5% of issued ordinary share capital as at the reporting date,
in terms of a general authority toallot and issue them on such terms and conditionsand at such times as they deem fit. Thisauthority

expires at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

Shares issued

There were no shares issued during the currentand prior reporting periods. All shares issued by the company were paidin full.

Company
2021
Rm
19. Share capital and premium
19.2 Preference share capital and premium
Authorised
30000 000 (2021:30 000 000) non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each 1 1
Issued
4944839 (2021:4 944 839) non-cumulative, non-redeemable listed preference shares of R0.01 each 1 1
Total issued capital
Share capital 1 1
Share premium 4643 4643
4 644 4644

The preference shares have a dividend rate of 70% of the prime overdraft lending rate. The holders of the preference shares shallnot be

entitled tovotingrights unless a declared preference dividend remainsin arrears and unpaid after sixmonths from the due date thereof, or
if aresolution is proposed the Company which directlyaffectsthe rightsattached tothe preference shares or the interest of the holders

thereof.
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2020
Rm
19. Share capital and premium (continued)
19.3 Additional tier1 capital
Subordinated Callable notes issued by Absa Bank Limited
Interest rate Date of issue
Three month JIBAR + 5.65% 11 September 2017 - 1500
Three month JIBAR + 4.75% 9 October 2018 1241 1241
Three month JIBAR + 4.50% 28 May 2019 1678 1678
Three month JIBAR + 4.25% 5 December 2019 1376 1376
Three month JIBAR + 4.55% 26 October 2020 1209 1209
Three month JIBAR + 3.58% 15 November 2022 1999 -
7503 7004

20.
20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

The Additional Tier1 capital notes represent perpetual, subordinated instruments redeemable in full at the option of Absa Group

Limited (theissuer) on 10 October 2023,28 November 2024, 5 June 2025 and 16 November 2027 subject to regulatory approval. These
instruments include a write-off provision which isrequired under Basel Ill. This provision istriggered by the Prudential Authority and
shall beinstituted at the earlier of (i) a decision that a write-off, without which the Issuer would become non-viable, is necessary; or (ii)
adecision tomake a public sector injection of capital, or equivalent support, without which the Issuer would have become non-viable.In
addition, the Additional Tier 1 Notes do not have a contractual obligation to pay interest. Accordingly, the instruments are classified as

equity instruments.

Other reserves
Fair value through other comprehensive incomereserve

The fair value reserve comprises only the cumulative net change in the fairvalue of debt instruments measured at FVOCI, until such time as

they are derecognised. Upon derecognition of debt instruments at FVOCI, the cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income
is released to profit or loss. Since the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity instruments designated as at FVOCI is not recycled

to profit or loss upon derecognition, the Bank recognises the cumulative net change in fairvalue in retained earnings.

Cashflow hedgingreserve
The cash flow hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging

instruments related to hedged transactionsthat have not yet occurred.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differencesarising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

Capitalreserve
The capital reserve arose on the amalgamation of the founding banks of Absa Bank Limited.

Share-based payment reserve
Thereserve comprises the creditto equity for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in terms of IFRS 2. The standard

requires that the expense be charged tothe profit andloss component of the statement of comprehensive income, while a credit needs

to beraised against equity over the vesting period (i.e. the period between the allocation date and the date on which employees will

become entitled totheir options). When options are exercised, the reserve related to the specific optionsis transferred to share capital

and/or share premium. If the options lapse after vesting, the related reserve is transferred to retained earnings. If the optionslapse
vesting, therelated reserveis reversed through the profitand loss component of the statement of comprehensive income.
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20. Otherreserves

20.6 Retainedearnings

Retained earnings comprises of the cumulative total comprehensive income recognised from inception (reduced by any amounts transferred

toa separatereserve), reduced by dividends paid to date and any total comprehensive income relating to disposed subsidiaries and includes
changes in OCl with respect to the following:

o movementin the fair value of equity instruments measured at FVOCI;
o movement in own creditrisk on liabilitiesdesignated at FVTP;

o movement in the actuarial valuation of retirement benefitfund assetsand liabilities; and
o directshareholdercontributions.
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Company
2021
Rm
21. Interestandsimilarincome
Interest and similar income is earned from:

Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - 2
Interest on hedginginstruments 1297 2270
Investment securities 9993 7932
Loans and advances 75 686 59412
Loans and advances to customers 73231 57543
Corporate overdrafts and specialised finance loans 1542 961
Credit cards 4945 4021
Foreign currency loans 1701 1059
Instalment credit agreements and finance lease receivables 10663 8465
Loans toassociates and joint ventures 1720 1376
Microloans 668 432
Mortgages 26937 21375
Other advances 1123 868
Overdrafts 4167 3614
Overnight finance 1372 964
Personal and term loans 9044 7544
Preference shares 2050 1592
Reverse repurchase agreements 13 8
Wholesale overdrafts 7286 5264
Loans and advances to banks 2 455 1869
Other interest 1037 1579
88013 71195

Classification of interest and similar income
Interest on hedginginstruments 1297 2270
Cash flow hedges 2487 3985
Economic hedges 2 -
Fair value hedges (1192) (1715)
Interest on financial assets held at amortised cost 80834 65472
Interest on financial assets measured at FVOCI 4232 2012
Interest on financial assets measured at FVTPL 1650 1441
Investment securities | 113 155
Loans and advances | 1537 1286
88013 71195

Interest income on ‘other advances’ includes items such as interest on factored debtors’ books.
Other interest includes items such as overnight intereston contracts for difference.
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Company
2021
Rm
22. Interestexpense andsimilarcharges
Interest expense and similar charges are paid on:

Borrowed funds 2928 2540
Debt securities in issue 8377 5665
Deposits 34 824 26403
Deposits due to customers 33377 25663
Call deposits 7335 4961
Cheque account deposits 3978 3447
Credit card deposits 6 6
Fixed deposits 7813 6876
Foreign currency deposits 293 164
Notice deposits 3870 3118
Other deposits due to customers 974 604
Savings and transmission deposits 9108 6487
Deposits from banks 1447 740
Call deposits 144 186
Fixed deposits 1185 444
Foreign currency deposits 118 110
Interest on hedginginstruments (615) (1739)
Interest incurred on finance leases 231 243
Other 80 69
45 825 33181

Classification of interest expense and similar charges
Interest on hedginginstruments (615) (1739)
Cash flow hedges (150) (321)
Fair value hedges (465) (1418)
Interest on financial liabilitiesheld at cost 46 440 34920
45 825 33181
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Company
2021
Rm
23. Netfeeand commissionincome
Consultingand administration fees 255 267
Insurance commission received 663 631
Investment, markets execution and investment banking fees 404 390
Merchantincome 2280 2101
Other 145 162
Transactional fees and commissions 17 393 16033
Cheque accounts 4 805 4681
Credit cards 2105 1820
Electronic banking 6 335 5594
Other 2777 2436
Savings accounts 1371 1502
Trust and other fiduciary services 94 79
Portfolioand other management fees 93 77
Trust and estate income 1 2
Fee and commission income 21234 19663
Fee and commission expense (2018) (1702)
Brokerage fees (1) -
Cheque processing fees (5) (13)
Clearingand settlement charges (1102) (889)
Notification fees (251) (235)
Other (554) (445)
Valuation fees (105) (120)
19 216 17961
The Company provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to third
parties, which involves the Company makingallocation and purchase and sale decisions inrelation toa wide range of financial
instruments. Some of these services involve the Company accepting targets for benchmark levelsof returns for the assets
under the Company'’s care.
Company
2021
Rm
23.1 Included above are net fees and commissions linked to financial instruments not at fair
value
Cheque accounts 4 805 4681
Credit cards 2105 1820
Electronic banking 6335 5594
Other 2777 2436
Savings accounts 1371 1502
Fee and commission income 17 393 16033
Fee and commission expense (1804) (1469)
15589 14564

Credit cards include acquiring and issuing fees.
The majority of these items are accounted for as revenue recognised at a point in time in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 15.

Other transactional fees and commissions income include service and credit-related fees of R833m (2021: R597m) and exchange commission of R795m (2021: R680m).
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Company
2021
Rm
24. Gains andlosses from banking and trading activities
Net gains on investments 132 147
Equity instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 125 27
Unwind from reserves for debt instruments at FVOCI 7 120
Net tradingresult 1467 1585
Net tradingincome excluding the impact of hedge accounting 1660 2090
Ineffective portion of hedges (193) (505)
Cash flow hedges (208) (539)
Fair value hedges 15 34
Other losses (29) (9)
1570 1723
Net trading result and other gains on financial instruments
Net tradingincome excluding the impact of hedge accounting 1660 2090
Gains/(Losses) on financial instruments designated at FVTPL 312 (2423)
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets designated at FVTPL 1484 (853)
Net losses on financial liabilities designated at FVTPL (1172) (1570)
Gains on financial instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 1348 4513
Other losses (29) (9)
Losses on financialinstruments designated at FVTPL (566) (768)
Gains on financial instruments mandatorily measured at FVTPL 537 759
Company
2021
Rm
25. Gains andlossesfrominvestmentactivities
Dividend received 3 141
Company
2021
Rm
26. Otheroperatingincome
Foreign exchange differences, including amounts recycled from other comprehensive income (14) (2)
Income arising from contracts with customers? - 4
Profit on sale of repossessed properties - 4
Gross sales 8 18
Cost of sales (8) (14)
Insurance proceeds received related to property and equipment* 126 96
(Loss)/profit on disposal of property and equipment? 2 (2)
Rental income 9 10
Sundry income® 540 220
663 326

lInsurance proceeds of R126m was received during the current financial year for damaged sustained to property and equipment due to the KZN riots that took place.
2 Line items not included within the scope of IFRS 15 have been removed from “Revenue arising from contracts with customers” and have been separately disclosed within this note.
Revenue arising from contracts with customers was previously reported with the value of 137m and this has now been amended to 48m as result of the above.
3 Sundry income includes profit on disposal of non-core assets and non-interest income.
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Company
2021
Rm
27. Creditimpairment charges
Impairment losses raised during the reporting period 8989 6515
Stage 1 expected losses (1273) (1668)
Stage 2 expected losses 1938 (169)
Stage 3 expected losses 8324 8352
Losses on modifications 488 364
Recoveries of loans and advances previously written of f (760) (571)
8717 6308
Company
2021
Rm
28. Operatingexpenses
Administration fees 101 133
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer tonote 12) 2350 2227
Auditors’ remuneration 366 333
Audit fees - current reporting period 320 273
Audit fees — under provision 6 3
Audit-related fees 30 23
Other services 10 34
Cash transportation 988 1024
Depreciation (refer tonote 11) 2569 2907
Equipment costs 295 196
Maintenance 211 115
Rentals 84 81
Information technology 4394 4029
Marketing costs 1298 1005
Other 842 839
Printingand stationery 185 158
Professional fees 2734 2133
Property costs 1401 1472
Staff costs 18 633 17798
Bonuses 2337 2060
Deferred cash and share-based payments (refer to note 49) 603 514
Other 260 210
Salaries and current service costs on post-retirement benefit funds 14935 14 689
Training costs 498 325
Straight line lease expenseson short term leases and low value assets 113 113
Telephone and postage 734 734
37003 35101

Audit-related fees include fees paid for assurance reports performed on behalf of various regulatory bodies. Professional fees include
research and development costs totalingR167m (2021:R193m). Other staff costs include recruitment costs, membership fees to
professional bodies, staff parking, restructuring costs, study assistance, staff relocation and refreshment costs.

‘Other’includes fraud losses, travel, entertainment costsand recoveries from fellow subsidiaries.
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Company
2021
Rm
29. Otherimpairments
Intangible assets (refer tonote 12)* 237 144
Investments in associates and joint ventures (refer to note 9)° - (11)
Non-current assets held for sale (refer to note 6) - 1
Property and equipment (refer tonote 11)° 354 192
Equity investments in subsidiaries - 10
591 336
Company
2021
Rm
30. Indirecttaxation
Traininglevy 165 146
VAT net of input credits 1159 988
1324 1134

1The Company has impaired certain software assets totalling R237m (2021: R144m) for which the value in use is determined to be zero.

2 Integrated Processing Solutions board of directors approved the dissolution of IPSin the prior year. An impairment loss of Rnil (2021: R11m) recognised in the previous financial
year was reversed in the current year due to the increase in the recoverable amount of the investment.

3Property and equipment amounting to R354m (2021: R192m) was impaired without a related transfer to non-current assets held for sale. Included in the R354m, is the impairment
of a right of use asset of R117m, impairment on furniture and other equipment of R84m and an impairment of buildings of R27m due to the underutilisation of the properties.
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Company
2021
Rm
31. Taxationexpense
Current
Foreign and other taxation 161 171
South African current tax 4182 3760
South African current tax - previous reporting period (335) (113)
4008 3818
Deferred
Deferred tax (refer to note 13) 48 127
Capital allowances 22 180
Allowances for loan losses (148) 256
Provisions (7) (270)
Movements in prepayments, accruals and other provisions 56 79
Fair value and similar adjustments through profit and loss (153) (88)
Fair value and similar adjustments inrelation to prior year 191 (30)
Retirement benefit fund andliabilities 87 -
4056 3945
Reconciliation between operating profit before income tax and the taxation expense
Operating profit before income tax 16 005 15286
16 005 15286
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 28% 4481 4280
Effect of different tax rates inother countries® 123 140
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets (12) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes * 162 229
Dividend income (607) (532)
Non-taxable interest? (170) (164)
Other income not subject to tax (145) (113)
Non-taxable portion of capital gain (2) 82
Other 110 22
Effect of tax rate changes? 116 -
4056 3945

1This includes additional tax levies and general non-deductible expenses due to the application of in country tax legislation.

2During the budget speech presented on 23 February 2022, the finance minister announced that the South African corporate tax rate will be reduced from 28% to 27%, effective for
tax assessment years ending after 31 March 2023. This change was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and has therefore been reflected in the measurement of the

Company’s deferred tax balances at 31 December 2022.
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32. Headline earningsand Earnings per share
The Company is nolonger presenting the Headline earnings and Earnings per share as thisis not required by the IFRS.
Company
2021
Rm
33. Dividends pershare
Dividends declared to ordinary equity holders
Interimdividend (15 August 2022: 1 003.78911 cents per share (cps)) (2021: 0 cps) 4500 -
Final dividend (13 March 2023:669.19277 cps) (14 March 2022:446.12851 cps) 3000 2000
7 500 2000
Dividends declared to preference equity holders (net of treasury shares)
Interimdividend (15 August 2022: 2 883.42466 cps) (16 August 2021:2 470.13699 cps) 143 122
Final dividend (13 March 2023: 3 509.58904 cps) (14 March 2022:2 494.10959 cps) 174 123
317 245
Distributions declared and paid to Additional Tier 1 capital note holder
Distribution
10 January 2022: 21 024.73 Rands per note (rpn); 11 January 2021:20 214.47 rpn 26 25
27 January 2022: 20 751.67 rpn; 27 January 2021:20 085.45 rpn 26 24
28 February 2022: 20 860.19 rpn; 26 February 2021:19 268.38 rpn 35 32
07 March 2022: 20 236.90 rpn; 05 March 2021: 18 786.19 rpn 28 26
14 March 2022: 23 747.26 rpn; 12 March 2021:22 301.37rpn 36 33
11 April 2022: 21545.81 rpn; 12 April 2021: 20 922.52 rpn 27 26
28 April 2022: 21087.07 rpn; 28 April 2021:20423.89 rpn 26 25
30 May 2022: 21 732.79rpn; 28 May 2021: 20 299.23 rpn 36 34
06 June 2022: 21 109.51 rpn; 07 June 2021: 20 326.60 rpn 29 28
13 June2022: 24 744.52 rpn; 14 June 2021: 23 971.29 rpn 37 36
11 July 2022:22769.95 rpn; 12 July 2021:20 984.85rpn 28 26
27 July 2022:22068.49 rpn; 27 July 2021:20 280.82 rpn* 27 25
29 August 2022: 23 415.67 rpn; 30 August 2021:21 074.03 rpn 39 36
05 September 2022: 22 792.38 rpn; 06 September 2021:19 778.16 rpn 31 27
12 September 2022: 26 345.12 rpn; 13 September 2021:23 268.58 rpn 40 35
10 October 2022: 24 515.15 rpn; 11 October 2021:21 047.18 rpn 30 26
27 October 2022: 25 878.67 rpn; 27 October 2021:20 751.67 rpn 31 25
28 November 2022: 25 574.74; 29 November 2021:20 361.56 rpn 43 34
05 December 2022: 24 993.84 rpn; 06 December 2021:19 738.27rpn 34 27
13 December 2021:23 248.63 rpn - 35
609 585
Dividends paid to ordinary equity holders
Final dividend (22 April 2022: 446.12851 cps) (2021: 0 cps) 2000 -
Interim dividend (19 September 2022: 1 003.78911 cps) (2021: 0 cps) 4500 -
6 500 -
Dividends paid to preference equity holders
Final dividend (22 April 2022:2 494.10959) (19 April 2021:2 429.86301 cps) 123 120
Interim dividend (19 September 2022: 2 883.42466 cps) (20 September 2021:2 470.13699 cps) 143 122
266 242

1In December 2021, the Bank inadvertently disclosed an incorrect ‘distributions declared’ date. This has been corrected to 27 July 2021.
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34. Transfer of financial assetsthatresultsin partial derecognition

34.1 Transfer of financial assets involving structured entities

In the ordinary course of its normal banking activities the Company transfers financial assets to SE's, either legally (where legal rights to
the cash flows from the asset are transferred to the counterparty) or beneficially (where the Company retains the rights to the cash flows
but assumes aresponsibility to transfer them to the counterparty). Dependingon the nature of the transaction, this may resultin
derecognition of the assets in their entirety, partial derecognition of the assets or no derecognition of the assets.

34.2 Transfer of financial assets that did not result in derecognition

Carrying Carrying amount Fair value of Fair value of .
amount of . . Net fair value
of associated transferred associated
transferred e L apea: value
liabilities assets liabilities
assets
Investment securities 3083 (2315) 3083 (2315) 768
Loans and advances to customers 56 660 (15 040) 56 660 (15 040) 41620
2021
Carrying Carryingamount of Fair value of Fair value of .
amount of . . Net fair value
associated transferred associated
transferred R R value
liabilities assets liabilities
assets
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Investment securities 1716 (1195) 1716 (1195) 521
Loans and advances to customers 59 669 (15 460) 59 669 (15 460) 44 209

Balances included withinloans and advances to customers represent instances where substantially all the risks and rewards (credit risk
and prepayment risk) of the financial asset have been retained by the Company.

Therelationship between the transferred assets and the associated liabilities isthat holders of the associated liabilities may only look to
cash flows from the transferred assets for payments due to them, although the contractual terms may differ from those of the transferred

assets.
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Company
2021
Rm
35. Related parties
Refer to note 38 of the Bank's financial statements for the full disclosure of related party
transactions. The following related party transactionsand balances exist for
Absa Bank Limited.
35.1 Balances and transactions with the parent company
Transactions
Interest expense and similar charges 1679 -
Dividends paid - -
35.2 Balances and transactions with subsidiaries
The followingare balances with and transactions entered intowith, subsidiaries:
Balances
Loans to Group companies 8737 10979
Subsidiary shares 98 98
Trading portfolio assets (43) 6
Transactions
Interest and similarincome 99 (57)
Interest expense and similar charges (65) (55)
Gains and losses from banking and trading activities 24 (1)
Operating expenditure/(recovered expenses) 226 178
Equity distribution? - _
Various terms and conditions are agreed upon, takingintoaccount transfer pricing and relevant tax
requirements.
35.3 Balances and transactions with fellow subsidiaries
Balances
Loans and advances to banks 94 200
Trading portfolio assets (128) 349
Other assets 1138 1217
Loans to Group Companies 73452 76978
Deposits from banks (688) (807)
Borrowed funds (24 491) (23 845)
Loans from Group Companies (9152) (9214)
Other liabilities (677) (351)
Transactions
Interest and similarincome (1012) (1555)
Interest expense and similar charges (36) 1684
Net fee and commission income (565) (585)
Gains and losses from banking and trading activities (1619) (7867)
Gains and losses from investment activities 2 3
Other operatingincome? (25) (13)
Operating expenditure/(recovered expenses) (729) (934)

This relates toan equity distribution to a subsidiary of Absa Group Limited.

2 This relates to recharges for share based payment arrangements.
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Company

Rm

36. Assets under managementand administration (unaudited)

Other assets under administration 350790 285401
Portfolio management 4397 5046
Unit trusts 1518 1590

356 705 292 037

‘Other assets under administration' includes those for which custody and trustee services are provided. It includes assets managed on
behalf of Absa Bank Limited.
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Company
2021
Rm
37. Contingencies, commitmentsandsimilaritems

Guarantees 48903 38206
Irrevocable debt facilities/otherlending facilities* 98 257 100334
Letters of credit 12873 9475
Other 10 -
160043 148015

Authorised capital expenditure
Contracted but not provided for 622 509

Guarantees include performance guarantee contractsand financial guarantee contracts.

Financial guarantee contracts represent contracts where the Company undertakes to make specified payments toa counterparty,
should the counterparty suffer a loss as a result of a specified debtor failing to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of

adebtinstrument. This amount represents the maximum off-statement of financial position exposure.

Irrevocable facilitiesare commitments to extend credit where the Company does not have the right to terminate the facilities by written

notice.

Irrevocable debt facilities do not include other lending facilities which are revocable but for which animpairment provision has been
raised (i.e.revolving products). The value of these other lending facilities is included inthe credit risk disclosure, whereas the above
table presents only those gross loan commitments that are contractually committed and are legally irrevocable.

Commitments generally have fixed expiry dates. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total contract amounts

donot necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The Company has capital commitments in respect of computer equipment, software and property development. Management is
confident that future net revenues and funding will be sufficient to cover these commitments.

Refer to note 43 in the Bank’s financial statements for legal proceedings, regulatory matters and income taxes.

1During the year, the group reviewed its classification of certain undrawn facilities granted to customers. As a result of this review, the classification of certain facilities
was amended from irrevocable to revocable. This reclassification more accurately reflects the underlying terms of these facilities. The prior year numbers have been

restated from R 144 477m to R100 334m to reflect this change.
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Company
Restated
Rm

38. Cashandcashequivalents

Mandatory reserve balances with the SARB and other central banks® 21813 19379
Coins and notes 6241 6067
Loans and advances to banks* 8410 4880
36 464 30326

1These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.1
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39. Consolidated statement of financial position summary - IFRS 9 classification
Fair value through profit or loss

M:;:a::;:?: Designated at Hedging
fair value instruments
value
Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - - - -
Investment securities 2956 9396 - 12 352
Trading portfolio assets 155164 - - 155164
Hedging portfolio assets 2 - - 4972 4972
Other assets - - - -
Loans and advances 76 554 31674 - 108 228
Non-current assets held for sale - - - -
Loans to Group companies - - - -
Assets outside the scope of IFRS 9 - - - -
234674 41070 4972 280716
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities 91 396 - - 91 396
Hedging portfolioliabilities 3 - - 2237 2237
Other liabilities = - - -
Deposits - 117 655 - 117 655
Debt securities in issue - 60989 - 60989
Borrowed funds - - - -
Loans from Group companies - - - -
Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9° = = = =
91 396 178 644 2237 272277
Fair value through profit or loss
Mandatorily  Designated at Hedging
held atf‘air fair value instruments Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Assets
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks - - - -
Investment securities 4791 281 - 5072
Trading portfolio assets® 141351 - - 141351
Hedging portfolio assets*® - - 3696 3696
Other assets - - - -
Loans and advances® 82362 28303 - 110665
Loans to Group companies - - - -
Assets outside the scope of IFRS 9 - - - -
228503 28584 3696 260784
Liabilities
Trading portfolioliabilities® 68102 - - 68102
Hedging portfolio assets*® - - 2910 2910
Other liabilities - - - -
Deposits® - 121375 - 121375
Debt securities in issue® - 22905 - 22905
Borrowed funds - - - -
Loans from Group companies - - - -
Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9 - - - -
68 102 144280 2910 215292

Includes non-financial assets and liabilities and financial instruments outside the scope of IAS 39 and IFRS 9.

2 Includes derivative assets to the amount of R 474m (2021: R3502m) and R 4 498m (2021: R1 300m) that have been designated as cash flow and fair value hedging
instruments respectively.

3 Includes derivative liabilities to the amount of R 963m (2021: R913m) and R 1 274m (2021: R2 746m) that have been designated as cash flow and fair value hedging
instruments respectively.

“Includes items designated as hedged items in fair value hedging relationships.

® Liabilities outside the scope of IFRS 9 includes R813m (2021: R735) that relates to expected credit losses from undrawn fadilities, financial guarantees and letters of credit.

¢ These numbers have been restated, referto note 1.1

7 The investmentin unlisted equity and hybrid instruments represent investments that are held for strategic long termpurposes but have the ability to be sold atany point. Due to this
dual intention these investments have been designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
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2022

Fair value through other comprehensiveincome Amortised cost Assets/
It IS Total assets
Debt . n outside the A
- and liabilities
instruments Gl iz scope of IFRS
91
Rm Rm

Debt Equity
instruments instruments

Hedged items*

- - - - 37344 - 37344 - 37344
43745 434 29926 74105 16 025 24738 40763 - 127 220
- - - - - - - 614 155778
= = = = = = = = 4972
- - - - 14 698 - 14 698 2416 17114
- - - - 916 063 2953 919 016 - 1027 244
= = = = = = = 90 90
= = = = 81939 = 81939 = 81939
- - - - - - - 27 686 27 686
43745 434 29926° 74105 1066 069 27 691 1093760 30806 1479 387
- - - - - - - - 91 396
- - - - - - - - 2237
- - - - 21100 - 21100 2465 23565
- - - - 899 552 - 899 552 - 1017 207
- - - - 131847 4 407 136 254 - 197 243
- - - - 26 282 - 26282 - 26 282
- - - - 16 354 - 16 354 - 16 354
- - - - - - - 4 387 4387
- - - - 1095135 4 407 1099 542 6 852 1378671
2021

Fair value through other comprehensive income Amortised cost Assets/
. Iia!adilitiﬁs Total assets
instrumzﬁ?; instrulrzr?el;::)s/ Hedged items* Total instrumzﬁ?; Hedged items* Total ch:t:;fTIERg and liabilities

91
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
- - - - 33751 - 33751 - 33751
46 165 405 29859 76 429 13281 19619 32900 - 114401
- - - - - - - 642 141993
- - - - - - - - 3696
- - - - 14 453 - 14 453 2304 16757
- - - - 812002 3975 815977 - 926 642
- - - - - - - 57 57
- - - - 87708 - 87708 - 87708
- - - - - - - 26091 26091
46 165 405 29 859 76429 961 195 23594 984 789 29 094 1351096
- - - - - - - - 68102
- - - - - - - - 2910
- - - - 32985 - 32985 2 445 35430
- - - - 854028 - 854028 - 975403
- - - - 94979 6503 101482 - 124 387
- - - - 11289 15170 26 459 - 26 459
- - - - 14 657 - 14 657 - 14 657
- - - - - - - 4007 4007
- - - - 1007938 21673 1029611 6452 1251355
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40. Fairvaluedisclosures

40.1 Assets andliabilities held at fair value
The following table shows the Company’s assets and liabilities that are recognised and subsequently measured at fair value and are analysed
by valuation techniques. The classification of assets and liabilities isbased on the lowest level input that issignificantto the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

Company

2022 2021
Level 2 Level 3* Level 1 Level 2>  Level 3 Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Level 1

Financial assets

Investment securities 43306 38574 4577 86 457 36439 39540 5522 81501
Tradingand hedging portfolio assets 84457 65601 10078 160136 71525 71195 2327 145047
Debt instruments? 81012 2348 486 83846 66 544 758 122 67424
Derivative assets - 58054 3950 62004 - 58017 1386 59403
Commodity derivatives - 188 - 188 - 907 13 920
Credit derivatives - 32 192 224 - 2 140 142
Equity derivatives - 5006 3752 8758 - 7 349 1232 8581
Foreign exchange derivatives - 16388 6 16 394 - 10089 1 10090
Interest rate derivatives - 36440 - 36 440 - 39670 - 39670
Equity instruments 951 - - 951 3888 - - 3888
Money market assets 2494 5199 5642 13335 1093 12420 819 14332
Loans and advances?® - 98700 9527 108 227 - 94538 16126 110664
Total financial assets 127763 202875 24182 354 820 107964 205273 23975 337212

Financial liabilities

Tradingand hedging portfolioliabilities 36847 56423 363 93633 21146 49593 273 71012
Derivative liabilities - 56423 363 56 786 - 49593 273 49866
Commodity derivatives - 117 - 117 - 823 1 824
Credit derivatives - - 260 260 - - 93 93
Equity derivatives - 4588 920 4678 - 2513 169 2682
Foreign exchange derivatives - 16934 13 16 947 - 11490 - 11490
Interest rate derivatives - 34784 - 34784 - 34767 10 34777
Short positions 36 847 - - 36 847 21146 - - 21146
Deposits! 1 115373 2281 117 655 156 119245 1974 121375
Debt securities in issue’ - 60989 - 60989 - 22905 - 22905
Total financial liabilities 36848 232785 2644 272277 21302 191743 2247 215292
Non-financial assets
Commodity 614 - - 614 642 - - 642
Non-recurring fair value measurements
Non-current assets held for sale - - 90 90 - - 57 57

As a result of the uncertainties inherent in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, its measurement is estimated based on valuation assumptions and inputs
derived from market expectations. Estimation involves judgements based on the latest available, reliable information. Resultantly, any changes in key assumptions
relating to their valuation is treated as a changein accounting estimate and has been accounted for prospectively in the financial statements.

2These numbers have been restated, refer to note 1.1. in the Absa Bank consolidated financial statements.
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40. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
40.2 Reconciliation of Level 3 assets and liabilities
Areconciliation of the openingbalances to closing balances for all movements on Level 3 assets is set out below:
Company
2022
Trading and
hedging Loans and Investment Total assets at
portfolio advances securities fair value
assets
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period
2327 16126 5522 23975
Net interest income - 199 144 343
Gains and losses from bankingand trading activities (544) (445) (52) (1041)
Purchases 5689 817 596 7102
Sales (304) (2463) (2458) (5 225)
Movement in other comprehensive income = = 14 14
Issues = = - -
Settlements o - - -
Transfer to Level 3 3450 - 813 4263
Transfer out of Level 3 (540) (4707) (2) (5 249)
Closing balance at the end of the
reporting period 10078 9527 4577 24182
2021
Tradlngapd Loans and Investment Total assets at
hedging .- ;
. advances securities fair value
portfolio assets
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period 2502 13597 7707 23806
Net interest income - 177 43 220
Gains and losses from bankingand trading activities 906 (96) (5) 805
Purchases 626 5408 916 6950
Sales (42) (4137) (1913) (6092)
Movement in other comprehensive income - - 27 27
Settlements - - (60) (60)
Transfer to Level 3 175 1177 - 1352
Transfer out of Level 3 (1840) - (1193) (3033)
Closmg balan_ceattheend of the 2327 16126 5522 23975
reporting period
40.2.1 Significant transfers between levels

Duringthe 2022 and 2021 reporting periods, transfers between levels occurred because of changes inthe observability of
valuation inputs, in some instances owingtochanges in the level of market activity. Transfers between level 1 andlevel 2 are not

considered significant for disclosure.

Transfers have been reflected as if they had taken place at the beginning of the year.

Absa Bank Limited
Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31 December 2022 |252



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the reporting period ended 31 December

40.

40.2 Reconciliation of Level 3 assets and liabilities (continued)
Areconciliation of the openingbalances to closing balances for all movements on Level 3 liabilities isset out below:

Fair value disclosures (continued)

Trading and
hedging

portfolio
TELT

Rm

Company

Deposits

Total liabilities
at fair value

Rm

Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period

273 1974 2247
Net interest income - - -
Gains and losses from bankingand trading activities (31) (84) (115)
Purchases - - -
Sales - - -
Movement in other comprehensive income - - -
Issues 240 1145 1385
Settlements (8) (736) (744)
Transfer to Level 3 2 - 2
Transfer out of Level 3 (113) (18) (131)
Closing balance at the end of the
reporting period 363 2281 2644
2021
Tradingand
hedgin .. Total liabilities
portfgolii Deposits at fair value
liabilities
Rm Rm Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period
172 3562 3734
Gains and losses from banking and trading activities 48 (118) (70)
Issues 55 373 428
Settlements (1) (1692) (1693)
Transfer out of Level 3 (1) (151) (152)
Closing balance at the end of the
reporting period 273 1974 2247
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40. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)

40.3 Unrealised gains and losses on Level 3 assets and liabilities
The total unrealised gains and lossesfor the reporting period on Level 3 positions held at the reporting date are set out below:

Company

2022
Trading and
hedging Loans and Investment Total assets at
portfolio advances securities fair value
assets
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Gains and (losses) from banking and trading activities 2777 (306) 24 2495
2021
Tradmga_nd Loans and Investment Total assets at
hedging . A
. advances securities fair value
portfolio assets
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Gains and (losses) from banking and trading activities 147 1833 45 2025
Company

2022
Trading and
hedging .. Total liabilities
portfolio L) at fair value
liabilities
Rm
Gains and (losses) from banking and tradingactivities (30) 354 324
2021
Tradingand
hedging .. Total liabilities
portfolio Deposits at fair value
liabilities
Rm Rm Rm
Gains and (losses) from bankingand trading activities 189 303 492

Absa Bank Limited Annual consolidated and separate financial statements 31
December 2022 254



DocuSign Envelope ID: 69C30890-7334-42C3-B57D-C06F9953E4E9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for thereporting period ended 31 December

40. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)

40.4 Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs
As part of the Company’s risk management processes, we perform a sensitivity analysis on the significantunobservable parameters, in order
determine the impact of reasonably possible alternative assumptions on the valuation of level 3 financial assetsand liabilities. The assets
and liabilities that most impact this sensitivity analysisare those with more illiquid and/or structured portfolios. The alternative assumptions
are applied independently and do not take account of any cross correlation between assumptions that would reduce the overall effect on the
valuations.
The followingtables reflects the reasonable possible variances applied to significant parameters utilised in our valuations:

Significant unobservable parameter Positive/(negative) variance applied to parameters
Credit spreads 100/(100) bps

Volatilities 10/(10)%

Basis curves 100/(100) bps

Yield curves and repo curves 100/(100) bps

Future earnings and marketability discounts 15/(15)%

Funding spreads 100/(100) bps

Asignificant parameter hasbeen deemed to be one which may result in a charge to profit or loss, or a change in the fairvalue of the
asset or liability by more than 10% of the underlying value of the affected item.

This is demonstrated by the following sensitivity analysis which includes reasonable range of possible outcomes:

2022
Potential effect recorded in Potential effect recorded
profitor loss directly in equity
Significant unobservable Favourable/(Unfavourable) Favourable/(Unfavourable)
parameters Rm Rm

Absa Group Limited /Absa

funding spread 119/(128) -l

Deposits

Risk adjustment yield curves,
Investment securities future earnings and -/- (77)/80
marketability discount

Loans and advances Credit spreads (623)/683 -/-

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
Tradingand hedging portfolioassets curves, yield curves, repo curves, 216/(210) -/-
funding spreads

Volatility, credit spreads, basis
curves, yield curves, repo curves, (457)/457 -/-
funding spreads

Tradingand hedging portfolio
liabilities
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Fair value disclosures (continued)
40.4 Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs (continued)

Significant unobservable

2021

Potential effect recorded in
profit or loss

Potential effect recorded directly
in equity

Favourable/(Unfavourable)

Favourable/(Unfavourable)

parameters RmM RmM

Deposits due to customers Absa_Group Limited /Absa 126/(138) -/-
funding spread
Risk adjustment yield curves,

Investment securities future earnings and -/- (104)/108
marketability discount

Loans and advances to customers Credit spreads (952)/1 030 -/-
Volatility, credit spreads, basis

Tradingand hedging portfolio assets curves, yield curves, repo curves, (41)/41 -/-
funding spreads

c c ] Volatility, credit spreads, basis
iz Pedeiny peisilis curves, yield curves, repo curves, (37)37 -/-

liabilities

funding spreads

40.5 Unrecognised losses/(gains) as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs
The amount thatis tobe recognised in the statement of comprehensive income that relates to the difference between the transaction price
and the amount that would have arisen had valuation models using observable inputs been used on initial recognition, less amounts
subsequently recognised, is as follows:
Company
2021
Rm
Opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period (521) (446)
New transactions (394) (212)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss during the reporting period 281 137
Closing balance at the end of thereporting period (634) (521)
40.6 Third party credit enhancements

There were no significant liabilities measured at fairvalue and issued with inseparable third-party credit enhancements.
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40. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
40.7 Assets and liabilities not held at fair value
The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair value of those assets and liabilities not held at fair value:

Company
2022

Carrying

amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Balances with the SARB! 31103 31103 31103 - -
Coins and bank notes! 6241 6241 6241 - -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks® 37 344 37 344 37 344 - -
Investment securities 40763 40 337 40 337 - -
Other assets 14 698 14 462 3728 5732 5002
Product Solutions 399492 383707 - - 383707
Home Loans 292 540 284 252 - - 284 252
Vehicle and Asset Finance 106 952 99 455 - - 99 455
Everyday Banking 54 945 53 285 - - 53 285
Card 31446 31446 - - 31446
Personal loans 20381 18721 - - 18721
Transactions and Deposits 3118 3118 - - 3118
Relationship Banking 131924 130697 - - 130697
CIB 287 345 290269 - - 290269
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 3195 3195 - 2865 330
Loans and advances to customers 876 901 861153 - 2865 858 288
Loans and advances to banks! 42115 42116 15447 26 669 -
Loans and advances 919 016 903 269 15447 29534 858 288
Loans to group companies 81939 81990 - 81990 -
Total assets (not held at fair value) 1093 760 1077 402 96 856 117 256 863 290
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 21100 20914 9842 5567 5505
Call deposits* 88501 88501 88501 - -
Cheque account deposits® 237 503 237 503 237 503 - -
Credit card deposits® 2142 2142 2142 - -
Fixed deposits 171107 171119 - 68 552 102 567
Foreign currency deposits 41 388 41 388 - 39715 1673
Notice deposits 67 562 67 562 - 67 562 -
Other deposits 1270 1270 358 912 -
Savingand transmission deposits* 236 768 236 768 219536 291 16941
Deposits due to customers 846 241 846 253 548 040 177 032 121181
Deposits from banks 53311 53307 2560 50747 -
Deposits 899 552 899 560 550 600 227779 121181
Debt securities in issue 136 254 136 145 - 136 145 -
Borrowed funds 26 282 26 269 - 26 269 -
Loans from group companies 16 354 16 354 - 16 354 -
Total liabilities (not held at fair value) 1099 542 1099 242 560442 412114 126 686

1These financial instruments have been inincluded in level 1 as the carrying value approximates fair value and no valuation techniques are applied.
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40. Fairvaluedisclosures (continued)
40.7 Assets and liabilities not held at fair value (continued)

Company
2021
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Financial assets

Balances with the SARB! 27 684 27 684 27 684 - -
Coins and bank notes! 6067 6067 6067 -
Cash, cash balances and balances with central banks® 33751 33751 33751 -
Investment Securities 32900 33919 33919 - -
Other assets 14 453 14 453 5832 5450 3171
Product Solutions 367 316 366 097 - - 366 097
Home Loans 269239 265290 - - 265290
Vehicle and Asset Finance 98077 100807 - - 100807
Everyday Banking 49671 49 845 - - 49 845
Card 28227 28227 - - 28227
Personal loans 18610 18784 - - 18784
Transactions and Deposits 2834 2834 - - 2834
Relationship Banking 122503 127 472 - - 127 472
CIB 247 418 248 332 - - 248 332
Head Office, Treasury and other operations 695 695 - - 695
Loans and advances to customers 787 603 792441 - - 792 441
Loans and advances to banks! 28374 28374 10263 18111 -
Loans and advances 815977 820815 10263 18111 792441
Loans to group companies 87708 87708 87708 -
Total assets (not held at fair value) 984 789 990 646 83765 111269 795612

Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 32985 32985 21809 11176 -
Call deposits* 90399 90399 90399 - -
Cheque account deposits? 230288 230288 230288 - -
Credit card deposits® 2137 2137 2137 - -
Fixed deposits 154785 154186 - 151711 2475
Foreign currency deposits 33429 33429 - 33429 -
Notice deposits® 70148 70148 33623 36525 -
Other deposits 1304 1304 - 1304 -
Saving and transmission deposits* 225300 225300 29590 17571 178139
Deposits due to customers 807 790 807191 386 037 240540 180614
Deposits from banks 46 239 46229 9164 37 065 -
Deposits 854028 853420 395201 277 605 180614
Debt securities in issue 101482 100805 - 100 805 -
Borrowed funds 26 459 26282 - 26 282 -
Loans from group companies 14 657 14 657 - 14 657 -
Total liabilities (not held at fair value) 1029611 1028149 417 010 430525 180614

1These financial instruments have been inincluded in level 1 as the carrying value approximates fair value and no valuation techniques are applied.
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41.

42,

43.

44.
44,1

44.2

45,

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Borrowed Funds
Refer to note 18 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Leases

Refer to note 33 in the Bank's financial statements.

Derivatives
Refer to note 48 of the Bank’s financial statements.

Acquisitions and disposals of businesses and other similar transactions
Acquisitions and disposals of businesses during the current reporting period

Refer to note 47 of the Bank’s financial statements.

Acquisitions and disposals of businesses during the previous reporting period

Refer to note 47 of the Bank’s financial statements.

Retirementbenefit fund obligations
Refer to note 34 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Securities borrowed/lent and repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements
Refer to note 36 in the Bank’s financial statements. It should be noted that equityinstruments with a net fair value of R1 257m were
erroneously included as part of securities lent. However, as they related tointer-company transactions, which should have been

eliminated.

Offsetting financial assets and financialliabilities
Refer to note 40 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Share-based payments
Refer to note 46 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Segmentreport
Refer to note 39 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Creditriskof financial instruments designated at fairvalue
Refer to note 51 in the Bank’s financial statements.

Risk management

The financialrisksinherent withinthe Bank are considered to be substantially the same for the Company and consolidated level. Refer
to note 52 of the Bank’s financial statements for detailed risk management disclosures.

Going concern

The directors assess the Company’s future performance and financial position on an ongoing basis and have noreason tobelieve the
Company will not be a going concern in the year ahead. For this reason, these stand-alone financial statementsare prepared on a going
concern basis.
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55.

Events after the reporting period

During 2022, Ghana requested assistance from the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”), to address the ongoing economic crisis. In
December, a staff-level agreement was reached on an IMF programme at restoring macroeconomic stability and debt sustainability while
preservingfinancial stability. As a result, wide ranging structural and fiscal reforms were initiated to restore fiscal stability and debt
sustainability.

As part of the reforms, the Domestic Debt Exchange Programme (“DDEP”) was announced on 5 December 2022. The programme involved
an invitation toexchange certain domestic notes and bonds, for new bonds of the Republic of Ghana. During 2023 certain entities within
the Group accepted theinvitation toexchange theeligible bonds held.

The new bonds received will be accounted for in the 2023 financial year end. However, information relatingto the DDEP and related
economic reforms have been consideredin determining the calculation of impairments and fair values of exposures facing the government
of Ghana for the 2022 financial year end as it gave evidence of conditionswhich existed at the reporting date. The economic environment
in Ghana continues to be closely monitored and assessed.

InFebruary2023,theinternational Financial Action Task Force(FATF)announced itsdecision toplaceSouth Africa,amongother countries,
on its ‘grey list'as the country has not yet implemented all the actions recommended by FATF to combat money laundering, terrorist
financingand similar threats adequately. The grey-listing action may raise the cost of transactionsas foreign financial institutions will, at
least in some instances, apply additional controls to transactions that involve South African entities and individuals. The Company already
complies with rigorous international anti-financial crime standards and regulation, as required in order to access global financial markets.
Itis therefore unlikely that the grey-listing action will have any material direct impact on the company inthe short term.

Thedirectors are not aware of any other events, other than the aforementioned (as defined perIAS10Events after the Reporting Period)
after thereporting date of 31 December 2022 and the date of authorisation of these annual separate financial statements.
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	o Special resolution number 1 – Remuneration of non-executive directors
	Resolved to approve the proposed remuneration to be payable to non-executive directors for their services as directors of the Company for the period 1 June 2022 to and including the last day of the month preceding the date of the next AGM thereafter.
	o Special resolution number 2 – General authority to repurchase the company’s securities
	o Special resolution number 3 – Financial assistance to a related or inter-related company/corporation
	Resolved to enable the Company, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, for a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance as regulated by s...
	1.1.1 Standards, amendments to standards and circulars adopted for the first time in the current reporting period
	1.1.1.1   Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for proceeds received before intended use
	1.1.1.2   Amendment to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
	1.1.1.3   Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations regarding the definition of a business
	1.1.1.4   Amendments resulting from annual improvements 2018-2020 Cycle for the following standards
	1.1.2    Basis of presentation
	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements
	1.2.1 Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances

	1.2       Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.1     Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances
	1.2.1.1   Approach to credit modelling/internal ratings
	1.2.1.2 Validation of models


	1.2        Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.1     Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances (continued)
	1.2.1.4   Approach to impairment of credit exposures


	1.2       Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.1         Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances (continued)
	1.2.1.4       Approach to impairment of credit exposures (continued)
	1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement with regards to IFRS 9


	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.1 Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances (continued)
	1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement with regards to IFRS 9 (continued)
	Definition of credit impaired:
	Incorporation of forward-looking information into the IFRS 9 modelling:


	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.1 Approach to credit risk and impairment of loans and advances (continued)
	1.2.1.5 Critical areas of judgement with regards to IFRS 9 (continued)


	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.2      Capitalisation, amortisation and impairment of internally generated intangible assets, and impairment of goodwill
	Capitalisation
	Amortisation
	Impairment

	1.2.3 Fair value measurements

	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.3 Fair value measurements (continued)
	Valuation inputs
	o Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs – Level 3
	Financial assets and financial liabilities
	Commodities
	Judgemental inputs on valuation of principal instruments
	o Debt securities and treasury and other eligible bills
	o Equity instruments
	o Derivatives



	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.3 Fair value measurements (continued)
	Judgemental inputs on valuation of principal instruments (continued)
	o Loans and advances
	o Deposits, debt securities in issue and borrowed funds

	Fair value adjustments
	o Bid-offer valuation adjustments
	o Uncollateralised derivative adjustments
	o Model valuation adjustments



	1.2       Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.4    Consolidation of structured or sponsored entities
	Assessment of agent versus principal

	1.2.5      Post-retirement benefits
	Exposure to actuarial risks
	Investment risk
	Inflation/pension increase risk
	Longevity risk
	Salary risk


	1.2        Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.5     Post-retirement benefits (continued)
	Measurement risk
	Regulatory risk

	1.2.6 Provisions
	1.2.7 Income taxes
	1.2.8       Share-based payments

	1.2 Process of determination, and use of estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)
	1.2.9 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

	1.3    Consolidated financial statements of the Bank
	1.3.1    Subsidiaries
	1.3.2   Investments in associates and joint ventures
	1.3.3   Structured entities
	1.3.4   Common control

	1.3    Consolidated financial statements of the Bank (continued)
	1.3.4       Common control (continued)

	1.4        Segment reporting
	1.5        Foreign currencies
	1. 5. 1        Foreign currency translations
	1. 5. 2     Foreign currency transactions
	1.5.3 Translation of foreign currencies

	1.6 Earnings per share
	1.7 Financial instruments
	1.7.1 Initial recognition
	1.7.2 Day one profits or losses
	1.7.3 Classification and measurement of financial instruments
	Business model assessment
	Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
	1.7.3.1 Debt Instruments


	1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
	1.7.3.1 Debt Instruments (continued)
	1.7.3.2 Equity instruments
	1.7.3.3 Financial Liabilities
	1.7.3.4 Derivatives
	1.7.4 Expected credit losses on financial assets

	1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
	1.7.4 Expected credit losses on financial assets (continued)
	Three-stage approach to ECL
	Expected credit loss calculation
	Lifetime of financial instruments


	1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
	Lifetime of financial instruments (continued)
	Forward looking information
	Write –off
	1.7.5  Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
	1.7.5.1     Derecognition of financial assets
	1.7.5.2        Derecognition of financial liabilities


	1.7          Financial instruments (continued)
	1.7.6        Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities
	1.7.6.1      Modification of financial assets
	1.7.6.2       Modification of financial liabilities

	1.7.7 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
	1.7.8 Hedge accounting
	Fair value hedge accounting


	1.7      Financial instruments (continued)
	Cash flow hedge accounting
	1.7.9 Equity Instruments
	1.7.10 Compound financial instruments
	1.7.11 Subordinated debt
	1.7.12 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
	1.7.13 Loan commitments
	1.7.14 Financial guarantee contracts

	1.8 Share capital
	1.8.1 Ordinary share capital
	1.8.2 Preference share capital

	1.9 Revenue recognition
	1.9.1 Net interest income
	Impact of IFRS 9 ECL on interest recognition
	1.9.2 Net trading income
	In accordance with IFRS 9 trading positions are measured at fair value, with fair value gains and losses being recognised within profit or loss as part of ‘gains and losses from banking and trading activities’. Interest and dividends which are receive...
	Gains and losses on derivatives linked to investment contracts are recognised in ‘gains and losses from investment activities’.

	1.9.3 Net fee and commission income
	1.9.3 Net fee and commission income (continued)

	1.10 Commodities
	1.11 Intangible assets
	1.11.1 Goodwill
	1.11.2 Intangible assets other than goodwill

	1.13 Repossessed properties (continued)
	1.14 Non-current assets held for sale
	1.15      Cash and cash equivalents
	1.16      Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments
	1.17      Employee benefits
	1.17.1    Post-retirement benefits
	Defined contribution schemes
	Defined benefit schemes

	1.17.1    Post-retirement benefits (continued)
	Defined benefit schemes (continued)
	Post-employment medical aid plans


	1.17.2     Staff costs
	1.17.3     Share-based payments
	Employee services settled in equity instruments
	Employee services settled in cash


	1.18 Tax
	1.18.1 Current tax

	1.18 Tax (continued)
	1.18.2 Deferred tax
	1.18.3 Dividends withholding tax
	1.18.4 Value added tax (VAT)

	1.19 Reporting changes overview
	1.19 Reporting changes overview (continued)
	1.20    New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
	1.20.1 Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
	1.20.2 Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
	1.20.3   Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

	1.20    New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
	1.20.4   Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
	1.20.5 IFRS 17 – Insurance contracts
	34.1   Absa Pension Fund
	34.1  Absa Pension Fund (continued)
	48.3     Derivative financial instruments
	48.4    Derivatives held for trading – detail by market and instrument type
	48. Derivatives (continued)
	48.5    Counterparty netting and collateral
	48.6 Hedge Accounting
	48.6   Hedge Accounting
	48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting
	48.6   Hedge Accounting (continued)
	48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting (continued)
	48.6 Hedge Accounting (continued)
	48.6.1 Fair Value hedge accounting (continued)
	Approach
	Risk measurement
	Analysis of equity investment risk in the banking book
	Traded market risk is the risk of the Bank’s earnings or capital being adversely impacted by changes in the level or volatility of prices affecting positions in its trading activities across the Bank. This includes but is not limited to changes in int...
	The Traded Market Risk Committee (TMRC) meets monthly to review, challenge and make recommendations concerning the traded market risk profile, including risk appetite, policies, limits, risk utilisation, valuation risk and the effectiveness of the con...
	The Trading Risk Committee (TRC) and Market Risk Infrastructure, Data, Governance and Control Committee (MRIDGCC) are subcommittees of the TMRC that provide oversight of specific traded market risks and the traded market risk control environment.
	Approach
	Traded market risk arises primarily as a result of client facilitation in wholesale markets. This involves market making, providing risk management solutions, generating revenues from assuming and managing risk, and execution of syndications.
	Interest rate risk in the banking book is subjected to the same rigorous measurement and control standards as in the trading book, but the associated sensitivities are reported separately as “Interest rate risk in the banking book” as part of the Trea...
	Risk appetite
	The risk appetite for market risk is based on:
	o proposed business strategy;
	o budgeted revenue growth;
	o statistical modelling measures; and
	o risk equated to capital projection under normal and stressed market conditions.
	Risk measurement
	A number of techniques are used to measure and control traded market risk on a daily basis, which include:
	o value at risk (VaR) based measures including both VaR and stressed value at risk (sVaR);
	o tail metrics;
	o position and sensitivity reporting;
	o stress testing;
	o backtesting;  and
	o standardised general and specific risk, as relevant.
	Daily value at risk
	Daily value at risk (VaR) is an estimate of the potential loss that may arise from unfavourable market movements if current positions were to be held unchanged for one business day.
	The Bank uses an internal VaR model based on the historical simulation method to derive the quantitative market risk measures under normal conditions. The VaR model utilises a two-year data history of unweighted historical price and rate data and a ho...
	The historical simulation methodology can be split into three parts:
	o Calculate hypothetical daily profit or loss for each position over the most recent two years, using observed daily market moves.
	o Sum of all hypothetical profits or losses for day one across all positions, giving one total profit or loss. Repeat for all other days in the two-year history.
	o VaR is the 99th percentile loss selected from the resultant two-year historically simulated strip of daily hypothetical net profit or loss. Daily losses in excess of the VaR figure are likely to occur, on average, up to six times over the two-year p...
	This internal model is also used for measuring VaR over both a one-day and a 10-day holding period at a 99% confidence level for regulatory back testing and regulatory capital (RC) calculation purposes, respectively. The VaR internal model has been ap...
	The performance of the VaR model is regularly assessed for continued suitability. The main technique employed is backtesting, which counts the number of days when actual losses from trading activities exceed the corresponding 99% level of confidence a...
	VaR estimates have a number of limitations:
	o Historical simulation assumes that the past is a good representation of the future, which may not always be the case.
	o The assumed time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be closed out or hedged within this time horizon.
	o VaR does not indicate the potential loss beyond the selected percentiles.
	o VaR is based on positions as at the close of business and consequently intra-day risk, the risk from a position bought and sold on the same day, is not captured.
	o Prudent valuation practices are used in the VaR calculation when there is difficulty obtaining rate/price information.
	sVaR uses a similar methodology to VaR, but is based on a one-year period of financial stress which is reviewed quarterly and assumes a 10-day holding period and a worst case loss. The period of stress used for RC is currently the 2008/2009 financial ...
	Loss thresholds, tail risk metrics, position and sensitivity reporting and stress testing are used to complement VaR in the management of traded market risk.
	Analysis of traded market risk exposure
	The following table reflects the VaR, sVaR and expected shortfall statistics for trading book activities as measured by the internal models approach (IMA). Traded market risk exposure, as measured by average total VaR, increased to R56.49 (2021: R51.8...
	Other market risks
	The Bank maintains different pension plans with defined benefit and defined contribution structures for current and former employees. In respect of defined benefit plans, the ability to meet the projected pension payments is maintained through investm...
	Asset management income risk arises where the fee and commission income earned by asset management products and businesses is affected by a change in market levels, primarily through the link between income and the value of assets under management. Th...

	52.6.1   Liquidity risk
	52.6   Treasury risk (continued)
	52.6.1  Liquidity risk (continued)
	Contingency funding planning



	Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities
	52.6   Treasury risk (continued)
	52.6.1  Liquidity risk (continued)

	52.6   Treasury risk (continued)
	52.6.1 Liquidity risk (continued)
	Approach
	IRRBB is the risk that the Bank’s financial position might be adversely affected by changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and spreads. Non-traded interest rate risk arises in the banking book from the provision of retail and wholesale (non-tra...
	The Bank’s objective for managing IRRBB is to ensure a higher degree of interest rate margin stability and reduced interest rate risk over an interest rate cycle. This is achieved by transferring the interest rate risk from the business to local treas...
	Risk Mitigation
	Risk management strategies considered include:
	o strategies regarding changes in the volume, composition, pricing and interest rate risk characteristics of assets and liabilities; and
	o the execution of applicable derivative contracts to maintain the Bank’s interest rate risk exposure within limits.
	o Where possible, hedge accounting is applied to derivatives that are used to hedge IRRBB. In cases where hedge relationships do not qualify for hedge accounting, mismatches may arise due to different bases used in fair valuing the hedges and the unde...
	o Structural interest rate risk arises from the variability of income from non-interest bearing products, managed variable rate products and the Bank’s equity, and is managed by Bank Treasury. Interest rate risk also arises in each of the ARO treasuri...
	Key assumptions
	Embedded optionality risk may also give rise to IRRBB:
	o Prepayment risk arises in relation to transactions where an early settlement option is embedded in the product. This risk most commonly arises in relation to fixed rate loans offered to retail customers, where the customer has an option to repay the...
	o Recruitment risk arises when the Bank commits to providing a product at a predetermined price for a period into the future. Customers have the option to take up this offer. Processes are in place to enable robust management of these additional forms...
	Risk measurement
	Re-pricing profiles
	Annual earnings at risk (AEaR)/Net interest income (NII) sensitivity
	AEaR/NII sensitivity measures the sensitivity of NII over the next 12 months to a specified shock in interest rates. AEaR is assessed across a range of interest rate scenarios, including parallel and key rate shocks and yield curve twists and inversio...
	Daily value at risk (DVaR)
	The Bank uses a sensitivity-based approach to calculate DVaR at a 95% confidence level for measuring IRRBB. The DVaR is monitored against approved internal limits and is used as a complementary metric to AEaR. The DVaR is supplemented by non- DVaR, st...
	Economic value of equity (EVE) sensitivity
	EVE sensitivity measures the sensitivity of the present value of the banking book at a specific point in time (PIT) to a specified shock to the yield curve. Similar to DVaR, EVE is a present value sensitivity and is complementary to income sensitivity...
	Stress testing
	Stress testing is tailored to each banking book and consists of a combination of stress scenarios and historical stress movements applied to the respective banking books. Stress testing is carried out by Market Risk to supplement the DVaR and AEaR met...
	Risk control
	Market risk is controlled through the use of AEaR, DVaR and stress limits as appropriate and supported by non-DVaR metrics (position and sensitivity limits), as well as the monthly monitoring of the risk profiles and EVE sensitivity. Limits are set an...
	Risk reporting
	DVaR and supporting metrics are reported daily for Bank Treasury, with the exception of two businesses, where reporting is performed on a monthly basis. The re-pricing profiles, AEaR, EVE sensitivity and stress results are reported monthly for Bank Tr...
	Interest rate sensitivity analyses
	Three separate interest rate sensitivity analyses for the Bank’s banking book are set out in the table that follows, namely, the re-pricing profile of the book, the potential effect of changes in market interest rates on annual earnings and impact on ...
	Re-pricing profile
	The re-pricing profile of the Bank’s banking books shows that the banking book remains asset sensitive, as interest-earning assets re-price sooner than interest-paying liabilities before and after derivative hedging activities. Accordingly, future net...



	Impact on earnings
	The following table shows the impact on AEaR/NII sensitivity for 100 and 200 bps up and down movements in market interest rates for the Bank’s banking books.  Assuming no management action is taken in response to market interest rate movements, a hypo...

	Impact on equity reserves
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